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2014 54
8.0 7.4

2014 4.8
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2014 12 31
EIB
GIC
) )

245 - 76 - - - - - - 245
1,238 - 102 377 - 331 180 180 - 2,041
1,765 - 1,109 1,096 970 57 900 328 497 5,802
2,338 1,750 - 101 - - 1 1 - 8,242
5,587 1,750 1,287 1,574 970 388 1,081 509 497 8,242

EIB GIC
SPV SPV
SPV SPV
EDTF 19
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BIS

EDTF 31
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©
W.
CFRO A.
B.J.
R.J.
H.
J.L.

2015 31
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N.V.
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2014 12 31 2013 12 31
* *

6 43,409 5,686,579 43,039 5,638,109

7 45,302 5,934,562 40,787 5,343,007

8 4,279 560,549 5,289 692,859

9 4,325 566,575 4,939 647,009

10 56,489 7,400,059 39,703 5,201,093

11 462,447 60,580,557 455,909  5,9724,079

12 39,770 5,209,870 46,552 6,098,312

13 3,807 498,717 3,747 490,857

14 2,059 269,729 1,991 260,821

15 7,148 936,388 6,901 904,031

16 452 59,212 1,055 138,205

211 27,641 170 22,270

24 2,501 327,631 1,910 250,210

17,25 8,560 1,121,360 8,030 1,051,930

43,44 327 42,837 9,073 1,188,563

681,086 89,222,266 669,095  8,7651,445

194/594



EDINETOOOO
OOo0ooooooooooOo00o00o0oO00DLO0000000bO00D0bO000DO0dnoo(es92s)

Ogoooood
2014 12 31 2013 12 31
* *

18 17,883 2,342,673 14,745 1,931,595
19 326,471 42,767,701 326,222 42,735,082
20 189,060 24,766,860 195,361 25,592,291
10 67,560 8,850,360 50,171 6,572,401
21,25 8,047 1,054,157 7,749 1,015,119
22 19,744 2,586,464 19,069 2,498,039
23 794 104,014 1,050 137,550
255 33,405 266 34,846
24 473 61,963 288 37,728
26 11,928 1,562,568 7,815 1,023,765
43,44 - - 7,825 1,025,075
642,215 84,130,165 630,561 82,603,491
28 24,804 3,261,114 23,731 3,108,761
29 5,931 776,961 5,823 762,813
30 6,349 831,719 7,029 920,799
12,280 1,608,680 12,852 1,683,612
30 181 23,711 236 30,916
i 30 1,043 136,633 1,269 166,239
1,224 160,344 1,505 197,155
31 473 61,963 446 58,426
38,871 5,002,101 38,534 5,047,954
681,086 89,222,266 669,095 87,651,445
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2014 12 31 2013 12 31
* *
32 18,638 2,441,578 19,707 2,581,617
32 9,520 1,247,120 10,612 1,390,172
32 9,118 1,194,458 9,095 1,191,445
33 2,075 271,825 2,189 286,759
33 196 25,676 188 24,628
33 1,879 246,149 2,001 262,131
34 81 10,611 79 10,349
35 219 28,689 232 30,392
12 418 54,758 56 7,336
36 1,142 149,602 1,567 205,277
12,857 1,684,267 13,030 1,706,930
37 5,086 666,266 5,322 697,182
38 2,532 331,602 3,910 512,210
39 437 57,247 528 69,168
8,055 1,055,205 9,760 1,278,560
40 2,633 344,923 2,643 346,233
40 488 63,928 197 25,807
1,681 220,211 430 56,330
4 (161) 21,001 88 11,528
1,842 241,302 342 44,802
43 - - 1,665 218,115
1,842 241,302 2,007 262,917
28 620 81,220 929 121,699
29 385 50,435 309 40,479
30 705 92,355 655 85,805
TR 30 74 9,694 67 8,777
31 58 7,598 47 6,157
1,842 241,302 2,007 262,917
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2014 12 31 2013 12 31
* *
1,842 241,302 2,007 262,917
28
325 42,575 (341) (44,671)
28
(G4 (4,454) 43) (5,633)
86 11,266 (28) (3,668)
533 69,823 (34) (4,454)
13 1,703 37 4,847
(237) (31,047) (70) (9,170)
28
@n (3,537) (21) (2,751)
28
548 71,788 (1,450) (189,950)
(586) (76,766) 1,459 191,129
31
22 2,882 (16) (2,096)
28
1 v 156 20,436 (71) (9,301)
28
(25) (3,275) (758) (99,298)
774 101,394 (1,336) (175,016)
2,616 342,696 671 87,901
1,372 179,732 (391) (51,221)
385 50,435 309 40,479
705 92,355 655 85,805
1 v 74 9,694 67 8,777
80 10,480 31 4,061
2,616 342,696 671 87,901

197/594



EDINETOOOO
OOo0ooooooooooOo00o00o0oO00DLO0000000bO00D0bO000DO0dnoo(es92s)
oOoOooodn

2014 1 1 23,731 3,108,761 12,852 1,683,612 1,505 197,155 446 58,426 38,534 5,047,954
620 81,220 1,072 140,432 92 12052 58 7,598 1,842 241,302
28
481 63,011 - - - - 22 2,882 503 65,893
361 47,291 - - - . - - 361 47,291
@7 (3,537) - - - - - - @7 (3,537)
(38) (4,978) - - - - - - (38) (4,978)
(25) (3,275) - - - - - - (25) (3,275)
1,372 179,732 1,072 140,432 92 12,052 80 10,480 2,616 342,696
- - (1,072)  (140,432) (92) (12,052) - - (1,164)  (152,484)
30 (167) (21,877) (648) (84,888) (443) (58,033) - - (1,258)  (164,798)
29 - - 108 14,148 - - - - 108 14,148
(42) (5,502) (32) (4,192) 162 21,222 (53) (6,943) 35 4,585
2014 12 31 24,804 3,261,114 12,280 1,608,680 1,224 160,344 473 61,963 38,871 5,002,101
2013 1 1 25,311 3,315,741 13,786 1,805,966 1,576 206,456 1,407 184,317 42,080 5,512,480
IFRS 10 11
- = = . - - (588) (77,028) (588) (77,028)
i vi
(994)  (130,214) - - - - - - (994)  (130,214)
2013 1 1
24,317 3,185,527 13,786 1,805,966 1,576 206,456 819 107,289 40,498 5,305,238
929 121,699 946 123,926 85 11,135 47 6,157 2,007 262,917
28
(412) (53,972) - - - - (16) (2,096) (428) (56,068)
(138) (18,078) - - - - - - (138) (18,078)
(1) (2,751) - - - - - - 1) (2,751)
9 1179 - - - - - - 9 1,179
(758) (99,298) - - - - - - (758) (99,298)
(391) (51,221) 946 123,926 85 11,135 31 4,061 671 87,901
i vi
- - (946)  (123,926) (85) (11,135) - - (1,031)  (135,061)
30 (14) (1,834) (83) (10,873) - - - - 97) (12,707)
29 - - 225 29,475 - . - - 225 29,475
29 - - (2,074)  (271,694) - . - - (2,074)  (271,694)
29 - - 1,000 131,000 - - - - 1,000 131,000
29 (79) (10,349) - - - - - - 79 (10,349)
29 (133) (17,423) - - - - - - (133) (17,423)
31 - - - - - - (360) (47,160) (360) (47,160)
31 4,061 ) (262) (71) (9,301) (44) (5,764) (86) (11,266)
2013 12 31 23,731 3,108,761 12,852 1,683,612 1,505 197,155 446 58,426 38,534 5,047,954
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12 31
2014 2013
> >
1,681 220,211 430 56,330
- - 1,719 225,189
39 437 57,247 528 69,168
15,16 924 121,044 818 107,158
40 2,633 344,923 2,643 346,233
40 5,240 637 83,447
17 2,227 20 2,620
34 (81) (10,611) 79) (10,349)
35 (219) (28,689) (232) (30,392)
12 (418) (54,758) (56) (7,336)
- - (2,022) (264,882)
(256) (33,536) 220 28,820
- - 204 26,724
7,18,40,43 (1,513) (198,203) (17,014)  (2,228,834)
8,35 2,724 356,844 64 8,384
10 (16,676)  (2,184,556) 25,591 3,352,421
9,22,43 57 7,467 (3,021) (395,751)
11,40,43 (2,976) (389,856) 20,298 2,659,038
% 12,576 95 12,445
10 17,288 2,264,728 (24,520)  (3,212,120)
19,43 (6,143) (804,733) (1,642) (215,102)
20 (6,588) (863,028) (27,689)  (3,627,259)
21,43 91 11,921 (2,818) (369,158)
(338) (44,278) (318) (41,658)
(4,243) (555,833) 1,451 190,081
(13,463)  (1,763,653) (24,693)  (3,234,783)
13 (54) (7,074) (58) (7,598)
54 7,074 1 131
44 591 77,421 1,788 234,228
15,16 (2,360) (309,160) (1,791) (234,621)
1,609 210,779 669 87,639
12 (9,863)  (1,292,053) (44,524)  (5,832,644)
19,528 2,558,168 44,167 5,785,877
9,505 1,245,155 252 33,012
29 - - (2,788) (365,228)
- - 1,465 191,915
108 14,148 - -
(382) (50,042) - -
1 v (1,164) (152,484) (1,030) (134,930)
(86) (11,266) (86) (11,266)
30 (709) (92,879) (83) (10,873)
3,607 472,517 3,224 422,344
(9) (1,179) (733) (96,023)
1,365 178,815 (31) (4,061)
(2,593) (339,683) (24,472)  (3,205,832)
43,039 5,638,109 68,103 8,921,493
2,963 388,153 (592) (77,552)
43,409 5,686,579 43,039 5,638,109
18,877 2,472,887 19,928 2,610,568
9,739 1,275,809 9,660 1,265,460
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1
Wet op het financieel toezicht
2
2.1
IFRS
1ASB
IFRS 10

IAS 27 SIC 12 IFRS 10

2014
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IFRS 11

IASB 2011 IAS 31 SIC 13

IAS 31

IFRS 12
IFRS 12

IFRS 10 IFRS 11 IFRS 12
IFRS 10 IFRS 11
IFRS 10

IFRS 10 IFRS 12 IAS 27
IFRS 10

IFRS 12
IAS 27

IAS 27
IAS 27
27

2014

IFRS 10

IFRS 12
2014

2014

IFRS 10

201/594

IFRS 11

oOoOooodn
2014
IFRS 12
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IAS 28
IAS 28
2014

IAS 32
IAS 32
2014

IAS 39

2014

IAS 36

2014

IFRIC 21

IAS 37

2014

1ASB

IAS 19

2014
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2010-2012 2011-2013
IFRS
IAS 16 24 38
IAS 40
1ASB
IFRS 14
IFRS 15
IAS 16 IAS 38
IAS 16 IAS 41
IAS 27
IFRS 10 IAS 28
IFRS 11
2012-2014
IFRS
2014 IFRS
IFRS
IFRS 11 2014
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2009 IASB
13
IFRS
2018
IFRS 11

2013
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2013 12 31

(33)

®

48

102

18

(20)

@

(255)

(107)

@97)

@a71)

(199)

78

@

@

(296)

@

@97)

2013 12 31

3
10
13
@®
@
(©))
(76)
@
) -
85
17
@
@
19
19
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IFRS 10 2014
2013

2013 12 31

19)

4

(4,341)

141

16

(211)

(4,438)

(580)

(3.178)

(89)

1

(3,846)

(592)

(4,438)

2013 12 31

(52)
(41)
(11)
€H)
®
4
@
2
C ) -
)
¢H)
@
6))
©)
1
®
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2013
2014
2013 12
31 3,715 7,655
4,177 8,581
2013 IFRS 13
IFRS 13 IFRS 13
2013 2014 286 170
IFRS 13 2014
2.3.1
2013 291 2014 187
2013 2014 16
IFRS

2013 12 31 2013

24,640 25,311
(309) (328)
(600) (666)

23,731 24,317
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2.1.2
AQR
4.4.9
2.2
2.2.1
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2.2.2

20 50
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2.3
2.3.1

oTC
2.3.2
2.3.3

IAS 39
1

80 125
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IFRS

10.

2.3.4.
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2.10

90

2.11

2.24

2.12
2.12.1

2.12.2

214/594



EDINETOOOO
OOo0ooooooooooOo00o00o0oO00DLO0000000bO00D0bO000DO0dnoo(es92s)
oOoOooodn

2.13
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2.15
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IBNR
IFRS
11
LIP
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CRD IV

2.16
2.16.1
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2.18

40
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2.19
2.19.1

2.19.2

2.20
2.20.1

2.20.2
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2.22.1

Projected

unit credit method

2.22.2

2.22.3

2.22.4

2.23

2.23
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2.30

2.31

2.32
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3
Tier 1 Tier 1
2015
CRR IV CRD IV 2010
2014
2013 CRD 111
BIS Tier
1
CRD 111 2014
CRD IV CRR
2014
2019
CRD 111 CRD IV CRR
2019
CET 1 Tier 1
CRD 111 2013 2.0 4.0 8.0
CRD IV CRR 1 2014 s 6.0 8.0
2016 - 2019
2 2.5 2.5 2.5
7.0 8.5 10.5
2016 - 2019
2 0 -2.5
SIFI 2 2016 - 2019 3.0 3.0 3.0
12014  CET 1 2015 4.5
2 2019 2016
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CRD IV CRD 111
2014 2013
28 24,528 27,197
(119) (119)
5,931 5,823
28 437
365 (1,089)
(5,248) (3,698)
3,229 -
Tier 1 28,714 28,551
TR 30 - 1,269
30 - 7,265
7,283 -
6 -
®) (1,993)
(2,126) -
Tier 1 33,874 35,092
- (301)
11,738 7,744
8 -
- (885)
(481) -
BIS 45,139 41,650
211,870 210,829
Tier 1 13.6% 13.5%
Tier 1 16.0% 16.6%
BIS 21.3% 19.8%
14.4% 16.1%

226/594



EDINETOOOO
OOo0ooooooooooOo00o00o0oO00DLO0000000bO00D0bO000DO0dnoo(es92s)
oOoOooodn

IRB FVPL
CRR
2014 - 2018

IRB 2015
Tier CRR

4.1

4.1.1
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0TCs

12

Central Treasury
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IFRS
IFRS
IFRS 4.3.1 4.3.2 2014
4.3.1
12
2014 55
2014 2014 12 31 15
2014 12 31
200 2013 12 31 2014
10
2014 12 31 2013 12 31

10

(15) (50)
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4.3.2

2014 2.3 0.4

2014

2014 12 31 2013 12 31

0.4 2.3

4.4
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4.4.1

2014 2013 2014 2013
43,409 43,039 0% 0
45,302 40,787 61% 56
56,489 39,703 87% 92

462,447 455,909 7% 79
38,493 45,735 2% 8

646,140 625,173 67% 67
52,650 49,556 16% 15
698,790 674,729 63% 64

231/594
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4.4.2
49
2014 21 TIS
2014 30 TIS
10
2014 2013
462,447 455,909
2,135 2,661
18,295 10,697
11,626 7,860
430,391 434,691
322,089 75% 335,046 77
27,312 6% 26,972 6
40,198 9% 36,569 9
11,273 3% 10,635 2
9,230 2% 6,631 2
19,948 5% 18,698 4
341 0% 140 0
430,391 100% 434,691 100
210,788 49% 216,351 50
TIS 127,287 30% 131,364 30
92,316 21% 86,976 20
430,391 100% 434,691 100
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Ogoooood
TIS
2014 2013
26,202 26,568
14,001 14,565
11,194 14,157
6,253 6,795
10,752 8,557
6,103 6,581
5,343 6,615
5,968 6,065
9,478 5,442
4,718 4,711
2,364 2,311
823 1,008
1,340 1,310
TIS 22,658 26,679
TIS 127,287 131,364
2014 2013
17,474 14,890
22,977 16,716
14,031 14,293
9,933 9,006
7,249 6,032
4,276 4,735
3,823 3,683
1,792 2,915
2,285 1,959
1,772 1,649
6,704 11,098
92,316 86,976
4.4.3
1SDA
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4.4.4

IAS 32

234/594



EDINETOOOO
OOo0ooooooooooOo00o00o0oO00DLO0000000bO00D0bO000DO0dnoo(es92s)
oOoOooodn

IAS 32
2014 12 31

46,030 (728) 45,302 - (28,676) 16,626

4,279 - 4,279 - - 4,279

124,764 (68,275) 56,489 (43,195) - 13,294

483,732 (21,285) 462,447 - (18,864) 443,583

8,917 (357) 8,560 - - 8,560

667,722 (90,645) 577,077 (43,195)  (47,540) 486,343

20,169 (2.286) 17,883 - (721) 17,162

341,230 (14,759) 326,471 - (2,036) 324,435

140,803 (73,243) 67,560 (43,195) - 24,365

8,404 (357) 8,047 - - 8,047

510,606 (90,645) 419,961 (43,195) (2,757) 374,009
2013 12 31

41,786 (999) 40,787 - (23,277) 17,510

4,939 - 4,939 - - 4,939

66,836 (27,133) 39,703 (30,492) - 9,211

474,001 (18,092) 455,909 - (11,265) 444,644

8,400 (370) 8,030 8,030

595,962 (46,594) 549,368 (30,492)  (34,542) 484,334

17,384 (2,639) 14,745 - (904) 13,841
338,114 (11,892) 326,222 - (1,636) 324,586
81,864 (31,693) 50,171 (30,492) - 19,679
8,119 (370) 7,749 - - 7,749

445,481 (46,594) 398,887 (30,492) (2,540) 365,855
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4.4.5

4.4.6

PD

21 RO- R20 D1- D4

D1- D4

D1 90 D2

D3 D4
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2014 12 31
29,372 15,616 175 139 45,302
1,269 77 3 71 2,120
- 1,544 20,185 589 1,193 23,511
- 39,411 173,101 4,327 1,391 218,230
- 1,344 20,424 1,845 224 23,837
- 9,848 8,447 - - 18,295
- 13,158 147,604 3,386 4,572 168,720
- 4,257 2,045 7 130 6,439
100,203 388,199 10,332 7,720 506,454

2013 12 31
26,742 14,041 - 4 40,787
1,612 933 1 - 2,546
- 984 13,368 934 1,788 17,074
- 51,071 163,548 3,177 1,588 219,384
- 1,019 18,397 1,538 562 21,516
- 4,450 6,247 - - 10,697
- 19,916 147,761 4,572 3,859 176,108
- 962 7,358 110 154 8,584
106,756 371,653 10,332 7,955 496,696
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30 30 60 61 90 91
2014 12 31
139 - 35 1 175
- 1 1 1 3
- 300 61 28 200 589
- 2,955 549 282 541 4,327
- 1,171 333 116 225 1,845
- 1,883 334 178 991 3,386
- 6 1 - - 7
6,454 1,279 640 1,959 10,332
2013 12 31
1 - - - 1
- 594 264 67 9 934
- 2,057 683 356 81 3,177
- 1,042 289 206 1 1,538
- 3,187 907 362 116 4,572
- 84 20 6 - 110
6,965 2,163 997 207 10,332
4.4.7
2013
2014
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Special Asset Management

4.4.8
FGH
2014

Taxateurs en Accountants PTA

2013

2010
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2014 12 31
0.8

2014 12 31
8,586 1,197 673 249 152
14,676 3,059 1,104 544 333
23,262 4,256 1,777 793 485
1,062 527 342 23 26
820 89 37 8 2
1,882 616 379 31 28

2013 12 31
9,087 949 516 144 35
16,163 2,632 788 485 23
25,250 3,581 1,304 629 58
1,942 680 396 168 48
1,041 135 30 29 11

2,983 815 426 197 59
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ACC
2014 111
4.4.9 AQR
ECB
2013 12 31 2013
AQR
Tier 1 2013 12 31
CVA
AQR 2014

2013 12 31
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ooooood
2014

SSM
AQR

2013
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ooooooo
2013
2014 10 ECB 2,093
2014 2014
ECB SSM
AQR
2014
IBNR
IBNR EL
2014 EL 2014
4.5
— — 4.7

VaR

- RWA
Tier 1
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12

CFP
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2014 12 31
2,293 8,777 1,270 5,015 666 18,021
238,882 44,500 9,987 15,138 23,079 331,586
229 32,350 59,775 67,318 44,938 204,610
1,543 4,878 712 811 22 7,966
38 684 1,523 5,624 23,553 31,422
- - 3 1,382 15,340 16,725
242,985 91,189 73,270 95,288 107,598 610,330
11,826 - - - - 11,826
2013 12 31
2,934 5,791 1,670 3,326 1,392 15,113

250,658 35,739 10,567 12,881 21,462 331,307
112 31,975 63,353 74,674 42,378 212,492

1,333 4,568 238 870 83 7,092
69 821 1,511 6,892 22,280 31,573
5 94 12,055 12,154

255,106 78,899 77,339 98,737 99,650 609,731
11,429 - - - - 11,429
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2014 12 31

41,992 1,377 40 - - 43,409

14,373 26,813 2,626 1,206 284 45,302

26 839 503 2,214 697 4,279

35 752 128 1,122 2,288 4,325

22 4,375 3,404 12,086 36,602 56,489

30,380 39,258 38,483 83,696 270,630 462,447

4 3,858 3,090 16,369 16,449 39,770

747 - - - 1,754 2,501

744 4,194 1,528 1,539 549 8,554

88,323 81,466 49,802 118,232 329,253 667,076

2,287 8,781 1,263 4,953 599 17,883
236,154 45,062 9,728 14,295 21,232 326,471
229 32,318 59,470 63,839 33,204 189,060

176 4,477 3,830 15,421 43,656 67,560
1,715 4,386 713 791 57 7,662
40 695 1,494 5,611 11,904 19,744
473 - - - - 473

- - 3 1,077 10,848 11,928

241,074 95,719 76,501 105,987 121,500 640,781
(152,751)  (14.,253) (26,699) 12,245 207,753 26,295
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2013 12 31
15,495 27,542 2 - - 43,039
6,361 30,692 2,376 1,138 220 40,787
50 1,868 544 1,802 1,025 5,289
40 819 402 888 2,790 4,939
152 3,511 2,841 11,477 21,722 39,703
27,749 33,349 33,823 85,605 275,383 455,909
70 4,058 3,040 11,778 27,606 46,552
460 - - - 1,450 1,910
870 3,590 1,216 1,568 780 8,024
51,247 105,429 44,244 114,256 330,976 646,152
2,907 5,657 1,691 3,224 1,266 14,745
249,908 36,462 10,526 12,408 16,918 326,222
112 31,850 62,865 70,110 30,424 195,361
888 3,958 2,872 16,454 25,999 50,171
1,663 4,548 299 866 85 7,461
70 653 1,533 7,076 9,737 19,069
160 - - - 128 288
- 5 - 89 7,721 7,815
255,708 83,133 79,786 110,227 92,278 621,132
(204,461) 22,296 (35,542) 4,029 238,698 25,020
2014 12 31 2014
26 2013 40 2014 12 31 23 2013
30
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4.7

VaR

DNB

VaR

99 VaR

VaR

VaR

VaR 2013

4.5
VaR
VaR
97.5
VaR
2014

VaR 2014
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10

VaR

VaR 2014
Tier-2
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4.3

VaR

22

40
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VaR (1 97.5 )

2014 —12 31 3 1 - 1 - 1 3
2014 — 3 1 1 NA 4
2014 — 16 7 1 1 1 NA 22
2014 — 2 1 - - - NA 2
2013 —12 31 4 2 1 1 - (©) 4
2013 — 6 2 - 1 1 NA 6
2013 — 10 2 1 2 1 NA 9
2013 — 3 1 - - - NA 4
VaR
2014 2013
0.6 0.6
(0.3) 1.1
0.2 0.0
0.0 0.2)
0.5 1.5
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4.9
46 ( )

47
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CDS

FVA FVA

EURIBOR LIBOR
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2014
2013 2013
2013
1,345 1,024 415
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2014 2014 2013 2013

43,409 43,409 43,039 43,012
45,302 45,312 40,787 40,859

4,279 4,279 5,289 5,289

4,325 4,325 4,939 4,939
56,489 56,489 39,703 39,703
462,447 473,920 455,909 461,056
39,770 39,770 46,552 46,552
656,021 667,504 636,218 641,410
17,883 17,912 14,745 14,879
326,471 331,238 326,222 327,870
189,060 196,056 195,361 199,043
67,560 67,560 50,171 50,171
19,744 19,744 19,069 19,069
11,928 13,111 7,815 8,103
632,646 645,621 613,383 619,135
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2014 12 31
726 42,683 - 43,409
- 45,312 - 45,312
3,059 1,091 129 4,279
318 2,274 1,733 4,325
60 55,306 1,123 56,489
- 105,434 368,486 473,920
36,974 1,805 991 39,770
- - 327 327
- 17,912 - 17,912
- 73,994 257,244 331,238
1,059 166,200 28,797 196,056
1,399 65,079 1,082 67,560
15 19,683 46 19,744
13,082 29 - 13,111
2013 12 31
1,709 41,303 - 43,012
1,790 31,799 7,270 40,859
2,959 2,155 175 5,289
371 2,962 1,606 4,939
591 38,765 347 39,703
1,001 104,560 355,495 461,056
42,597 3,645 310 46,552
- - 9,073 9,073
23 13,949 907 14,879
2 68,306 259,562 327,870
1,380 169,684 27,979 199,043
2,036 48,061 74 50,171
1,787 17,228 54 19,069
8,064 39 - 8,103
- - 7,825 7,825
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108 2013 212 73
2013
101 2013 212
67 2013
212
EBITDA
6.0
RMBS CDO 414
3.6 6.0
2014 2014
11 12 31
175 25 - 5 (70) - (6) 129
1,606 159 - 456 (937) @ 450 1,733

347 102 - 1 - (339) 1,012 1,123

310 87 113 317 23) - 187 991

74 73 - - - (73) 1,008 1,082

54 1 - @ - ®) - 46

2014 1,008
1,102
2014
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2013 2013
12 31
83 ©) - 128 ©4) ©) - (6) 175
1,657 (32) - 344 (488) (152) - 277 1,606
245 (56) - 152 - 6 @ 1 347
98 2 8 299 (89) @ ) - 310
121 (62) - - - - @ 16 74
16 11 - 88 G7) 0 - - 54
( )
2014 12 31
24 1 25
145 14 159
102 - 102
87 - 87
69 4 73
1 - 1
2013 12 31
(©) 1 @
(58) 26 (32)
78 (134) (56)
2 - 2
(53) (©) (62)
11 - 11
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2014 2013
27 37
- 11
an (15)
(10) (©)
6 27
4.10
LIBOR EURIBOR
2013 10 29 LIBOR EURIBOR

2013

USD LIBOR JPY LIBOR TIBOR TIBOR
EURIBOR
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ooooooo
2014 LIBOR
EURIBOR
EURIBOR
VEB Fortis N.V. Ageas N.V.
Fortis N.V.

Ageas N.V. 2007

18

SME
EURIBOR
EURIBOR

2014 2015
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OooooOodd
5
2014 a) b)
FGH
BGZ
23 43

ACC

2013
DLL—

DLL —
BPD MAB

FGH

B.V.
10
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218 2013
2014 12 31
5,783 2,416 1,000 313 (394) - 9,118
1,318 552 30 36 20) <) 1,879
349 799 548 261 (550) 453 1,860
7,450 3,767 1,578 610 (964) 416 12,857
4,662 2,417 834 311 (50) 119) 8,055
1,422 420 131 656 4 - 2,633
354 67 9 8 50 - 488
1,012 863 604 (365) (968) 535 1,681
261 105 168 102) (726) 133 (161)
751 758 436 (263) (242) 402 1,842
751 758 436 (263) 42) 402 1,842
354,315 494,452 37,226 22,953 89,072  (320,739) 677,279
17 684 22 193 2,891 - 3,807
354,332 495,136 37,248 23,146 91,963  (320,739) 681,086
326,481 482,889 32,957 21,862 84,306  (306,280) 642,215
326,481 482,889 32,957 21,862 84,306  (306,280) 642,215
140 39 1,509 4 59 - 1,751
127 87 47 9 167 - 437
9 32 1 6 24 - 72
322 676 455 1 - - 1,454
11 4,561 2,672 455 842 51 - 8,581
1,923 785 252 678 10 - 3,648
(454) (337) 67) @D m - (886)
(1,263) (355) (268) (335) (6) - 2,227)
69 51 6 106 - - 232
4,836 2,816 378 1,270 48 - 9,348
) 3,297 2,424 186 1,141 44 - 7,092
) 1,014 169 101 - - - 1,284
IB\R 525 223 91 129 4 - 72
4,836 2,816 378 1,270 48 - 9,348
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2013 12 31
5,605 2,606 0} 973 335 422) - 9,095
1,319 641 3 52 29 (10) (33) 2,001

616 793 2 545 (556) 1,544 (1,010) 1,934
7,540 4,040 3 1,570 (192) 1,112 (1,043) 13,030
5,015 3,132 2 764 339 591 (83) 9,760
1,384 568 - 170 513 8 - 2,643

90 75 - 9 8 14 1 197
1,051 265 1 627 (1,052) 499 (961) 430

270 219 - 205 (238) (129) (239) 88

781 46 1 422 (814) 628 722) 342

- - 80 - - 1,585 - 1,665

781 46 81 422 (814) 2,213 722) 2,007
376,241 482,309 1,276 33,128 27,192 70,943  (325,741) 665,348
17 643 - 25 213 2,849 - 3,747
376,258 482,952 1,276 33,153 27,405 73,792  (325,741) 669,095
349,172 472,329 1,051 29,267 26,344 63,995  (311,597) 630,561
349,172 472,329 1,051 29,267 26,344 63,995  (311,597) 630,561
160 28 - 1,420 13 38 - 1,659
145 127 - 50 27 179 - 528

2 52 - - - 12 - 66

322 599 - 460 - - - 1,381

11 3,866 2,893 - 467 376 53 - 7,655
1,979 1,000 - 276 520 16 - 3,791
(582) (408) - 40) ) ©) - (1,045)
(826) 467) - (223) 34) (10) - (1,560)

124 (346) - 25) 4 1 - (260)
4,561 2,672 - 455 842 51 - 8,581
4,153 2,328 - 262 758 47 - 7,548

256 176 - 111 - - - 543

IB\R 152 168 - 82 84 4 - 490
4,561 2,672 - 455 842 51 - 8,581
2014 12 31 2013 12 31

1,483 1,001
109 85
84 53
234 527
3 6
15 3
43 13

1,971 1,778
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2014 12 31

DLL
8,959 37,553 185 (595)

DLL
192 597 60 27

DLL
80 301 26 6

DLL
212 677 135 55

DLL
67 167 26 9

DLL
8 11 14 )

DLL

ACC
(54) 545 (30) -
DLL 4 5 2 1
DLL 2 2 1 -
DLL 5 18 @ -

DLL
71 169 24 8
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DLL
240 694 (10) @ -
DLL 18 28 5 2 -

DLL
Vi1 115 4 - -

DLL
13 24 4 1 -
DLL 4 5 2 - -
DLL 25 55 7 2 -

DLL
BGZ

219 2,795 2 2 -
- 1 - -
DLL 8 27 2 - -
DLL 1 2 1 - -

DLL
21 33 5 2 -

DLL

1,296 3,991 625 190 -

DLL
97 201 51 12 -

DLL
9 56 1 @ -
99 13 73 2 -

DLL
294 706 71 30 -

DLL
60 332 5 0 -

DLL
4 27 2 - -
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DLL
24 112 10 4 -

DLL
76 184 33 4 -
4 1,487 (11) ®) -
- 2 2 - -

DLL
169 341 81 16 -
DLL 7 26 2 - -

DLL
- 1 - - -

DLL
354 952 139 41 -

DLL
191 307 134 37 -

12,857 52,562 1,681 (161) -
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2013 12 31

DLL
9,090 40,490

DLL
152 577

DLL
105 201

DLL
104 653

DLL

56 169

DLL
6 12

DLL

ACC
(38) 648
DLL 4 6
DLL 2 2
DLL 3 17

DLL
60 171

DLL
297 714
DLL 17 27
DLL 52 112

DLL

9 24
DLL 2 4
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DLL 20 51
DLL
BGZ
384 5,525
® 3
DLL 7 23
DLL
- 2
DLL
2 10
DLL
1,495 3,976
DLL
104 193
DLL
13 55
119 14
DLL
310 717
DLL
54 333
DLL
8 41
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DLL
20 106

DLL
83 168
15 1,464
3 3

DLL
170 354
DLL 7 30

DLL
6 11

DLL
199 948

DLL
94 305
@ -

13,030 58,249
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6
2014 2013
726 954
42,318 35,802
43,044 36,756
365 6,283
43,409 43,039
2014 12 2,964 2013 12 2,849
7
2014 2013
12,905 12,220
27,592 22,418
4,471 5,758
120 62
(26) (51)
45,062 40,407
240 380
45,302 40,787
11 51 48
- 3
14) (10)
D o
an -
6 10
12 31 26 51
165 2013 55
8
2014 2013
712 1,171
123 204
950 1,086
2,117 2,109
377 719

4,279 5,289
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9
2014 2013
1 63
2,494 2,885
1,090 1,056
274 549
455 386
4,325 4,939
14 2013 18 34
48
10
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10.1

0TC

CDS CDS

10.2
oTC
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10.3

2014 12 31 ( ) 12,869 2013 10,427

( ) 122 3
3,908 2013 1,947 2014 12 31
164 2013 215

2014 12 31 5,242 2013
2,782
5,078 2013 2,567

2014 12 31
( ) 2,660 2013 2,405
2014 548 2013 1,450
2014
586 2013 1,459

2014 12 31 11 2013 49

97

2014 12 31
185 2013 225

272/594



EDINETOOOO
OOo0ooooooooooOo00o00o0oO00DLO0000000bO00D0bO000DO0dnoo(es92s)
oOoOooodn

( ) 2014 12 31 8 2013 29

2014 12 31 1,797 2013 2,386
87 2013 279
106 2013
2014 12 31

10.4

0TC
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2014 12 31
2,545,638 50,172 48,298
158,464 6,317 17,938
- - 1,324
2,704,102 56,489 67,560
oTC
362,705 5,190 6,842
3,990 81 58
4,912 61 42
371,607 5,332 6,942
oTC
1,993,667 39,016 35,237
113,689 4,897 5,199
0TC 2,107,356 43,913 40,436
49,301 1 4
2,156,657 43,914 40,440
3,988 6 10
1,996 15 49
5,984 21 59
oTC
6,409 446 374
3,122 187 138
9,531 633 512
1,859 272 345
2,545,638 50,172 48,298
92,569 3,950 50
44,400 1,571 14,440
136,969 5,521 14,490
19,698 788 3,448
1,797 8

158,464 6,317 17,938
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2013 12 31

2,747,381 36,118 34,272
133,428 3,585 14,441
- - 1,458
2,880,809 39,703 50,171

0TC
40,423 391 339
330,785 4,146 5,172
3,681 41 41
17 5 1
3,808 11 5
257 17 8
378,971 4,611 5,566

0TC
2,009,856 26,818 23,483
166,404 - 1
113,487 3,028 3,103
oTC 2,289,747 29,846 26,587
47,937 2 1
2,337,684 29,848 26,588
3,815 23 10
4,036 173 442
7,851 196 452

0TC
2,137 340 300
37 - -
7,643 373 372
9,817 713 672
13,058 750 994
2,747,381 36,118 34,272
47,264 2,019 72
63,733 1,071 11,498
110,997 3,090 11,570
20,045 466 2,871

2,386 29

133,428 3,585 14,441
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2014 2013
207 634
1,928 2,027
24,983 17,281
218,482 219,628
24,078 21,925
18,295 10,697
175,783 182,144
6,744 7,348
470,500 461,684
(9,348) (8,581)
461,152 453,103
1,295 2,806
462,447 455,909
122 2013 154
2014 2013
11 8,581 7,655
3,648 3,791
(886) (1,045)
(2,227) (1,560)
232 (260)
9,348 8,581
7,092 7,548
1,284 543
IBNR 972 490
9,348 8,581
15,957 16,042
86 2013 29
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2008 IAS 39 IFRS 7
2008 7 1

2014 12 31 2013 12 31
347 334 579 533
1,188 1,213 2,607 2,718
1,535 1,547 3,186 3,251
26 2013 42

2014

180 2013 113
2014 12 31 2013 12 31
3
1 3
37 57
121 154
158 211
148 2013 233

26 2013 79
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2014 2013
8,798 8,535
17,370 15,847
857 814
27,025 25,196
3,074 3,043
23,951 22,153
7,838 7,532
15,391 13,910
722 711
23,951 22,153
2014 12 31 344
406 2,166 2013 1,911
2014 2013
12
2014 2013
2,297 1,710
31,456 35,714
4,740 8,170
1,277 958
39,770 46,552
60 2013 111
2014 2013
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2014 2013
46,552 50,425
1,106 (749)
9,863 44,524
(19,528) (44,167)
- (1,163)
1,836 (1,984)
(59) (334)
39,770 46,552
13
3,807 2013 3,747
49
2014 2013
3,747 3,649
IFRS 10 11 - 196
54 58
(54) €H)
81 79
(53) (62)
86 (118)
(54) (54)
3,807 3,747
2014 12 31
B.V. 20% 29%
N.V. 15% 15%

20
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2014 2013
1,716 3,265
65,817 66,124
15,227 15,251
10,445 9,724
93,205 94,364
61,559 59,043
7,011 11,133
14,817 14,450
83,387 84,626
26,796 23,397
16 349
288 (505)
304 (156)

2014 2013
111 50
111 50
28 (26)
139 24
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2014 12 31
1,381 428 182 1,991
77 1 3 81
7 138 75 220
- ® ) (15)
21 8 11 40
- Q17 (80) (197)
(32) (29) - (61)
1,454 421 184 2,059
1,490 1,356 648 3,494
36 (935) (464) (1,435)
1,454 421 184 2,059
2013 12 31
1,523 474 346 2,343
39 @ ® (48)
- 87 32 119
(63) - (100) (163)
- (C)) (€)) ®
2 19 17 38
- (134) (103) 37)
(42) (13) (€Y) (56)
1,381 428 182 1,991
1,413 1,232 593 3,238
(32) (804) (411) (1,247)
1,381 428 182 1,991
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669

16.5 11.7x

42 BGZ

29 2013 13
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15
2014 12 31
2,101 4,800 6,901
13 108 121
121 1,630 1,751
74) (484) (558)
(11) o (12)
(109) (131) (240)
- (914) (914)
72) 171 99
1,969 5,179 7,148
3,314 8,207 11,521
(1,345) (3,028) (4,373)
1,969 5,179 7,148
2013 12 31
2,390 4,110 6,500
(10) (63) (73)
124 1,535 1,659
(62) (486) (548)
(118) 44) (162)
- 682 682
(10) - (10)
(141) (150) (291)
- (807) (807)
72) 23 (49)
2,101 4,800 6,901
3,512 7,754 11,266
(1,411) (2,954) (4,365)
2,101 4,800 6,901
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16
2014 2013
1,055 1,489
IFRS 10 11 - (18)
609 132
(1,051) (75)
- 27%)
(10) 1)
13 172)
(164) (16)
452 1,055
810 1,597
(358) (542)
452 1,055
2014
2014 2013
44% 76%
56% 24Y%
RICS
84 2013 87
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2014 2013
590 1,701
1,599 1,838
1,495 880
1,835 2,048
101 280
25 6 6
2,934 1,277
8,560 8,030

2014 2013
1,227 1,119
426 786
182 143
1,835 2,048
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2014
16 2013 518
IFRS
11
2014 2014
12 31
850 (101) 16 (96) 669
266 (25) 24 (149) 116
9 - - @) 8
1,125 (126) 40 (246) 793
2013 2013
12 31
351 518 (19) 850
113 119 34 266
11 - @ 9
475 637 13 1,125
2014 2013
495 677
205 1,018
@127) (317)
(147) (546)
IFRS 11 - (46)

426 786
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18
2014 2013
979 4,077
16,136 9,747
708 808
60 113
17,883 14,745
19
2014 2013
56,438 46,881
96,572 91,015
162,857 175,870
2,025 1,474
8,579 10,982
326,471 326,222
20 2013 22
20
2014 2013
41,824 42,796
13,241 11,620
127,792 137,482
6,203 3,463
189,060 195,361
21
2014 2013
5,411 4,838
2,791 3,010
385 288
(546) (414)
6 21
8,047 7,749
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22
669 2013 363
674
2013 1,343
5,108 2013 5,061
2014 2013

14,629 14,116
688 1,928
4,427 3,025
19,744 19,069

23

2014 2013

315 396
267 268
212 386
794 1,050
396 120
135 381
@a72) (95)
“44) (10)
315 396
268 304
68 579
()] (582)
(25) (33)
267 268
386 328
IFRS 10 11 - 78
61 75
(26) (61)
(209) (34)
212 386
794 1,050
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80
283

2015 2016

21 2013 32

2014 12 31
2013 12 31

653 141 - 794
207 843 - 1,050
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24
25 2013 25
1,657 2013 1,738
2014 12 31
2014 12 31
54 1 1 ()
437 (13) 203 -
(287) - (168) -
3 11 36 -
183 - 262 -
1,754 (89) (33) -
- 3 (58) -
112) 8 - (114)
- Q) - - 9
61 705 (38) -
415 (153) (349) -
2,501 473 (144) (113)
2013 12 31
35 - 502 (252)
641 @ 116 -
(455) - 91 -
75 142 77 -
445 - (278) -
1,451 128 (784) -
(68) - ®) -
1 7 - 34
- (110) - - O]
(20) 75 2 -
(85) (63) 14) -
1,910 288 (293) (222)
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25
2014 2013
- (6) (6)
- 385 288
379 282
116 66
263 216
379 282
25.1
2013 CAO
2013
67
500
2014 2020
250
IAS 19
2014 12 31
ACC
IFRS
2014 2014
ACC
2014 2013
673 545
557 479
116 66

291/594



EDINETOOOO
OOo0ooooooooooOo00o00o0oO00DLO0000000bO00D0bO000DO0dnoo(es92s)
oOoOooodn

2014 2013

11 545 19,464

9 -

21 244

3 225

- 16

17 (119)

- (20,620)

26 -

¢Y) ®)

2 ®)

39 “n

46 1,391

12 31 673 545

11 479 18,202

7 -

19 230

8 491

- 17

17 (119)

- ®)

- (18,779)

®) ©)

66 445

12 31 557 479

2015

2014 2013

24..2% 31.6%

31.0% 26.4%

4.7% 6.2%

0.6% -0.4%

39.5% 36.2%

100% 100%
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2014 2013
21 244
(19) (230)
3 225
26 -
1 €H)
32 238
12 31
2014 2013
2.3% 3.8%
1.6% 2.5%
1.6% 2.0%
25.2
106 2013 96
26
2014 2013
11,902 7,782
- 9
26 24
11,928 7,815
2014
2026 2.50
2019 2029
4.625 50.8 2024 12 1.429
2013 3.875 2023
1,000 4.625 2023 1,750
5.75 2043 1,250
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2012 4.125 2022
1,000 5.25 2027 500
3.95 2022 1,500
2010 3.75 2020 1,000
2009 5.875 2019 1,000
27
2014 2013
11,826 11,429
35,432 32,126
5,392 5,919
- 82
52,650 49,556
587
2013 478

4.10
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2014 2013
34 66
123 162
128 123
285 351

2013 16
75 2013 90

2014 2013
1,393 1,137
2,456 2,210
71 172
3,920 3,519

28

2014 2013
(94) (575)
643 282
2 29
11 49
(196) (3,251)
24,528 27,197
24,894 23,731
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2014 2013
(575) (163)
481 (412)
(94) (575)
282 420
(34) (43)

86 (28)

533 (34)

13 37
(237) (70)
643 282

29 50
@n (21)

2 29

49 40

548 (1,450)
(586) 1,459
11 49
(3.251) (2,493)
(11) (85)
(14) (673)
3,080 -
(196) (3,251)
27,197 26,463
620 929
(3.080) -
(209) (195)
24,528 27,197
24,894 23,731
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29
2000 2005
2000 2001 2002 2005
2013
2013 12
5.2 6.5
2014 14
2014 27
105.00% 26.25 2014 12 31
107.45% 26.86 238 7.3
2014 1.625
2013 1.275
2014 237,961,365
25
2014 2013
5,823 6,672
- (2,074)
- 225
108 1,000
5,931 5,823
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30 1 Vi
1 v
2014 2013
6,530 7,265
i 1,043 1,269
I 7,573 8,534
2,000
8.40 2011 11 2011 12
29 2017 29
7.49
2,000
8.375 2011 26 2011
26 2016 26
6.425
500
9.94 2009 2 27
2010 27 2019 27 EURIBOR  7.50
2,868
11.0 2009 2009 12

31 2019 30 LIBOR 10.868
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750
6.875 2009 14 2009 11
12 2014 11 12 LIBOR 4.965
2014 11
12
250
6.567 2008 10 2008 12
10 2038 10 LIBOR 2.825
350
5.50 2008 27 2009 27
2018 27 LIBOR 2.80
27 12 27
323
4.15 2008 14 2009 14
2018 14 4.5 5.5 2.0
225
7.375 2008 24
2009 24 2014 24
900
0.76

2017 10 10 2017 10 90
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280
3.75 2009 25 8.7864
2009 27 2009 18
2014 18 3.75
2014 18 2019 18 90
3.75
125
N.V. 2004 11
10 0.125
20
2014 12
31
1 vi
2004
i 1.50 2016 10 21
5.254 2016 10 21 2016 12 31 LIBOR
1.5900
LIBOR 1.5900 1,500
2016 10 21
v 350 2019 12 31 5.556
LIBOR 1.4600

350 2019 12 31
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v 250 2014 12 31 BBSW
0.6700 BBSW 1.6700
250 2014
12 31
! 250 2014 12 31 6.415
3 BBSW 1.6700
250 2014 12 31
2014 12 31
2004
DNB
2014 2013
1,269 1,340
(382) -
156 1)
1,043 1,269
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31
2014 2013
446 1,407
IFRS 10 11 - (588)
58 47
22 (16)
(10) -
- (360)
(43) (40
473 446
AGCO SNC
72.88 77 2013 75
2014 2013
100 109
(1D 12
(1D 12
1 3
1,628 1,709
98 81
1,394 1,458
70 61
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AGCO SNC 51.0
67 2013 55
AGCO SNC 2014 2013

39 36

19 17

19 17

9 8

6 6

1,240 1,185

36 87

1,128 1,141

12 17
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2014 2013
112 102
405 289
108 158

71 86
18,168 19,153
1,170 1,550
(1,535) (1,787)

11 13
128 143
18,638 19,707
458 506
20 28
3,719 4,417
4,152 4,619
462 248
681 711
28 83
9,520 10,612
9,118 9,095

21 2013 36
0.3 5.5 2013 1.9 5.5
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33
2014 2013
69 65
326 341
455 503
275 179
615 587
10 28
127 157
- 81
198 248
2,075 2,189
- 1
28 65
22 21
17 10
40 42
89 49
196 188
1,879 2,001
34
2014 2013
107 129
(26) (50)
81 79
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35

2014 2013
1,451 (798)
(1,419) 816
187 214
219 232

2014 2013
173 (144)
82 178
(37 89
1 109
219 232

36

2014 2013
184 (408)
432 184
- 1,522
526 269
1,142 1,567

1,344 2013 1,467 1,122
2013 1,289 38 2013 586
1,972 2013 1,821 914
2013 807 703 2013 701
94 2013 55 10
2013 11 2013 173
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37
2014 2013

3,331 3,455

424 420

532 463

32 224

54 9

713 751

5,086 5,322

52,562 2013 58,249
2011 CRD 111
2014
CRD 1V
100
50
50 (
DRN DRN NYSE
DRN DRN NYSE
2014 NYSE 2014 17 21

DRN
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DRN | DRN 1
RC
1AS 19 DRN IFRS
DRN
2014 12 31 10 2013
23 2014 12 31 2013 18
97 2013 109 DRN
2014 2013
952 986
348 308
(166) (223)
(120) (119)
1,014 952
DRN RC
2014 12 31
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
DRN 101.5 6.8 6.2 7.5 - 1221
DRN 3.6 12.0 4.4 4.2 5.3 29.5
105.1 18.8 10.6 11.7 5.3  151.6
2013 12 31
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
DRN 102.0 13.9 7.5 7.3 - 130.7
DRN 4.2 3.6 8.5 4.9 4.3 25.4

106.2 17.5 16.0 12.2 4.3 156.1
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2,532 2013 3,910 2014
280 DSB 2013
LIBOR 774
IT
39
2014 2013
240 291
197 237
437 528
40
2014 2013
14) ™
2,762 2,746
117) (103)
2 6
- 1
2,633 2,643
41
10
0.044 0.022 2013 12
2014 167 2013 197
SNS

321
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42
2014 2013
79 371
(96) 10
(144) (293)
(161) 88
2014 2013
1,681 430
(247) (374)
599 1,051
@ ™
(753) (664)
1,278 436
25.0 2012 25.0 320 109
(481) 1)
(161) 88
13 d 360
43
BGZ
2013 12 BGZ 98.5
BNP
BGZ 2014
BGZ BGZ BNP 2014 23 26
47
BGZ
73
957
BGZ 366
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2013 12 31

2013

390
121
6,346
1,163
807
8,827

828
6,408
589
7,825

2013

243
65
31

339

110

197
32

25

327 2013 246
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BGZ 43

IAS 24

47 25
B.V.
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2014 2013 2014 2013
490 465 68 13
14 117 - 55
(144) ) 67 -
- €D - -
360 490 11 68
6,544 6,228 - i
573 738 - -
(295) (80) - -
- (342) - -
6,822 6,544 - -
23 25 - 19
37 116 - -
84 26 - i
234 253 - -
- 44 - -
2 6 - -
320 329 - -
358 360 - i
20 @ - -
378 359 - -
46
2014 2013
6 7
1 2
- 1
10
382a
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47
55
37
2014 6.3 2013
5.8

W. 2014 490 137 - 1 628
M. 2014 10 739 - - - 739
A. 885 277 - - 1,162
B.J. 885 277 - 3 1,165
R.J. 723 226 - - 949
H. 723 226 - - 949

J.L. 2014 24
548 159 - - 707
2014 4,993 1,302 - 4 6,299
2013 4,514 1,285 33 - 5,832

2014 10
10
2013 2013
DRN 2013
DRN 2014 12,133 2013 7,409
1.6 2013 1.6
VAT
2014 VAT

288,750 71,500 55,000
32,500 15,000 15,000
32,500 15,000 15,000
7,500 - 7,500
15,000 - 15,000
3,750 - 3,750

3,750 - 3,750
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VAT

w. 341
1.P. 85
C.H. 78
L.N. 85
L.0. 2014 19 39
S.L.J. 110
A.AJM. 2014 12 7
E.A.J 103
R. 89
C.P. 89
A.J.AM. 2014 19 58
2014 1,084
2013 1,256

2014 2013 2014 2013
3.4 4.8 1.5 1.1
- - 0.1 -
1.1 (0.3) ©.1) (0.2)
©.2) 3.-6) - (0.2)
2.8 2.5 1.1 0.8
12 31 4.9 3.4 2.6 1.5

2014 12 31
%
2014 12 31
R.J. 1.3 2.7
B.J. 0.6 4.1
H. 1.0 1.9
J.L. 2.0 3.8
2014 12 31
%
2014 12 31

C.H. 0.6 4.2
JM. 1.1 2.8
C.P. 0.9 3.1

315/594



EDINETOOOO
OOo0ooooooooooOo00o00o0oO00DLO0000000bO00D0bO000DO0dnoo(es92s)
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2014
B.V.
2014 27,110
2014 12 31
A. 12,166
1.P. 6,894
L.N. 4,000 B.V.
S.L.J. 4,050 B.V.
48
113
2014 12 31
DLL B.V. 100 100
N.V. 100 100
FGH N_V. 100 100
OWM B.A. 100 100
N.V. 100 100
N.V. 100 100
N.V. 100 100
N_V. 100 100
N_V. 100 100
ACC 100 100
LCC 111 VI 100 100
1 vl 100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
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2014

49

23 2013 26

M

Cv-Bv
VOF
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CV-BV
VOF
CV-BV VOF
2013 2014
2014 2013
(39) (71)
(39) @71)
(39) @71)
2014 12 31
2013
29 2013
2014 12 31
cv 25% 25%
cv 50% 50%
FIRST cv 50% 50%
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50

12 31

2014 2013
27,592 22,418
18,295 10,697
45,887 33,115

2014 12 31 47,540 2013 34,542
12 31

2014 2013
708 808
2,025 1,474
2,733 2,282

2014 2013 12 31 2,757 2,540
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SPV
2.15 79,940
2013 75,937 80,341 2013 75,959
71 2013 75
2014 2013

7,289 9,823

10,905 8,151

22,571 15,067

40,765 33,041

51

STORM en

STRONG DLL LEAP
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ABCP
ABCP
RMBS ABS CDO
*

2014 12 31
30 107 137
377 45 422
622 - 622
1,363 - 1,363
722 75 797
- 600 600
3,114 827 3,941
86 - 86
610 - 610
696 - 696
* 4,153
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2014 12 31
3 38 41 -
- 35 35 -
137 - 137 -
140 73 213 -

52
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53 2013

2.1.1
2013 2012 12 31

2013

25,311
(328)
(666)

24,317

2013

68,103
35,386
6,387
5,911
65,423
485,299
50,425
3,649
2,343
6,500
1,489
597

960
9,435
8,475
750,382

27,059
334,271
223,336

74,800

11,832

24,001

752

205

186
5,407
7,357
709,296

24,317

6,672
7,114
13,786

236

I vi 1,340
1,576

1,407

41,086

750,382
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2014 12 31

C0so
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C0So
2014 12 31
2014 12 31

105
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2015 31 2015
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2014 2013
12 31 12 31
* *

1 42,097 5,514,707 41,718 5,465,058
2 940 123,140 1,636 214,316

26,784 3,508,704 21,631 2,833,661

109,388 14,329,828 114,052 14,940,812
3 136,172 17,838,532 135,683 17,774,473

1,543 202,133 1,570 205,670

116,493 15,260,583 121,461 15,911,391

19,176 2,512,056 10,823 1,417,813
4 137,212 17,974,772 133,854 17,534,874
5 89,406 11,712,186 94,753 12,412,643
6 955 125,105 1,134 148,554
7 13,275 1,739,025 13,141 1,721,471
8 2,640 345,840 2,653 347,543
9 443 58,033 410 53,710
10 838 109,778 861 112,791
11 5,581 731,111 3,084 404,004
12 67,313 8,818,003 47,360 6,204,160
13 1,597 209,207 2,948 386,188
498,469 65,299,439 479,235 62,779,785
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2014 2013
12 31 12 31
* *
115 15,065 275 36,025
38,391 5,029,221 32,084 4,203,004
14 38,506 5,044,286 32,359 4,239,029
18,244 2,389,964 21,097 2,763,707
362 47,422 6,825 894,075
90,349 11,835,719 83,837 10,982,647
15 108,955 14,273,105 111,759 14,640,429
16 182,128 23,858,768 189,670 24,846,770
17 57,927 7,588,437 57,246 7,499,226
12 76,186 9,980,366 55,810 7,311,110
2,629 344,399 4,019 526,489
18 545 71,395 694 90,914
466,876 61,160,756 451,557 59,153,967
19 13,586 1,779,766 9,617 1,259,827
600 78,600 6,002 786,262
5,402 707,662 i
5,931 776,961 5,823 762,813
6,530 855,430 7,204 943,724
964 126,284 708 92,748
112 14,672 (438) (57,378)
(2,884) (377,804) (2,417) (316,627)
1,352 177,112 1,179 154,449
20 18,007 2,358,917 18,061 2,365,991
31,593 4,138,683 27,678 3,625,818
498,469 65,299,439 479,235 62,779,785
23 17,487 2,290,797 17,347 2,272,457
24 34,155 4,474,305 34,050 4,460,550

327/594
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402

2014 12 31 2013 12 31
* *
764 100,084 577 75,587
588 77,028 602 78,862
1,352 177,112 1,179 154,449
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1
( IFRS )
2
2.1
1ASB
IFRS 10
IAS 27 SIC 12 IFRS 10

2014
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IFRS 11
IASB 2011 IAS 31 SIC 13

IAS 31
2014

IFRS 12
IFRS 12

2014

IFRS 10 IFRS 11 IFRS 12
IFRS 10 IFRS 11 IFRS 12
IFRS 10
1ASB IFRS 10 IFRS 11 IFRS 12

IFRS 12
2014

IFRS 10 IFRS 12 IAS 27
IFRS 10 IFRS 10

IFRS 12
IAS 27
2014

IAS 27
IAS 27 IFRS 10 1AS
27 2014
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IAS 28
IAS 28
2014

IAS 32
IAS 32
2014

IAS 39

2014

IAS 36

2014

IFRIC 21

IAS 37

2014

1ASB

IAS 19

2014
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2010-2012 2011-2013
IFRS 2009 1ASB
IFRS 13
IAS 16 24 38 IFRS
IAS 40
1ASB
IFRS 14
IFRS 15
IAS 16 IAS 38
IAS 16 IAS 41
IAS 27
IFRS 10 IAS 28
IFRS 11
2012-2014
IFRS
2014 IFRS IFRS 2018

IFRS
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2.1.1
3,276 2013 3,251 2013
2013 IFRS 13
IFRS 13 IFRS 13 2013
2014 209 107
IFRS 13 2014
2.3.1
2013 214 2014 124
2013 2014
16
IFRS
2013 12 31 2013
18,970 21,355
(243) (253)
(66) (75)
(600) (666)
18,061 20,361
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2.1.2
AQR
4.4.6
2.2
2.2.1
2.2.2

2.2.3
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20 50

2.3
2.3.1

0TC

2.3.2
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2.3.3

1AS
39

80 125
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IFRS

290

2.3.4.

2.4

337/594



2.5

2.6
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SPE

SPE
SPE
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2.10

90

2.11

2.23

2.12
2.12.1

2.12.2
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2.13

2.14

2.15
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IBNR
IFRS
11
LIP
LIP

CRD 1V

2.16
2.16.1
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2.16.2

2.16.3

2.16.4

2.16.5
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2.17

2.18

40
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2.19

2.19.1

2.19.2

2.20
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2.20.1

2.20.2

2.20.3

2.21

2.21.1

Projected unit credit method
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2.21.2

2.21.3

2.21.4

2.22

2.22

2.23
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2.24

2.25

2.26

2.27

349/594



EDINETOOOO
OOo0ooooooooooOo00o00o0oO00DLO0000000bO00D0bO000DO0dnoo(es92s)

ooooooo
Tier 1 Tier 1
2015
CRR IV CRD IV 2010
2014
2013 CRD 111
BIS Tier
CRD 111
2014 CRD IV CRR
2014
2019
CRD 111 CRD IV CRR
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OOooOoOoOoo
2019
CET 1 Tier 1

CRD 111 2013 2.0% 4.0% 8. 0%
CRD IV CRR 1 2014 45 5.0 8. 0%
2 2016 - 2019 ) 5 ) 5 ” 5
7.0% 8.5k 10.5%

2 2016 - 2019 I
SIFI 22016 - 2019 3.0% 3.0% 3.0%

12014  CET 1 2015 4.5
2 2019 2016
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CRD IV CRD 111
2014 2013
24,528 27,197
(119) (119)
5,931 5,823
28 437
365 (1,089)
(5.248) (3,698)
3,229 -
Tier 1 28,714 28,551
1" vi - 1,269
- 7,265
7,283 -
6 -
(€)) (1,993)
(2.,126) -
Tier 1 33,874 35,092
- (301)
11,738 7,744
8 -
- (885)
(481) -
BIS 45,139 41,650
211,870 210,829
Tier 1 13.6% 13.5%
Tier 1 16.0% 16.6%
BIS 21.3% 19.8%
14.4% 16.1%
IRB FVPL
CRR
2014 - 2018
IRB
2015 Tier CRR
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4.1

4.1.1

4.2

0TCs
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IFRS
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12

Central Treasury

IFRS

IFRS
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4.4

490,810 2013 472,429

4.4.1
1SDA
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4.4.2

4.4.3
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4.4.4
2013
2014

Special Asset Management

4.4.5
FGH

2014

DNB
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ooooooo
Taxateurs en Accountants PTA
2013

2010

4.4.6 AQR
SSM
ECB AQR
2013 12 31 2013
AQR
Tier 1 2013 12 31
CVA
AQR 2014
2013 12 31 2013
IBNR
2013
2014 10 ECB 2,093

2014 2014
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ECB SSM
AQR
2014
IBNR
IBNR EL
2014 EL 2014
4.5
— — 4.7
VaR
- RWA

Tier 1

4.6
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12

CFP
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VaR

DNB

99 VaR

VaR
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4.3
4.5

VaR

VaR

VaR

VaR VaR 10

97.5

VaR

VaR
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4.9

LIBOR EURIBOR

2013 10 29 LIBOR EURIBOR
2013
USD LIBOR JPY LIBOR TIBOR TIBOR
EURIBOR
2014 LIBOR
EURIBOR

EURIBOR
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VEB Fortis N.V. Ageas N.V.
Fortis N.V.
Ageas N.V. 2007

18

SME
EURIBOR
EURIBOR

2014 2015
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2014 2013
123 196
817 1,440
940 1,636

2014 2013
92,848 96,426
- 309
69,995 29,378
27,001 29,878
7,792 10,271
19,847 34,297
11,537 31,859
136,172 135,683

26,784

2013 22,490
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2014 2013
) 1,543 1,570
- 116,493 121,461
- 19,176 10,823
137,212 133,854
) 66,360 74,361
- - 233
- 774
137,212 133,854
1,767 1,974
7 7
135,438 131,873
26,395 14,151
32,378 42,715
18,798 11,990
41,194 38,700
16,673 24,317
135,438 131,873
- 39% 42%
- TIS 61% 58%
- % 0%
100% 100%

5,361 2013 2,804

2008 IAS 39 IFRS

2008
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2014 12 31 2013 12 31
347 334 579 533
1,187 1,213 2,607 2,718
1,534 1,547 3,186 3,251
26 2013 42
2014
180 2013 113

2014 12 31 2013 12 31
- 3
1 -
1 3
37 57
121 154
158 211

148 2013 233
26 2013 79

2014 2013
27,638 32,024
61,768 62,729
89,406 94,753
83,774 88,623
2,476 2,911
3,156 3,219
89,406 94,753
52,157 53,138
30,653 34,198
58,753 60,555
89,406 94,753
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2014 2013
- 650 532
- 35 40
- 270 562
955 1,134
531 554
424 580
955 1,134
7
2014 2013
- 5,991 6,247
- 7,284 6,894
13,275 13,141
13,141 15,041
666 66
- (613)
(1,420) (615)
760 474
@ (657)
130 (555)
12 31 13,275 13,141
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8
2014 2013
- 85 108
- 2,555 2,545
2,640 2,653
2,653 2,776
6 4
- @
4 103
20 (173)
(43) (56)
12 31 2,640 2,653
9
2014 2013
443 410
443 410
- 2014
410 410
191 191
(59) (54)
(129) (129)
25 25
12 31 443 443
942 942
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- 2013

448 448
108 108
(138) (138)
13) (13)
5 5
12 31 410 410
797 797

10

2014 2013
716 733
122 128
838 861
- 2014
733 128 861
38 31 69
(©) - (€)
42) (42) (84)
(10) 5 ®
12 31 716 122 838
499 317 816
- 2013

768 145 913
7 40 47
(15) (12) @n
® - ®
42) (43) (85)
23 0) 21
12 31 733 128 861
456 279 735
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11
2014 2013
2,020 1,442
5 5
3,556 1,637
5,581 3,084
12
2014 2013
52,833 36,690
14,480 10,670
67,313 47,360
66,060 48,555
10,126 7,255
76,186 55,810
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2014 12 31
2,125,332 40,385 40,382
oTC 2,078,507 40,384 40,379
46,825 1 3
364,984 5,213 6,839
oTC 363,412 5,174 6,835
1,572 39 4
5,984 21 59
11,278 899 843
oTC 8,156 712 705
3,122 187 138
138,543 5,527 14,489
44,365 1,571 14,439
94,178 3,956 50
19,698 788 3,448
2,665,819 52,833 66,060
2013 12 31
2,303,895 26,944 26,518
oTC 2,257,282 26,943 26,517
46,613 1 1
374,501 4,532 5,500
oTC 374,501 4,532 5,500
7,851 196 452
22,623 1,462 1,651
oTC 14,943 1,089 1,279
7,680 373 372
110,997 3,090 11,563
63,724 1,071 11,495
47,273 2,019 68
20,045 466 2,871
2,839,912 36,690 48,555
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2014 2013
123 196
1,767 1,974
3,156 3,219
270 562
5,316 5,951
816 1,440
83,774 88,623
650 532

7 7
85,247 90,602
52,109 53,054
90,602 94,152
408 (135)
5,252 15,405
(10,784) (14,558)
424 (1,917)
(655) (2,345)

12 31 85,247 90,602
642 544
1,679 1,596
1,958 1,701
15,228 8,972
65,740 77,789
85,247 90,602
2,476 2,911
35 40
2,511 2,951

13
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14

2014 2013
24,472 20,843
92 121
19,246 13,873
7,499 6,002
1,313 2,356
5,935 7,483
4,513 2,645
38,506 32,359

15
20 2013

2014 2013
8,690 17,379
835 674

2014 2013
41,462 63,995
42,600 35,242
5,647 4,506
2,333 2,013
16,913 6,003
108,955 111,759
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16
2014 2013
124,923 138,752
57,205 50,918
182,128 189,670
267 556
27,442 27,315
56,998 63,082
57,284 62,808
40,137 35,909
182,128 189,670
17
2014 54
2014 2013
54,232 53,823
212 156
3,483 3,267
57,927 57,246
18
2014 2013
240 166
305 528
545 694
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23 2013 217
2013 157
166 2013 66
18 2013 2013
2013 CAO
2013
67
500
2014 2020
250
IAS 19
2014 12 31
ACC
IFRS
2014 2014
ACC
2014 2013
673 545
557 479

116 66

376/594



EDINETOOOO
OOo0ooooooooooOo00o00o0oO00DLO0000000bO00D0bO000DO0dnoo(es92s)
oOoOooodn

2014 2013
545 19,464
9 -
21 244
3 225
- 16
an (119)
- (20,620)
26 -
@ ®
2 ®3)
39 7
46 1,391
12 31 673 545
479 18,202
7 -
19 230
8 491
- 17
an (119)
- ®
- (18,779)
®) (€))
66 445
12 31 557 479
2015
2014 2013
24. 2% 31.6%
31.0% 26. 4%
4.7% 6.2%
0.6% -0.4%
39.5% 36.2%
100% 100%
2014 2013
21 244
(19) (230)
3 225
26 -
1 @
32 238
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12 31
2014 2013
2.3% 3.8%
1.6% 2.5%
1.6% 2.0%
2014 2013
528 591
65 624
(260) (661)
(28) (26)
12 31 305 528
19
2014 2013
1,684 1,835
11,902 7,782
12 31 13,586 9,617
2014
2026 2.50
2019 2029
4.625 50.8 2024 12 1.429
2013 3.875
1,000 4.625 2023 1,750
5.75 2043 1,250
2012 4.125
1,000 5.25 2027 500
3.95 2022 1,500
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2010 3.75 2020 1,000
2009 5.875 2019 1,000
20
2014 2013
600 6,002
5,402 -
5,931 5,823
6,530 7,204
964 708
112 (438)
(2,884) (2,417)
1,352 1,179
18,007 18,061
2014 26
1,000 100 15 5,402
2014 2013
6,002 6,002
(5,402) -
600 6,002
2014 2013
5,402 -

5,402 -

379/594



EDINETOOOO
OOo0ooooooooooOo00o00o0oO00DLO0000000bO00D0bO000DO0dnoo(es92s)
oOoOooodn

2000 2005
2000 2001 2002 2005
2013
2013 12
5.2 6.5
2014 14
2014 27
105.00% 26.25
2014 12 31 107.45% 26.86 238
7.3
2014
1.625 2013 1.275
2014
237,961,365 25
2014 2013
5,823 6,672
- (2,074)
- 225
108 1,000

5,931 5,823
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2,000

29

2,000

26

500

2010

280

8.7864
18

8.40

8.375
2016

9.94
27

3.75
90
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26

2019

2011 11
2017

2011 26

2009 27
27

3.75
2009
2014

3.75

6.425

27

18

381/594

7.50

2009

ooooood
2011 12
7.49
2011
25
2009
2019 18



2,868

31

750

12

250

10

350

323

225

2009
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11.0 2009
2019 30
6.875 2009 14
2014 11 12
2014 11 12
6.567 2008 10
2038 10
5.50 2008 27
2018 27
27 12 27
4.15 2008 14
2018 14 4.5
7.375 2008 24
24
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LIBOR

LIBOR

5.5

2014
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2009 12

LIBOR 10.868

2009 11
4.965

LIBOR

2008 12

2009 27

2009 14
2.0
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900
0.76
2017 10 10 2017 10 90
2014 2013
7,204 7,289
(648) (83)
(26) @
12 31 6,530 7,204
2014 2013
) 11 49
- 262 35
) 2 29
- 689 595
964 708
708 509
) 20
1,143 (1,123)
(58) (86)
(824) 1,388
12 31 964 708
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2014 12 31
) 2,660
2013 2,405
2014 548 2013 1,450
2014
586 2013 1,459
2014
12 31 11 2013 49
97
2014 12 31 185
2013 225
2014 2013
206 137
(94) (575)
112 (438)
2014 2013
(438) (56)
69 30
481 (412)
12 31 112 (438)
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2014 2013
! (196) (3,251)
(2,688) 834
(2.884) 2.417)
11AS 19 122
2014 2013
(3,251) (2,493)
25) (758)
3,080 -
12 31 (196) (3,251)
2014 2013
834 2,438
- (994)
834 1,444
1,179 994
(1,088) (1,042)
(218) -
(69) (30)
39 (352)
(167) (14)
- €0)]
- (133)
(3,080) -
(118) 46
12 31 (2,688) 834

1,352

1,842
2013

2013 2,007
1,179
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2014 2013

18,007 18,061
(600) (6,002)
(5,402) -
- 61
TR 1,043 1,269
473 446
25,349 24,699
1 -
IFRS

) 38,871 38,534
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21
10
0.044 0.022 2013 12
2014 96 2013 118
SNS 52
22

2014 2013
26,784 21,631
19,176 10,823
45,960 32,454

2014 2013
115 275
362 6,825
477 7,100

2014 2013
7,289 9,822
4,333 6,437
20,454 12,962
32,076 29,221
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23

2014 2013
12,304 11,637
5,183 5,710
17,487 17,347
4,802 4,826

403
B.V. N.V.
B.V.
B.V.
B.V.
B.V.
B.V.
B.V.
B.V.
B.V.
us B.V.
B.V.
FGH N.V.
N.V.
N.V.
B.V.
N.V.
B.V.
N.V.
B.V.
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RI
RI

B.V.
B.V.
B.V.
B.V.
N.V.
N.V.
B.V.
Wet op het financieel toezicht
N.V.
N.V.
N.V.
B.V.
B.V.
B.V.
B.V.
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24
2014 2013
31,114 32,510
3,041 1,539
34,155 34,049
9,384 11,476
25
12,455 2013 12,125 2,781 2013 2,705
12,193 2013 11,898
2014 2013
1,136 1,097
99 94
26
2014 12 31
DLL B.V. 100 100
N_V. 100 100
FGH N_V. 100 100
OWM B.A. 100 100
N_V. 100 100
N_V. 100 100
N.V. 100 100
N.V. 100 100
N.V. 100 100
ACC 100 100
LCC 111 VI 100 100
I vi 100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
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2014
27
2014 2013
6 7
1 2
- 1
10
382a
28
29
2014 6.3 2013 5.8
W. 2014 490 137 - 1 628
M. 2014 10 739 - - - 739
A. 885 277 - - 1,162
B.J. 885 277 - 3 1,165
R.J. 723 226 - - 949
H. 723 226 - - 949
J.L. 2014 24
548 159 - - 707
2014 4,993 1,302 - 4 6,299
2013 4,514 1,285 33 - 5,832
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2014 10

2013 7,409

VAT

2014

10

DRN

2013

1.6

DRN
2014

2013

VAT

2013
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2013

12,133

1.6

VAT

288,750
32,500
32,500

7,500
15,000
3,750
3,750

71,500
15,000
15,000

55,000
15,000
15,000
7,500
15,000
3,750
3,750

.0. 2014 19

AALJM. 2014 12

ALJ.AM. 2014 19
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341
85
78
85
39

110

103
89

89

58
1,084
1,256
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2014 2013 2014 2013
3.4 4.8 1.5 1.1
- - 0.1 -
@D (0.3 (0.1 0.2)
0.2) 3-6) - 0.2)
2.8 2.5 1.1 0.8
12 31 4.9 3.4 2.6 1.5
2014 12 31
%
2014 12 31
R.J. 1.3 2.7
B.J. 0.6 4.1
H. 1.0 1.9
J.L. 2.0 3.8
2014 12 31
%
2014 12 31
C.H. .6 4.2
J.M. 1.1 2.8
C.P. 9 3.1
2014
B.V.
2014 27,110
2014 12 31
A. 12,166
1.P. 6,894
L.N. 4,000 B.V.
S.L.J. 4,050 B.V.
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18 12 31

70

1,352 1,088
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Consolidated statement of financial position

Ar 31 Dgvembas  Ar R Clecembey
4

i e of Hiad L o lR ]
Asseis

Cakh and cadh npuvaienis & 43400 43039
Cun from othet barks ¢ AR &0, far
Finsncial sasets Faid for usding -] aIry L
Crtert rafcial siris 51 e vabor Beough peoln of ki W 4315 EEEL]
D wivee firvang bl instnamerts L] inar n.rea
LS 1 it 1} Ll 455,509
Avadable for sl inancial aswti 12 mrh 5552
sspsiments b associases and poent verbiee 13 E Y 1LT4T
Intangilde avvets 14 2059 1,81
Freguly am e quement 1% 7144 L]
Inweiment poertie: 18 a57 1,055
ot Ll ket amn 170
Dielerere] vax sasets EL FLS] 1,088
Lo P i L] BS0 B0
MGi-Cui AL Skt el foe sl Al diseontifand Dpedations a4 E L TIRE ]
Tetal mieets 81,046 095

4 Comalidated Financla' Statements 2014 Rabsebank Gioup
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Ar 1) Devembed  Ar 31 Decembey

it rrifiRa of fuidi Naw M4 M3
Linblities
Dueie otk Banks & 7 BE3 145
Durio cantomens 1% HeATe 1
Dbt seounTies in e i ] 130,080 195,181
D homtes: Sriasclal | istiurmests and e tede Rabilitien 1o aT 55 EoREg
Cetwpr ek an i LT T
Dyt kol Rabbthes 00 11 wliie Thinugh prof or baas b 10784 1o.0e
Frereniam L] ™ 1,050
Ciarrert taw Habalities o] o]
Dederend 1ax kabdlnies b 473 a8
Sutpmilraled drebt b VLam TAE
Lisbslities heskd doer sale and disoongisuesd operations LR ] TAIS
Tetal Helslitici BAEINS B354
Equsy
Eijusity of Medsiland sl beal Rabobiank -} 12894 131
Fruiey inctnmens s dowrtly
Fubobari Cemificsess = 5931 513
Caphsl Secunbe k] B340 o9
1x280 LFALF)
Expusity i sl g sislivafi
Capital Seeurities L] 18k 238
Trust Prefemed Securnities I8 W ) T3 148
1.234 1,505
Cobey non-contrniling inberexty n an &
Total equity 8871 IS5
Teasl equity and Rabilitss 1,088 095
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Consolidated statement of income

ol yogw gy 31 Clecermbey

ey riiieae of oty b ik )
Intmima innee jr A Ve, Tt
Inteteas spenas 2 9.5 POLGT2
Irilerait n 08 5,095
Cormimiion rspoee 13 2075 1188
Cormhuion repense 1] 1% s
Coorramilpaloen n 1878 L0
Income from suaclatos M ai m
Mot inporee Sy feaancal asvers and bablimhes ot fair value thressgh profit o loss 5 FLL] 132
g Deriae) o8 ivadible e dale Praniel kuot 12 418 56
Ceberr ity » (80 =] 1827
bnp v 17857 15030
StaH coats. b I e g8
Dby pdmerisirative expenses. k- 251 190
Dieprrciation " Ayt [+ ]
Cperating spenses. BOES w700
‘Wl el immEnEE ) 1633 643
vl B ang renabution bevy &1 asi 1%
Oper wting profic bed s 14681 420
Taxation A3 (L 1] -]
Pt probit fram continung cpesstons 1843 M3
Mt prefit fmm dhcondnued operations an . 1,085
et praft 1,842 1007

0 whikch alloc stk 1o Rabobank Mederand and local Rabobark
O which alleabile b2 hodders of Raboback Crontheates
LHwhich abocanks bo Lapial eogrren

bty Al abibs 00 Tiear Poeheived Seduiites 11 1o

Ol which aledable b5 other on-tantoling termin

Mt profii for he year 1

EEa

E.-288
E.o288

6 Comolidated Financlal Staternents 2014 Rabobank Group
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Fow 1Pt i dvnded 37 Doy
it i of ol L) e i)
Pt et 1547 1007

Unreatned gains and losses sher taxabon ariing n the pesad that ks tanalened to peod o foss #
1prode foitanare et

l'rvr.lp ATy iranaiatien ey an

Crorinmaly Lransanion dfeenied 325 A1)
Bervaliiton severve - Avallabile-for-vale Bnancial masia FL ]

Corpnry trancistinn diferance [111] wn
CRaangeed b maoriansy ] Lrli1]
Fairwatur changr 3 [ 1]]
Amortiurtion of reclanshed sty i3 ir
Traribeired i piobh of ods m L]
Brvaluation reserm - & nacinke n

Fairwalue changes [@m an
Fevalustind rerrwe | Cavh (o bedgei 38

Fairvalur shangr. an 114500
Trardsired w piol of ods 158 1459
it cannaling nboreits 1]

Traralataon cifferences FH e
Uikt ates wdl lased sfMer TLaston drisng bh th pard nit rasilesid 0o peolil o et

Fomign carerey tranuation e e F

Cgmveeary ransiytion dferenoes Trst Preleemed Sscurties Wio W 156 an
Revalustion srirve - Fenitionm 28

Fairvalue changm ] LEel
Todsl oifer (owguehensive imiome T4 {13385
Tetal compreheiiong indomss 4818 L 1A
O ik allocabie o Faboban b Medersnd and bocs Rabolsnds 137 4391
O by e by b Brodubee s of Ralobitl Cortifiaica 385 i)
O whack aliccsbile ro Capaal Seosties 05 455
O wrhisch albecaibike o Trust Prefiermed Securities i1l (oW1 T L2
O iwhich aBecibils bo cther i Hing i 4] i
Teasl compeeheatioes ingoms 268 &
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Exuiiryod £ty Onee
Fabedath Figuty tiusmaarl v
Percoriand dnd femlumenh. dimadby  ronnaling
L miBgnr of evras ie ol B - d ety Ertagbir tererty Todal
A1l January 1004 anTM TLESY 1,595 ] 34,554
Kt profn L] 1002 o 48 1642
Tkl oa her compretenshse Income |
Famigs cumanc y e amlalion musran 4|1 - B ar il |
Revabamticnveenve - Avalsbie-dre-sale froncisd gty 1 - - . !
Revakation reenve - Associates @ - - . an
Rervabastion iviere - Cash firw Hedgei [£11] - = . LEL]]
Hevabastion retene - Pensony 1251 . = - [ #5]
Total campeshaniive iscams 13T 1872 a9 ] 1618
Payrress on Rabobenk Conifcaes, Truy Predened Securites 0w  and
Capitsd Seurites [ILE: i) {520 (IR
Bl ef Caial i anndd Tiust Provtersnd S urithes Vand W 1 (Lt [ (443} . I1.258)
Fabobank CetAoaes asusd dunng the yea n * 2] - v e
Otz (43 (EV] 152 55 15
A 10 December 1014 FLE ] 1IN 1,334 4T A8.871
Ab | dafuomiy W11 Ban REN 15T B A407 A3
Change in accounting policy IFRS V0and 17 = + CHaE | Sy
Ady o pay o Rabasbark Ceriih Tt Prederrod Secunities
2l aned Cagtal Socurtin ) - . - L]
Revired amourt ot | Jeusry 2013 407 L 1578 L1k A3, 408
W=t proin 929 Lo L a7 00T
Total other comarnrfen v ncome: m
Toragr oumescy maalation muenes [L1F] (1L gm
Revabastion frigrve - Svalable do - ale Sroeal asssts. [LE- -] {138
Favakastion rewsne - Aucoaie (L] - - - @n
Pervarkastbon resmnge - ash flow hedget L] - - . L]
Fervakistion prime - Prnans reEy - E . (TSR
Total campraheneive insoome [awip e L H] n LE|
Paymimi on Rabobank (Ve A Cortetaiatirt, Tius Prifermeed Seguriten (8o
W and Capetal Secunities = L LES) # g
Rederpran of Caohal Securitien 30 (AL 1:E1 . . [.p]
Frxhuangs of Rabotank Fxina ernbwer Bands Fyl s JE5 . . 15
Fabonank ierrben Cerficates redeemied dusing the year n - LT - . ALOME
Fabotank Merrker) Cerfoates syl during the year ] . 1000 . . 1,000
Contuo! ivusnse of Basobani (Mermbe Cerificates n (5] = = : LE]
Fremmiurm [Dkscoura] in relytion to Rabobssi |Member) Certificates el [LEE}] - - # LLER]
Wncreass of thare in srucured hrance deal 31 . 1] [k ]
Cnher n [+1] i 144 L]
A1) December 1011 LTI 11852 1,505 g 38,504

8  Coniglidared Financial Statementd 2014 Rabobank Group
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Consolidated statement of cash flows

Fiur oo andt 21 Cecermibey

I it of s Mabe M4 prorlk )
Cash o from operaning sctivities

Digserating el belote Wi ran s comfeu 5 mei alise (1] 30
Diperating profit before taaton from decontisesd operstions = 1.7g
Adnsedfor

Fon-cash serma recognieed in opserating profit betore tacation

Depreciation » an m
Depiecution of ap o) beane @iy el wirmend progetbe 14,18 LR L1
Vabur adjsatrranty 0 205 1843
g e priaps ry aclivit A &17
Reaul on asle o properny snd saquipimest 7 m
bz Trioeh Ao | abES M (1] Lril]
Fair walse ressd i on financial suets and kabdges ot far value through profi o oas. 35 1219 FEF]
Gl (hstes] on availatile-for-wsle fnanclal ssen 12 418 L]
Resul froam bevemination of D schess - 12032
Perreisbons 25 Er
Hon-cavh Berma relating bo dacontinuesd opeestions - o]
Kt chune imoperatang avuy

Dhase Friowms el 1 other banka. TR 4040 1513 hnonE
Financial mviets held for rachng & &5 &1 L
Dttt Potuah il il Fursseils 18 [§1 3 ] LAY ]
et charnige i other & il & et ] kel o [ waloas through proft s ko W 214 5 (EXFLi]
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Notes to the consolidated
financial statements

1 Basis of consolidation

Aabobank Group (Rabobank) comarises the local Rabobanks (Members), the central cooperative Rabobank
Mederland and & number of specialised subsiciaries. Rabobank Noderlnd advises the Membens and assists
them In the provision of thalr services, Rabobank Maderland also supervises the local Rabobanks by wirtue
of the Dutch Rnancial Supervision Act [Wet op het Binanciesd toezacht], Furthermore, under the same Act,
the Dutch Minkstry of Hnance has designated Rabobamk Madarland as a holder of a collactive koense for
puipaces of conduct-of-business supoervision,

Rabobank’s cooperative structune has several executive levels each with its own duties and responsitsilites.
I annul financial reparting terms, Rabonank Nederland exerclses control over the local Rasbobanks

The consclidated financial statemaents of Rabobank Inchede the financly’ information of Rabobank Nederdand
and that of the Members and ather group companies.

2 Accounting policies

Thie rnain accounting pollcies wied inpepaning these commolidated fmancial statements are explained below.

2.1 Generalinformation
The consclidated financial statements of Rabobank have been prepared in accosdance with intemational
Financia' Reporing Standands (IFRS) ac adopted by the European Unbon.

Mew and amended standands Bsued by the 1ASE and endorsed by the Eutopean Union, applicable 1o the
financial vear undor review

IFRS 10 Consolidared Fimnancial Statements

This standard supersedes the consolidation rules of 1AS 27 and S6C 12 IFRS 10 has important
cofvequences for the cansideration & to when & compary has control over another entity, The effect an
peofit and equity Is detailed in the paragraph entitled Thanges in accounting policies and presentation’
The standard applies effective 1 fanuary 2004,

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements
The 1458 issued a standard regarding joint vertures in May 2011, which supersades 1AS 31 and 5IC 13,

The proportional consolidation af joint ventures i no Isnger authonsed. Ary INTrests in joint ventures must
be accounted far using anly the equity mathed This amendment achieves closer comvergence with US GAAR
The remalning maes o largely kéentical 1o 84S 31, The effect on profit and equity b incladed in the paragraph
entitlied Thangas In acconmting policies and presentation’, This standard applies affective 1 lanuary X004

IFRS 12 Désclosure of interests in Other Entities

IFRS 12 alms to enable usars of financial staternents 1o assess the purpose and associated nsks of interests
hald in ather entities, a3 well as the effects of those interests on the financlal positon, reswlts and cash flows
This peftains to addnional disdiosures and has eo effect on results or equity. The standard applies effective

1 January 2014,

Consolidated Financial Statzments 2014 Rabobank Group
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Amendments to IFES 10, IFRS 1T and IFRS 1.2 - Transition Guidance

The chjective of these amendments to IFRS 10 - The Consolidated Financial Szaternents, IFRS 11 -

Joint Arrangements and B RS 12 - Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, are designad 1o clarify the initial
publication af the vanudtional guideling 6 (FAS 10, The ¢ hanges alio provide addrional transition support in
|FRS 10, (FRS 11 ancl IFRS 12 anc) teduce the regquirernest of greviding anly comgarative infienmation adapted
te b priovicns comparathe period, Inaddifion, asa result of the changes lof inlosmation proviclon relating to
nam consoldated structured entities, the requirement of submitting comparative infarmation for periods
peiaf 1o the initlal application of IFRS 12 will be cancefled. This amendmeni has no impact on profit or equity
and took effect on 1 tanuary 2004,

Amendments o IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27 - lnvestment Entifles

IFRS 10 has been amended in onder to better reflect the business moded of investment entitées, It requires that
Ieveastinent entities measure thelr subsidiuekas at falr value through peofit or loss rathes than comsolidate them,
IFRS 12 has been amended in ordere 1o require spacific disclosure abowt such subsidiaries of investmant
entities. The amandments 1o IAS 27 also eliminated the aption far investmant entities 1o Measute MVesImEents
in cestain subsidiaries eirher a1 cost or ar fair value in thelr separate financial satements This amendment,
which has no impact on Rebobank, applies elfective | Janwary 2014,

1AS 27 Separate Finamelal Statements

The consalidation requirements formetly Inchuded in 1AS 27 are now included in IFRS 10, The amended 145 37
Is intended for the separate finandal statements of entities also preparing consolidated financial statements,
Thie staredard has no impact on Rabohanks consolidated financial statements and applies effective 1 lanuaty
2014

145 28 Investments in Associates

|A5 26 loys down accounting requirements for investrments in assaciates and describes the requirements
for recognising investments in associates and joint ventures in accordance with the equity methaod of
accounting The standard has no mpact on profit or equity and applies effective 1 lanuary 2014,

1AS 32 Financial fnsfruments: Presentation

The objective of the amendment to A5 32 |3 to provide additional guldelines, so a3 1o ensure that the
standard |5 wied more conslitently in practice. This amendment has no Impact an pradit or equity and 190k
effect on 1 fanuary 2014,

Amendments to A3 38 Financial Instruments:

Movation of Dertvatives and Cantinuation of Hedge Accounting

The objective of the amendments s to provide refief in situaticns where a derhvitive, which has been
dasignated as a hedging Instrument, Is novated from one counterparty to a central countarparty asa
consequence of laws or regulations Such a relief means that hedoe accounting Gan continee irespective of
the novarion which, without the amendmeant, would not be permitied, This standard, which does not affect
peafit o equity, applies effective 1 lanoary 2014,

Amendments (o IAS 36 impalrment of Assets

The objective of these amendmants s to clarffy that the scope of disclosures of infarmation abaut the
recoverable amount of assets, where this amount is based on falr value less costs of disposal, ks mited 1o
Impairad assets, if this recowerable amont ks based on fair value less costs of disposal. This standard has
iz Bmpact an profit or equity and applics effective 1 January 2014,

Nates tes the consalidated financial statements
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IFRIC Intespretation 21 - Levles

This interpratation relates to the administrative pfocessing of an obligation to pay a charge if this obligation
falls within the scops of 145 37 tn addition, 1t akso relates 10 e administrative processing of an obligation o
pay a chasge of which the timescale and amount have been confirmed This standard has no impact on profit
of equity and 1ok effect on 1 January 2014,

MNow and amended standards issuad by the International Accounting Standards Bcard (JASE) and
endarsed by the European Union which do not yet apply in the current financial year

Amendments to IAS 1% Defined Benefit Plans: Emplayee Contributions

The elajective of this amendment |5 to simplily and clasify the sdminbiteiive procesing of employes
contributions ar contibations fiom third parties in mlatkon to delfined benafit persion schemes. This standasd
has no Impact on peofit or eguity and took effect on 1 January 2074

Improvements to International Financial Reporting Standards cycle 2000-200 2 and cycle 200 1-2013

The edjective of the improvements is 1o address non-urgent, but necessary issues discussed by the 1453
duting the project cycle thar began In 2009 on aneas of Inconsistendes in IFRS of where clarification of
wording ks required. The amendments 1o IFRS 3, 8 and 13 and IAS 16, 24 and 38 represent clarifcations of,

or adjustments to, the respective standards. The amendments 1o IFAS 2 and 3 and 1AS 40 concern changes to
the existing requiraments or additional guidelines for the application of these requirements.

Mew standards Issued by the IASB, but not yet endorsed by the European Union

+ IFRS 14 Regulatary Defermal Accaunts

« IFRS 15 Revenud from Contracts with Customers

« Amendments to S 16 and 1AS 38: Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation

« Amendments ta A5 16 and 1A5 41: Bearer Plants

+ Amendments ta 1AS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial Satements

+ Amendmants 1o IFRS 10and 1AS 28: Sale or Conftributhon of Assats beteeen an westar and [t Associate
of Joint VENTue

» Amendmonds ta IFRS §1: Accounting for Acquisitions of Inferests in Joirnt Operations

+ Improvements to International Financial Repading Standsds cycle 2002-2014

Although these new requirements are currently being analysed and thair impact ts not yet known, Rabobani
does not expect the implemeniation of these amended standards to have a significant impact on profit or equity.

IFRS 9 Financial instruments

The imernationad Accounting Standands Board pubslishied IFRS % Ananclal instruments in July 2014, The effective
date of IFRS 915 1 lanuary 2018, but this date may be changed depending on endomsement by the European
Unige.

The application of IFRS 9 may have a significam impact on profit or loss @nd capleal; this is currently being
Imeastigatad,

The consolidated Arancial statements have been prepared on the bass of the accounting polickes mentioned
harealter. The remaining assets and lakdlities are accounted for on 4 historical cost basis unless otherwdss
stated. Unless otherwise stated, all amounts in these financiad statements are In milBons of euros.

Consdlidated Financial Stalemsents 2014 Rabxbank Group
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Changes i accounting policies and presentation as a result of new guidelines

The news standard IFAS 11 was applied fior the first time in 2014, and the comparative data were madified in
accordance withi iFRS 11, As & result af IFRS 11, a number of joint wventures in the Rea Estate segment are no
lenger condolidated on & prapartional badis. These Joint veniures are recognised as Investiments in Aswocianes
and [oind wesriures. This s Ve full|.|wlr||.] el on the Fll.;un:-_. aty shome [n e 2013 corsolahated Nriaiackad
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The new standard (FA5 10 was applied for the first tima in 2014 and has resulted in the decorselidation of
thrae entities in Whaolesale banking and international retaill banking segment The compafative data have besn
adjusted. This has the following affect on the fgures shows in the conscldated financial stacements for 2013

s v o purend
Arrets

Diue from other banks

Othes financial sinets a8 air walue Thiough prof o leis
L S0 CUSTTE T

Ayaiabie-loraale francial sisens
It in addocialey inad gis vontiines

Othes asiets

Ve garres [rorm associstes.

Mt wcivm (roam fi | it el Hiei wihuie Ehiough profn of ks
Caairniom ] nn seada ble-For-iale hnaneisl sass

Othey income

Total irdtens

Seaff ones

Hber ademirrife alivr enperics
Depreciaton

Oparating xpesses

Valie adjuitnents

Bank tax snd resolotion lesy

‘Oparating prof belors tazation
Tamaton

M1 o ol Froem Con Drsing Dperasions

Mei parofi

Chther changes in accounting principles and preseniarion

31 Darrslyin JO1 3

(1E.]

a3
(L1]

anm
i ana)

(50
a7
B

1
{3844}
1293}
e Aamp

Fiox the prar mrvded 1 | Decereteer 2073
(]

LA

1L1]

i

L]
L]

L
F

L]
n

13)
iLtH
158

L1}

Fao the notes to the consalidated financlal statomaents, weite-offs on allowance for loan losses of componate
[Intemational) clignts occumed wntil the end of 2013 at the moment it was chear in subsiance that there was
no fecovery expectad in a rasonable way, Starting in 2014, The data contained in the financial statements ae
fully consistent with the credit administration, with the write-offs being effected at the time of final settlement.

A a sl the accowntability of prudenilal regulstions sid the consotidated linanglal slatermenls sie conssien
with sach ather, re=sulting knogroeatos comparabilitg. The total value adjustments of laans ta cantames changed

from 3,715 to 7655 and fromi 4,177 10 8.531 as of | Janwary and 31 Docombier 200 3, respectivedy,

Consoldated Finaticla' Stalements 2004 Rabobank Geoup
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Upon adooting IFRS 13 Fair value measurement’ in 201%, Rabobank continued 1o ervoneously apply mid
paices fior valubng derivatbses for hedging Interest rates and cutrency tisks, which was allowed under the
prewious standard bur not wnder FRS 13, unless an option under IFRS 13 was used, The effect on the 2013
and 2014 prafit represented & boss of 286 and a gair of 170, respectvely. Since this adjustment results in
incomystencies in the recognition of financial assets and labilities and desivatives for hedging risks, the option
undder IFRS 13 was used In 2004 and the accounting policy was changed. As part of this change, mid prces
are used for the valuation of specific gerivalives; see the accounting principies for deevative Arancial
Instrurments In paragraph 2.3.1.The effect on the profit or loss for 2013 of the mew accounting policy is a gain
of 191, and for 2014 an expense of 167, The Impact on the change in the accounting policy largely offsets the
effect of the adjustrment. The nét amount In the consalidaced statement of income is 5 for 2003 and -16 for 2014,
O the imalementation of IFRS in Rabobank's comolidated financial Matementy, payments on squity
instrurnents were enoaously recognised as prepayments and recognised under ‘Dther assers, because there
|5 @ balance sheet befare profit appropaiation; this ocowred In the course of the year in anticipation of the
formal approval regarding profit appropeiation adopted by the General Meeting during the following year.
Since amounts paid during the yeas effectively cannot be ieclaimead, it was decidad 1o 1ake such amounts
darectly 1o equity upan pagment The sofvency risks are nat aflected by this adjuserment. The equity of
Ratrobank and local Rabobanks, other assets are ather abilities have been adjusted as follovs:

I Deaasnbar JO0F | Janaary J1T

Erpaity befors adjastment of pay ity 840 Ban
Decrease in oihe masets (30 28
Irscsrave in cabest Halsiities a0ty e
Equity afier s J Fquity & ann awany

2.1.2  Judgements and estimares

These fimancial statements were propased or the basls of the going concern assumgption, a3 there ae no
Indications of Rabobank's inability to continue as a going concern,

The preparation of the financial statements raquires managemant o make estimates and assumothons that
affect the amounts reported for assets and Rabilties, the reporting of contingent assets and llablities at the
date of the financial statements, as well as 1he amounts reported for income and expenies during the
reparting penod. The situations that are asiesied based on avadabile financeal data and informatian malnky
cencem the detormination of the falr value of assets and liabilities and impairments. Althaugh management
basod their estimates on the most careful assessment of the current crcumistances and activities, the actual
resulis might deviate from these estimates. For the estimated modfications arising from the Asset Qualty
Review (AOR), ploase refer to paragraph 4.4.9. Due to weaker market conditions for both residential and
commecial real estate and the limited number of tansactions, these (s increased uncertalnty regarding
preperty valiation (Le. land holdings, work in progress, complzied developments and property investmenis)
and property finzncing, Property vaheation & subject 1o a number of different assumations and valuation
methods. The use of different assumptions and methods may, due 10 the subjective nature involved, result in
different outcomes.

2.2 Groupfinanclal statements

221 Subsidiaries

The participating Interests ower which Rabakank maintains contrel are subsidaries (including structured
entithes) and are conselidated. Contiod b execied over a pasticipating interest § the ivestor s exposed 1o,
o¢ ks entitled to. fluctuating income in respect of his iInvaivement In the participating interest and has the
opportunity to influence this income oy utng his contiol over the participating interest. The assets, Rabiliias
and prafit/loss of these companies are fully consolidated,

Submidiaries ame corsolicated a5 of the date onowhich the effective coneal 15 randermed 1o Kababank and will o
lenges b cansolidated as of the date on which this contre! [s terminated, All mnsactions, balances and unrealised
cping and losses from ransscbions between Rabobank Group subnidiaries lave been eliminated on consolidation,

Naiat o the cansolidated finandial statements
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internal liability [cross-guarantee system]

Ir accordance with the Dutch Financial Supervision Act (Wet op het financhael toezichi), varlous legal entities
belonging o Rabobank Group are intemally lable under an intragroup mutual keep well system, Under this
systern the panicipating entities are Bound, in the event of & lack of funds of a panicipating entity to watishy s
creditars, 1o provide the funds necessany to allow such deficient participant 10 satisfy its crediters.

The participating entities ase

The local Rabobanks of Codperatieve Cenirale Rafffeisen Boorenleenbank BA,
Cooperatieve Cenfrale Raiffelsen-Boeeneenbank LA, (Rabobank Nederand), Amaterdam
Rabohypatheskbank MV, Amsterdam

Faiffeisenhypotheekbank MY, Amitesdam

Schuetlen & Co N, Amsterdam

Die Lage Landen International BV, Eindhoven

+ D Lage Landen Financiening BV, Eindhoven

+ De Lage Landen Trade Finance BV, Eindhoven

De Lage Landen Financial Services BV, Eindhoven

"

"

-

.

-

2,22 Investments in assockates and foll veniues

Irwestments in atsociates are recognlsed In accordance with the equity method. With this method,
Ratobani’s share of the profits and lesses of an assoclate - subject 1o Rabobank's acocounting policies -

(after the acquisition) is recognised in paofit or boss, and its shate of the changes In reserves affted the acquisition
Is recognised in reserves, The cumulative changes after acquisition ale adjusted 10 the oo of the Investment.
Associates are entities over which Rabobank has significant influence and in which it usually holds between
20% andl 50% al e voting righis ol over which it does not execise contial. A [ain venluse [4 an agreement
battween one or more parties wherehy the parties, which haye shared control over the agreemant, ae entitled
to the net assets uncer the agreement. Unreallsed profits on transscthons between Rabobank and is assoclates
and |oint ventures are eiminated in accordance with the sire of Rabobank's Interest in the assodates and joint
ventures

Unrealised losses are adeo eliminated unless the wransaction ndicates that an impafeement loss should be
recognisd on the assen ianslerred Investments by Ratbobank in assockares include the goodwill acquired.

It Rabobank™ thare in the keties of an atsaciate equals af exceeds its intereit in the aviaciate, Rabahani will
ol pecognise any mare losses af the assoclate unbess Rabobank has ghven underiakings or made payments

o behall of this associate,

23  Derlvative fimancial Instruments and hadging

231 General lnformation

Drerivative fmancial instrements gensratly compeise forelgn sxchange comtracty, currency and interest rate
futures, lorwaed rate agreemendts, currency and inforest rafte swaps, and currency and interest rate options
[weritien as well as acquired). Derivative financial instruments can be traced elther on the stiock exchange or
over the counter [OTC) between Rabobank and a client. All derlvative financial instruments are recognised at
fair value The fair valuz i detetrmined using listed market prices (o small bid-ask range applies 1o derivatives
quated i euros, UG doBare and/er pound steviing, and mid prices ane used), along with prices offered by
trachors, cash flosy discownting models and option valuation models Based on curtent market prices and
contracted prices fos the undeelying Instruments, as well as the time vilue of money. yleld curves and the
vedatiliny of the underlying assets and liabdities. All derbvative financlal Instrumenis are Incduded under assels
IF thedr fair vatue i positive and under liabilities # thair fair value is negative. Diestivative financial instruments
that are embedded inothes inancial strurments we treated separately iF their sisks and charctedstics ae
i closely telated 1o those of the undelying dervative contract and this contract 1s nob classiled as at lain
walue throngh paofit and Inss

Consobdated Financlal Stalements 2014 Rabsobank Geoup
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232 Instrements nof used for hedging
Il Rabobank enters ‘mto dervatives fios wading purposes, realised and unrealisad gains and lodses ase
accounied for under 'lncome from financial assets and kabilivies ar fair value through profit and loss)

233 Hedging instruments
Rabobank alo uses derhvatiee financial instrurments as part of asset and liability management 16 manage it
Interost: rate risks, crodit visks and foreign cunency risks. Rabobank makes use of the possbilities provided by
the EU throwgh the canve-out in 1AS 39, The canve-out facilitates the application of falr value portiolio hedge
BCcounting 1o certain postions.
O the date of concluding a derivative contract, Rabobank can designate certain derivative fmancial indrurments
a5 (1] & hedge of the Fair value of an giset of bty in the statemaent of inancisl position (faie value hedge),
a5 13 a hedge of future cash fiows allocable to an asset or llabdity In 1he stasement of Anancial position, an
expected trarnaction or & fierm commitment (cash flow hedge), or 35 (3] a hedge ol a net iInvestment Ina
foraign entity inet investmeant hedge) Hedge accounting can be appliad for derivative financial instruments.
designated in this mannar if cartain critedia are meat:
+ formal docurmentation af the hedging instrument, 1he hedged em, 1he objective of the hedge,
the hedging strateqgy ard the hedge relationship before applying hedge accounting;
+ the hedge b expected to be effective in a range of B0% to 125%) In offsetting changes in the hedged
Iberm's fadr valuse ar cash flows allocable to the hedged risks during the entire reporting peniod:
+ the hedge ik continuously effective from Incepiion onwards
Changes in the lair value of derivative fimancial instrements that are designated as fair value hedges and are
elfective In relation to the hedged risks are recogniced in prohit or loss, together with the conrespanding
changes in the fair value of the aasets or liabilities hedged against the rigks in question.

If the hedge no longer meets the critera for bedge accounting laccording fo the fair value bedge modal),
amy adjustment to the camying amount of  hedged Interest-bearing fimancial instrument s amartsed
theough profit or loss until the end of the hadged period.

Foa hedges of net imestrmenis (n foreign entities, the derivativa (s stated at fair value, whaereby the fair value
changes, to the extent that they are eflfective, are taken to equity, The change in the hedoed equity
Instrument a% a result of eochandge-rate fluctiations are Also recognised undes squity until the dispowl of the
equity insdniment.

Ay adjustment ta the carying amownt of a hedged equity Instrumient Is necognised as equity until disposal
of the equity instrument (nat investment hedael, Changes in the fair valee of derivative financial Instrmesents
that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges and that are effective in relation to the hedged rlsks ane
recognied in the hedoing reserve incluced under Bquity’ (see nate 10). The nan-effective part of the changes
in the fair values of the derivative inancial instruments s recognised In profit and los If the forscast
transaction ar the non-curtent Hability results in the recognition of 4 son-financial asset or a non-financisl
liahility, any defermed gain or loss included in equety s restated o the initial canrying amount (cose) af the asse
or the liability, Inall ather cases, deferred amounts included in cquity 2 takon 1o the statement of iIncome
and are classified as income or expenses n the perdods inwhich the hedoed noncwrent lability or the
faracast vansaction had an effect on profit and boss.

Cemain defivative contracts, althouah they are economic hedges in relation (o the managed risk positions
taken by Rabobank, do not qualify for bedge accounting under the specific IFRS rules These contracts ane
therefore treated as derhathe financial instruments held for trading, The falr value of derhathe financlal
Instruments held for trading and hedging purposes is disclosed in note 10 Deivatlve financlal instruments
and ather rade llabilities:

Natet 16 the consalidated finandal statemsnts
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234 Trade liabilities

Trade labilities are mainly nagative falr values of derivative financial mstruments and delivery obligations
arsing on short salling of securities. Securities ate sold short (o realise cains from short-teem poce
Muetuations The secutities necded 1o settle the thoe selling are acquired through securities leasing ot wale
and securithes reparchase agreements. Securities sold shert are recognined a1 fair value a1 the teparting date,

2.4 Financial assets hald for trading

Fancial assets held for trading are fimancial assets acquired with the objective of generating peofit from
short-tesm fluctuations in prices ar traders’ magins, o finandial assets that foem pait of portfolios
characterised by pattens of short-term profit pasticipation. Financial astets held for trading are measured

at faif volue based on Hsted bid prices. All relited comphehensive income i included under Tncami fram
financial assats and labilities at fair vakse through profitor loss! Interest earned on financlal assets is
recognised as Interest income. Dividends recelved on financial assets held for trading are recognised as
‘Incame from financial assets and lahilities at fair value throwgh peafit and loss. A acouisitions and sales

of fnancial assets held for tading which require deliveny wethin a time limit presonibed under the regulations
o in acooidance with marker conventions ane accaunted for on the tansaction date,

25  Other financial assets and llabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Rabsobank has opted to classify financlal Instruments not acquired or ertered into for realising gains from
short-term fluctuations in traders’ prices or margins at fair value through profit or loss. These financlal assets,
Including venture capital, are camied at falr value. Management designates financial assets and liabilities to
this category upan initial iecogniion If any o all of the following criteria ae met:

+ such a designation elminates or substantlally reduces any Inconslstent treatment that would otherwite
have miven upon measurerment of th ssets o KabilRties o recognition of peofits o kosses on tw basls of
differont accounting palicies;

the assets and llabilisies belong 10 a group of Frandal asscts andéor financial labilities that ae managed
and assessed on the basis of the far value In accomance with a documented risk management or
IrvestmEnt stratedgy:

the financial instiument contains an embedded dedvative fnanclal instrurment, unbass the smbedded
ditivative financlal instrument does not sgnaficantly affect the cash Pows ar if 10 s evident, after imited
anakyss of no anabyds a1 all, that separate recognition is not requived,

Imterest earmed on assets with this classfication |5 recogrised as interest income and Interest due on liabilities
with this classificatson is recognised as Interest expense, Any other realsed and unreatised gains and losses on
revaluation of these financial instruments at fai value are incheded under Income from other financial assets
and llabilities at fair value thiough profi or loss. Al purchases and sales of ether financldl assets and labilies
al fair value thraugh profn ar low that have 1o be delivered within a peiod prescribed by regulations o
mrathet comvention are recognited at the transaction date.

+

26  Day 1 profit

IE, at the time 3 finandal instrument is entered into, valuation methods are used at fair value, a discrepancy
Priay afise Batwesn the raniaction poice and fa value. Such a dcrepancy 14 refered to o day | prafit”
Ratsobank immediately sccounts for this profit under Inceme fram financial suets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or bess, if the valuation methed s based on observable inputs {of active markets) If non-
ptrervable Inputs are wsed, the day 1 profie B amoetised over the term of the transaction and accounted for
a5 'Other liabllities', Profit ks then talken at o subsoquent stage f the Rnandlal instrument concerned has been
sold of the data enteved has become visible at a later stage.

27  Avallable-for-sale financial assets
Management determines the classification of financial assers on the date of acquisition, depending on the
punposa for which the irmsestmants are acquited,

18 Consoldated Financial Statements 2014 Rabobank Group
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Financial assets that are inended to be hald indefinitely and that could be sold for liquidity punposes or in
response o changes in interest rates, exchange rates or share prices are classified as avadlabfe for sale.
Avallable-for-sale financial assets are initialy recognised at fair valee, including warsaction costs, based an
quoted bid prlees or values derived from cadh fow models. The fer values ol unlisted equlty instrumenis are
estimated based on appropriate price/eamings ratios, sdjusted 10 reflect the specific circumatances of the
fEspcthve Bswers, Any wiieallied galns and lodses fram changed In the fali valee of svallable-fai-wale fhiancial
assels e recognized bn equity unbess thay melate to amanised Interest or exchange-rate differences of
manetary assets. If such hrandal assets are disposed of, the adjuwstrments o fair value are recognised in profit
and loss.

Dbt instrurments are impaired F there are objective indications that the fair value has decreased 1o such a
dagres that no reasorable psumplions can be made that the value will recever 1o carrying amount in the
foresecabie future. AT each reporting diate, management asesses whether there are objective indications of
Impaimaent of avallable-for-sale assets. Examples of objective evidence for value adjustments ae:

+ significant financial difficulties on the part of the issuer;

+ default in making Intedest andsor redemplion payments;

« e disappearance of active rmarkees for the Bnancial asset caused by Anancal difficulties.

Ins the event of impairment, the cumulative kass i determined by the difference between cast and current fair
value, 'ess any previously recognied Impairment transferred from the revaluation reserve in equety to profit o
loss. If the Impatiment of a dabt Instrument diminishes in a subsequent pariod and the diminution can ba
objectvely attributed to an event that occurred after the impairment, the impadment is reversed through
peehit orloss.

Equity instrurments ate impaised if thelr cost permanent’y exceeds thelr recoverable amount, Le, thair faip
value is permanenily or significantly lower than their cost. The recoverable amount of iInvestments in unlisted
equity imstruments i determined uding appeoved valustion methods, wihsedeas thi: recoverable armount af
listed fmancial assets is determined on the basis of market value Impabment of equity instruments |s neves
subsequenily reversed theough profit o loss. AB purchases and sales made in accordance with standard
market conventions for available-for-sale financial assets are recognised at the transaction date. All other
puschases and sales ate recognised at the settlemeant date.

2.8  Repurchase agreements and reverse repurchase agreements

Financial assets that ame sold subject 10 related sale and repurchase agroements are included in the financial
staterments under Financial assets hedd fos tading'and Wwallable-for-sale fnanclal assets. The Bability to the
counterparty i incleded under Due bo other banks or Due to customeans, depending on the applcation.
Financial assets acquined under reverse sale and reverse repurchase agreements are recognised as Due from
other banks, ar Loans 1o customers, depending on the application. The difference benween the salling price
and repurchasing price B recognised as intenest income o intenest espense over the 1erm of the agreemient,
basad an the sffective intarest method

2.9  Securitisations and other derecognition constructions

Rabobank securitises, sells and canies vatious financial assets Those assets ane sometimes sold 1o special

ot entities (SPE), which then [ssue securities to investon. Rababank hss the aption of retaining an

innerest imsold securitised financial assers in the form of wribordinated imenest-only sorips, subordinated

securitios, sproad accounts, servicing rights, guarantees, put aptions and call options, and other constructions.

A Fnanclal asset [or a portion of It Is detecognised IF:

+ the rights to the cash Aows from the asset expine;

+ the rights to the cash Aows from the asset and a substantial portion of the risks and benefits of ewnership
of the asset are ransfened;

+ 4 commitrment to trander the cash flows from the asset is presumed and a substantial portion af the riske
and benefits are ransferred;

« ot all the conomic ks and benehts are retained or transfened; howewer, control over the aset b
transfered

Nates 1o the consalidated financial statements
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4 firancial liability or part thareof s derecognised if it ceases to sxdst, |.e after the contractual obligation has
been fulflad ar cancelled or has eapirad.

I Rabrobank retaling control over the asset but does not reain a substantial porton of the risis and benefits,
the asset b recognised in prapadion to the continuing invelvement of Rabolbank. A related lability i also
recognised to the extent of Rabobanks continuing imabrement. The recognition of changes in the value of
the lsbility cofmeiponds to the recognition &f changes in the value of the asset

Ifa ransaction does nol maet the above conditions for derecognition, it B recognised as a loan for which
security hias been provided.

To the extemt that the transfer of a financlal asset does not quay for derecognition, the tansfer does not
resuilt in Rabohank's cantractual rights being separately recognised as dervative financia’ instiuments
recognitian of thege ingtrurments snd the transferned asast, of the Gabilty arsing on the tanden weee to reault
i double recognition of the same sights o ebilgations

Gairs and losses on securitisations and sale transactions depend partly on the previous canrying amounts of
the financial assets transferred. These are allocated to the sold and retained interests based on the relathe fair
values of these interests art the date of sale. Any gains and losses ane recognised through peofit or loss at the
timme af transfer,

The fait value of the sobd and retained imterests 15 based on quoted masket prices or calculated as the present
value of the future expected cash Mows, using pricing models that ke n1o accoun vilous assumptions
such as credit losses, discount rates, vield curves, payment Frequency and other factors.

Rapobank decides whather the SPE should be included in the consofidated financial statements. For this
purpose, It perferms an assessment of the SPE by taking a number of factors into consideration, including the
activities, decision making powers and the allocation of the benefits and rlsks associated with the activities of
the SPE.

210 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash equivadents are highly liguid shart term investments held to meet current obligations in cash, mther
thamn for Inwestments or other purposes. Such investments have remadning terms of less than 90 days at
Incaption. Cash equivalents ara readily convertible 1o known armounts of cash and subject to an insignificant
rk of changes in value,

211 Netting of financial assets and labilities

Financial assets and dabilies are set off and the not ameunt & tansferred to the statement of francial
position il a legal right to set off the recognised amounts exists and it s iIntended to settle the expected
future cash fiows on a net basls, of o realikse the asset and sattle the labiity simultaneousty. This makndy
concens netting of curtent account balinces and derivative financial instruments, The set-off of taxes 1
discussed innate 2.24

2,12  Foreign currencies

2121 Foreign entities

Items included in the financial staterments of each entiny in Rabobank Goup are carted inthe osrency that
best reflects the econamic reality of the underying events and circurnitances that are relevant for the entity
(the funcrional currencyl,

The consalidated financial statements ate presented in ewnos, which & the parent comgary's functhonal
curTency. Gadrs, losses and cash flows of foreign entitics are tanslated Into the presertation cumency of
Rabobani at the exchangs rates ruling at the transaction dates, which s approzimately equal to the average
exchange rates. Assets and labdities are translated at closing rates. Translation differences aricing on the nat
inwestmenis In foreign entities and on loans ard ather currency nstrurments designated as hedges of these
Irveestimenis are recognised i eguity. i a forelgn entity b sold, sy such translation dilferences are recognised
Irn pareihia ot Bt s et el the 2ain o ks an the wale,

Goodwill and Fair vahue adjustments aridng on the soquisition of a foraign entity are recognised 0% asscts and
liabiligies of the forelgn entity and are anstated at the chosing rate.

Consolidated Finadiclal Statements 2004 Ratbsobank Gioup
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2,122 Forelgn-curmency iransactions

Transactions in forelgn cunendies are ranslated inte the functional currency at the exchange rates ruling at
the rransaction dates. Translation differences asising on the sertlement of such ransactons of on the
randlation of monetary a sets and Rabilites denominated in forelgn cutrencies are recagnibied in profit of lons,
Transkation differences qualifying as net investment hedges are recognised In equity,

Trarsiation differences an debt securities and other monetary financial asets carried at fal valug are included
under forelgn exchange gains and Iosses, Translaten differences on nonsmonetary ierms such as equity
Instrurrenis held for trading are recognised as part of the fair value gains or losses. Translation differences on
available-for-sale non-maonetary items are included in the revaluation reserve reported under 'Foguity

213 Interest

Interest income and expense for all interest-bearing matrumends is recognised in proft or loss on an accrual
basks, with the effective interest method being appiied interest income includes coupons relating to fized
Imarest financial assets and firancial assats hedd for vading, as wel as the cumulative premdunns and
dEscounts of goverrdment reasury securities and ather cash squivalent instruments IF any loans suffes
impaimment ledses, they are wiitten down 1o their recoverable amourts and the inténest income recognised
hencelanh 1s based an the original discount rate for caloulating the prasent valee of the future cash flows
used to determine the recévenable amounts. Intarest on destvatives beld foe economic hedging purposes s
shown separately under Interest Income.

214 Commisslon

Incorme from amset management activities consists mainly of und trust, fund management commission and
adminiseation. Income fram asiet management and indurance brakerage s recognised as eamed ance the
setvicos havie beeh provided,

Commission b generally recognbed on an sccrual basls. Commisson received for negoblating a transaction,
or taking part in the negotiations, on behalf of thirg parties, for example the acquisition of a portiolio of foars,
shares or other securities, or the sale or purchase of companies, & recognised at completion of the underlying
rransactions

215 Loans to customers and due from ather banks

Lewsns 1o custemers and Due from other banks are non-derivative financial insteuments with fixed or defined
payments, not listed on an active market, apart from such assats that Rabobank classifies as trading, a1 fab
value on initlal recognition with changes recegnised through profit of ioss, or as avallable for sale. Loans to
customers and recefvables are initially recognised at fair value, Incuwdng ransaction costs. and subsequently
carried at amortised cost, Including transaction costs

Loans are subgect ta eaher indvidual or collective Impairment analyses. A value agjustment, a provision for
expected [a4ses on loans, s recognised § thene i objective evidence that Habobank will not be able 1o colbact
all amounts due under the ariginal terms of the contract. The size of the provision is the diference between
the carrying amsount and the iecoverable amouit, wikich & the present value of the espected canh Nows,
Including amaounts recoverabls under guarantees and sureties, discounted at the onginal {average) effective
rate of intehest of the lsans

The provision foe loans includes losses I ihere s objective evidence that bosses ae allocable 10 some
pertions of the loan portiolio at the reparting date,

Examples of objective evidence for value adpntments ane;

significant Brancial défficulties on the part of the bomower;

default in making interest and/or redemption payments on the part of the borrower;

+ lpan renegotiations;

possibility of bankruptey of o imancial reorganisation a1 the bonmwern

« changes in bomowers' payment satus;

« changes in economic circumstances that coudd cause the borrower to default,

*

-

Nates 1o the cansolidated financial statements
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For sach separate business unit, the losses ane estimatad based on the cred it ratings of the borrowsars and tha
value of the collateral provdded to the bank, and taking knto account the actual econamic conditicns under
which the borrewers conduct thedr activitles. The camrying amount of the loans & eeduced through the use of
@ providon accaunt, based an what the bank considets the most likely scenario, and the loss is @mken o the
staternent of Income. Write-olfs of provisons for expected lnan loses are made a3 s00n a4 the enforcement
process is completed, the security pidvided has been reallsed, when vistually no ather means of feoovely arg
avallable and in the event of a foemal cancellation of a debt. Whese theve s virtually no pespective of the
debior being able to continue as a godng concern, a provision for expected boan losses s wrtben off at
porifolio level, up 10 the amount deemed uncellectible. Any amounts subsequently collected ae included
under the item Yakie adjustments’ in the statement of income.

As so0n a8 the preapects foe continuity have recovened snd anears hove been cleared as dgreed, the loan is
ne longer considered impaied (not fully collectibler. Management conimeally assesses these renegotited
lans to ensure that all criteria ae satished with a view (o expected future cash flows

The general prowision canstitutes the peovision adopted for the portion of the ponfolio that remains.

effect vely Impatred as at the balance shear date bt which has not yet been ideniified as such (IBNR; incurred
but not reported] in the bank's risk systerms. As before, Basel || parameters, adpsted to the (FRS quidelines and
ta curent developments, are used here In aeder to determine the provision. An impartant factor in
determining the general provision I what ks knoén as the Loss identihcatian Perdod (LIPY Le. the pedod
batween the time a loss event occurs M the clent’s company and the time the bank has recardad the loss
event In &5 risk systems. The LIP s expressed in months and varles between portfolios.

At each reporting date. management assesses whether thare is objective evidence that reclassified loans
previously recognised as awilablefor-sale assets have been impaied. For exposures classified as corporate
exposwes under CRD IV, expasures are measured In sccordance with the‘ane debtor’ principle. This principle
entails that the appeoved limil fos o debtor applies 1w the surm of all exposies - Including dehvatives,
guarantoes and the like = of thie debtor group inowhich the debtor has bean classibed, Debtor groups includae
all debiors who form part of the cconomic entity i which legal entities and companées are affiliated with the
same pgandsation. In addition, the majosity shaseholders also form part of the ecoromic entity. The one dettor”
principle applizs across all entities: the exposures of the debtar group must be included for all group divistons

216 Imanglble assets

2161 Goodwill

Goadwill Is the amount by which the acgquisition price paig for a sebsidlary or assodate exceeds the fabrvalue
on the acquisition date of Rabobank'’s share of tha net assets and the contingent labilities af 1he entity
acquired Upon eachacquisition, the ather ménority inferests are recognised at fakr value or at the propaortion
af the identifiable assets and liabiities of the acquied entity, Impaiiment tests are perfarmed annually of -

If Indications so dictate - moee frequenly 1o determing whethes enpaliment has occurred,

2162 Software developrment costs

Costs related to the development of maintenance ol software are recogndsed as an expernse at the time they
are Incutred, Costs directly inowmed in connection with idenifiatle and unigue software products over which
Rabsobank has contral and that will prababily provide economic benefits exceeding the easts far langer than
@ year are tecognived & intangible assers, Dinect costs include the employes expenses of the sofiware
development team, inancing and an appeogriate portion of the relevant overhead

Expenditurcs that impreve the performance of softwaee compared with thelr orlginal specibcations am added
to the original cost of the soltware. Software development costs are recognised as assets and amortised on

a straight-line basis over a parlod not exceading five yaars.

2,163 Otherintangible assets
Drhet intangible aviets ae mainky those tdentitied upan budness cambinations They ase amartised owver thedl

terms, Each yoar, Rabobank perferms an impairmaent test based on expocted future cash lows. An impairment
loas is recoguised i§ the expecied luture profis do not justify the carrying amount of the asset,

Consolidated Financlal Staterments 2014 Rabobank Group
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2164 Impalrment losses an goodwill
Each year, during the fourth queartes of the financlal year, or mare frequently if indications of impairment exist,

goadwill 15 tested for iImpairment by comparing the recovarable amount with the carrying amount. The highess
af value in use on the one hand and falr value leds selling costs on the athe: determines the recoverable
el The dhefinition of cash Now genetating units depend on the type al cornpany scguied, Thie vabus n
uise-af a cash flow generbing unl i arved a8 by determining the prosent valus of the expectad futur cash
flowers of the cash flow generating undl In question at the interest ate before tax. The major msumptions used
In the cash flow model depend an the input data which reflect differant financlal and economic varables,
such as the tisk-free interest rate in a cowntry and a premium reflecting the inharent sk of the entity
concerned. The variables are detarmined duibject to review by management Impairments of goodwill are
incleged in Othar inceme’ in the statement of incoma,

216.5 Impairment fosies on other intongilile ossets

At each reporting date. Rabobank assessas whether thera are indications of Impaisment of ather Intangible
assars. I swch Indications exist, impaitment 1esting is carried ot 1o determine whathar the carryiag amount
of the ather intapgebde assets i fully recoverable, Animpaitrment loss s recognised if the carrying amount
excords the recoverable amount, Goodwill and software under dovelopment are tested for impalrment each
year at the reportng date or moce frequently If indications of impairment exist, Impabsment losses and
reversed impalrments of other Intargible assets are included in 'Ciher administratve expenses’ in the
statement of income.

217  Property and equipment

2121 Property and equipment fer own use
Eqquipenent ffar awn use) i recogrised ot histoncnl ot net of accurmulited depreciation and mpaiments

if applicable. Property (for own use} represents mainty offices and s also recognised at cost less accumulated
depreciation and mpalrments If applicable.

Stralght-line daprecation & applied to thase assets in accordance with the schedule below Each asset i
depteciated 1o s residual value over s estimaned weful like:

« Land ot depreciated
- IBaitcings. 2 yrary
Eqpalpment. inchading

+ Comguter equigetaem 1 -5 prars
+ [Aher eouiprrent and vwhiciey 1-Byran

Each year, Rabobank assesses whether there ane indications of impaiment of property and equigment. I the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds ity estimated recoverable amount, the camylng amouns is written doen
Immediately (o the recovenble amount. Impaiment lasses and reversed impalrments of property and
equipment are iIncluded in Othar acministrative expenses In the statement of income, Gains and losses on the
dispodal of ems of propany and equipment se deteimined in proportion (o thelr carnying amounts and
taken into account when determining the opersting reul.

Repait and maintenance work & charged to peoht or loss at the time the relevant costs are Incurred.
Expenditures on extending or Increasing the benefits fram land and bulldings compared with thelr ariginal
benefits ste capitalised and subsequently depreclated.

2,18 Investment propertlies

Imvestrmen propenies, mainly office bulldings, are held for their beng-term remal Income and are nat used by
Rabobank or its subsidiaries. Investment peoperties are recognised as long-1erm investments and included In
thiz statement of fenancial position at cost. net of sccumulated depaeciation and impalrmaent,

Imvestment properties are depreclated over a term of 40 years.

Nates 1o rthe consalidated finandial statemants
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1.1%  Other assets

2.19.1 Work in progress

Work in progress s included in Other assets. Work in progress relases 1o-commercial real estate projects as well
as sold and unsold howsing peojects under cotstruction or planned and iz carrled a0 cost plus allocated Interesn,
et of provisions 4 necesary, instalments imoloed 1o buyers and customers are dediscted from work in
prageeds I the balince Tod & project 14 regative ithe amount of the imvaiced istilments excoads the
capitalised costs), the balance of that project Is recognised as Other Habdities.

Gabns and losses are recognised based on the percentage of completion method ghven the continuous
transfar of ownership involved. In the cowrse of the construction work, Rabobank transfed the control and the
rmaterial tisks and bensfits of the awnership of the work in progress in [ts current state 1o the buyer as
COMSTUCTION DrOgresses,

2.18.2 Building sites

Building sites are vabued ar cost, including Imersst alincated and additional costs relating to site acguisithon
and preparation. Mo Interest s allacated for land which has no specific designation under the zoning plan,

If thens ks no centaincy that the land will be developad, The price of land does not includs the conditonal
requirement which dopends on a flutune reclassification of the land in question. For lostes expected upon the
sabe of the land, the canying amount of the site |s subject to Impaimment.

220 Leasing

2.20.1 Rabobank as lessee

Leases relating to property and equipment under which vamually all risks and benefits of awnership are
tramletred to Rabobank are classified as fnance leases. Finonce leases are capitalived at the inception af the
liase at the fair walue of the leaed assets of gt the present value of the minimum lease paymments il the
present value is lmwer Lease paymaents are apportioned between the lease Bability and the inance changes,
505 fo achiove a constant rate of intorest on the remaining balance of the labilty, The comesponding loase
liabilizles are included undas Other Babilhias, afier deduction of finance charges: The inlerest comaonents of
the finance charges are recognised in profit or lass over tha term of the lease An item of propedty and
equipment acquired winder 3 leaie agreament 5 deprecimed over the useful lite of the asseq o, IF shorern,
tha petim of the lease.

Leases undar which a considerable portion of the risks and benefits of ownerihip of the assots is rotained by
the lessor are classifed as operating leases. Operating lease paymenis [less any disoownts by the lessor) are
charged to peofit or loss on a straight=line basis over the term of the lease.

2.20.2 Rabobank as lessar

Finance leases

I assets ame leased under a finance lease, the present value of the lease paymaents Is recognised as a receivable
uncier Due from other banks or Loans to customess, The difierence between the gross recetvable and the
present value of the recetvable is recognised as unearned Anance incoma. Lease incame s recognised as
imterest income over the term of the lease using the net investment mathod, which results in & constant rane
of ietuif an the imestment

Cperating leases

fasets mased under operating leases ane includied In the statement of Anancial pasition wndes Property and
equipment. The assets are deprociated over their expected useful lives in line with those of comparable items
of property and equipment. Bental income (less discounts granted to lessees and wiite-downs) ks recognked
under Other income on a stralght-line basis ovar the tem of the lease.

Comsolidated Financial Staternents 2014 Rabobank Gioup
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121 Provisions

Prowisions are recognised If Rabobank has a present obligation (legal or constiuctive) as a result of a past
event, If it is probable thar an outflow of resources will be requited 1o senle the obligathon and i a reliable
estimate can be made of the armount of the abligation, If Rabobani expects & provision to be reimbursed,
for example under an Insurance contract, the reimbursement is recogniied 23 a separate asset bt only If the
reimbursement is virteally certain, The provisions are carried a1 the discourted value of the expected futuie
cash flows.

2211 Restructusing

Resfructuring provislons comprise payments under redundancy schemes and other costs direcily allacable 1o
retruciuring programmes. Thi se costs ane accounled for during the period inowhich a legal of actual paymaent
obligation arlses for Rabobank; a datatled plan has been prepared for redundancy pay, and there ane realistic
expectatons among the partles concermed that the rearganesation will be implemented,

2.21.2 Taxandlegal issues

The provision for tax and legal Raues s based on the best possible estmates available at the balance theet
date, taking Into sccount legal and tax advice. The timing of the cash cutflow of these provisions s uncertain
because the outcome of the disputes and the time invelved are unpredictable.

2.21.3 Ouher provisions
This itern includes provisions for onerous contracts, credin guarantees and obligations under the terms of the
depoalt quarantee scheams,

223 Employes benefils

Rastrabank has vikous peosion schemies in place based on e becal conditions and practices of the couniries
I wehich It operates. In general, the plans are fmanced by payments to Insurance compandes or tnistee
administared funds. The payments are calowlated actuarially a1 regular intervals. A defined benefit plan is one
that incorpotates & promise to pay an amount of pension benafit which i usually hased on several factors
such as age, member of years in tenvice and remunesation. A defined contribution plan s one in the context
af which Rababank pays fixed conributions to a separate ertity (o pension fund) and acquires no legal or
canstructive ebligation If the fund has insulficient assets to pay all the benefits 10 emplayee-members of the
plan in respect of service in current and past periods.

2221 Pension abligations

The abligation under the defined-benefin pension schemes |5 the present value of the defined-benefit
pension obligation an the balance sheet date after deduction af the falr value of fund Investmients. The defined-
benaht obligation Is calculated annually by indapendent actuaries based on the projected unit cradit method
The present vahue of the defined-banefit obligation k= determined by the estimated future outflow of cash
funds based on the imerest rates of hagh-guality corporate bonds with tenms which approach that al the
comespanding abligation. The majority of pension schemes are carear-average schemes, and the costs of
thewe seheimes — L. the net pension changes loe the poriod less ermployes contiibutions and imensst,

1% included under S1alf costs’ Net interest expanses of income are calculated by apphing the discount tate at
the beginning of tha yoar for the asset or llaklRy based on the defined-benefit pension scheme, Actarial gains
and losses arlsing from actual developments or actuarial assymptions ane recognised In the consolidated
statement of comprehersive income.

2.22.2 Defined contribution plans

Under defined contribution plans, Rababank pays coneribations 1o publicl or pivately managed insured
panslon schemes on a compulsory, contractual oe voluntasy basis Once the contributions have been made,
Ratobank has no Further payment obligations. The regular contributions aie net perlad costs Tor the year in
which they are due and are ncluded on thes basts under Staff costs.

Netes 14 the cansalidated Anancial statements
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2223 Oiher post-employment obligations

Some Aabobank business units provide other post-employment benefits. To becomea eligible for such
benefits, the usual reguirernent is thar the employes remains in service until retirerment and has been with
the company a minimum number of years The expected costs of these benefits sre accrued during the yean
of service, based ona system simdlar 1o that for defined benefit plans The obligations ate valued eech year by
Indepandent actuariew

2224 Variable rernuneration

The costs of varlable remuneration pald unconditiorally and in cash are recognised in the year in which the
employee tenders the services The costs of conditional payments in cash are included in staff costs in the
statement of income in the period during which the employes’s services are receivied, which sgquad the
vizsting period of the cash payment. The Mabikty Is recogrised in other Rabilitses. The accounting treatment
of equity instrument:based paymernis s disclosed in note 223,

223 Equity instrument-based payments

Remuneration for seqvices rendered by idenified stalf is made in the foim of cash-senled payments based on
eouity intiurments that are smilar to, and have the same chatacteristics as, Rabsobank Certificates, The costs of
the services recelved are based an the awarded equity Instruments fair value on the award date and are
recalculated annually at the value applicable at the time. The costs of the awarded equity instruments are
Included in staff costs in the statement of income Inthe periad during which the emplayees services are
recewved, which equals the vesting periad of the equity instruments The lability s recognised in ather
liabiligies.

224  Tax

Curent tax receivables and payables we set off if there b5 a legally enforceable right to sat off such iterms and
I simuttancews treatment or settlement s Intended, Defened tax assets and Babilities are set off fthore isa
legaty enforceable right 1o set off such items and if they relate (o the same tax authority and arise from the
BAMNE tax gUoup.

Prowisons are formed in Tull for deferred tax Rabilities, using the labil ty methad, arsing lrom 1emporary
differences a1 the reporing date between the @x bases of assets and labiines and ther carying amoums for
financial reporting purposes,

The main temposary differences relate to the depreciation of property and equipment. the revaluation of
certain financial assets and Habilihes, including denvative financlal instruments, provisions for pensions and
other post-employment benefits, provisions for loan losses and othes impalrment and 1ax losses, and,

Ity connsction with buskivess combingtions, the falr vahees of the net assets soquired and thel tax bases.
Delerred income tax assets and liabllities are meauoed at the fad rtes thar have been enacted or
substanthsely enacted at the meporting date.

[ralerred tax asseis ame recognised 1o the extent that it s pobable that future taxable profits will b2 available,
#galnst which the temporary differences can be utilised,

Prowisicns are formed in respect of axable temposany differences assoclated with mwestments in subsidiaes,
assocines and inteiess I joint ventules, unless the timéng of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controfied and it is probabbe that the remporany differances will not reverse in the foresesabde Tuture. Taxes on
prafit are caloulated naccordance with the tax kegislation of the ielevant jurisdiction and recognised as an
expensn in the period inwhich the proht is walised, The tax effects of the carmy-foreacd of unused fax kosses
are recognised as an asset if it b probable that futuee taxable profits will be avaiable against which the losses
can b utllised,

Dreferred tax assets or deferred tax Habilities are incuded for the revaluation of avaslable-for-sale fmancial
assets and cash low hedges that are directly 1aken to equity, Upon realisation, they ate recognised in profit or
lovss rogeiber with the respective deferred gain or loss

Consclidated Financial Staterments 2014 Rabobank Group
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2.25  Dueto other banks, due to custemers and debt securities in issue

Thise borrowings are inftially recognised at fadr vakise, e the issue price bess directly allocable and non-
FECUMTg Dransaction costs, and subsequently caried a1 amostised cost, including transaction costs If Rabobank
repurchases one of its own debt Instruments, it is devecognised, with the difference between the canying
pincanl ol a liabsility aisd the comideration gald beirg recognied o piali: or les.

1,26 Rabobank Certificates

The proceeds of the lssue of Rabobank Certificates are avallable to Rabobark Group on a perpetual basis,
subardinated 1o all liabilities (aloo subordinate to the Trust Preferred Securities and the Capital Sacurities),

As the payment of planned distributions bs fully dicretionary, the proceeds of the Bsue of Rabobank Certficates
are recognited as equity. Accordingly, manned distritation are accountad Por in the piofit approgriation,

2.27  Trust Preferred Securities and Capital Securities

Trust Prefarred Securities, which pay a non-discretionany dividend and are redeamalbde on a specific date os
at the option of the halder, ane classified as firancial liabilities ard included under Subordinated delbst,

The disiributions an these prefermad securities ame recognised in profit or loss a5 interes) expense based on
amortised cost using the effective intenost method.

The sermaining Trust Preferred Securities and Capital Securities are recognised s Equity’, as there i3 no farmal
abligation to repay the principal or to pay the dividend.

2,28 Financial guaraniees

Fimancial guarantes contracts requide that the Bsuer compensate the holder for 4 loas the Latter incurs
becoune o specfied debtor falls 1o meet its obligations in accordance with the terms of a delbt security.
Such firancial guarantees oo Nty reased ot e value and subsequanthy mzasared at the value of the
discounted lability under the guarantee or the highar initially measured value less the amount of previousty
recognised cumulative gains or losses, thus reflecting the revenue recognition peinciples.

220 Segmentinformation

A segenent s a distinguishable component of Rabobank that engages in providing products or services and s
subject 1o orsks and returns that are diffecent lom those of ather wegments The Budnes segments Rabadank
uses in s seporting are defined fram a management viewpaint, This means they are the segments that are
reviewed as part of Aabobask's strategic management and for the purpose of making business decislons,
and have different risks and returms. Rabobank’s primary segmant reporting format ts by business segment;
the secondary forrmat is by gecgraphical segment.

230 Business comblinations

Business combinatkare are accounted for on the basis of the acquisition method, The price of an acquisition
Is determined as tha monetary amount or equivakent agread for the acquisition of the business combenation,
If applicable plus costs directly relating to the acquisition, Goodwill represents the difference between the
price of the acquisition and Rabaobanks interesy inthe fal value of the assets, labllives and conditdonal
liabilities acquired. Goodwill & capitalsad and recognised 25 an intangible asset, For aach busines
combenation, the minority nterests are valwed aganat the share of the company acquiced in the identifabls
net assets. Dineet acquaitian costs ane dinectly taken to the profit or loss account

2,31  Disposals groups classified as held for sale and discontinued operations

Disposal groups dassified as held for <ale are valued at carrying amount o, If iower, fair value less sstimated
cost of sale. A group of Fssets (or o fied asset) sold s classified as hebd for sale IF the camrying amount will be
realised primarily by means of 3 sales ramaction & opposed 1o continued use This is solely the case if ihe
sals s extrernaly likely and the group of assets (o a fued asseth hived off ks immediately avallable for sale in s
cumrent condition, In addition, the management must have committed to the sale, which is expected 10 be
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camplesed within one yaar after the time of classiication as held for sale If a growp of assets classified as held
for sale represents a key business activity o key geographic region, it is dassified as discontinued operations,
The latter ane presentad separately from comprahensive income arising frem continuing operations.

2,32 Swmiement of cash flows

Cash and cash equivalents compeises cash resources, maney market deposits and deposits at central banks
The staternent of cash flows s prepared in accordance with the nd irect maethod of calculation and provides
detafls of the source of the cash and cash equivalents that became avallable during the year as well as their
application duting the year. Operating profit before taxation in the net cash fiow from operating activities is
adjusted for ltems in the statement of Income and changes In fems in the statement of financial positien
which do nat sctually genesate cash fows during the year,

The cazh Nows from operating, imvesting and financing acthvities are stated separately. Changes in [oans and
recetvables, interbank depaosits due to customers and debt securitles in ssue are accounted for under cazh
flows from operating acthities. Investing activities ralate 1o acouisitions and disposals and repayments on
financial Investments, as well as the acquisition and disposal of subsidiaties and property and egupment.
The proceeds from the issue of and payments on Rabobank Cenificares, Tust Preferred Securities, Capral
Secuiities, Senior Contingent Mates, Raba Extra Member Notes and subordinated debits qualify as financing
activithes. Changes an account of cuntency translation diferences are eliminated, as are the consalidation
eflects of acquisitions of assocates.

The difference between the net change presented in the statement of cash flows and the change in cash and
cash equivalents presented in the statement of firancial pesition s due to cunency tanskation differences.
These are presented sepamtaly as part of the reconclliation betwesn thass two armounts

3  Solvency and capital management

Im its objective of securing an adequate cash position, Rabobank alms to achéeve a number of solvency ratios,
with tha main anes baing the comman equity ties 1 @tio, the tier 1 ratia, the capital ratio and the equity
capital ratia,

Ratsobanks intemal targets exceed the regulatons’ minimam requirements s It amicipates market
expectationt and developmentt in liws and megulations. Rabobank weeds to stahd out from ather financial
Institutions, managing its solvency position based on palicy documants. The Balance Sheet and Risk
Management Commitiee Rabobank Group (Efective 1 January 2015, this was divided into the Risc
Management Committee and the Asset and Liability Committee]. The Executive Board and the Supervisory
Boatd periodically discuss the solvency pasition and the targets to be wued,

The Capital Requirerments Ragulation (CRR} and Capital Requiremants Directhve IV [CRD V) 1ogether constitute
the European Implementation of the Basel Capliad and Liquidity Accord of 2010, These rules, which became
effective on 1 January 2014, app'y to Rabaobank’s finamncial reporting The 2013 figures are based on CRD I,

as applicable at thar time.

Ratbobank must comply with a numibes of minimum schvency positions stpulaed undes the law, The scivency
position ks determined bawed on ratios. These ratios compae Aabohank’s B85 ratio (capital ratio) and core ter 1
rathe with the total ameunt of the risk-weighted assets.

The minimum required percentages under the CRD 1§ are 8% and 4% of the risk-weighted assets, respectively.
Effective T lanuary 2014, the minimum requined percentages ae determined based an CRD W/CRR

The regulatary capital and cone capital remain subject te the minimum of 8% and 6% respectively in 2014,
The minimurn requied percentages will gredually be increased between now and the year 2019 Rabobank
taken this inta accaunt in 15 capial plan The table below thows the minimam bulless in aceordince with
CRD 1| and according 1o the final situation of CAD IVACAR,
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The determination of tha rivi-weighted assets is based on senarate mathods for crsdit e, operational risk
and market risk The iisk-weighted assets are determined for credit risk purposes in many different ways.

Far most assets the risk weight is determined with ieference to internal ratings and a number of characteristics
specific to the assel concemed. For off-balance sheet items the balance sheet equivalent is calou'ated first, on
the basis of inteinal corversion lactor. The resulting egubalent amounts ane then ales assigned iisk-welghiings.
An Advanced Measurement Appeoach moded i used 1o determene the amaont wath respect 1o the riseweighied
assots for operational risk With the market risk approach, the general market fisk b hedged, a3 woll as the risk
of open positions in foreign currencles, debt and equity Instruments, as well a3 commodiies.
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The deductions consist mastly of goodwil, ather Intangibla non-current assets, deferred tax liabilities which
depend en future prafit and non-tamposany differancas, the BB shortfall For credit risk adjustments and
adjustments relating ro cumulative profits dus to changes in the band's credit risk on instruments issued 2t
rmarket value (FVPL] |n accosdance with CAR, & numbssr of deductions se adjosted for the ‘transition guidance’
limee, 24 these adjustments are 561 1o be phased in after frve years for the period 2004-2018, The ‘ransition
quidance’ [ine camists malnly of goodwil, ather intanaible naf-Curment assets, defermed tax labilites
depending an future peofit (Le, non-temporary differences) and the IRE shortfall for credit-risk adjustments
The ther instruments |ssued by Rabobank prior to 2005 do not satishy the new requirements under the CRR;
these instrurnents a'e subject 1o grendflathering, which means that they will be phased out in accoedance
with the statutory tequiremants

4  Risk exposure of financial instruments

4.1 Risk govemance

Ratobank Group manadges risks a1 vatious levels At the highest level, the Executive Board determines the ritk
strategy it will pursue, the palicy ramework as well as the limits, under the supervision of the Superisory
Board and on the recommendation of the Rabobank Group Balance Sheet and Risk Management Committee
and Rabobank Graup Credit Management Committes. The Supervisory Boaed regularty assesses the risks
attached to the activities and portfclio of Rabobkank Group. The Chief Anancial Officer, wheo is aboa member
of the Exacutive Board, is responsibde for the risk management palicy within Rabobank Group,

Resporsibility far the risk policy within Rabobank Gioup i spread acrots two directorates. fisk Managerment is
i charge of the policies for interest rate, market, Bquidity, currency and operathonal risks, a3 well as for the
pelicy for credit risks st portfolio level, Credit Risk Management s resporsible For the credi risk acceptance
policy at item level. Furthermare, the group entities practice independent risk management

4. 1.1 Risk appelite

Identifylng and managing risk for its erganization & an ongaoing process at Babobank It uses an integrated risk
rranagemant strategy for this purpose, The ritk management cycle indudes derermining risk appetite,
prepading Integraved rlik analyses, and mgasuring and monioetng sk Thioughout this process, Ratsobank
Lised A& itk stratigy almrd at continuity and dnh‘pnd 10 protect rx‘dﬂ. mairtaln solid Balance-iheet fatlas and
protect identity and roputation.

4.2 Strategy for the use of financlal Instruments

Ratbobank’s activities are inherently related to the use of financal instruments, including dervative financial
Instrurments. Fabotank accepts depons from clients at feed and varlable rates of intesest for a varfety of
terms and aims to earn above average interest marging an these depasits by investing tham in high-quality
assets. Rabobank abso alma to increase these margins by means of a poetfolic appecach of short funds and
allocation to loans for longer terms at higher interest rates, at the same time keeping sufficient cash resouices
1o mest all payments that might become dise.

A further abjective of Rababank is to Increase its interest e redu’t by abfaining above-sverage marging, after
deduction of provisions, and by granting loans to commercial and retall borrowers with varnous credi atings
These risks apply nat only to kaans recognised in the staternent of financlal position; Rabobank also gives
guarantees, such as letters of credit and performance and athor guarantee documents.

Ratiobank aiso trades in Rnancial Instruments when It takes positions in tradable and unlisted nstruments
[OTC sy, including dervative financial instruments, In order to paoft frem shore-term movemants on the share
and bond markets and in eschange rates, interest rates and commodity prices.

Comsalidated Financlal Statemients 2014 Rabsobank Groups
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43  Interest-rate risk in the banking environment
'Interest-rate fisk in the banking ermvironment’ refers to the risk that the prefitloss andfor the economic value
of bank books, investrment books and capiial books &5 adversely affected by changes in the maney-rrarket and
capital-market interest rates. Bank books contaln financal products and related derhatives which are held in
wecler Lo genitale fnterest-rate incoerie and Wne stsbile growth thereal, Investment books comnsist of financial
Instrumaents which are held lor strategic purpeses, including far the management ol sabaency ridk, intenest-
rate risk and liquidiny risk. Capetal books contain financial irstrumients financed with the bank's own capital.
Rabobank accepts a certaln amount of nterest-rate risk in the banking enviranment, as this constitutes
a fundamental part of banking, but at the same time the bank atso alms 10 avold unespacted material
Muciuations in the prafitdoss and the ecanarmic value as a resull of interesi-rate fluctuations. The Crecutive
B, averseen by the Supervisary Board, therefore annuatly approves e risk appetine for intenest-rne risk
and the corresponding Interost-rate risk Limits.
Ao prart of its Intenest-iale sk poficy, Rabobank uses the following two key Criesia
+ Equiny at risk, duration of aquity; and
+ Imearme af risk; the vulnerakility of the interest income 10 8 gradual increase of decrease in inteies rates
aved the rext 17 manths
Intarest-rate risk at Rabobank arlses 3 a rosult of discrepencies in the maturities and terms of loans and funds,
aption risk, basis risk and yield-curve risk, Any Intesest-rate risk to which dients are exposed as a reslt of an
Increase in their obligations due to interest-rate movernents has no eflect on Rabobank's level of risk exposwe.
Army negatwve effects arising from this axposure are regarded as aedit riske
At the group kevel, Rabobank's interest-rate 1isk ks managed by the Asset and Lizbility Commities Rabobank
Graup chaired by the Chief Financial Officer, The Central Treasuirg (L respansible far implementing the
decisions of this commies, while Risk Management s respomsible for measrement and repatting.
Fatabank's Intemest-rate risk orises primaily fnom morigages provided ond buskness leans provided with
a long fed-interest poiod These morigages and loans ame Ananced with, among ather things, customers'
savings, customers current account balances and in current account and with funding provided by
peofessional money market and capital market players. interest-rate nisk is measured not only based on
contractually recorded data; custamer behaviaur in the interest-rate risk models is also taken into account.
The definition used for managing interest-rate risk vares from the IFRS definition ol equiny.
Feut imteriat-rate ridk manacgemend, the sconamic value of squity s defined as b present value of the assts
lesa the present value of the labilities plus the present value of the off balance-sheet tems Thaugh the use
of hedge accounting and due to the Fact that a large portion of the balance sheet 1 stated sl amortised cost
(In IFRS tewmish and therefore does not change in value, the effacts of the caloulated value changes on IFRS
capital will be largely restricted to an impact on interest income, Paragraphs 431 and 432 provide further
details of Income at risk and Equity af risk trends in 2014,

431 Incomeaf risk

Imcome &t risk is calculates once a month based on a standard interest-rate-sensitivity analysis. This analysis
shiows the main deviation, in a negative sense, of the projected interest income over the next 12 monthsasa
result of a scenario in which all money-market and capital-marker Interest rates gradually increase by

1 percentage paint and of a scenatio i which all money-maiket and capital-fadker Bverest rates gradually
decieaie by 2 pefeenlage pointi.

The F!'ﬂ,ll!tll:ﬂ interest-rate mcome 15 based on a scenania in which all interest rates and other rates remasn
equal, Rabobank’s profit Fream interest was sulnerable to an interest-rate decrease throughout the yaas 2014,
The maximum income at risk was 55 [data for May 2014} On 31 Decembser 2014, the income at risk was only 15,
This low position can be attribated mainly to the assumption fhat the interbank money-market interest rates
and the swap interest rates cannot be bewier than 0%, As a resuly, the estimated decling in the curo interest
rates at 31 Decemibber 2074 was I basis poinis rather than 200 basis pelnts AT 31 Decermber 2013 and for the
first frve manths of 2004, this estimated decline was still 10 basls painis. The effects on interest profit may be
greater if not all interest mtes increase o decrease equally,

Nates 14 the cansalidated financial statements
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4,32 Equity ar rigk

The equity a1 risk or duration of equity indicates by what percentage the econemic value of equity will fad f
the money-market and captal-market interest rates incease by one percentage paint. The Executive Board
has set a lower limidt of 0% and an upper limit of % for this purpese. Furthermare, additional limits apply for
the basis-paint vulnembility of equity and the delta peofile for equity. Equity at risk fell frarm 2.3% to 04% in
A4 inlending the inchease in equity ol ddk bas been very limited One of the reasans for this s the low
number of new morigages and business loans M the same time, the voheme of bank savings products with
lang Interest rate schedules increased, which, i turn, reduces equity at risic However, In 2014 equity at risk
dachned mainly as a result of the lower markat interest rates. This decling, in turn, resulted in & decling in
quistation tisk and an upwaid effect on the ecanamic value of equiry,

3T Daie 2004 37 D 2003
E R

Petiodic analyses are peiformed in addition to the monthly interest-rate sensitivity t2sts, wheeby the effect
oninterest income i calculated far one or mone macroeconomic #ffecrs. The esults of these scanario
analyses ae part af Rabobank's iniegrated imerest-rate risk management and are inchuded In the repons
submitted o the highest management bodies,

4.4 Craditrisk

Credit risk is the rigk that a counterparty 1s unable to meet a financial or other contractual obligation vis-dis
the bank. Credit risk is Inhasent 1o granting bsans. Positiens in tradable assets sudh as bonds and shares are
alio subjecy 1o cred risk

Ratsobank restricts (15 credil rsk expasure by setting limits for koavs 1o an indvidual counterparty, o a group
of counterparties, as well at for loans 1o countries. The four-eyes principle s a key factor when granting loans.
A multi-level committee structune is in place to make decisions on major loan applications, with the
compsatent commithes baing chosan based an the size of the loan. Decisions on the largest lnans are made
directly by the Executive Board.

The credit risk exposure felating to each mdividual borawer is further restricied by the use of sub-limis o
hedge amaunts at 1k, not all of which are disclosed in the staement of financlal pesithon, and the use af
daily delivery risk Bmits for trading items such as forward currency contracts. Most actual risks ane assessed
daily against the limits

e a loan has been granted, it s continually subject to credit management as part of which new
Infarmation - fimancial and other - is ieviewed. Credit limits are sdjusted where necassany. Rabobank obtaing
collateral of guarantess for the mapadity af the laans,

44,1 Magirmenn credit risk
The table below wets out the magimum credit risk towhich Rabobank is subject at tha reparting date in

respect of the varlous categorles, without taking inte account any collaterad or other measures for restricting
aredit risk, It also shows the finandal effect of any coflateral provided o athet types of credit Ask reduction.
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i some cases the ameounts following deviate from the carrying amounts. siace the outstanding equity
Irestrurnents ase not Bcluded n the maximum credit risk,

IATITEAT) (A CYFOT Tl Crrelir vk pelac oy
I anillanis of feaed s 04 a3 24 PR
Cinh and carth equibalenty A5429 ALY i e
Do frgwn oilier Ltk 4533 40,787 1% 5w
Dietivative fancial ribrumenta L6850 35,785 [ S
Lowrs 40 rustomen i 47 443,909 ™ L]
Railbie-Toiaale firancal seens 3p453 45,735 = %
Subgatal bl 140 &35.173 BT L5
Creds related snd contngent labities 52650 45,554 i 5%
Tokal &5, 790 T4, T2H B¥% L2

442 Loans

Rabobank has a significant market sharz in privata sector lending; these loans 1o private individuals account
for d9% af privare sector lending Thede boans have & very low ridk profile as evidenced by the actual bosses
Ingunned, which were below & basis points, The proparian of the private sector lending allocable 19 the food
and agil secios was 21% in 2004, The proportion af the private sector lending allocabie to trade, industry and
services was 30% at year-end 2014, Loans 1o trade, Industry and services and laans to the foed and agrl sectar
ate both spread owver a wide range of industries in many different countries. None of these shares represants
mare than 10% of the total private sector lending.

I scillhprne o poved A 00
Total kzans 1o peitamars SE3 447 454 955
[ whirh-1n govemment chienty FARLY L1EAT
revense repL Fuse Trarasctbons and secun e o owing . IcgEar
Tl tale Fedgn (Brdge i untmgs 1416 sl
Privats sector lending 430,391 A3

This can be broken down gesgraphicadly os folows:

The Netheriand 122089 5% 335080 T
Rt o Bt FLITH] ] Fo .
North Aeverice 40,150 L] MR ]
Latha Asriesica 11273 kL (-T:313 -
Auia 0210 ™ et ™~
Nusiraka LTS 5 18008 "
[ 341 [0 180 [
Tatal A3,91 o A34,681 100%
EBreakdown of loans by business sector

Private indindush T0.Tes RE Tikas %
Tradke. indusdry and serioes 127,287 ] 13404 Hre
Tt and agn azing 1% BaATE N
Total S L] 0w AT 100%
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4.4.3  Derivative financial instruments

Fatsobank sets srict limits for open positions. in amounts &5 wel a4 in terms, IF 1504 (nternational Swags and
Dwerheathves Association) standards apply or a master ageement including equivalent tesms kas been
comicluded with the counterparty, and i the jurisdiction of the countenparty pemmits setting off, the net open
position s mondoeed. This credit ik is managed as part of the general lending limits for clients. Where needad,
Raebank obtains collateral or other safeguards swith respect to credit risks inherent in these transactions.

The credit risk exposure iepresents the curment fale value of all open derhative conracts showing a posiive
market value, Taking inta acoount master netting agreements enforceable by law.

444  Credit risk management methods

Rabobank's credit risk exposure is restricted In part by obtalring collatera! where necessary,

The amount and nature of the collateral required depends partly on the assessrment of the cradi risk of the

laan to the countarparty. ababank follows guidelines for the purpose of accepting and valuing different

types of collateral The magor types of collateral an:

» esldential miorigege collmeral;

= martgage collateral on immovable property, pledages on movahle property, immentories and receiables,
mainly for business loans;

+ cash and securities, mainly for securities lending activities and reverse repurchase ransactions.

The managemsent monitors the market value of collateral obtzined and requires additlonal collateral whete

necewsary, labobank alio uses credit derivative finarclal insttuments 1o manage credit risks. Rabobank funher

limlts Its exposure to credit sk by antering in1o master nening ara rQemenis with countemartios lor a

significant volurme of transactions. In general, master netting arangements do not lead 1o the satting off of

assets and llabdlitles included In the statement of financlal position, &s transactions are usually settled gross

34 Comsolidated Financial Statements 2014 Rabsobank Group
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The cradit risk is limited by master netting arrangements, haweve, to the extent that, if an event ar
cancellation occurs, all amaunts involving the counteiparty are frozen and settfed net. The total credit risk
exposure of Rabobank from derivative financial instruments 10 which netting arrangemants apply i highly
seqviitioe 1o the closing of new transactions, lapsing of exigling transactions and fluctuations in matker intees
and exchangs rates.

The tabie below shows offsets which have been applied In the comsolidated balance sheat [AS 32 Dffuetting)
and of sets which have not been applied in the consolidated balance shaet. The remaining offsets constit of
sequrities Rabobank has recelved from reverse buyback transactions and securities Rabobank has provided in
redation ta buyback ransaction loans.

Mt carryping
arnauni
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Tatsd FO5ME2 [44, 594 A, BAE [I0ART) |NLEAT) ELTR T
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445 Off-balance-sheet financial instruments

The guarantees and standby letters of credit which Rabobank provides 1o third parties in the event a client
cannat fulfl its abligatons vis-&-vis these third parties, are expaied to credit sk, Documantany and
commigrcial i rres of credin and wiinen yndenakings by Rabobank on benall of clients mirbarise thied parties
to dianw bills againg Rabobank up tea present amount sulblect to specific conditions. These trandactions are
backed by the defivery of the undedying goods 1o which they relate. Accosdingly, the ik esposure of such an
Instrument is kass than that of a direct loan. Obligations to grant lnans at specific rates of interest during a
fixed period of time are 1ecognised under credit granting llabilites and accounted for as such unless thesa
commitrments do not extend beyend the period snpected to be needed 1o perform appropilate underwriting,
Inwehich case they are considered 1o be transactiens conforming 1o standard market conventions. Habobank
Is exposed to credit Het when it promises 1o grant lending facilities The size of such losses is loss than the
totad of the waned commitments, a5 prombies to grant credit facllithes ae made subject 10 the clients
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mieating certaln conditlons that apply to loans. Rabobank monitors the term to explry of credit promises,
as hong term commitments are generally associated with a higher risk than shart:term commitrents.

4.4.6  Credit qualify of inancial assels

| its fln..:r:u:lng approval process, Rabobank Gioup wies the Rababank Risk R.'|I!I|'||;I which reflects the
counter party’s probability of default (PO over & one-peas peeiad The table below shaws the lsan cuality (e
daduction of the bag-debt provision) of the loan-ralated palance shaet ibems. The loan-quality categories are
determined based on the internal Rabobank Risk Rating. The Rabobank Risk Rating conststs of 21 performing
ratings (RO-AR0) and fout default ratings (D1-04). The performing ratings ae linked 10 the probakity that the
chient will default within a period of ane year, wheneby the rating |s determined, as a nule, on a cyclcally
neatral basis The D1 D4 rating reders to defoult classifications D1 represents 90 doys' ameaes; D7 indicates

a high probabxify that the debtor Is unable to pay,

[r3 refers to the dabtoe’s inability to meet its commitmenss and that their proparties will most likely be sold
off; and 04 indicates bankruptoy status. The defauh ratings make up the total impaived exposure.

The ‘vulnerable’ category conststs of performance ratings which have been cancalled bun which have nat
undargana impainment

iruaiy Adequae 1o
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] M4 0434 1545 I anr
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- Do e e LI AT 1184 4572 168720
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The table below gives an age analysis of financial assets explred {overdus) but unimpabred
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4.4.7  Clemency (forbearance)

Rabobank developed a policy in 2013 for moanitoring ins forbearance portfolio every quarter; this palicy was

implemented in 2014, Forbearance’ and clemendy’ are related terms, and this portfolio consists of the

certomes of Rababank for whom farbearance measures have been put in place. The meassres under that
name compalse cancessions o debiors facing or about to face dificulties In meeting their financlal
commitments. A concession fefers to either of the foliowing actons:

+ Amodfication of the previouws t2rms and conditions of a contract the debtos & unable to comply with due
1o its financial difficulties (had debt] in ceder o allow foe sufficient debr servics abilinyg, that would nat have
been granted hod the deoior nol been in fmancial difficulty

+ Atotal or partial refmancing of 3 bad-debt contract, which would not have bean grantad had the deblor
niot been in Anancial difficulty.

Exarmples include postponements of repayments and extensians of the term of a facility, The rationale for the
fecus an this partfalio derlves lram the cancerns afl the Eurapean requlators aboun the deteriaration of the
cuality of the padtfolios i is feared than Torbeasance measures might camouflage this deteriomtion of the
portfolio as debsars are abde to moet thelr financial abligaticns for longer periods as a result of the concesions,
The identihcation of Torbearance measures foe the corporate portfolio will be based on the current Loan Quality
Clzssification framewaork, with forbearance measures only applying to the classified portfolio. If forbearance
mmeasudes ane applied to a debior, the dabios will, by definition, be fall under the supervision of the Spacial
Asset Manasgement departiment, Lastly, items in the forbearance category must be reparted for up o twe
years after recovery ram non-performing to ‘peforming. This period ol two years i ieferad o as Forbodine
urncher prabation’.
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448  Trends in the real estate portfolio

Rabobank’s portfelio of cormmercial real estate inthe Matherlands is primarily managed by FGH Bank and the
local Rabobanke The cormmercial real estate market detenoratad further in 2014, partculasly in the offices and
retall segments. Lang-term trends such as demagraphic ageing, thie "New Way of Warking' and online
shopging are all imgortant faciods In this developenent, Due to the current market condtions, In which these
It & elear distnction betwoen properties with Ertle of no prodpect af vishility and those with a chance of
sucoess, the quality of the commaorciad resd estate loan portfelio has declined, Less markatable propoertios,

In jparticudar, are dechning In value, The review and appratsal polcy and the non-performing loans policy ane
based on a risk-oriented appeoach. Whare reviews reveal that the assumed value may nolonger reflect the
rrarket value, the value is reassessad. Appraisals are performed by an independent appraises. Rabobank
thareby compiies with the eaquirements set by the Dutch Central Bank for vatuation, and the age of
apprasals,

As i result of the report by the Valuers and Accountants Platform [Tazateurs en Accountanis, or FTAT o real
estate appraisal, Kabobank brought its valuation process in line with the recommendations made in
connection with the banking process whese this was not akeady the case in 2013,

Within 1he Rabobank Group, management of the commedcial real estane portlolioin the Neiherlands has
baten Intensfied, The Commerclal Real Estate Task Foroe was set up for this spectic putpose inmid-2010

The Task Force frequently reparts to the Executive Board on changes in the size of the Dutch pertiolio and the
level af risk it contains. and It will continue to keep a close eye on market trends and partiolio mowements for
the nest few years. Steps to tighten the inancing, revision and appraisal paficles hawve already been taken in
recent years

The table below gives information on the commercial real estate hoan portfolio in the Netherands as of

31 Decemnber 3014, The Froperty Dvvalopment segmint is presented separately, since this segment is
experincing ager processing timies and a stagnating real estate maiket. Rabobank's lending in this
segment, at ELUR OB billion, is relatively bow,

e Wy
inmidiom of euros Lo povtiod % Frow A Wereof
£171 Deteritar 014
[ ioparty of o it Basling bl LET) Ly arl FIL] 152
yof Fabio Aeal Estate Groop 14478 10 1100 44 133
Totsl invaatmnt proparty 13,742 FEET 1,777 T3 Fets
Fropasmy divelopment of gt retad bk butingss et 5I7 M3 il
Fropeety developrunt of fabo Aeal Exat e Group 8 ] i B 3
Tzl propuesty desslopment 187 Ll e n m
Impaired Value
i it ofeuron L am perticn e Frine 1. Wrtr-eff
A1 11 Dewrber J011
Invessment openty of doeestic retad bask ng buiness a7 By 3l 144
Imveitment property of Rabo Real Exste Group 18,183 181 Tea 435 FE
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Ratobanics commarcial real estate portfolio in the Matherlands dackned again in 2014 due to repayments
and a lower risk appetive The developments in the market caused a deterioration in the quality of the
porifalio, as can be seen from the higher level of impadred loans, and therefors also 1he costs of loan losses in
FECEn! years. Impodtant mitigating factors for the guality of the [oan ponfolio are Rabobank's iocus on
relationship banking and the fact that its financing palicy B customer-drven rather than property-driven,
Since some af the difficulibes In the commerclal réal estate madket and structusal in nature, laan losses in 1he
real estate portfoio are expected 1o remain high in the years to come. Nearly thie entire commercial real
estate porifolio outsde the Metherlands 5 provided by ACC Loan Management. This ks & run-off porifolio.
Although property values in prime locations in freland are stabilising to some extent, in other locations vaklues
are il under pressure. Further contifbutions amaounting to ELIR 111 milllan were accordingly made to the
allowances loe this peitfolio in 2014, Rabebank expects 1o make further contributions in the coming year,
albert a2 a lawer level than in previous years,

449 Asset Quality Review (AQR)

Tha financial crisés and the huge Impact of this on the banking sector led to the creation of tha Single
Supervisory Mechanism (350) and a sector-wide teview of the quality of assets by the European Cemral Bank
(ECTH), This Asset Quality Review (AQR) cancentrated on the reference date of 31 December 2003, It thus
concenned exposures and peovisions already recogndsed in the finandal staterments for 2013, The findings
wlth respect to the vadlous areas of the ADR and the effect of these on the cemmon equity tker 1 capital also
relate to 31 Decernber 2013, The review focused on a large past of the portfofo. in the Netherlands, this
Inwolved the total koan portfolio of the local Rabobanks and subsidiaries. In Ireland, the review concermned the
funding of commercial 1eal estate and the commiercial loan partfolia, while in Mew York the review focused on
the partfalio of sizeable corporate finance Wamactions

Thie review also condidered the market iska in paticulas wath neferenmce 1o the valuation of Credit Vialuation
Adjustment [CVA) and the proprietary land holdings of Rabo Aeal Edate Group.

The affect of the AQK findings on the 2014 financial statements masnly concerns an adjustment 1o the
pravisions for lnan kosses: The amount of the provisions recegnited in the staternent of financial position as at
31 December 2013 is the resul of the methodology used by Rabobank for loan losses i 2013

This methodalogy results in a specfic provision, & collecive provision and a general provision (sha referred o
% [BMAN and was based on the Inlarmation available at the time, events that could invehbe iImpatments and
the models used,

Mo mems were found during the rewiew that would ental changes to the comparative figures Tor 2013,

The total addition to the capltal requizement and the provisions Is. as published in Gctober 2014, set by the
ECH at ELIR 2,093 million. A significant proportion of this addition that relates to laars and land haldings has
been recognised i the profit and boss account for 2014 as part of the normal provision process. This mainly
cancems adiusiments on the basis of infermation that enly bacama avallable 1o the managemaent in J014,
The financial crisis has bed to o more predent approach to cedit risk. The 55M and the AR as comied out by
the ECH have accelerated this change. For Rabobank, it will lead to the mtraduction of mome consefvative and
strictes Ioss indicators, An adjustment 1o the related provision levels has aleady been made in 2014,

I addithen, the maore conseivative approach has led ta & change in the parametens fos the general picdion
(IBNR], For the determinarion of it BN, Fabobank wses The Expected Loss (L) a4 the starting point

An asfustment has been made for the period neoeded to identify a boss (the Loss Identifcation Perlod),

i view of the development of the econamy and the portiolie, this period was extended in 2014, The basls

for determining the EL was also changed to more predent principles in 2014,

Nates 1o the consolidated financial stalements

432/594



40

EDINETOOOO
Oo0O00000000o0bodoooooooooooo00o00000o0odnogngnoOonod(eose2s)
Oooooooa

4.5  Currency risk in the banking environmant

Rabcbank is exposad to the effect of fluctuations in eschanga rates on (ts inancial position and cash flews In the

reading enviranment, cumency risk - like other manke? risks - is managed based on the Value a1 sk (Vad)

lirmits st by thr Executive Board, as detalled in parscraph 4.7, Marked rigk in the Trading swianment. The Banking

environment |s affected only by translaticn fisk; e ether currency risks in the banking enviionment are lully

hadged. Tranilation risk becames evident when the bank's consalictated balance sheet and mesulls are

peopaad, wheroby all items in foreign currencies must be valued against curos. This makes the financlal data

senditive 1o forefgnecurrency valuations. Transkation risk manifests itself in different way's within Rabobank.

+ Rabobank’s solvency ratios may be affected by exchange-rate fluctuations as a result of differences in the
exchange-rate compasition of the capial and the AWAL

+ Exchange-rate Muctuations can petentiphy affect the value of fully or pariaily) consalidated forsign entines
whose functional currencies ane not euros.

+ The value of mon-euro-denominated strategic interests can be aFected by exchange-rate fluctuations

Im relation to the monitoring and management of translation sk, Rabobank applies a policy designed o

pratect the bank's Cone Tier | ratio frem exchange-rate fluctuations,

4.6  Liguidity risk

Rabobank is exposed to liquidity sk, Le. the risk that the bank bs unable to meet ol of it (relpayment
obdigations, as well as the risk that the bank is unabbe to fund Increases In assets at reasonable peices ar
umable at all. This could happen If for instance, clients or professional counterparties suddenly withdraw mose
funds than expected, which cannat be met by the bank's cash resources of by selling or pledging assets or by
bonrawing funds from thad parties,

Fout a long thme now, Rabokbank has recognized liquidiny rick as a majes disk type. Rabobank's palicy therefore is
termatch the tesm of funding with the term of kaans granted, Long-tenm boans mast be Snanced through
furds entnirted by customers o long-term hunding by peofessonal markets

Liguidity risk s managed based on three pillaes. The first of these sets strict limits for the masimum gutgoing
cash Mows within the wholesale banking business. Among other things, Rabobank measures and repornsona
dally basis what incaming cash flows can be espected during tha first twehve montha Limits have been sat fos
these outgoing cash flows, including for sach currency and each sitein arder 1o be as well prepared as
possible for potential crisls stuations. 3 number of derailed contingency lunding grans (CFPs) are In place
which are subjected 1o operational tests on a regular basis.

The second pillas is used to malntain a substantial bufler of liquid assets. In addition to the funds held at
cantral banks, these assets can be wsed to bomow from central banks, used In repo transactions of in order 1o
sell directly in the market in order to generate lliquidities iImmedately. The amaunt of the liguicity buffer s
related to the sk 1o which Rabobank b esposed theough s balance sheet. Rabobank Group has securitlged
a portion of the loan porfolio (within the company) in recent yeass, which means it can be pledged from the
contral bank and tharelome serves a3 an additianal liquidity buffer, Since this concerns intemal secwftisatisn,
salely for lguidity purpases, they ase nat visibde b the economic balance sheet bot ane included In the
avallable lguidity buffer,

The third pillar entails the restiction of liquidity risk through a prudent funding policy airmed an meeting the
finane:ng requirements of the group uwaits a1 acceprable cost, Dhversfication of sources of funding and
curencies, flexibility of the funding insruments applied and & hangs-on nvestor relations spgroach ane key
factors. This prevents Rabobank Group from being overly dependent on a single source of funding
Furthermom, scenarlo amalyses ae parformed sach manth to tmalate the possible contequences of a wide
range of stress scenanos, distinguishing between scenarios specifc for the market and scerarlos specific for
Rabobank, as well as a combination of them. Monthly reporis on the liqusdity position of the Group as a
whole are submitted to the Dutch Central Bank These reports are prepaed in accordance with the guidelines
drasir up by this superdiary autharity,

Consolidated Financial Staements 2014 Rabobank Group

433/594



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O00000000o0bodoooooooooooo00o00000o0odnogngnoOonod(eose2s)
Oooooooa

The table below shows Rabohank's non-discounted liabilities grouped by the quidity period remalning
between the reparting date and the expected contract repayment date. The total amaunts do not correspond
exactly with the amoums in the consol dated statement of financial pasition, since this table i based on non-
discounted cash Mows, related 1o both principal and future interest payments Dedbvative Anancial instruments
and other trade liabiliies' have not been analysed on the basls of the contract repayment date because they
i At esdantiad far the management af guldity risk and for repedting 1o the management of Robosbank.

Leapihan T manthe Longer fhan
in midiorn of eurcs L dhemrand Fimiowdte Ty 1 e -5 Fyeory Total
#1431 Decersier JUid
Liabwlities
Dhue 1 ath Barks 1 LSrd 120 015 L] 18020
Due o cuntamens Jmam 4500 aar LEAR L] ore RELES. -}
Db sesouriies I Bsue pro AL350 59.T5 a7.3k8 L4508 A ma
Dtk chrbita (rachusling emailoyes berarfsd 1540 &£078 T2 1] n s
Cthapr fingruial lubibtiey atdas vabos
B peoin e loss 1 e 1513 5624 1558 INAZF
Sulcmlnaind deld . ' i 1,383 15,340 18,72%
Toasl financlel lishdlivies 24ALS #1009 TRITD 5,288 107500 LRSS
Frrlal guatbsiees 1.8 TS
Lessthan Tmoarks diangper rhgsn
i il of durai O dertiasg Jvont 1o | e LR b ] Tora!
A1 11 Decerkor 3011
Liskslitien
Che i othar banis 19m LM 1670 Ly iz 15y
Dhie 10 CLEtomes 250553 15739 DLsET FLES1 21462 AzL07
D et i kv 112 21,975 63353 TduTE 1178 nma4ezy
Cthapr bty (et hurding employes herefand AR &5 i Lo Lt} oy
Ot fhvaracial labeibties ot oo vakos
Buitugh peoli aed loas -] k1] 1511 L. PR 573
Sushordraried debt s 3 - & (P10 11184
Tesnad financtal Ushalinies 255,108 TEESS T7A38 58,737 9,650 B9 TAN
Frusracinl grarsmtbee "nar * = B s A2

The following table shows Rabobank’s assets and labilithes grouped by the period remaining between the
reporting date and the contract repayment date. These amaunts comespond with the statement of financial
paslthon.
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Contract repayment date

Lasis ihiamy i maniie Longer fuan
il of o [ derrvand Pmanibs oy 1 b fprorr Tain!
B4 Decerbaer 1114
Finmnclal nszets
ik o canil epatvalents 415902 1377 4n = s 41409
Dhae oo it biitn QLEEL] FLTIE] 2AM 1,08 ] 45,003
Firaracial ansets bkl for trafing -] LEL] s 214 ear 4373
Dkt Briaradial siiets 01 L vahos (Bncugh peodt snd loo k] bL¥] 118 1123 P ] 4335
Drrative Anancial insnumesty n 4t pad rme sz AR
Losin 10 (RO mes L ] 39258 38888 B0 ITaEsD LLrECE
Acwailabde fer-wale financial anct 4 LF.LE ] 5 (£ (LT .7
Defermed tau aapety a7 T - - LirEs ] L
Dkt gEast (bntlid i) emdloyee e ln) T &5 1538 1,539 580 B.554
Total finsnclal sasts BEADY 1,488 5,802 118,793 239,345 BAT.OTE
Financiaf Hahilitie
D 1o ot banis P BTEY 1.243 4553 599 17483
Dhie 16 custarmers 234154 450863 ara 1295 20392 IIBATY
Dol ooy im e = 120 o0 nLEN T4 [l
Dereative Anancial instruments snd other brade Kabdities L] Lar7 2830 15421 41555 7560
Ot it (el uhing emnabyes berashes) 1715 L1 T3 bl 57 TH63
Other & [ S o prrts el a ) 1454 1)) 11,504 LA
Dreterred caw Babiitiey an - AT
Subsrdiruded detd - . b | 007 {120 ] 1938
Tiatal finenclal Usbdlishes 21874 BT 7,501 1R ENT 121,500 &40, 781
Mt lguidivy serplus I15L751) 114, 25%| [A6.69% TL2A5 775 26,155

Lasr tham 7 e Longper fhan
i riwdirn o e v i J e T | e P -5 pean 5 prurs Tonad
2111 Deer—ler 111
Finmnclal azarts
Caath ard ek rpabvaliens 14405 R84 2 . - 41058
Due bom othes baris G360 632 2370 1,138 ax 40,787
Firbrarial adsets Rl o Rialiang = I.BEs c4q 1,800 LF-F1 L. ]
Other Enancial sverty o faivaboe through peakit and los L] ne L] L] F] A58
Deeswative finandcial inrumentt 152 s 2E41 AT 2072 Eo Ak
Lesari (e eusilomess P ERETT EETE] A5405 ITEIAE A55 0
Ewalable-for-wale financial msets mn 4mha o4 1,1 TA00 4557
Delerred tan aspets L] . = - 1450 LK ] -]
Ot aneetd (enclud g emiioyer lenehes) A ET 1208 1,588 tL] B4
Totsl finsncisl et 51,347 105429 LT L] T4 258 BIneTE 86,153
Finmncial Unbifities
e fo othes Baris 2907 LY 1851 LI Ltk 14,145
Duete cuntoment 000 LT E L] 12408 (L] M
Dt s b e 112 11,830 LB E AL A 155,300
D Fi il i and clher trade Rl a8 598 281 b a5 2590 SETR
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Toand financial lablites 255704 1133 TH.7BG Tiazar FLITR 621,132
Mt biquidity srphus 204,461 12206 35,543 4029 8608 25,600
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The abova breakdown was complled on the basis of contract Information, without taking into account actual
changes in (tems in the statement of financial positon. Thas is taken e account, however, for the day-1o-dary
rmanagement of the liquidiny risk Customer savings are an example, By contract, they are payable on demand,
Hewesewer, expedience has shown that this ks a very stable source of financing at the long-term disposal af
Rabobank. The requlations of the supervisory suthority also factor this in, Based an the liquidity criteria of the
Duch Central Bank, Rabobank had a substastial liguidity surplus a1 31 December 2014 and thraughout 2014,
Thie average liquidity suenplugs was 26% (2013 40% of the tatal T=month liquidity requirement. The surplus at
31 December 2014 was 25% (2013 30%).

The lquidity requiremants to mest payments under quarantees and standby letters of credit are considerably
lewarer than the ameunt of the Rabilities, as Rababank does not geneially expect that third parties fo such
armangemaents will draw funds The teal open position relating to contraciual obligatons 1o provide credit
dioas nat necessanlly represent Rabobark’s future cash rescurce needs, as many of these obligations will lapse
or terminate without inancing being required.

4.7  Market risk in the trading environment

‘Warket risk in the trading emdranment’ refers to changes inthe value ol the trading book a5 a resslt of,
Smong) nl:hf.-r1h|nq1. changes in interest rates, credit spreads, foreign currencies and share prices. Analyses of
the market risk in the Bank bock are included In paragraph 4.3, tnterest-rate risk In the banking ervirenment’
and paragraph 4.5, Tusrency risk in the banking environment.

At the consolidated lewvel, the risk s represented by the Value 2t Risk (VaR), basks-point sensitivity and event risk.
Thi Executive Board arnually ratifies the risk appetice and the correspanding limits. These Bmins are converted
In1z Himets ot book level and are monltored daily by the market management risk management departments
I adchtian to the ViR, Bass-point senstivity and even(-risk Bmas an exremely dotailed system of trading
comitrols per book is in pkace, including iotation risk (io. risk that the yield curve will shift], delta limits per
bucket, nominal limits and the masimam numbser of contracts. The risk poasition is reported to the senior
mamagement on a daily basis and discussed in the various risk mamagement commitiess on a monthly bass.
The YaH indecates, based on one year of historical market trends, the maximum loss for a given reliabilicy lavel
and hotizon under ‘normnal’ maiket canditions. The mernal VaR rmodel forms an integral pan of Rabobank's
resk ranagement rsmewark and has also been approved by DB for the detgrmination of the sabvency
reguirerment for market rsk in the rading beok, Rabekbank has opted 10 we aVaR based on histedcal
simulation, where historical data Is used for a perlod of cne year, The VaRl Is calculated for a time horlzon of
both one day and ten days. Aabobank has elected to apply a ieliabslity level of 97.5% for its internal risk
rmanagement. The VaR Is aso calculated on a daily basis weth a refiability rate of 99%.

A significant advantage of a Valt madel based on histancal simulaton (s that no assurmptions need to be
rmada with regasd to distrisutions of potential value changes for the varlous financial instruments.

A drawback, however is that o choice needs 1o be made with negard 16 the peiied of histaeical market trends
which could poteniially affect the amount of the Vaf as calowlated. Based on the requirements impesed by
the regulatar and Tollowing our own retearch, we decided to use an historical period of one year.

Back testing s used in order to test the actual outcormes on a requar basis in order to determine the vafidicy
of the assumpions and paraimeterfacton vied in caloulating the VaR

T rabie below shows how the VaR s composed; it i divided into various companente A diversity adeantage
Is achieved In this case by the cpposing positians of varous books which partially cancol each other cut.

Thie avesrage Val fell from EUR 8 million in 2013 o EUR 4 milllon in 2014, The VaR brielly peaked at a lewel of
ELR 22 million in 2014, This one-off peak was the result of a lange number of benchmark transactions and the
Issue of Tier-2 bonds, shart-term liguidity shortage in the market and unfavourable market tends. The resulting
rmarket risk position was fully reduced within several days. The VaRt sermained within the Bmit of EUR 40 million
thioughout 2004, alia during this peak.

Nates 16 the consalidated financial statements
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Imadd tion to the Vol for market risk, there are soweral other key risk indicators. Basls point senalthvity, for
example, indicates how the walue of the trading book positions changses if the yield curve increases, in paralial,
by 1 basis point. The table below shows these positions for each major currency.
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4.8 Operational risk

Rabobank defines operstional sisk 35 he risk of losses incurred a5 a resull of inadeguate o dysfunclions
internal processes, people and systerms, or as a result of exterral rends and developments. Patental legal risks
and reputathonal risks are considered in the assessment and management of operational risk In measuring and
managing operational risks, Aabobank Growp operates within the parametess of the most advanced Basel |
approach, the Advanced Maasuremeant Approach.

Thie bank's aperatonal sk policy i based on the principle that the group entities have primary responaibility
for managing opetational risk and that this mast be imegrated imo the steaegic and day-to-day declsion-
miaking processes. The purpose of operational risk management s 1o identify, measure, mitigate and menitor
warkous types of operatbonal iisks The risk quantification process suoports the menagement fesponsible in
prinithing the actions to be undeefaken and the aliocation of people and resources.

Im order to nplement this policy, Rabobank applics the ‘three lines of defence’ model. The group entites
represent the first line of delfence’and are fully responsible for day-1o-day risk acceptance and integraved risk
managerment and mitigation within the risk appethe framework determined The risk management functions
within the groug entities and within Risk Management together comtitute the second line of defence’ The rid
management function within the group entities acts as an adviser on risks and challenges the Tirst line of
delence’on the risk management method used within the group entity. Risk Managemsant i responsible for the
group pactute and fior challenging group entities and local sk management functions on thedr risk
rranadgement. Intednal audit at the group |evel and within the group entities constitute the Third line af dafence.
A the group level, the Dperational Risk Commines is respansible for adopting the policy and parameters

I adehtion, Risk Management alo reports ssch quartie oo changes In operatianal risks at the groug level, A
rumber of rikk management committees have been adablished within the group antitie:, whose
responsibdities include ident fying, managing and manlioeing the operational risks (including system
continuity sk and frawd risks) of the relevant entity. A Risk Seif Assessment 1s conducted wathin the group
entities. This process includes making an assessment of the main operational risks and identifying mitigating
mmeasses if ritks fall outside the risk appetite, This proceas s facilitated by Tisk Management and the reaelts
an communicated, a1 the Qroup lewiel 1o the Operational Risk Carmmitiee, bn addmion, Rk Mansgement
coaadinates annual sconmis snalyses with senior managemant of the full Rabobank Graup, which sheds light

on the group’s risk peofile

A4 Consdlidated Financial Statzments 2014 Rabobank Group
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4.9  Fairvalue of financial assets and liabilities

The table on page 46 shows the fair value of fimancial instrements based on the valuation methods and
assumptions cetalled below. This 1able is included bacause nog all Anancial instruments are recognised ar fair
value In the balance sheet. Faif value represents the pilce that would have been receted Tor the sale ol an
st o Lhat would have been paid in order 1o mansle a liabiling By a standaid tanssciban condudled between
rmarkiet participants on the waleation date

Raboband’s assumption for fair value measurement ts that the transaction o sell the assot or fransfer the
liability is conducted in the key market for the a$set or Mability - or, in the absence of a key market, in a market
offering favourable conditions.

Market pelces are not avallable for a large number of the firancial assets and labslities that Rabobank holds or
Ismpes. Hence, (o inarscipd instrurments for which no market prices are svailable, the fair valugs shawn in the
table on page 47 have been estimated using the present value or the results of other estmation ang
valuatkon methods, based on the market conditions at the reparting date. The walues produced usng these
rrethaods are highly sensitive to the underlying assumptions wsed for the amounts as well as for the timing of
futuire cash Pows, discount rates and possible market |liguidity, The follewing methods and assum ptions have
been used.

Cash and cash equivalents. The falr value of cash and cash equivatents is assumed 1o be almast equal to
thelr camylng amaunt. This assumption i alio used for highly Bquid ivestments and the current component
of alf ather finandal assels and liabilities.

Due from other banks. Due from other banks compeise interbank placings and items to be collected The fair
values of Moating rate placings and overnight deposts ate thelr carying amounts. The estimaied falt value of
fssd-interest de posis s based on the present value of the cadh fows, calculated using appropriate money
mineket inferest rates for debis with comparable credit risks and terms 1o maturity.

Financial assets and derivative financial instruments held for trading. Fironcll swsers and detlat e
financial instruments held for trading are carried a1 fair value based on available quoted market prices

If quted market orices ane not avakable, the far value 5 estimated from discounted cash fiow models and
option valuation models. For devasives, the bank factors in countenparty nisk and our own creditworthiness,
Im estirrating counteqparty risk, Habobank uses the latest marke: data, Inchading CD5 curves and Monte Catle
simvudations. Another facton Laken into sccount & funding valuation adjustmenits (FYADL FYA concens the
walaation difference between Wanwctions hedged by securities and transactions not hedged by securities
The farmer are valued using a discount curve based on the overnight index speead; the lanter are vilued wsing
a discount curve based on Eurfbor/Libor plus a spread reflecting market conditions.

Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Thoos financial assets are carrled at falr value
based on guoted market prices if avadable. if not, they are estimated from companabls assets on the market,
or using valuation methads, including appropriate descounted cash fiow models and option valuaticn modets,
Loans to customers. The fal value of ksued loand ks estimated from the present valus of the cash flows,
using cunent madkoet rales foe similar (oand, For variaobe-interest lowns that are reviewed regqularly and do nat
vary significantly in terme of credit fsk, the Talr walue s based an the carning armmount undil maturity
Available-for-sale financial assets. Svadlable-foe-sale financial assets i mexsured at fair value based an
listed market prices. ¥ no listed market prices are unavailable, falr value is estimated based on models of
discauntad cash flows and option valuation modets.

Other financial assets. For almost all ather financia assets, the catrying amownt is a good appicuimation

of the fair vahee,

Due to other banks. Dus 1o other banks comprise ivarbank placings, ilems to be delivered and depasits.
The fair values of floating rate placings and overnkght deposits are their carrying amounts. The estimated fais
valie of fixed-inkerest deposis & based an the present value of the cash Aows, calculated using niling morey
ket interest rates for debis with comparable credit risks and terms to matusity.

Trade liabilitles. The fair vatue of rrade Fabilities is based on avallable quoted marker prices. If quoted market
prices areé not available, the falr value is estimated from valuatisn model,

Netes 1o rthe consalidated financial statements
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@ither financial liabilities at fair value through prefit or loss. The fal value of these Labilitles Is based on
available quoted market prices. If guoted matker prices are not avalzble, the far value ks estimatad from
discounted cash flow models and option valuation modets,

Due to customers. Due to custamers Include curent sccounts and deposing. The fair value of unings and
cutrent accounts that have no specific termination date ks assumed 1o be the amount payable on demand at
the reporting date. L, theld Carrying amount 51 that date, The fale value of the deposits i estimatied lrom the
present walue of the cash flows, based on curent bid rates of interest for similar arrangemants with terms to
miaturity that match the itemns to be measured The carrying amount of varlable-fnterest deposits is a good
approximation of their falr value at the reporting date.

Debt and ather Instruments issued by Rabobank. The fair value of these instruments i calculated using
quoted market paices, For nedes far which no quoted markiet prices are sailable, o discounted cash Now
micdel I3 used, Dased on a current yield curve apgrogaiate for the tenm 1o matuity.

Thie fakr value measuremens in 2014 of financial assets and liabilities carried at amortised cost is more based
on matket infarmation, Consequently, the 2013 figures are adjusted and beside this correction also an effect
of hedge accounting that was taken inta account in the Tair value measwrernent of the laand 1o custarmes and
dobt securitles in laue in 2013 is adjusted, URimately, the adjustment of the 2013 hgures leads to a change of
1,345 of vh kaans 1o customers, <1024 of due 1o customers and =$15 for the delsl secutities in Issue,

Ll E ] M
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Other financlal maets o tar wsiue threugh proftor ks 41y 435 4913 4553
Diertvative fissncial Farusmens. 56,830 Se 455 Mg 9,703
Lz Ao U 487847 470 45009 LA
Ayailabie-lodaale fieanoisl sasens BT mTr0 A6.551 553
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The above-stated figures represent the bast possibile astimates by management, hased on a range of
miethods and assumptions. if a quoted market price b avallable, this is the best estimate of fair value. f no
guoted market prices are avallable for fixed-term securiies, equity instruments, derlvative fimancial
Istruments and commodity instruments, Rabolbank bases the sspected fall value on the present value of the
futuire cash Mows, discounted ar madcet rates codresponding ta the ciedit ratings and ferms o matudity af the
[rpstments, Also, a model-based price can be used 1o determing fair value, Rabobank’s policy i€ 1o have all
mindels wsed hor 1r.1h|,|ing Francial Instruments valldated h:rwrmn st who ate Independent ol the stall who
determine the fair values of the fmancial Instruments. In detemining market values or falr vabses, various
factoes have to be considered, such as the time value of money, wolatility, underlying options, warrants and
derivative imancial instremeants. Other factors ‘nclude liquidity and the creditwarthiness of the counterparty
The valuation process has been designed such that market prices that ae availoble en a periodic basis are
systernatically used, This syatematic valudtion process has proved its worth during the credit market crists,
Madfications te assurmptinms might alfect the tair value af tracting and non-trding hnancial asuis and lahiliries.
Thie table on tha next page illustrates the Fair value hicsarchy used in detesmining the failr value of financial
assets a ablithes, The breakdown fs as Follows:

Consdlidated Financial Stalzments 2014 Rabsobank Geoup
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+ Category 1: Quoted prices in acthve markets for identical assets or labdities: an ‘active mackat' b a market in
which transactions relating to the asset or lability occur with sufficlent frequency and at a sufficent voduma
In oeder 1o provide peice information on 3 permanent bases.

» Category 2- inputs ather than quoted paices included In category 1 that are cbservable for the aset o
|I.|\h|l||l‘.l.l efhEr dIn.H:!hr {le. &4 prices) or |I‘!I:|-IIEEI|"".E. derivad from prices);

+ Categary 3: Iepuls for the asset of Mabiity not based oa abisreable market data,

Rabobank determines for recurrent valwations of fimancial instruments at fair value when transfers between

the various categories of the falrvalue hierarchy eccurred by reassessing the category during each new

reparting petiod.
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Mor-garrend snsefs held for wle and divontnued operstiors. - - L T BUTH
Limbifities

Do o0 01 e bt ] 13,545 sar ATF
Drus g cuntomen. 2 BE 500 asriar man
Dbt secuaritiesin nws 1.0 LT WA o]
Diertvative financial tratruments snd othes trade Tadbnies 2036 AR D31 ™ LA E]
Crthee Financial lishiities o fer valon through profitor lom 1,787 130m £l 190ee
Sabnrobnabed deht Ll » - i
Ligésabtiers el lor b ared diicentinued . . . TE2S TAS

i

I'he potertial effect before taxation, if more positive reasonable assumplions are made for the valuation of
financial instruments in category 3 on the profit of loss account, is 108 (300 3: 2120 on equity. it ts 73 (3013 nil).
The positive effect befoie taation, if moe negathve reasonalile assumptions ae used for the vahation of
fimanclal instruments in category 1 on the profit of s account, ©-101 (013 -27 2 and -67 on equity (201 3; nil
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Category 3 of the ather financial assets at falr value, with recognition of value changes . the profit and loss
account, includes bath debt instruments and peivate equity interasts. The latter amount to 212, and a significant
nonepercehvatle input for the vawaton of thess interests ks the multipler. The mubiplier s derermined at the
time thes interests ae acquired and & applied to the ERITOA The average weighied multipher (3 60, with a
bandwidth of -1 and +1 of the multiplier. The debt instruments mainky concern structured Investments (AMBS
aivd DO at o armount of 414 The maln Inpat for the vahaaticn of these Iatrurments |5 51 leait two Dioker
quiates with a range of -3.6% to 6.0% of the carmdng amount

Fiagnelal instruments ot falr valie in eotegory 3

Fir vaive
ar hange changes Tromafers i ar

1 oy Hrough threagh oriom 1T Decomaber
i milioen of e 24 prolt orion ooty Pochoes Saier  Sertemenn cotegany 1 M
Aseats
Firasrcinl pasety buld o trding 175 . - L] (1] - 1] {Fa ]
Cthes fnancial auusts #1 G vshes thoough peokt oo loss 150 155 456 1537 1] a5y (REE]
Decrwative financial imErumenti Y Rer] + I 4 [EEL] g [AFH]
Awailable-for-sale financisl meets ng ) na nr 2n 3 LT kol
Lisbdlitles
D firariial i T
fabiitiry s n - - - L1 1008 L6z
Otk Brnanial liabibties at fae waloe treough probt or
hass 54 t - [l . B . a5

The 1able shows movemsants in the inanclal instruments which are stated an falr walue in the statement af
hinancial position and which are classibed in category 3. The falr value adjustments In catsgory 3 which ane
included in equity are accounted for in the revaluation reserves for available-for-sale inancial assets. In 2014,
derivatives in the amounts of 1,008 [active) and 1,102 [paysive] wete transferred from categary 2 to category 3
as @ result of a kack of & perceivable prepayment rate which has a significant knpact on the determanation of
the faw value of these derhatives Thers wete no signiicant transfers betwaen cateqgory | and categarny 2 in 2014

Financial instruments ot fairvaloe in cotegory 3

Fol e i valiee Trcriifrannd o
A htnge shangea heldfstanls!  Tramferane ar

1 Jascary rheough Bhegugh o romed arkom 1T Decomber
i Pl o #ured 200 ORE & Josd EATY Purehsie Lol Seml 3 o
Assets
Farubrackal anets el foe poming #3 [+ . 14 2] | . -] I7T5
Utk fnarciel syt o B vabe
erepgh profn or koo A5 17 - ] L] & - an L)
Dhetuitl o Anancial nsiviments 45 158} . 153 - & 11 L] 47
Bwailabdefer-vale financial apets w“ 2 [} e L o] i L] - na
Lisnbeitities
Dierhautive financial instrumenty and
etai tibds Habditar L2 ] . - - . 11 -3 ™
Dt i bl fuabalitien a1 s vakes
Ewough peofn of loss 1% " - - (5] ] - - 21

The amount In total gains or losses peesented in the statement of income fos the period relating to the
assats and [labslities hald incategory 3 uniil the end of the reporting paniod is presented in the tabls on
the next page.
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Financitinirumentsnctegoey 3-air vl changes hrough profitoress

I ruBong of evrcs Becagaised Elerrcnganed Taial
AL 31 Decembes 2004

Asrets

Financial amets held dor trading F1] 1 F3
Oithisd Riictal it 88 T walus hisugih oAt o kds 145 14 15
Dhevivrtiow financlal rtusmenis 103 - a3
Availsbie-foi-1aie fancisl sssery a7 87
Linbifities

Dierivirton finandal b atvd vther Lrave lasbties £ 4 ”
Cithew financial lisbditien of fur valos thicogh profit o lom 1 - ]

Al 1 Decombes 200

Asvets

Finareisl axets hek o g m 1 o
Ot financisl maens ot falr swue through proftor loss s3] k-3 ian
Dervative fiaancial rsteusents 78 [LET 156
Ay lisbiie-for-ade frncisl s ] - 2
Limhifities

Durivartive financial instruments and other trade fasibeie 53 ]

Othes Praneial lialslithin o far vaboss thrcusgh profit o latd 1" - "

The table below thows the changes in defenad profit of the Financial assets hald for trading which wems
Initially eecognined a1 & value determined wsing a valuation technique based on dats input not substanziasted
by market prices

Provisian far Day 1 profit

b il o pwred 04 man
m balance ar Lrd
Addfitio . "
Amortinsfion 18] ne
Changes L] -
Clasing balanes & Fi

4.10  Legal and arbitration proceedings

Habobank Group it invalved in several legal and arbitration procesdings in the Netherlands and other
countries, Including the Uinited States, in cannection with claims beought by ard againg the Rababank Group
and arising from its bursiness operations, Allhough it & not possible 1o predict ar determing the eventeal
outcoms of all pending or imminent proceedings and processes, Babobank Group s of the view that the final
outcomes of the varlous pending and/er future legal proceedings will ot have a materially adverse effect on
the Ranobank Goup's financial position or profitabilitg, given s size, strong balance sheet, steady flow of
Ineome and pravisions palicy.

LiborEuribor

Rabobank has recelved a number of requests In recent years from regulators in varcus countries to e
Infarmation and documents in refation to varlous Issues, including issues related to the fuing of inkerest rates.
Rabohank is conperating, and will continue ta conperate, with the requlatoss and authaeities irvalved in these
glabal mvestigations.

MNates 1o the cansalidated financlal statements
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29 October 2013, Aabobank entered into a settlermant agreemient with various autharities in relation to thals
Investigations into Rababank's historical LIBOR and EURIBOR submission processes. Additonal infaimation i
avallable on the bank's corporate website. All Brancial fines related ra this settlement agreement ware fully
paid and accounted fos by Rabobank in 2013 The method in which the investigation By the Duteh Public
Presecution Service into Rabobank of the interest rate submissions was terminated i currently being
riviewad by the Hague Court of Appeal,

Rapobans, along with a large number of other panel banks and nter-dealer brokers, has been mentkoned in
connection with a large number of alleged class actios suits and individual v court cases brought before
the Federal courts in the United States These proceedings relate to the S dollar (USDY, LIBOR, lapanese yen
[IPY], LIBOR, TIBOR (nate: Rabalbank was never o memiser of the TIBOR pancl) and EURIBOR,

An Argentinaan consumser protection ciganisation brought an alleged class acthor set against Rabobank in
Arngenting in relation to USDLIBOA in 2014, Additionally, the bank has also been summaoned 1o appear befors
sevieral Dutch courts in chvil proceadings refating 1o ELRBOR Furthesmore, varlous Individwals and eniites
have made a number of allagations relating 1o ELURIBOR in lemers 10, and legal proceedings against, Rababank
and an Irish subsidary,

Since the alleged class action suits and civil proceedings listed above which have been brougi in the US o
elsawhera ame, by their natura, subject to uncertainties, it & difficult to predict thelr outcomes. Rabobank
maintains that it has mouwnted compelling legal and facteal defences against these clakbms and intends to
continue defending itsell against them.

Fortis

Thie Darch Insestors” Association (VER) has Bsued o surnmodns agairst the company fosmierly kegan as Fortls
N and curiently trading as Ageas MY, the underwriters involvad = incheding Rabobank = and the formear
directiors of Fortls MY, The Dutch nvestors’ Assoclation states in this summons that investors were misled by
the prospectus publshed by Ageas MY, In connection with its rights ssue n September 3007 The Association
states that the Impact and risks of the subprime caisis on Faetis and (13 cash position were mispresanted in the
proapectus and has requested a declanatony judgment stating that the delendants acted illegitimately amd
must thetelore be held llalale for the |oss allegedly sulfered by invesiors In Foetis, We malntasn 1 be view thag
the above-mantioned less ol ELIR 18 Billion has not been prapedy aststartiated, The proceedings cancern a
settloment of the collective loss, which means that the court will enly rule on the question of whather the
delendants, Incheding Rabobank, are llable. Cepending on the outcome of these proceedings, It will become
clear whather separate loss proceedings are to be expected Rabobank |s defending itself agalnst the claimg
at present, however, the bank s unabdle to assess the autceme of these o any subsequent proceedings.

Imtetiat-rata derivatives in the SME Logmant

Ranoban'c providas interest rate desivatives for business custormers who wish to reduce interest rate risk
wsochaled with varlable (Ewebor) boans, Such an interest rate swap protects customers fram rising [Euribor)
Imtarest rates and helps businesses to keep thelr Interest paymeants at an acceptabla level

Faw bus! mess custaners whio have baoth a lnan and an inferest rate desivative, the bank assesses, or reassesses,
the individual position in 2074 (and into 2005), If 8 dosed derivative turns out to no anger suit the oustomes’s
risguiremiEnts, the bank and the custamer set aut 1o find a solution which s aceeprable to the customse

This saluticn may range from estructuring to offsetting the derivative, s combination of thete two meaures,
ar full or partial compensation. Each of these solutions is tallor-made, which means that all the drcumstances
nf the busingss are considenad in the assessmant

Consolidated Finadiclal Statements 2004 Ratbsobank Gioup
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5 Business segments

The busimess segments Rabebank uses in its repoeting are defined from a management viewpaint. This means
they are he segments that ae reviewed as part of Rabobank’s strategic management and for the purpose of
rraking business decislons, and have diferent rlsks and retwre

Ratrobanic ditinguishes fve major busiress segment: Domestic retal banking, Whalesale banking and
International retail banking, Leasing, Real estate and Oithes segments. Various organkational changes were
Implemented in 2014, This was the result of two trends: a) the sale or downsizing of operations and b) intemnal
changes, such as the integration of Rabobank International and Rabobank Mederdand, the reciganisstion at
the local Rabohanis, and the impending changes at FGH Bank The affects of the reorganization at the local
Rapobanis and the wale of Bank BGT are discussed in Section 23, Provisiens’ and Section 43, Tixed assets and
liabilities held Tor sale’, respectivaly,

The segment Domestic retall banking mainly comgtises the activities of the local Fabobanks, Obvion and Roparca
The segment Wholesale banking and international retail banking supports the Rabobank Group In becoming
the matket leader in the Metheslands and focuses on the food and ag sector at the imternational level

Thig seqgrsen ks engaged in regeonal corporate banking activities, a3 well & managing entities with globat
oprations such as Global Financial Markets, Acgulsitkan Finance. Gidbal Client Soluthons, Project Finance and
Tracke & Commndity Finance, The wsgrment i also immbsed in Intermational Dieect Retail Banking and Raba
Private Equity. The intemationad retall banking operations fall under the Rabobank label, with the exception

of ACC Loan Management. Folowing the sale of Robeco in the second half of 201 3, the Asset management
segment |5 no longer displayed separately. The operations of Schreten & Co are currently reported in the
Othier ssgment. The Leasing segment - DLL - js respons ble for the [easing activities and offers & wide range
of leasing, trading and conwumer finance products inthe Duich home marker

Manufacturer, vendos and distibutors globally are supported in thair wales with products melsted 1o asset
financing, DLL cperates in Duropean maorkets with the Athlon Car Lease leasing company, The cone businesses
af the sagment Real Estate - Rabo Real Estate Group, which holds investments, are residential and commarcial
real estate, finance and asset management, In the Dutch market, Rabo Aeal Estate Gioup operates BRD, MAB
Dewalopement. FGH Bank and Bouwsdonds Investment Management brands. The Other ssgments aie
compeised of vatioes sub-segments, of which no single segment shoakd be listed separately. The Other
segments matnly include the financial results of associates (particularly Achmea BV} and the head office
ogatetion, Thee ate no cuslormiers who owe a share of moe than 10% in Relbebank’s 1otal revemses,
Transactions betwoen the various business segments are conducted at reqular commencial ferms and under
normal matket conditions, In the segment Domestic retad banking, the dividend provided to the local
Ranobanics is indeded under Othes resubts’ 218 (201 3 nil)

Apain from operating actbvities, these is no other matesial comprehemsive income between the business
sEgments. A seqment's operating actbdites compiise business assets and labiinies, ie. & Large portion of the

balance sheet excluding Mems such as tax, The accounting principles used for the segmaents are identical to
those descrited inthe summary of the main accounting peinciples.

Nates 1o the consolidated financial stalements
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b el oo vy
Thet Methesilaati 1483 Loan
Chher wumapone: 1o LE]
Rest of Europe [Non-2umaone] ] .11
Herth Aemwiicn FIT ] EFH
Latin America 1 -]
Aaly 15 3
Musitraba 4 14
Othar g comalidation efacty - -
Total 14871 1.T78

Geographic information {country-by-country reporting)

Rabobank operates in seven main geographical areas; see tha table below, For Rabobank, the courtry of
demicile 4 the Metherdands. The irforrmation i reparted by distinguishabls companents of Rababank that
prosice procucts and/or services withan a particular economic environmen within pamicular geographical
locationsfaneas. The allocation is baded on the location of the individual subsidhary fram which the
transactions are originated,

At 31 December 2014

s ey Avtroge  Dperaning IGERA T T
twngrmhe continang  rumbernl  penftbefr .
apatanm iy A o subaidary Frpe of ppevation ] T Baanion Tases reveloed
The The Netserlands  Local Rabwbar ks, Ralboberk. IGamsta reta] banking.
Meshriarch DL, Oeriart, Frinridiend itasliriale bariong and sermabons
Lelmrhedien Masticrapn MY, setsl hanking. Leaung. Beal mitshe
Rlaluabiipet ek,
Faten el Evinbe Group 2950 AT553 1.1 15951
Oufat Francs DAL Faxbobuni, Leasing. Whoeube barisg and
FRS0RE Rtk Rl E 91 a0 Dot rdmrriitasnal ielsil hanking,
=i el Eiqate ar T 2] an =
Belgham DL Fasbobank, Lensing. Wolessle basvicag and
Featen el EATate (o T aal PR Saniking.
Feal sutats -] 1] b ]
Dy GLL Eabobank, Lrasng. Wiholewsls berivng snd
Faabes Pl E st Gt inlerratasnal fetsil banking.
Foral milaly nr LT [+ b -
BLL Eabobeni. RLeaung. Wholewals baricing and
ribeiTiatasnal feeadl Banking T 187 Ll 9
! e (AL Eahobank Lraing, Wholrisly baning and
Piatea Aloal [tk Croup Enbematonal ertail fanking,
Fenl extate & 1 " i "
ALE Lown Manag v retail hanking [Seth oL -] * -
Finlard Gl Leasng 4 5 I 1 -
Adiaria CiL Liaundg X F L]
Parugal mL Leating & 1] [+1]
Spain DLL Fasbsobasn Leaung, Wikt baeicag and
it asni Al peLnl Buankineg Tl 1689 M B .
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At 31 December 2013
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6 Cashand cash equivalents

s anillaia o el ord M
Caib F] e
Dieposis at comaral bands oihey than manianoy Feweret Deposits LR 5807

ERE L] 36,758
Mandaicry reseree depoits i cerdoad banks {111 . 3A%
Totsl cash srd cash equlvalenis 1805 41009

The average manimem resarve 1o be held for the Methetlands for the month of December 2014 ts 2,964
[Decembar 2013 2 B4a)

7 Due from other banks

b bl of v 2014 200
Depostywith cihes banks (FLi0Y 1233
Rizerrie nepans hane traniactions ind k q g e TiA1R
L. 44T 5,758
i 10 ar
Lievy vaboe sclpumimesis 28 (31]
A5, 061 Ao.4aF
Reclsatfod marts EL] ins
Total dus from other banks A5 B a0, 707
Brertkoeam of sk ad et
AL Lerviiany 51 a3
Irgaitirrent fo crdin briiey - ]
Heverad of rpuirment for credd ey (157] (=1
Walue adjusimesis P14 i
Diefi.fting esans written off shusesy the yrat 1m -
Dither changes [ ] 1=}
A3 Denmrribiet o) 5

Walie aci;ualmrnlhn'l"l.'}uq from ather banks' kave beon mecognised in the statemant of ineame o Valus
adjustrments: The gross carrying amount of Due from ather banks whose value adjustments were established
oman Indiidual basis s 165 (2013 55)

8 Financial assets held for trading
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9  Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

el i i F T FITE
Ceverte e by 1z [
Cthver det secuenies AW 385
L 1680 1058
W apitad (moquety | E 442
Dither equiry irtruments 455 88
Tatal FE et

'ﬁ‘tel:huni:pe i thie yoar wrcler review 0 the Talr value of the loans dnlgn.:ﬂcﬁ a4 at fale value I:hrough pﬂnﬁ! o
lass that & alliocabée 1o the changes In ciedit Hsk is 14 (2003 -18], The cumulstive change i -34 (200 3: -48},
Ay changes in falr value are calculated by discounting future cash flows. When satting the discount rate,
account is taken of expecied losses, the Bouldity mark-ups and the risk margin.

No credit dedwvative financdal instrumants are used to hedge the loans designated as at falr value throwgh
profit pnd lass.

10 Derivative financial instruments and other trade liabilities

Chorvatives are used at Rabobank fior the purpose of mitigating at keast a portion of the long-term manket risks
arting fram the bank’s varlous operations. Examples of this iInclude interest-rate swaps used 1o hedge
Imterest-rate risk arlsing fram the difference i duration between assets and Eabilites Another esample are
cross-cutrency swaps, which are used 1o hedge the cunrency risk to which the bank Is exposed alier lsuing
ity Enstrurrents in foreign currencies,

The bank’s hedging palicy s desgned to optimise its income within the risk appetite framowork. In addition
o using detivatives Tor hedging purposes, deivatives ae tansacted for the bank® customers This inchedes,
for mample, forward foreign eschange contracts wihich cosporate clients enter into with Rabobank in order to
hadge thair currency risks The resuhing exposuies are largely mitigated by entanng into rewerse posithoms
with cne or more professional counterpanties, wihin the trading limips seq.

10,1 Types of derivative instruments used by Rabobank

Forward currency and Inferest rate contracts are contractual obigations to recedve ar pay a net amount based
on changes In exchange or interest rates, or to purchase or sel’ foreign currency o a financlal Instrument on a
future date at a fised specified price in an organised financial market. As collateral for forward contracts is
proviced in the feamn of cash, cash equivalents or marketable secwrities, and changes in the value of forward
combracts are sesthed dally, thie credit aisk is negligible,

Forward rate agreements s Individually agroed forward interast rate cantracts under which the difeence
betwicen @ contractually agreed interest rate and the market rate on a future date has to be settled in cash,
based ona notional principal amount.

Currancy and interest rate swaps are cormmitments 1o axchange one wet of cash fows for another, Seaps entail
an economic exchange of culiencies ot Intedest rates (uch as a fized rate for one of mare vaniable rates), o &
combenation (e, & Crns-currency interes-rate swap), Excent far cerain curency saaps, 1hene is no rransier of
the principad amount, The credit ik cxposure of Rabobank represents the patential cost of replacing the
swaps If the counterparties default. The rsk |s monitored continuously against current fair valise, a portion of
tha notional amount of the contracts and the liquidity of the markets. As part of the credit risk management
process, Aabobank employs the same methods for evaluating counterparties as it does for evaluating its own
lending activities,

Cuntency and interest rate options are contracts under which the seller fnown as the witer) ghves the buyer
{kricmam s (hae holadien) i thght, emtalling no obligation, o puschese (in the cowe of a call epion} oo sell (in the
casa af a put oplian) a specific amount of forsign currency of a specihe fmancial instrumaent on or belare an
agreed dite or dutieg on agreed period ata price set in advance. As consideration for accepling the currency

58 Consclidated Financial Staterments 2014 Rabobank Group
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or Interest rate risk, the writer receives a payment (known as a premium| from the holder. Options are traded
on exchanges of between Rabobank and chants (OTC). Rabobank 5 exposed to credit risks anly as option
hedoer and anly up 1o the carrying amount, which is equal 1o the faér value inthis case.

Credit default swaps (CD%) are instrumants by means of which the seller of a CO5 undeakes 1o pay the
buyer an amount equal to the loss that would be Incured by holding an underlying reference asset if a
specife credit event were to acour (e, the materintsation of a fisk. The bayer |5 under no abligation to hald
the undearlying reference assat.

The buyer pays the seller a credit protection fee expressed in basls points, with the size of the fee depending
on the cradit spread of the reference assat

102  Derivative financial Instruments issued or held for trading

Rapobani trades in fimancial instruments ta take positions In tradable or OTC instruments, mcuding dedvative
Anancial Instruments, so that it can peofit from short-term movements on shaee and bond markets and in
exchange and interest rates For this type of tading, Rabobank sets risk lmits relating oo market posizions at
the end of the day (cvermight trades) as well as during the day (imraday wades) Except undar specific hedaging
mrangements he cumency and interest rate risks assodated with these dervative financial instruments are
uswalby offset by taking counter positions in order to manage the volatility in the net smounts needed 1
ligguidate the markel positions

10.3  Derivative inancial instruments held as hedges

Ranobank conchudes vanlous financizl dervative contracts that are intended as falr value, cash flow or net
Inwastmaent hedges, and which accondingly qualify as such. Rabobank also concludes dervalive contracts as
hedges againt economic risks. It does not apply hedge sccounting to these contracts.

Fair valua hedges

The main components of Rabobank's falr value hedge are interest-rate swaps and ooss-currency interest-rate
swvaps which serve as protection against a potential change in the fair value of fixed-income financial assets
and liabilities i both kxcal and forelgn cumencies. The net fait value of these swaps at 31 Decernbes 2014 is
-12,863 (2013 - 10,427

Ratobant hisdges a portion of i1s exising currency and ingerest-rate nisk of secunties Bsued by means of fir
value hedges in the form of curmency swaps and cross-currency intorest-rate swaps, The net fair value of these
Interest-rate swaps as at 11 December is 3,908 (201 3 154 7). For the year ending an 31 Becember 2014,
Raoobank reported a profit of =164 (2013 215) a3 a result of the partion of the fair value hedges which was
classified as Ineffective hedges.

For the yeer ending on 31 Decembeer 2004, Rabobank reported a profit of -5 242 (2013: 2,782) for the hedging
Instruments Toal profit fram the hedged position, abocable to the hedged risk, totalfed 5,078 (2013 -2560).

Cash-flow hedges

Rabobanic's cash-fiow hedges consist mainly of cross-curency Interest-rate swaps which serve fo protect
agairdt a potential change in cash flows from financial assets in foreign currencies with floating inteest rates
The et fais value af the eross-cusrency nteres)-tate swapi, classified as cash-Now hedge at 31 Decermber
2014 5 -3,660 (301 3: -7 405),

Im 3014, Rabiobank acoounted for an amount of 548 (2013; -1,450) after taxathon In equity as affective changes
Imv the Falr value of devivatives in casheflow hedges In 2014, an amount of -586 (2013 1,459) after taxation of
cash-flow hedge reserves was reclassified to the profit or loss account. The cash-flow hedge reserves as part
of equity totalled 11 (3013:49) at 31 Decamber 2014, This amaunt flucteates along with the fair value of the
derivatives in the cash-flow hedges and is accounted for in peofit over the term of the hedged positions as
trading peafit. The cash-low hedge reserve relates (o a large number of derlvaties and hedged positions with
different terms. The maxkmum term b 97 years, with the legest concentmtions exceeding frve yoars

Fear thee yedr ending on 31 Decembeer 3014, Rabobank reported a profit of 185 (2013 225) as 4 result of the
portion of the cash-fiow hediges classihed as iraffective hadges

Nates 1o the consolidated financial stalements
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Het investment hedges

Rabobank uses fofeign forward-eschange contracts to hedge a portion of the currency translation risk of

net investments in foreign entities. The nat fair value of these foreign forward-exchange contracs at

31 December 2014 was B (2013 29),

At 31 Decernber 2014, futures contracts with a nominal amount of 1,797 (201 % 2384) were desigaated as net
Investmant hodges. These desulled in cxchange gains and kides of -B7 for the vear [2013; 279), which ane
delerred in equity. A total of 106 was made in withdrawals from equity during the year (2013; nil). For the year
ending 31 Cecermber 2014, Rabobank reported no meffectiveness resulting from the net invessment hedges

10.4 Notional amount and fair value

Although the netisnal amount af certain types of inancial instrumants provides a Basis for compaing
Instruments that are included in the statement of finandlal position, i does not necessatily represent the
related futwe cash flows or the falr values of the instrumerts. Hence, it does not represent the exposure of
Rabobank to credit or exchange tisks. it is the amaunt of the asset or the reference rate or index undarlying a
derivative financial instnsment, represanting the basis on which changes in a derivative financial instrumsnts
value are measured It provides an indication of the volume of ransactions executed by Rabobank; itis not a
mieasiene of risk exposuie, however. Some derbrative financial Instraments are standardised In tenms of
notkona| smount o settlement date, having been desigriod for trading on active markets {lLe on stock
exchangesk Others ara specihcally constructed for individual chlants and not for trading on an exchange,

even though they can be taded a1 prices negotiated oy buyers and sellers (OTC instruments), The positive fair
value represents the cost for Aabobank to replace all contracts on which it will be entitled to recelve payment.
Replacement would apply in the event of all counterparties remaining in defadl This is the standasd method
I the indusiny for caleulating the ouwent credit risk exposure, The negative falr value represents the cast of all
Raobank contracts on which it il have o make payment. Replacement would apply o the event ol
Ratnbank rermalning in default The total of positive falrvalues and the tatal of negative fair values are
dischosed separately In the statement of Arandal position. Derivative fimancial instraments are positive (assets)
or megative [liabilities) as a result of fuctuations inmarket oo exchange rates ino@lation to thelr contract
values. The toral contract amaount af notianal amaunt of derivative fmancial instniments hedd, the degree to
which these instuments are positive of negative, and bence the ol fair value of the dervative financial
ansets and labsilities can sometimes luctuate significantly, The nesa @ble shows e notional amouns and the
ponlitive and negatiee Rale values ol Rabobanks detvallve contracts

Consolidated Financial Statements 2004 Rabobank Group
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11 Loans to customers
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The mpalrment of reclassified aysets s =122 (2013 -154) and s stated in the pioft or loss accownt wnde
'Income from othar financlal assets and liabilities theough profit and loss.

I el o e 04 200
Vit sl I bosds T

Vsl e el inlsanyis e o b ek o an el

AR lanuany asa TASS
g ment fis re ey LELE M
Revernad of arpuirment for creds ke (i) (=1
Diefauiting loans wnthen off duseg the pear 1an [AR.. ]
Irtereal and cibes chasgey 2ar (e
Totsl walus sdjustrants in lsans to cestomen 9,348 s
Iredivictusd walue adpeitrrent apeesie pronatian Toar 1548
Colective vakm sduiment joollective prossiong 1w 44
(=L L) A
Total wihis sdjustrienti in lsand fo ceitomeri 0,348 (E1]
i, LAy amous] of laand wih i il e Bdiihed o i individusl bas 15957 16042

Rabobank acquired financial and nen-financal assets during the year by 1aking possession of collateral with
an estimated value of 86 (2003: 7. In general, it 1s Rabobank’s policy 1o sell these assets in the reasonably
foreseeabde future. Yields are allocated to repay the cutstarding amaunt

Reclassified assets

Basied on the amendrments to LAS 39 and IFRS 7, ‘Reclassification of financial assety, Rabobank reclassified a
number af Financial assets held for rrading’ and ‘Available-for-ale Ainancial auetd o Loans to customers' and
‘Due from orher banks’in 2008, Rabobani has identified assens 1o whech this amendrent appses, with the
intention ctearly shifting to halding the securities for tha near future as opposed to selling or trading them in
the short term, The reclassihications were effected as from 1 July 2008 at their falr value at the time. This note
provices detads on the impact of the reclassifications at Rabobank.
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The table balow shows the canying amaunts and falr values of the reclassified assets

T Depender JO7d I Depemier 20011
i i Bens of e Corrpiey armsust it Wi lr Carrpeiy ST T pitkar
Financial atacts held o trading roclaisibed o loam 7 Eil] i EEED
Availble-forasle firancal sacers reclarafed po losm 1158 11y L& LT1R
Total Brsnsial wts reclassified bal 1535 LEAT LRE] LI5H

I the reclassffication had not been made, net profit for the assets held for trading would be 26 higher (2013
47 highei). The change in equity pasition in 2014 would have been 180 more negative [2003: 113 marne
poaitive) If the classfication of availaisle inanclal sssets for wale had not been made. Following reclassification,
the reclassfied financial assets made the following contribution to operating profit before taxation:

Far thy e evnded 3 | Dircormber

] L]

Mt BEereil IRCOimE . 3
Valur sdpaibmeniy 1 =
Operating paoit before toantion o redassified frssndial asse held Tor orading 1 3
higt inBerend income r s
Walue sdpoirreents LFd 154
Oparating profit bafare Bxnstion on reclassifisd available-For-ale Anancial suset 158 il

Value pdjustments include reversed impairments and recoveries subtequent ta write-offs in the amount of
148 (200 5 233), 05 weell as Imgaalrrmgeds in the amouent of 26 (2003 79),

Finance leases
Loans 1o custemers also Indudes receivables from finance leases, which can be beoken down as follows

I mtant of e Jord o
Rerwvwibden finm ginsi svesamess in hinane eanm

Kot pecppding 1 yrar aTma LR
Lionges than 1 year bt notlonges than § yesrs 173m0 15847
Lisngges Lhan b years sy a4
Total receivables from grosa s inif lnanws ar0rs 2319
ik T f Eeoe & & 1074 143
Med invpertmsent In beancs beaees EER A ALTER
ket sovesimea in heamr kaum

Hof exceeding 1 year EEL ] rAAT
Longes than | year bt not longer than § pears 15391 RER TS
Lunages than & pran T i
Met inyestesens in beance brases 41,851 TLIER

The provisdan for finance leases included nvalye adjustments amounted to 344 a1 31 Decembioe

2014 (2013; 4065, The unguarantecd resldual vakees actruing 1o the lessor amount to 2,166 (2013 1,511}
The contingent lease payments recognised as income in 2014 ate nil (201 3: ndl). The Ainance leases chiefly
comcenn the lease of equipment and cars, as well a5 factoring.

64 Consolidated Financlal Staterments 2014 Rabobank Group
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12 Available-for-sale inancial assets

s el o i ot
Lhizrt Lo g mment wenben 1397
Gereerm e baonads A
Ohhey bl geuness 4. T80
Ecpaity matru—smity 1377
Totsl availahle boe-ale Anancial sgcets T

o
(h)5-]
X574
BT

The impalrrment of avallable-for-sale financial assets amounts bo 63 (2003: -111) and is recognised in profit o

laas undes ‘Met Income feam financial assets and labilites a1 fair wvadye theough prnﬁ'l and Foss”

I et o v il
Tt i) 0 dvidlalade for-Lake hriancial riardy 418

The changes in available-fos-sale inancial assers can be broken down as follews:

I ey o ey Jora
DOpening balands L5557
Forelgn exihange d Femroes A0S
AR SEA3
Urnpanah {sale snd redemptian iwbam
Transterred 1o non-tument asvets beld for sale .
Far valss charges LE-: ]
Oty charges (£
Clating batange T

13 Investments in associates and joint ventures

Thi CArrying amount of th investments in assecipes and Joant vemneres i 3,807 (20013: 3, 747)
These joint wentures ane addressed in Section 49, Jaint veniures,

I el i wnireel M4
Opening halance Lrar
FRS 01 socounting policy change -
Pusthawrt =
Ty [4)
Shuie of poofit of assodised -1}
Bwrrernch paicl 138
Aevahustian L
Oither 154
Tatal 1,807

Thie main associotes in terms of the size of the capital interewt held by Rabobank include;

Ast 31 Decosber 3014 Shareinteresr
Mederland

Achmea B, 10
Ergusciri WLV 15%
Gk Verrure Capital fonchan Warious

Nates 1o the consalidated finandial statemanis
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Rabobank holds less than 20% of the voting rights in Equens, but has significant control in Equens. For example,
twi Rabobank repeesentatives ae members of the Supervizony Boaed, while Rabosbank alss supplies the
chairman of the Audit & Compliance Commines. Due 1o Azbobank's substantial stake in Equens, this stake s
chassified as an ‘associate’

Actimea b a strategic paitner of Rabobank fof Insusano praducts. Inteipoll, & subsidiary of the Achimies Gioug,
works closely with the local Rabobanks. Achmea'’s head office b located in Zeist, the Netherands. The stake in
Achmea, for which no listed market price |5 available, |s valued inaccordance with the equity method,

Achmeg anrd Hny
Cah and caih equsslents LFE ] WY
rtrenis. LT a4
Baniking bisdneis e 15327 15350
Oithey it [EE LY 3,724
Total sssets 91,205 4,184
IFiistand i-delated petritiin B1.559 Lol b
Loas and hunds bomowed TEanm 4,138
Oiher Fabdnies 14817 QLE L)
Total Bahilitey LER T LIE
Reveitue BT .y
Aequ romcortnusd opsraticnt L] 1432
Rl fromm o senmtisged opesationy - -
ON-balarce-sheet proft fos low 188 (505}
Total of reaived and uweaised retuth o4 (L
Difwer aeraoane Jord P E
Irsoren fréers coniinising apevationt " ]
Ve e tananion from discon Hnued operations - -
Mt paofia 1m 0
O -habsrae- gheet prodt or lox m [ 1]
Tkl o realised wnd e s aboed results 1% Tk
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14 Intangible assets

St Other

eveloped Inhingibie
I miipne of oures Groodudl in-boung L] Tatal
Viea endded 31 Dedernier 1014
COipening lulanes 1541 AN (1}] 1,00
Forelgn exchange d Ferroes. rra I ¥ L]
Additiee T 138 5 i)
Dipanaty - L] [e/] [1L1]
Other I ] " L]
NiHOAT AT . {11m 4] [
Irprasrmenin [$51] (1] (L11]
Closing biskanor A5 LH] 184 LASE
Con 1400 1,556 L] 14
M i i L] w5 iy [{FEL
Het carrping amaised 1,458 H] 184 EYit
Yeat ended 31 December 1013
Opening balancs 151 L] ] 1M
Foreign enhunge d fererices e ] im = 14
Additioer " ar LH ne
Traridersed i non-cument aviets held for e and
i oot ratone. L] . o A1
Diviparialy - (L] (L] (1]
Oher F] L] 7 ]
e - i (om o
Frgaaimenia [ L] m 56
Clasing balanas 1,300 Az L 1491
Cont 1413 1,392 Sa¥ 1238
] lated i f imipai [15] AR i £L.4T)
Nt sarrying amaisst 1,581 L+ 182 1880

Goodwill is reviewed for [mpairment by comparing the carrying amount of the cash-genarating urit
[Inchiding goodwilll with the best estimate of the vakie in use of the cash-generating unit Foe that putpoe,
first the best estimate of the value in use Is determined on the Basis of cash Alow forecasts taken frem annual
mediumicterm plars draven up e part of the annual planning cycle, which reflect the mansgement's best
esiimates of market conditions, market restrictions, discount rates {before taation), growth in operations,

et cetera, if the outcome shows that there is no significant difference between the falr value and the carrying
amount, 1he falr value is assessed In more detall, with the relevant share price being used for listed
companies. In addition, valuation models are used which ane similar 1o the infial recognition of an acquivition,
peer reviews, et cetera, The valuation models are assessed and include the development of the activities since
the acquisition, the mast recent comprehensive income forecasts drawn up by management, as wall as
updated forecasts, assessments of discount rates, end values of growth rates, et cetera. Peer reviews include
an assessrnent of the pricefeamings ratio and price/Lanying amount ratio of sinila lised companies,

of similar markat iransactions. Assumptions ate generally based on edperishce, maragemant’s best estimates
of future developments and, if available, extermal data, The goodwill allocated 10 one of the cash-generating
urits in the whalesale banking segment |5 significant as a prapatian of the goodwill's tatal carying amount.
The carrying amount of this goodwll Is 662 The recoverable amount i based on the value iy wse. Value in e
Is determined using cash flow forecasis. The prindpal assumptions used are profit expected In the near term,
the pee-tax discount rate (16.5%) and the mubtiplies {(11.7x) for long-term profit or loss. As the recovesable
ameunt substantially exceeded the carrying amount, it was concluded that the goodwill allocated 1o this
cash-gensrating unit was not impaired. A reasonable change in one of the principal assumpdions does not
cause the carrying ameunt to exceed the recoverable amount. The impalrment of goodwill of 33 (3013:47)
redates primarily ta the sale of Bank BGZ; see Section 43, Non-current assets and Rabilithes hebd for sale’

B7  Natesto rhe consalidated financial statemanis
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Impaliments of software developed In-house and other intanglble assets are not matedal indhidually. in the
aggregate, impairments of software developed in-house of 29 (301 3: 13) were mainly caused by the fact that
part-of that software (s no longer used.

15 Property and equipment

[LESL L BT Langd g e furagy Equinrwrnt Toin!
Yewl ended 31 Decamtser 1004

Opening halance EAL] 4800 a901
Forelgn exctunge d ferernces. 11 s (FL11
Purchases 121 A5 1,750
Ciapowhy e 48 [0
lenguademient losses £ im iy
Depreciation il ] LLELH] (3604
Deprecistion of operaing lease sspety G (e )
Dt (1] i’ L
Clasing balance 1.0e L1 EAEL]
Cow 3304 307 11520
- It e o and Ik 1,545 [RE=rl 1] £4,371)
W1 Carrying amsast LA 51TR T.148
Il o ey L e Tusproent Tatal
Yimd etudad 31 Daastitesi 2073

Ohpening balance 1100 410 B.500
Forgign excfunge o Hemroes [{8:1] 183 (1]
Purthaaes 124 1535 Lass
Deaparaly [LH] a8 (548
Transfersed o non-cumeni asseis hetd for sale and discomisassd operations ELRE:T] [ 171
Tearal L boans i e 2ar a8
Irparment lozum (15 1] - (1]=]
Dieprecistion qnan 50 xany
Dieprecistion of opesaing ivase mmeei . T (&7
Other L] 4] L]
Claging halanon PR 4,600 L% 1]
Cost 507 T TH 0%
A lated i Zk anil i ¥ {LANT) L5 365}
Mot carrping amest 2,101 4800 B81
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16 Investment properties

|vesErsEn1 propedies ans stated ar cosL

il o v 204 0
Dipening balancr 10465 1 AR
FRE 1011 actounting poliy change H ne
Purchases i) (kP
Sl [1F=-E1] 75}
Tearslersed 10 non-curent assets bebd foe ssle - [T
Diepreciation (L] mi
Imgsarmenta 4] [1Er]
Dty LEL 2] (10°]
Clasing balanes [15] 1,685
Thee Baiir vislue spprcsimate. the camyirg amoued (301 & apperi d the canmying

Coat &0 1597
Acurril b Shfw it {158 22 FH]
Net carrping amaunt L17] 1855

Rabno Real Fstate Group sald PalalsCraarter in 2004 jor :ru.|n.:||1l_-r B = ths LT'IJP“ rogd @sEAlE penect bt
portiolio up to that time.

Valumhions

Lol Mt
Extemal vahations A o
bl val sationn. S L

External valuations of the imestment property were performad by duly certified external parties in accordance
with RICS valuation szandards or other equivatent standards. The investment property was valued based on
the methodologles which ase most apprapriate for the propeity in guestion. This indludes the discounted
cash-flow valuation method and the capitalsaton based on nat initial yields for comparable ramacrions.

Real estate experiise avadlable in-howse |s used for internal valuations of investméent propecties, and

B {2001 3 BT woere vabued by certified stall of Rabo Beal Extate Group, ivest el propeties valued
Intarnally are typically measured wiing a discounted cash llow valuation technique

17 Other assets

i milan of fura Naes 24 FLlF]
Recevables arn prepagmenss 590 (]
Aiirued Wileeil L5599 1438
Trrciout metaly goodi and warcheuse woripts 1495 an3y
(Rl 5100 DTS LF 11 1048
Kecrosd oo LLib] 183
I mployes bensfts i L] ]
Dber aaseny 534 LT
Total athed sssets 8,580 s
I mthone off vevo Jutd Jund
Mg i P v Le
Wk m prugern are THe
Tradie reortvables, real gvisie az (T1]
Total real estaie projecs {F 133 e
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Real estata stocks ame valued at cost or the low net recoverable value The net recoverable valua of the bullding
sites and equalisation funds i the highest of the direct yleld amount and the indigect yield amount The direct
yiald amount is the estimated valee on sale less the estimated cosis of completing the sabe, The indizect yield
value is the estimated yleld based on ordinary business sperations less the éstimated costs of complation and
the estimated costs necessary to complete the sale, whereby the estimated cash flows are discounted at the
weesghited average capilal bade, In determining the welghted sverage caphisl base, the bank factars in expectied
capit¥, iming of cash flows, operational risk and certadn conditions specific to Rabobank Real Estate Group

In determining beth direct and indirect recoverable value, Rabobank wses assessments and estimates.

I determining direct and Indirect yiebd, risks related 1o current land operation, shes not subject o a zoning
plan, and equalisation funds, including demographic trends, lecation, use and the elabararion of
development plams and sdminitrative decision-making, are incorporated an a location-specific basis a4 much
s ponss|ble. For Individual kocations, this results in expectest moverments in land and howse prices, expecied
margins per home, and other vatables, which ultimately determine the direct and indirect yleld amawnt.

Fou individual plats and sites, net recoverable value Is determined by comparing the direct and Indiract yiebd
amounts with each athes For plots of land ready lor construction and the cument land operation, nel recoveraie
walue is generally cqual to the indirect yield amount. For the other categaories, both the direct and the indirect
woldd amount may bave been deciive in dotermining the net recoverable vahee, whiereby the direct vield
amaant |5 generally uted more often the longer it takes to begin constiuction,

The risk of deviations from assessments and estimates is generally greater for sites not subject 1oa zoning
plan than fos sites which are wibjact to a roning plan, whereby the ridk of deviations further increases if the
comméncement af canstruction is expected to be delayed.

Thie net recovarable value of all cument land operation, sites not subject toa zoning plan and equalisation
funds was calculated In 2014 and compaied with the carrying amount. Overall, this resubted inoa transfer 1o
peawisions of a total of 16 (2073 518), A negative carying amount may arse, for example, f Azbo Real Estate
Graup has committed 1o developing real estats, whesshy the propertty, according to current estimates, (s
loss-rmaking and the loss i greater than the amount capaalised at that time, The lower values are cauted
primadity by deteriorated markel conditians for hames, which have changed the outlook of success inerms
of properties, completion time, expected proht mamgns and number of esidenial units comploted

i

A tﬂ'ﬂv Adcitiomy’ Withdrrwe s Af
T s of e Disnuane WA policy change e otfver chawges 31 Detesber 200
Mavrmanty in provisions for property projects
Bubdirg sites o egualiation fusdy B50 1101y L] il L]
Wikl progress ] [r1] b 1148 ns
Trache dettion - property ] - - ] L]
Total s [ A 12%8] 91

A Wit harownin’ #alanoe at
T A ot e LT T Adddions  ochevchanges 31 Devember 3 2
Mvrrmonts in provisiens for property progecn
U bedir vt el equadiation fusch. i 11 ] 1] L]
Winek i gz 143 L] i1 F]
Teacke debeors - praperty i . ] 9
Tatsl ar L) R ] 1,128
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Wk in progress
I mdhen ot eves o i
Hormees oy g eguaration and undes consuuction 435 w7
C ia realeilate i developren and i pogeen 05 Les
Pre-nwaiced term for housing coratruction [LFEs] (4151
Pre-invcsced tenms for commercial real enace {1am (546
FRS 1 | stounting policy change - het
Tobsl work s progres. Erid Taa
18 Due to other banks
I mibens ol erm o0 01
Dermand deposs 579 angy
Fiuetlamim degenits 16136 L&
Repaan e agrements ol a0
Wscellane o Habities 10 other barks ] 13
Total dusto sther banks 17.E83 14745
19 Due to customers
I s o s aom 203
Cusrenl accounts 5438 4881
Deposky with sgrred matuy TR a1
Deposin redeemabbe o1 notice WRLEST 17587
Rrpur: Ao agrremerts Leas LA™
Cithis due 10 cunbomen a5 Tosaz
Tatal due 1o ourtemers 126,471 EFIR S5
Due b0 curstomers oo includes the investrments of central Banks amounting to 20 (3013: 23 bdllion.
20 Debt securities in issue
P o ey ol man
Cotibeaties ol degrenst #1534 4,798
Commercial paper 1L.3141 TLARD
Bonch (PR [ETFTHS
Ot g doiurties &3 1463
Total dabt sacurition in e 19,080 195
21 Other liabilities
I i o eurad o Jon
Payables 5411 aam
Acorued inberest 11 013
Freperyrs beeniefit 148 103
(ither i 414)
Peowison for day 1 profa ] ”
Total other liskilitiss LA 748
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22 Other financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Thie change in the fai value of the other mancial Babilives at fal value through profil or loss that s amibuable
1o changes in Rababank’ credit ik is a loss of 669 (201 3: gain of 363) The cumulative change in fair valee
attibutablds 16 changes in Rabobank® cred ik in relation to the credit spr ead ot the 1ime of ivue of the
structured notes smownls 1o 674 befone Laxkes (201 3: 1.341), The book value of the structured notis is

5,108 201 3: 5,061] lower than the amount Rabobank & cbhéiged to repay to the holders of the stuctured rotes.
The change In falr value that is attibutable to changes im credit sk is caloulated by establishing a connection
with the change in the credit mark-up of structured notes issoed by Habobank.

P s o ees. o] M
[Earucbsied] rdes 14829 RENAL)
Criheey ot seowrines L0 ] (K}
Diepositn mith sgeeet maburisy A AZT I8
Tatal sther finsncial Babilitie a8 fair valee through profia o loas RNt Rir-

23 Provisions

T mithong o et S0 Jon
[[TRIT ALENTRRErY 15 195
Prorwitsen for Lin s kagal fvusei T 263
Oitheesr e a5
Totsl pravislons TR 1853
Changes in provisons sere a3 follows:

ReTIRalLE e i A0

Opening balances 5] (F ]
Imevest - .
huhitiorn < hargead 1 profe (EH 381
Withdeawaly nim i
Relerie Ry (151
Closing balance ns 1%e

Pavrwtiban for ta st hegal laes

Opening halance FL ] o4
Adcitior changesd b profi 68 B
‘Withdsswvaly o) [12-F1]
Belegne [FLY] (E11]
Clasing bslanos T Lo
Cithes

Dipening balgnos 186 IzE
1FFS 1641 1 poficy change 3 N
Ackditior changed to profs ] ™
Withdisaal [0 [L11]
Reiraws L [L2H]
Closing batances nz s
Total previsions. THi 1050

The additions deducted from profit from the restructuring provision ts an amount of 80 (201 3: 283) for the
recaganisation programme fior the local Rabobanks, This recrganisation peovision consists of futute payments
redating te redundancy pay and other costs directly attributable to the reorganisation programme. Thess costs
ate secountied for once 4 detailed edundancy plan isin place, The expected outflow of funds will accur in
2015 ancd 2006,
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Approximately 21% (331 3: 326 of the provision for tax and legal Issues relstes to tax claims. The provision for
tax and legal issues ts based on the best possible estimates available at year-end, taking into account legal
and rax advice Tha timing of the cash eunflow of these provisions s uncertain because the outcome of the
disputes and the time Involed are uhpredictable. Other ncludes piovisisns for anemoe contracts, Cradit
quarantess and nh|'-gal'jun:. whider the 1erme of the depasit quarantes scheme,

tmmidene ot oy lip taone year 14 ywar Wore than & yean: Tatal
AE 31 Descember 2008 653 kL1 = o
An 31 Decembes 20013 vy 43 La53
24 Deferred tax

Deferrad tax asse1s and liabilities are measued for all ternporary differances wsing the Tiabiliny’ method,

Thie effective s rate in the Netherdlands for measuring defereed tax is 25% (2013 25%). Thee were no changes
In deferred tax a3sets and labilities resulting fram changes in the effective tax rate in the Netherlands. Mo defemred
L et has been recognised for unused tax losses wotalling | 657 (2005 1.T38) These camy forward losses relate
fo vanlous tax authosdties and thelr term 1o maturity is largely unBimited. Delerred tax assets recognbed in respect
of carry forward losses can only be utilised if eable profits are realised In the future. At 31 December 2014,
there 5 a realistic expectation that suffcient raxable profins will be generated within the applicable periods.

Fax o other
Dt tan heferredii Dilerred shenh
avinefy bk whamge inoome
I evions o e
Fis this piai eniiling &n 3 Decembe 30 H
Penaicey ancd ather pod-employmesd berefiy 34 I 1 L]
ITgEmEn D a7 [LE) a0y -
Financial lishiiftieuat fai vakur i . {16E
Crthirr pressviorn a L] N
Hedging of enerest sane sk 123 B W
Ly bowrmrardl kevines 1,754 L] im -
Imtanginks masty & 1 m +
R abuanlion ieueive & Aabike: b bl fenaniial siseti i ] . iy
rvabuntion nrveres - tash fiow hedge 1 - - L)
Property and equipment. including beases L] fL] m =+
Oither Ezmpesary differences EIH] 1155 (] .
Tatal 2500 4T 144y [
Fer envathier
Deterred 10w [ feferedian  compeeheniteg
ey Fobsbnes L] noome
2 milrin ! duved
Forthe year ending an §7 Cwosmber 2351
Pensions s other pos-employmet bensfrs 15 - ) asn
Imgairmenta o m e
Financial lishitiies i feir value (L33 - Ell -
Dither presdion i 143 7
eddging ol intereyt rabe rink L - nm
Carry forwrard boaes 1451 18 {ad)
ILarie) ftver it L] . 15 .
Rvabuation neverve fon wepdatibe- foraale francial st L ¥ 2]
Revahsalion reserv - cash fow hedge 1 . Wy
Tooperty ancl copipment, inshasing lrases 20 b1 H
Dthes bemporary differencey (1L1] L] [157]
Total 190 TRE (143) [l
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25 Employee benefits

i v ot 04 012
Lrrphrpes benehls - macta 1 L
Erephryes Denefily - labdites 185 1]
et peerstirs Babsditien e FiH
Pengica shemes e [
Dthes errpdiayee enebiy %63 FIE)
Nt panaion lsbalinies are e

25.1 Penslon schemes

I May 3013, Rabobank eached agreement with the trade unions regarding the amendment to the Collective
Labour Agreement (CADL The parties agreed on a new pension scheme o replace the cument scheme
administerad by the Rabohank Persion Fund. The new pansion scherme, which became effective with
retroactive affect an 1 lanuary 2013, is o group defined-benefit schome based on o retirement age of 67 and
& rarger accrual rage of 2 percent. Each year Rabobank deposits pension contriburions o the Rababani
Pension Fund bated on a feed system in an atlemipt 1o achieve the target pension accriual for services
provvided during the yeat of service based on a conditional career-average scheme with a conditicnal
Indeation. in paying the annual pension contributions, Rabobank will fully and finally have satished all its
pension cbgations and will no longer have any financlal commitments in refation to the underlying years
of participation and penshons previoushy accrued. In the context of the risks mansfemed, Rabobank paid 2
one-time amount of 300 towards the creation of an index deposit. In add tion, Rabobank will actas a
guarantor during the pericd 3314-2020 for the realisation of the target pension accrual for the services
peovvided during this petiod up 10 & maximem amdaent af 250

The new pension schems gualifies as o defined contibxation plan under |AS 15 Rabobark's obligation b
limitad to the premium payments owed, less presdously made paymants. Since the pansion scheme
administared by Stichting Rababank Pensioenfonds no longer gualifies as a defined-benefit pansion schame,
pracricaily the only pension schemes that contimee 1o qualify as defined-benafit schemes are those of
Friesland Sank and ACC Lodn Management at 31 Decomber 2014, These are cateer-average defined-benefin
pension schemes, administered by a fund or otherwise. The assets related 1o the schermes malntained ina
turd are held lndependantly of Rabobank assets in separate lunds managed by trustees. The assets ane valued
each year by independent actuaties based on the method prescribed by IFRS, The mast recent actuarlal
valuations wers performed at the end of 2014, The tables reating 1o the welghted averages of the main
actuarial assumptions and the future premium payments i 2014 relate to these fwo pension schamses,

The fable showing investments in plan assetsate based on the pensgon scheme administened by ACC Loan

Marparmis

o vilions of pure Joi4 2o
Preseni value of labilibes scmisistened by fandy L] Ear]
Fiait value of plan ssucts 557 a7y
et habilien 18 (2]
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Movements In plan assats and labdiies

Fmiions o' eares Jotd o
Pecsorm vilue of kb sfitusiftieed by hewis

Pregord walue of entitierments s | lanusny 545 3464
Forgign sxcnange dffeeraed L] -
Fitereat N Ja4
Intrrise in er brmerts durisg The yoar ¥ 15
F i 1y Ehe Emiphosy - -]
Benehai paid (1171 inw
Transer of sconsed banefey - -
Pk s baeimie Merrminatan. - BE20%
Penaksa sebweime amentdment -]

Curtsdmarty i [}
Db ? LE!]
Arsuarial gaing e ledsen ariing f hanges in demagraphs = " [Lh]
Actuarial geing ared koases aridng froms changes in Anancls ssumptioss & 1391
Pritend valee of Rabibives Rald i b fund 81 31 Decesnbes L1 ] 545

Fink washom-of plan #ussty

Fiak valaz of assets o | Janussy AT 1802
Forpign sncrunge differeroey 7 -
I=vieresi 4 133
Prernium goninbuled by the emipsoper 8 EL L
Prerni It by the employesy - "
Benetny paid tn e
Transfer of stotyed henefey and (it - 1]
Penakon schemie fermmingmion - &
Dither iR (£1]
Actuarial resu’ ) 445
Far wabue ol plam saaets st 10 December 5T aTe

Estimated peamdum contributions for 3015 are approximately 6. Flan assets have been allocated as fallows:

i) ol
Ekuiirs ard altemative s s
Iteresi-bearing secursiey I pLE
Read Estane: ars 6.I%
Cwthand cob mquivalents e D
Criher Eeh ) 35.7%
Total - -

The costs recognised in the consalidated proht or loss account aie shown in the table bebow,

I anilsnn ' e it ) Pt
Imvterent on lakd ke n 244
Istereal ot phari doscts 5] [kl ]
Cawta baned o0 poricdiod empkayment during the year i £
Pervaazes porasmie Cha e -] v
L Ageniaf en di Al # 1 1
Tatal gzt of dafinad Banafit plany x 1
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The welghted averages of the main actuarlal assumptions for the valuation of the pension provision [defined-
benefit pansion schermes) as at 31 December are shown in the abde balow (In % per year):

e 201
Ceicount e 13w 18w
Wige infation Lo 15w
Paboe i ation L% L%

252 Other employee benefits
Criteer emiployee benefits mainly comiprise Rabdinies Tor luture long-sendce awards for an amount of 106 {3013: 96).

26 Subordinated debt

n mitorm of puros Jard Fat ]
Bt Medisiling 11,002 T.Ta2
Friesland Rark = L]
ey i L
Tedal subsrdinated deb 11,938 TEIE

Rabobani Mederland issuad three subordinated bonds in 2014, one in GBR one in EUR and ane in JPY.

The EUR 2 billien bond has a maturity date of May 2026 and has a coupon rate of 2.50%. Rabobank is entithed,
but not obliged, to eatly repayment of this bond loan in 3019, The GBP 1 billion bond has a maturity date of
May 2028 ared has a coupan rate of 4625% The JFY 50.8 billlon bond has a maturity date of December 2024
and & coupon rate of 14200

Rabsobank Mederland issued thee suboedinated loans in 2013:a EUR 1,003 million loan with a fooed intenest rale
of 18755 and a matwity date of 2003 a US 1,750 million loan with a feod intenesy rte of 4 625% and a maturity
date of 2023 and a WD 1,250 million loan with a foeed interest rate of 5.75% and a maturity date of 2043,
Rabobank Nederland ssued three subordinated loans in 2012 a EUR 1,000 million loan with a ficed interest rate
of 4.135% and a matusity date of 20232 a GBP 500 milllion baan with a feed interest e of 5.25% and a matuity
dare of 2027 and a WS 1,500 rillion loan with a fed interest rate of 395% and a rmaturity date of 2022,
Rabobank Nederland [ssued & EUR 1,000 millian loan in 2000 with a fized Intenest rate of 3.75% and & matety
date of 2000, Rabahank Medeidand ieued a FUR 1,000 millien kaan n 2008 with a foied inlerest e of 5375%
and 2 maturity date of 2019,

27 Contingencies and commitments

Credit related contingent liabilities

Creait granting Habilithes represent the unused portions of funds autharised for the granting of credit in the
form of leans, finandal guarantees, letiers of credit and cther [ending related financlal instrumems.
Rabobani's credit rigk exposune from oredit granting liabilites consises of potential losses amounting to the
unused poition af the authorised funds, The tatal expected |oss ks bewor than the 1oal af unused funds,
hexsever, bescanse credin granung labdites ane sublect 1o the cliems in question cominuing 1o meet speciic
standards of creditwarthiness, Financlal guarantees represent irevacabie undedtakings that, provided certain
conditions are mek, Rabobank will make payments on behalf of clients f they are unable to meet thelr
financial obligaticns to ihérd parties. Rabobank also acceots credit granting liabilities In the form of credit
facilities made avallable to ensure that cients’ lquidity requiremants can be mat, but which have not yet
been divan upon. The contingent kabilities include quarantees for providers of collective and individual
perslon saviogs plars, as requited by govemment s hodties, The likelihood of an outflow of iewwges
erbodying soonnmde benedity is vy low
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el o irwrcm S04 J00d
Financial guaraniees. A 1A
Credht qrantisg Rabdticy EANZ EYRET
Lurttwre of crpit EN ] ine
Cither eontingent kshdisey = B
Total eredit related and contmgen liabilitie LFELS] 49,558

The contracteal commiltrients relating to the acquisition, construction and development of work In progress
and equipment and property investments amount fo 56/ (01 3478

Rabobank is involved in a number of legal and arbitration proceedings in the Nethadands and other
connizies, including the United States, in connection with claims brougiht by and agains Rabobank Group
atising fram its apevations For additional information, ploase mafor (o paragragh 4 1{!!1;513.11 and arbitration
proceedings.

Liabilithes relating to operating leases

Rabsobanik has concluded vatious operating lease contiacts as lesses, mainly with respect to propedtied,
infarmation systerrs and cars. The futune net minimum lease payrments under non-cancellable operating
Ieases can ba Baoken down & follows:

I Esalliat o ke ] o
Mot Feceeding 1 pear 2] [
Lionges than 1 year bt not fenger thas 5 yean 123 L3
Lierggen Ly § o 128 (13
Tutal knhilities relating 1o aperming leases 5 0

The expected future nid minimurm lease payments recefvabde from sulb-leases are 3 (27013 16). The operating
lpase expenses ae 75 (2013 90} These are included in"Other administrative expenses in the staterment of income.

Payrments recebsable fram operating leases
Rabobank has concluded vasious O iElrg lease Conrracts as lessor The future mindmiem lease Payments
receivabile from non-cancellsble operating lesses can be broken down as follews:

ol o el M4 ot
W Laier than 1 year 1085 Lar
Lasted than | yeer bl non ater thaen 5 pears TASE e
Larten than & yoarn " 1"
Tatal pay peable bram oparating | 1,0 LE1R

Mo contingent lease payments were recognized a5 assets during the year under review,

28 Equity of Rabobank Nederland and local Rabobanks

This ftemn inchedes equity of Raboabank Nederand and Iocal Rabobank

i e af Ao a4 A3
Foregn carrenay iransdstion resenes 2] T ]
Sevaluaton reseras Tor avslable foewabe Ananosf aveis. B3 b
il reserae for F] n
Sevaluation reseran - cavh flow hedgey n a9
Rl L0 FESET e + Qe SOn CI5a) X230
Eetaned winisg lasm FrAL
Totsd resarves and swtsined samangy st yeorand AT .71
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{hanges in reserves wera as follows:

Fmiions o eares Jotd o
Transliticn difeiesced eimerging duiing the yeas

Opening balsnes [L4L1) (983}
Cumency trenilsbion differences eraging dising the yea aa (£ hi
Clasing bislance LT 575}

Revakanieon reserve o saadabie- lor-sale hnanos esety

‘Dpening balance aar LF]
Foreign excfunge diferroe L] (L]
Chispes im ssssianes 6

Faw valss chasegei 53% (E21]
Amartateon of eeclasrhed s 1 L)
Trarsdersed 1o proAn oF ke fricrsl

Clading balance o4% Eo
Revabuntion resenve fod Manciared

Opening balance m -]
Tk valas changey (Fri) (F1]
Clasing balanas ;] T
Revaluaiion esere - cxth fow hedpes

Oprring halance &0 42
T aw val e chamgey AR [AF L)
Translerred 10 proft oo bea [i175] LASS
Cloning balance n ar
Revabunthon resene - penians

[ipering halincs fL=5 b [+ELE
Changes in aspociations (L4}] (L.13
Far val s chasges (] (&73}
erverisd of rewai reseree of Aabobuank Meren Fund p - =
Clasing batance 198 [ %=d]]
Hrrained samings

Opening balanos naar MAL3
it greshit it skl i Bisbscduarik Mecleelaned anel lescal Mlabasbark e =
Retooking of revahastion ressnve for Rabobank Periion Fend pensons. P Te ] -
Other ] (nesp
Claning balancy I4.518 arawt
Total and retmined sarnings. JAER InT

29 Rabobank Certificates

A part of its member loyalty peogramme, Habobank issued certifcates and member cenificates between
2000 and 2005, Thore were a tatal of four issues (in 2000, 2301, 2002 and 2005} and these cerificates wore
only avallable 1o members of local Rabobanks, In order 1o give members the opparunity (o purchaie or sed
Rabohank {Member) Certihcates, Rabobhank nrg.:rl'wd ar Intemmal market once a month, Until secund
February 2013, when supply and demand Iin the internal market were virtually in balance, supply increased
and demand - in particutar subordinated bonds - fedl as a result of the debi crisis and market conditions and
a3 a result of Rabolbank Medarland's dirty-of-case programme. Aabobank Nederland purchased in the internal
rmarkct Rabobank (Member) Cortficates for which there was no demand. in early December 2013, Rabobank
enteied o an agresment with a third party in oider 1o Damsfer Rabobeik (Mednbser) Centilicates o
Institutional imaesoes AT the sarme time, It was antounced that the planned minimom distdbation wold be
rabsed From 5,29 1o 6.5% on an annual basis and that Rabobank intended 10 list the Rabobank (Member)
Certificates on the stock exchange. The listing expanded our invesion base as well as enproved tradabdity.
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471/594



79

EDINETOOOO
Oo0O00000000o0bodoooooooooooo00o00000o0odnogngnoOonod(eose2s)
Oooooooa

{14 lanuary X114, the cenificate holder meeting approved the proposed change in order 1o facilitate a
Euronast Arrsterdarn |isting. The Rabobank Cenificates have bean listed on Euronaxt Amsterdam since

27 Janueary 2014, These certificates represant equity investments ssued by Rabobank Nederland throwgh
Stichting Administratie Kantoor Rabobank Certificaten. The launch price was 105.00% (EUR 26.25) and has
increpsed to 107.45% since the lounch (EUR 26.84) a1 31 December 2014, An average of 7.3 million cenificates
& day were tisded during thi perlod on o 19tal of 238 milllen, Sece the sock sxchange Isting, Rebobank
Cenificates are also avallable to non-Rabobank members. This has increased the marketabslity of this
Instrurment. The distribution pald per certificate in 2004 was ELIR 1,625 (3013 EUR 1,275), The Esecutive Board
Is entitled not 1o pay the distribution. Unpaid distributions will not be pald at a [ater date. At year-end 2014,
the toal number of cartificates was 237,961 385, The amounts listed in the table below are based on the
nominal yawe of EUR 25 per Rabobank Cenificate. Prermiums and discounts on Rabobank Certificates Baued
and recouped and the costs of the lssue afier Taxation are included in netained eamnings (see the consalidated
statement of assets). Cash Mows arsing from changes during the year in the Rabobank Certificates ae
Included in the consolidated statement of cash flows

o sz of e 204 FLIE

Charges durisg The year:

Opening balance B4 v ] [ T0r ]
Member) Certrh : during the year . aorey

Exchange of Rabobank £1ii Memiber Sotes ' 1

FRabrobank | Mermber) Ceritfiates haued dung the yem 1] 1000

Clasing balanis 541 520

30 Capital Securities and Trust Preferred Securities Ill to VI

Capital Securities and Trust Preferred Securities Ml to W can be broken down as fiollows:

I s o v 04 FaT

Copital Securitien L] 1365

Trust Prederred Seoustins 8 o W 1043 1269

Total Capitsl Secwities and Touit Prefereed Securities 0 1o ¥ 1573 8534

Capital Securitles

All Capital Securities are perpetual and have no espiry date, The distiibution on the Capial Sscurities per saue

i5 a5 fellows.

Equity instruments issued directly

Issue of USD 2,000 miliion

Thie distribution s BAD per year and is made payable every siaomanths inarrears as of the issue date

(@ Mevembsar 2011), fior the fiest time on 73 December 2011, The Capital Securities are perpetual and firs
recaemable on 29 June 2017, 1 the Capital Secwrities o not redeemed eary, the daribution 1 e for a
further froe-year perlod, without a stop-up, based on the US Treasury Banchmark Rate plus a 7.4%% mark-up.

lssue of USD 2,000 millian

The distribution is B375% per waar and is made payable every sl months in arears as of the ssue date

(26 Januacy 2001), for the first time on 26 July 2001 With effect lrorm 26 July 2016 and il the Capial Securities
ate not tedeemed early, the diviribsution is set far 4 further fiie-year period, without a siep-up, based on the
LS Togasury Benchmark Rate ples a 64255 mackup

Nates 16 the consalidated financial statements
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Issue of EUR 500 million

The distribution s 9.94% per year and & made payalde annually In anears as of the issue date

(27 Fabeuary 2009, for the first time on 27 February J010. As from 27 Februaty 2019, the distribution will be
rrachs payable every quarter based on the three-month Euribar pws an anousl 7.50% mark-up.

fesue of USL 2,858 million

Ther distribsution b5 11,09 peryea and is made payable every s months in ancars as of the ssue dato (4 June J0059),
for the first time on 31 Decemnber 2009 (long first interest perdad). As from 30 June 2019 the distribution will
be made payable avery quarter based on the three-month USD Libor plus an annual 10.868% mark-up.

Issure of CHF 750 milllan

The distribution |s 6,875% per year and |5 made payable anoually in arrears as of the issue date (14 July 2009),
for the first time on 12 Novernber 2009 (short fiest interest period). As fram 12 November 2014 the distribution
will be made payabile every siv manths based on the sie-month CHF Libor plis an annual 4 965% mark-up.
The ssup was tedecmed on the sarliest first redermption date of 12 Novermber 2014,

{ssure of GAP 250 millian

The distribution |s 6.567% per year and |s made payable every sin months in anoars a5 of the tsee date

(10 June 2008}, for the first time on 10 Decembsr 2008, As from 10 June 2034, the distribution wil be made
payabie evary six monihs based on the six-month GBP Liboe plus an annual 2.825% mark-up.

Issue of CHF 350 miflion

The distribhution 5 5.50% per year and i made papalde annually in anears as ol the lsue date (37 June 2008),
far thiee fiest time co 27 June 2009, As from 27 Juess 200 8, the distribution will Be made gayable every six
maonths on 27 lune and 37 December hased on the siemonth CHE Libor phes an annual 2 80% mark-up.

Issue of ILS 323 milfion

The distribution s 4.15% per yeat and & made payalde annually In anears as of the tssue date (14 huly J008),
faar the first time on 14 July 2009, As fearn 14 July 2018, the distibution will be made payable annually based
o an (nded relaned to the interest rane patd on Isael government bonds with terms bBetween 4.5 and

5.5 yoaas phei an anrwal 2 0% mark-up,

fssue of US0 225 million

The distribution |5 T 375% per year and is made payable aneally im areears from the lssue date (24 September
F008) ewery six month, o the first time on 24 Maich 2009 The issue was redeamed on the earliest firm
redemption date on 34 March 2014

fssue of NED 00 rilion

The distribution on the N2D Capltal Securitles equaks the one-year swap Interest rate plus an annual 0, 76%
rmark-up and s made pagable annually on B Ootober, untl 8 October 2007, As from 8 Ocober 2017,

the distribution will be made payable every quarter Based on the 90-day bank bill swap interest e plus
the sarme mark-up.

The level of Rabohank Mederlands praft may influence the distribation on the Capital Securities
Should Rabobank Nederland become insobeent, the Capital Securities are subordinate to the rights of all ethor

{current and future] creditors of Rabobank Nededand, uniess the nights of those giher creditors substantively
detemmine otherwise,
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Equity instruments issued by subsidiaries

Issure of NZD 280 millicn

Raoobank Capatal Securities Limited has ssued capimal secunities, the distribution of which equals the five-year
s irerest e plus an annual 375% mark-up and was set &1 B7B6AM por year on 25 May 2000 The distribution
Is made payabie every guarties bn arears from Uhe issue date (27 May 2009, for Uhe Girst U o 18 e 2009
[shit fest interest period). As fram 18 June 3002, the distribution will be made padable svety quattee Baded
on the five year swap iInterest rate phus an annual 3.75% mark: up, as determined an 18 June 2014, As from

18 June 2019, the distribution will be made payable every quarter based on the 9%0-day bank bill swap Interest
rate plus an annual 3.75% mark-up.

Issue of EUR 1.25 million

Friestand Bank MY, Issued perpetual Capital Securities In Movernber 2004, These are undated bonds, listed at
the Eunoneat stock exchange. The bonds are suboidinated to the band's all other present and future Babibtees.
For suparvisory purposes, the bond knan qualifies as part of the bank’s core capital The dstribution on the
bond loan is linked to the yield an Duteh 10-veas geverrment bands A 001 25% madk-up applies, subject o a
rmaximmum discriburion of 8%, The interest rate & reser on @ quanerdy basis. Inperest payments must be deferred
If. 20 days pariot to the date of pament, it s knawn that payment of intenest will cause the sohwency ratio to
drop below the minkmum capital required by the supervisary autharity. In addizien, the bank may decide 1o
defer interest payments. The bond was redeemed on the first early redempition date on 31 December 2014

Trust Preferred Securvities i to W]

Im 2004, Foiar tranches of non-cumulative Trust Pratermed Securifies werns Sssd.

+ Rabobank Capitad Funding Trust lll, Delawaee, a group company of Rabobank Nederand, issued 1.50 million
nor-curmulative Trust Prefered Securiies The expected distrbution is 5.254% unil 21 Cetober 2006, Fer the
peniod 21 October 2016 to 31 Decernber 23046 inclusive, the expected distribution is equal to the USE Libor
Interpolated Tor the pedod, ples 1.5900% The company has the right not to make a disttibution, Thereafter,
the expec ted distribution ts equal 1o the three-month IS0 Lbor plus 1 5900%. The total proceeds from this
tesue amounted to USD 1,500 million As from 21 October 2006, these Trust Preferred Securities can be
repuichased on each dissribution date which s once a quarter) alier prioe written approval i received lrom
the Duteh Central Bank,

+ Rabobank Capital Funding Trust I, Delaware, a gresp company of Rabobank Nededfand, ssued
350 thousand nen-cumulative Trust Prefemed Securities. The expected distribution Is 5.556% und
31 Dacember 2019, after which the expected distribution s equal 1o the se-month GBP Libor plus 1.4500%.
The company has the right nof to make a distribution. The total proceeds from this issue amounted to
GEP 350 million, As fram 31 Decernber 2019, these Trust Prefened Securities can be repurchased on each
distribution date {which i ance every halfswea) afier prior written approval i received fram the Dutch
Central Bank,

+ Rabobank Capital Funding Trust W, Delaware, a geoup compary of Rabobank Nedeeland, ksued 250 thousand
non-cumulative Trust Preferred Securlthes. The expected distribution is theee- month BB5W plus 0.6700%
until 31 December 2014, aftar which the expected distribution is equal to the three-month B85 plus
| 67000 The campary has the right not to make a distribution, The total procesds fram this issue amounbed
1o AUD 250 milion, The issue was nedeemed an the sarliest first redemption date, on 31 December 2014

+ Rabobank Capital Funding Trust Vi, Delswane, 4 group company of Rabobank Nededand, issued 250
thousand non-curmslative Trust Prefered Securities, The expectad distribution s G415% until 31 Decernbaer
2014, aftei which the expected distribution b equal to the three-month BESW plis 15700 The company
has the right net 1o make a distribution The tatal proceads from this ksue amaunted o ALD 250 milan
As fram 31 December 2004, these Trast Prefered Securities can be repurchased on each distribution date.
The bond was redeemed an the firs ealy redemprion date, an 31 December 2014,
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For the Trust Preferad Securities issued in 2004, a payment Is requited if a distribution Is paid on tems of a
rmore suboddinated nature (such as Rabobank Certificates) of on ltems of the same rank {patl passul; with the
provision That no payment is required If DNE objects o such payment (exg. § the Raboband Group’s solvency
ratio i bower [han B%)

If Rababani Gioup makei a pqu,Rahub.:nk cim ether pay of not pay compensation on thewe [pems at ity

discietion,

Trust Breferred Securities

Immithang of el Pl Foli
Cluieipes duwisag 1he peai.

Oipperiteg bl o 1.0 (]
Redemgton (Rt = 4] -
Fionesgs exif d ererioes ared oth 1L (Fal]
Clasing balanes 1,048 1.78%

31 Other non-controlling interests

This itern refates to shares held by thind parties in subsidiaries and other group companies.

I o o e S04 Foltl
Opening balance 446 LADT
RS 101 1 pelicy thange . (588}
hiet pimf i &

Cumvency amlanion diffesences 23 (L]
iy ik TP e {4

Hesahuntion reverve - pvailstve-for-sade Arancisl ssets = +

IsrEase i Sake i Sricnored Anance deal - (360
CHhwr [am 84}
Claainag balands ATY AN

The Rabobank wibidiaries with the l.ur\gnl.l nl:n-rm!rnlllng. ittt are D I.ﬂ.g.r! Landen Farticipacoss
Limitada and AGCO Finance SMC, Both entities ane accounted for in the Leasing segment.

[ve Lage Landen Participacoes Limitada is basad in Porto Slegre, Brazil, and Rabobank has a capital and
vating-right interest of 72.83%. This entity has a canying amaunt of 77 [2013; 75). The financial data contadned
ir thwe rable below apply

D Lige Latscian Partsigeco Limitasia Jid Xy
Revenuet 168 i)
Wt tewlt (L 12
Wery redlmed Feufy a 5
Total realried s ron-realised resuity (1§1] ¥
Peafr allcable 10 thind paries i 1
Do recht paed

Financisl aviets LE- ] (N
Ciiher sasts L] B
Financial lisbdies: i394 bASS
Gt Fabulnirs T a1
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ASCO Finance SHC Is located in Beauvads, France, and Rabobank has a capltal and voting-right interest in this
compary af 51.0%. The carrying amount of this entity (567 (2013: 55) The financlal data contained in the table

below apply,

NGO Finanos 50 2004 FlTE]
Revenue ] [
Wt resuli 5] )
e reaivied ety . "
Tistal repabrumt] s pusry-readi ned et " &
Profr aflocilse o third gaiticy ] ]
Breserrch paicd & &
Finiancial siditd. 1380 (RT3
Cther ety ] ar
Financial labdines Lize (AT]]
Chiver batsltien, (F] ]
32 Interest

il of ewvod a0m4 FLE]
IiErrl Reaime

Cahand tah equialents LI} 1+
D frpen oher banks 405 183
Financial atietn held bor radiesy s 155
ity financial svsets of fair walue though profi o loss | B
Lioasrs 10 customens |mins 19,153
Mot ilabde Tund sl Trruiiral aasets 1Lim0 1553
Dertyative Fnancial mbruments hekd a3 eoorcmes hedges nEm [4F 1]
Peaamg " 13
Oither [E'] 143
Total imerest incoma LLEGE] T
Ievierest evpanee

D oo other bkt £L] 0
Dby Wl feslalitien 20 bl
D s cusiomen e Ay
Chebot sbcurithes i lsps 4157 AR
Otfrer babslities. 452 148
Chher hnancial kablities. o fair value threegh proft o lon. & T
Oither b ] 83
Total interest sxpenie 9,510 10812
Intevest LRET WAEE

Capitaiised inerest anibutable to gualifying assets amourted 1o 21 (2013: 36). The average inverest rate
applied In determining interest charges to be capliatiied ranges bebween 0.3% and 5.5% (7013: between 1.9%
and 5 5%}
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33 Commissions

b eyt 0 il 2044 P e
Cottmm s incoms

ASLEt mansgEment W 65
LR O 14 EF ]
Lending 455 T
Purchase and sl of oifer fnanclal sieis b} Lk )
Payrer weices &5 [T
Cuvindial fees and jecwrities weraite 9 n
Harsdllang foes oy is7
Dither L w) i i an
Othay commyssion income L] 248
Toksl cemmiison income L0TSE L8

Commusscn espenus

RASEL MEnagement . ]
Puchase snd wie of cifer Bnandial sneh ] L3
Paywsm services i an
Cumtodial fews anad sctusitbes soivices I L]
Handiing fees ] 7
Crther commasion eapense ] L
Total commmraion sspanis 1.8 18
Commimian AT Loan

34 Income from associates

o of mrce il FL 0
Ashasburr b davre ol profit of pascoisiey T Lk
DRicomtifmmdidiguried it of st [#1] 15
Insomes fram sponistes L1l "

35 Netincome from financial assets and liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss

Iy e of s XM k)
Inceme brom fnancisl mset and darhvistir ek los s 1451 7o)
meoma from othes financial saety snd labiktie ot far vakue s it o lows A LIL]
= 187 m4
Tetal income from Frundial assets acd liabilties ol i value teough profit ot beia g FLE)

The finarclal assets and Fabilithes listed n the above able are combined into porifolics. Profits from these
instrumments must be considered |n conjunction with each other.

b sl o s F bl 2o
Pagelin Froowm e ms s e e sTeen s i {1771
g frorm ety mptneomengy .7 L ]
oo froem Aoeelgn curmencles. [ERy] B3
Dither 1 L
Total nsgene roem fnancis] speets ot fair valus thromgh profit orloss ns i
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36 Otherincome

il i o o o
Nesd catate ackoten L. (408
Rental moomes 37 L1
Tairrination of delred benein perabon wheme . 152
Cithar 536 e
Total gther income LA 1.587

Income from real estate actwities includes project Income of 1,344 [2013: 1,467), project charges of

1,122 (2013: 1, 289) and impairments of 38 (3013 586).

Rental income includes Gperating lease income and rental iscome From imnestmiend prope tes,

Chperating lease income includes income of 1,571 (2013 1.821), depreciation charges of 914 (1013 807) and
ather costs of 703 (2013 701), Aental Income from irvestment properties includes income of 34 (2013 55),
depreciation changes of 10 (2013 1 1) and other costs of 7 (2013 1730

37 Staff costs

I e o v o4 2o
Wiges and salaries 3m 455
Eoclal ¥ bt ard Py Az A2y
Penaion oo lor defred contnbuten plang 97 461
Penaka codnt fod defeed bessn plans .+ 1
ey vt e et L Py 54 L]
Chher st costs ni (311
Total sttt costs 5,008 333

Expressed im FTEs, the average number of employees was 52,562 (201 3: 56,249 aver the year.

Im 20701, following implermentation of CRO 1l and the regulatons govenning a restraingd remuneration policy,
Ratobank Group adopted an amended remune ration policy, A Group-wide Remuneration Policy has been in
place since 1 Janwary 2014; this policy was further adapted 10 the provisions from CAD IV, To the extent that
Identified staff (Le. employees who can potertlally exercise materla control over Rabobank Geoup's risk
prafile} are aligibla for varable remuneration, siech remureration mast never exceed 10059 of the employee’s
fimed income. In addition, varable remuneration is also avwarded to identified s for such periog that the
risks associated with the underdying business activitles are adequately taken Into account

Hence, payment of a significant portion af variable temuneration & delemed. The immediate portion of vasiable
remuneration is unconditional, whercas the deferfed partion |5 condtional, The deferred portion vests after
three years if the cond tions are met. Among other things, it s assessad whether there has been a significant
reduction in financial performance or a significant change i risk managemsant at Rabobank Group andyor
busiruess unit that pots the choumstances assessed whien the welevant vadlable rmuneration was ewanded

In a different pesspective. Az a rule, the right te ary outstanding deferred remunemtion lagses if the sl
member s ermployment ends. before the deferred portion of the varable remuneration yeas

Fifty percent of Both the dinect and the deferred partion of the varlable remuneration 15 allocated In cash
The cash campanent of the direct poetian is immediately awarded followdng allocation, The cash campanent
of the deferred portion Is awarded to employees only after vesting [after a period of theee years), including

a market-level intarest rata,

Ol both the direct and the defened porion of the vaniable rermuneration, 50% 4 allocaed (0 the form ol an
Instrument {instrumaent component], Lo the Delerred Remuneration Note (DRM), The amount of a DRM i
limked directly to the price of a Rabobank Certificate as Bsted an NYSE Eusonest,
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The nstrument companant [s corwerted into Dftks at the time of allocation on completion of the parformance
year, The number of DfMNs ts based on the average closing prices for Aabobank Certificates as established on
the NYSE Eutonext exchange an the first frve trading days in February of each yeas, with the exceprion of
2014, during which the average chxing price lor Rabobank Certificates wil be the average of the closing
prices of Rabobank Cenficates as enablished on NYSE Euronest on the five trading days from

17-21 Fiebrwary 2004 (inchrboel Accaidinghy this repreients bath the instrumes component of the dimeet

and the deferred portion of the variable remuneration. The final rember of DRM: elating to the defered
portion |s established on vesting [Le. after a 3 year period),

The payment of the instiument component ts subject o a 1-year retention pencd. On expiry of this period,
ermployess receve a cash amount for each DRN held (ar a porfion thereal} cores panding to the amaunt of (1)
the DAN a1 that time and (I an armount equal to the payments made for RCs duting the periad of allacation
unil the exginy of the ietention period

Payment of the cash component of the vasiable femuneration is measured in accordance with 1AS 18 Employee
benefits, whereas paymeant of the DRNs is measwied in aocordance with (FRS 2 Share-nasad Payment.

The immediate poetion of the varable remunaration Is iecopnised inthe performance yeas, whereas the defaired
porvon i recognived in the years before vesting By and large, the same system is used for non-identified scafl
Both the immediate and the deferred portion ane pakd fully in cash, which means that no DANs ane awarded,

At 31 Decembar 2014, the costs of equity Instrument-based payments wene 10 {30313 81 At 31 December 30314,
a llabdity of 33 was recognised (201 3t 18). The costs of variable remuneration pald in cash were 37 (2013 109)
The number of DRNs outstanding is presentad below.

i ihaurands H7d Jonr
Dysening date Wy uhs
Warded during the yea: 356 o8
Paiel turineg the year (1681 (1]
Chasegei s prviesih yea i 1]
Clasing dats (rirn "1

The amount af a DAM & linked directly to the peice of an RC. The estimated payments to be made for the
warlabbe remuneration are shawn in the able below,

AL ¥ Dogortibon 3504 Fipir &l priaiyrmerid

ol o vy Mt Mars arr e Jare Total
‘Variainhs remumeration.

nol insluding D (11 EY &8 L %] LAY - (A ]
=21 1% e as ax 31 5
Taotal 1051 1ea 108 M7 53 1515
AL ¥ Decembes 2008 Tearof payment

I e of ke M4 25 Mre ey e Tors!
Varkakdio remrursation,

ot inchuding Dftks [FE:] 119 ta 1 = 1
DM 43 15 11 4% 43 254
Total 1083 T8 e 113 a1 1580

38 Other administrative expenses

The other administrative expenses tofal 2533 (2013 3,910}, The recrgansation costs fell by 280 in 2074 and a
podtion of the provision created for D58 Bank in the past could be ieleased. In 2013, the settlement amount of
EUR 774 was iecognbed under Dthir Adiminisiatiee Egpenses lollowding the Libor mwestigations, This itern also
Inelisches iraeel exponsey, autamation cous, T-related costs, PRI COAES, publicity conty, office supplie,
rents and bullding maintenante eoponcs,
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39 Depreciation and amortisation

el o lorid o M
Dy ol prope by 3w 280 fo 1]
Amartnation of ntangible assets wmr 7
Total dapeeciation and swerksation a7 518

40 Value adjustments

SR P 014 013
[ froen nther hank b n
Lowr 10 cusiomers 1762 1788
R toboeing wite-oll nm {803}
Credh# related lutslties 2 -]
Other et - '
Total wabie sdpustrents 263 14

41 Bank tax and resolution levy

Bands oparating In the Netherlands on 1 October of the year under review are requized to pay bank tax
There are Two rates of bank tax a rate of 3.044% for current labilites and a rmte of 0.022% for long-term
liabilities, based on the batance reconded in December 2013, Rabobank Groap was changed a tor of 167 in
barnk 1o in 2004 (2013: 197]. The redolution levy, 8 onse-time ey imposed by the Duteh government on the
Cuteh banking industry in connection with the naticnalisation of SN5 Reaal, 1otalled 321,

42 Taxation

I iats off e 2N o
Currentincume tas

Ripecan ) et ™ am
Piest yrari (] [=]
Diefrerrmd tan (441 i
Inoamss Lax eXpense 1181] L

Thie takaton on operating prefit before taeation of Aabobank difers frem 1the nominal amount based on
Duteh standadd tax rates 2t folbows

I st off i e Mt
DOipoeating proft behom lanasion 1241 4%
T ERETTER WL (4m ATy
Hermrdedudtibie eaperan 509 1o5
Tas lnzirs nat eecognised in praoe yean [+:] in
Oithver 755 (564}

i.x7a A5
Irereres b awperyn boroi o @ rase of 7500 (3017 25.00%)| g} e
Efeir ol diberenl L 1e1e A DUE? BO6 4 SCUPTIAG Lis Gty f Fadses. 4481 (F11]
Income tan sxpense (1881 ]

The deduction of payments where applicable. for several capital equity mstruments are induded under Other?
An amourt of 360 has been accounted for in the Incldeal tax income as & result of the application of
Section 134 of the Corporation Tax Act (laueidation less ol pasticipating Intenest)
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43 Non-current assets and liabilities held for sale

Sale of Bank BGZ

An agresment was reached In December 2013 regarding the sale of the 98 5% share interest in the Polish-
bBased Bank BGF 1o ANP Paribas Group far arn amount of 4 Billion Polish Zlnl‘r lagprox, TUR | illia),

Thi agreement regadding thie sale of Bank BGZ includes the opéerations af Rababank Palikcs, The lotter marged
with Bank BGZ in the first half of 2014, The sale of Bank BGI to BMP Pasibas was completed on 23 Septombar
2014, In addition 1o the goodwill of 26, the fotelgn-exchange hedge reserves were released and this galn was
recognised under income fiom francial assets and desivatives held for trade at an amount of 47 befoe
tasation. The ather resenses recognised under equity in relation to Bank BGE wene released. This gain of 73
barfone tation was included in the ather results.

Cash fows an dispesel

Saeling price LTS
Carhand eaih equisalenty - Bank BGZ 364
Mt caah flows £l

The falawing asets and lablities are ncduded in non-curnent assets and labilties held for wale at 31 Decomber 2013;

L ] Jond
Assets

Cathand cath equratlents f 1)
e froen other banks i
Lo B0 CiEdomens 6345
Aailabie-foi-use hrancal sty 1,183
Other et a7
Total ssseis T
Limhifithes

Dy povorther bk s
CHe s cunviomeny 2408
Dther Ratsiics SEF
Total Habilites raas

The corsalidated proht or loss account inchudes the following amoaunts:

Inmtions of ey Failhd
Teieresl 43
Feriam comminakn (]
Other ingnme n
Tt brpers 1%
Sauffomn -]
Ot comts e

ving penin helfere 1
Tawstion )
et profs 15

Other non-current assets held for sale

The fon-current assets held foe sale in the amount ol 327 (2013: 246} madnly compeise vaelows types of real
estate {incleding residential and commerciad) in a varlety of countries. The book value is expected to be
realised through sale rather than twough continued opeation. The real estate propariles which have been
chassified as ‘held for sale’ ase mostly unigue properties, with no active madket for similar real estase in the
same locatian and the same cond'tion. A large number of parameters are used lor the valuations of the
varlous types of progesty investments, Based on eabsting contracis and market data If possible. A certain kvel
of assosmsment and astimation s genetally unamaidable, which is why all non-cument assots classihod as ‘held
for sale’ are classéied In category 3. The pasameters used to determine the falr value of the property
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inwestmeants, depending on the type of real estate, include the current and expected market rent per square
raetie, current and expected future vacancy rates, the location of the property, the marketability of the
property, the average discount rare, development budge; and any ceedit risk.

44 Acquisitions and disposals

For detadls on the sale of Bank BGZ, see note 43 non-current assets and liab8ties held for sale.

45 Transactions with related parties

Two parties are corsidered related if one party exercises control or has significant Influence over the other
party {regarding finance cr operating decisions). in the normal cousse of business, Rabobank conducts a wide
varlety of ransactions with related entities, invedving different types of lnans, deposits and transactions in
foreign currencies. Transactions between refated pamies also inclede tansactions with ssociates, pension
furds, joint ventures, the Cxecutive Board and the Supervisery Doard. These transactions are conducted at
arms length conditions and agaimst market pAloes. In accardance with IAS 244, transactions within Rabobank
Group are not disclosed In the consolidased Anandal statements. in the normal course of Rababank’s business
opataticns, banking arsactions are camied out with related parties. These involve loans, deposits and
transactions in forelgn cumencies All these transactions were conducted at arm's length and against market
prices. Thie volumes af related pany transactions, year-end outstanding balances and the correspanding
Income and expenses during the year are presented In the following table. Transactions and balances
oulstanding with membars of the Exeoulive Baard and members of the Supervisery Boasd ane discioied in
note 47, Transactions with pension funds am disclosed in note 25. Rabobank sold mortgage lcans with a par
value of approcimatety EUR 1 billion to an Achmea BY. on market 1erms.

Frows bty in o plen Either resh et petier
I el o st e Pk 2 213
Lizieri
Outsancing st beginning of yea 430 ] L) 13
Ceanted dusing the year 14 17 .
Repad chorrig Bhe i (1444 8 15
it & 7] d -
Loasd at end sl the year 360 L] 14 &
D noother hanke and due 10 cestomess
Durstmsciing #1 bexganinieg of the yeai BE44 &30
Reoefved during the year LT} ] EAL)
Repeaied| during Bhve year 12551 am
Oither = [EF] - -
Deposits a1 end of the year [XFF] 6,544 . .
Tither kahdien n i - 1%
Credit babdriien and other guarsrees leussd by Banobank 7 1t - +
[
Imierent incame L] L
Comrmissaon soome 2 buii ) -
Trading inc2min . a4 ] !
Cther 2 6
Toksl g fravm transsctiond with pelated parie a0 ki ]
Fajurring
Irievesd enpenue A 180
TmmEagon expenue - . -
trgamenti H in -
Totsl axpenses from transscteom with pelased paries ATH b1 ] -
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46 Costs of external auditor

il o i o4 o
Financial staterreia sl L]

CHhey gt Engagemenis 1 ]
Orhves - Bl SeiviceEd . L]
Total T 1@

I the year under review, the audit firm Ernst & Young Acoountants LLP in the Netherlands involced the above
amounis to Rabobank Nederland, its subsidiaies and other cormpanies it consolidates, within the meaning of
Cection ¥2a of Baok 2 of the Dutch Chvil Code. These amounts do not include fees for fnancial statements
audits, other audit engagements tax corsullancy services and othed non-audit serices chaiged oy ather
auditors and other Ermst & Young business units.

47 Remuneration of members of the Supervisory Board
and Executive Board

The members of the Supervisary Board and the Executive Board ame Lsted In note 54 of these consolidated
financial statements. Rabobank exclusively regards the mambers of the Executive Boaed as key managament
personngl The members of the Executive Board afe among the identified staff as disclosed in note 37.

In 2014, the remuneraton of members and farme: members of the Exscutive Bosid amounted to €3 (20013 58]

Fote'  Recempiion of
Prmtion parfevminge peemewention

Tatal
I thunand ol s noskariey i e £y Toinl
W, Dvadjer fook ofie sn Py 201 4) ] 137 . 1 L]
W iirsdorhoud fin affioruntd | Dcrobor 2074 L] ne
A, Bruggiek i arr - Lisd
B aririny 23] 77 ! 1 (N3
AL Dok m ] - - L]
H Magel kil b - - L]
1L van Misuwenhuisen Mook ofice an M4 Man 201 4] 548 155 ! . My
Tatsl 3074 4,993 1300 - L] BIF
Total 2013 A5 1385 n . LY r]

Mr Minderhoud retired from the Exécunive Board on | October 2014 and his remuneration s sccounted for
uril that date. He recelved o severance pay. Mr Draljer joined the Executive Board on 1 Ociober; a 1otal of six
months of remunemation 5 accounted oo him

Since thevasiable reemuneration for membiers of the Executive Board was discontinued in 2013, the numbes of
[iMs granted for the pesformance yeatr 2013 to members and formes members of the Executive Board 50
(201 3:0) There were a total of 12133 DRMs outstanding with membsers and formar members of the Executhe
Bowrd at year-end 20014 (year-end 2013 7.409), The pension scheme of the members of the Exscuthne Board
classifies a6 & groiep defined contrbution wheme.

Expenses related 1o members and formes members of the Supervisosy Board totalled 1.6 {2013: 1.6), This includes
the VAT and employer's contributions payable. In addition to the role of Supendsory Board member of
Rabobank Mederland, the remuneration also cepends on the roles in the various commitiees. The composition
of these commitiess is detalled in the Annual Report. The remuneration structure for 2014 (exclusive of VAT
and ather chatges) s shown in the table on the nedt page.
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[T ] Chuirparion Dhrpraty Choirpenun Lo
Saparrinory o 8,750 500 85000
Kol cormmillos 1500 1 5.000 15.003
ik romemittes A 400 15,000 14000
Appesh Comrtes T.500 - 2800
Cooperative liuet Dovrrites 15,000 a 15000
Appoirtments (ol tee Lo LMD
Hemuneraton Lommtses 3T = 1

The table below dhows tha remuneration {excluding VAT and other charges) for indeeidiaal Supervisory Board

gk

i g o runm Aprnrmabis
W Dkt M
LP Asurberonk A%
CH. virs Dy 7=
L Degle L]
Lk Fresco in ofoe uni! 19 juse 20748 EE]
51 Graadira 1]
A i, Hamp finoffice snoe | Decemiber 20140 7
EAL v e Mt IS
R Toeriink B
CF, Fesiman CE
AL, Vieremed (i aiflon want 19 A 20147 55
Tatal for 2014 1,088
Total for 2013 1.158
At Rabobank, the Chalrman of the Supereisory Board hobds a number of robes which are related to the
cooperative. These roles are specified In the Annual Report.

b mathpang o duw Enwvirie Board S ey Boavs
Liskert, b oo andl s sl e 20m o4 FIE]
Outstanding as a1 § January 34 48 15 1.8
Prowided dering the year - - a1 -
Redermed dunng the year (LA o3 an wdy
Rihction oo kol of leaving ofoe [-F ] [£X.1] a [ F
irrease on accownt of takng cffice 18 5 11 oE
Cutstanding o e §1 Decernbes [t] 34 18 15

The laans, advances and guarantess of the mombers of the Superdisory Board In effice at 31 Decomber 2074
and the average imerest rates are shawn in the table below.

Oetitanding  Averoge interei?

I metleons of wv L2l imtedn s
AL ¥Y Deverribed 2004

AL Dekker 13 r
Bk Manmin b 4.1
H Haged LK:] LE-]
L wan Merirwenhasipen in Is
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The ians. advances and guarantees of the members of the Suparvisory Board in effice at 31 Decombar 314
and the average interest rates are shawn in the table below.

Dustranding  Aseroge mdener
Earti

I wilhents of puves e i
A8 11 Depember 2000

CH. van Dalen s 42
LM Easg 11 15
CF, Yeerman w Fi

The Supervisory Board members not liged in the table did not recelve any loans, advances or guarantees at
thio erd af 2004, These transactions with Executive Bsard members and Supenvisory Board members in person
were completed based on emiployes terms anddor market-level rates for tne Sepenisory Board. The amaount
of the rates depands In part on the currency, the ageed feed-interest pariod and the time the transaction
wis completed or the time a new fived-intanest term becomes effective.

seseral marmbers of the Executive Board and Supervisory Board have imsested in Rabobank Cenificares in
persan and/or through their own pension BYs This inveleed a totdl number of 27,110 certificates o the end
of X4

Piurmbser af
Ratwtand, Cernifcares
At 31 Cecember 2014
A Bruggink 12168
WP, Rpcher-Wonk [N
LH. Degle AO00 (i penslens BV}
L) Geashira 408 limpensim V)

48 Principal subsidiaries and associates

Ralsobank Group consists of 113 Indegendent local Ralbobanks in the Netherlands, members of the central
organialion Colpefatove Contrale Raillsioen-Boetenlrenbank BA, [Rababank Nededland) and a number ol
speclalised subsidiarios.

At 11 December 2084 how Vating righti
Wain sutnidiarnies

Tha Nethedandy

DL nbermationad 1LY, [leed o
Rt Wasngosdgroes HY. 100 100
FiGi Rank .V, oo 100%
EIWM Fishohanken BA [ 160
Obrwion WV, HD0FE 100
Rabchypertheekbani MY, [led 100
Raba Meschart Bank by, O o
RaifTrisenhyputhecibunk HY. [0 100
Sckerrthen &iCa WV, (L2 160
Cihar suronans TU couminies

ACE Linin Miagermess Limited 1508 160
Morth Americs

Ratebiani Capitall Funding LOT to Wi 100 100
Ratsestiank Capitall Funding Trust 81101 [ (=0
Wtrechit Amnerica Holdinga inc. o o
Auntrabia and Hew Zraland

Nabobank Australa Limited odr 100w
Rababank Kew Tealand Limied [l 100%
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Al subsidiaries listed in the table are consolidated. in 2014, nane of the subsidiaries exparienced any
significant restrictions in the payment of dividends or the redemption of loans and repayrment of advances
The cqrion of subskdlaries 1o pay dividend 1o Rzbobard Nederiand depends on various factors, including local
reguilatany requirements, statutoty reserves and financlal performance

Rabobank will not comolidate several structured entities in the Wholessle banking and international retail
Banking buskess, even I I does retssn mone than hall of the voting fights, Thewe structused emities s nok
comnsolidated, because the mlewant activities are managad by a thind party subject to a contract

Rabobank does have control over several entitias in the Leasing segment as part of (ts vendor leasing
oparations, even though it well retain less than half of its voting rights because centred is not determined
Based an such rights, bBut cather an mansgemeant participation,

49 Joint ventures

Virtuaty all joint venuses are entities of Rabo Real Estate Group, have 2 total earrying amount of 23 (2013 26)
and are stated in accordance with the equity methosd.

Partnerships are comman both in the dewelopment of integrated residential aseas and In the developrment

of commercial real estate, whereby the property developer Is foined by other - often bocal - partles, Including
municipal governments, howsing assoclations and construction companies. In the majorny of cases, each
participating member of the partnership has a decisive vote, and decisions can only be passed by consensus.
The majatity of thewe partneships therefore qualify as joint arrangements.

Bouwfords Investment Management 1M} serves investors in a varlety of sectors with real estate investment
products. Bouwfonds IM manages the portfolio and is respansible, sometimes alons and semetimes with
partness, for the fund management and asset management of the various funds.

I It wark= in a pasrtnership, the individual partners generlly have a decisive vole and declsions can only be
passed by consensus. As before, the majority of these partnerships qualify as joirt anrangemants.

Each partnarship has i1s own legal structuse, depending on the needs and requirernents of the parties
comcermned, The legal form (business structune) 1y pically used i the Dunch 'CV-BW struciuee (a limited
partrnership-private lmited liatality comgaany) or the WOF structute (geneds! parinesship) or 3 dervative
thereof or related structure,

In the case of CW-3Ws, the risk of a participating party |s generally limited to the lssued capltal and the partress
are only entitled to the net asset from the entity. Under the VOF, all individual parbcipating parties have,

In principe, unlimited liability and are, in principle, entithed 1o the assets on a propostional basts, as well as
having obligatiens in tarns of the entitgs Habdities. Stiricty on the basis of the legal farm, a CV-BV stivcture
ualifies as a point venture, while & VOF stiucture qualifies as a joint eperation. However, the contractual terms
and athir rlevant facts and circurmstances may resclt in a different conclusion.

Since o soparate legal structure is estoblished for cach partnership in which the porticipating pariners change
and sepanate products afe not of a substantaal size, Rabo Real Estate Growp did nat maintain any material joint
arrangements in 2013 and 2014,

Reawi from poim venures L] FylE
R friom comtinikng operation 3% (a1
Heyut Fromyed weomimued opeeationy sher fanstion - -
Nt iy 0% eal}
Of-baksrcs- thret praft or ot = 2
Total of realised snd wmrealived result [aL] 1
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Off-balance-sheet assets and Rabilities

Rabio Real Estate Group éntered into the following off balance-sheet commitmenis:

Commuments with third parties (inchuding subcontractors and architects) in vhe amount of 7 (3013 7) for
non-commercial real esate projects at 31 Decernber 2014,

« Commitments with subcontractors and architects for cammerncial real eamoie prajects in the amount af
19003 5L

The principhe fodnt venitures In terms of size of the capital interest keld by Rabobank include:

At 31 December 308

Share  Woting right:
Mederland
el extate developeent company De Westlandse Foom OV, Momber T P
Reall estate develogemeit Compsany Wsalfeorn TV, Kijnegen 50 5%
FIRST Rottedars OV, Ratterdam 0% 5rs

50 Transfer of inancial assets and financial assets
provided as collateral

Reverse repurchase transactions and securities bomowing agreements
Revene rapuichase ransactions and securities bamowing agresments concluded by Rabobank are included
uncler ‘Due from ather banks' or ‘Loars to anstomers. AL 31 December, they amounted to:

it of ewved 004 2n
[t frgen othes hanks FEET A1
Lowm 1o cusiomens 18795 AL
Tatal purch e amd securitim b iy ag 45,8857 13,118

Unicher the tetms ol the ieverse repurchase transactions amd seouiblies borrowing agreements, Rabobuank
rifEves collateral under consditionts tThat enakde it 1o nlp&pdgﬂ ot tersa|| thee collatenal to thisd parties The total
falr valuc of the securlties recolved undar the borms of the agreemends was 47,540 at 11 Decomber

2014 (2013 39.542). In accordance with the agreement terms, a portion of the secuilies was regledged o
sold as collateral. These transactions were effected subject to the normal conditions for standard reverse
repurchase transactions and Lecuiities barrowing sgreements, The securities ame rot recognised inthe
statement of financial pasition, ghveen that substantlally abl aviccated rsbs and benefits sccme 12 1the
countarparty. A recelvable is racognised equalling the amount pald as collateral

Repurchase transactions and securities lending agreements
Repurchase transactions and seourities lending agreements concluded by Rababank are inceded under
'Due ko ather banky' and 'Due to eustomern” At 31 December, they amaunted 1oc

Jord o
Dhar sather hankn. o s
D b cusiomen: Pl LAT4
Total repurch dl iities heradli LTHY LIa3

94 Consolidated Financlal Staterments 2014 Rabobank Group
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A1 31 Dacernber 2014 and 301 3, interzst-bearing securities with a carrying amount of 2757 and 2,540
respactivaly had bean provided as collatesal far repurchase and siilar agreements. In genaral, the counter-
party has the tight 1o sell or repledge the securiies. These mansactions wene parformed subject 10 the rormal
conditions for standard repurchase transactions and securities lending agreemants. The bank may provide o
receve secutities or cash as collateral i the value of the securities changes The securities are not demscagnised,
givon that substantioly all dssociated fisks and berefits acaue 16 Rabobank, incheding credit and market flsk.
A lianility s recognises equalling the amount recebved a5 collateral,

Securitisations

A part of Rabobank Group's financing activities and liguldity management, & well as to reduce credit rigk,
cash flows from certain financial assets are transdfermed o third panies. Most inanclal sssets sulbject to these
transactions are martgage and other loan portolios that are transfened to a special pupose vehiche that is
subsequently consolidated. After securitisation, the assets continue to be recognised In Rababank Group’s
statement of financial position, chiefly under 'Loans 1o custormess’ The securitised assets are measured in
accordance with the accounting policies referred 10 in note 2.15. The carrying amount of these financial assars
% 79,940 [2013: 75,937) and the corredpandsng lability amowants 10 80,341 (2013; 75,9590 Approximately

719 {2013 75%) of vransferred assets are securitised Internally for liquidity purposes

Carrying amount of inancial assets provided as security Tor (contingent) liabilities

I o of ouren 004 2o
Dhuse fopim dittie banks T 9423
Lenter 31 cusmtames 1T Bisn
Available-for-tale francual ssut min 15067
Tkl A0 TS EEY 1]

The assets referned to above (exoept rapurchase transactions and securities lending) were provided to
countarparties a5 security for (contingent) labdities. If Rabobank remains in default the countenparies may
use the security 1o settle the debr.

51 Structured entities

Consolidated structured entities

A dtiyctuned entity 1s an entity which is structuned such that veting rights or comparable rights do not
canstitute the dominant factor in determining who exerclses contred over the entity, Fzbabark uses
structured entities in crder to securitise mortgage and other loan portfolios a5 pant of its Anancing activities,
liquid ity management and in order to reduce credit sk The keans are actually transferred to the structured
entitles. Urwi-asset securitisation is handled by HaboAgri Finance (Harvest), Obwlon [51GHM en S TRONG),
UL (LEAP} and Athlan (Highsay). As wall as hawing prowided cash faciities, Rabobank also acis as a swap
conntarpaity i all own-asset securitisations

Rabobank acts as a sporsor in Nieuw Armsterdam Recahables Cotporation, Nieuw Amsterdam hisues ABCP in
varlows curencles and provides Rabobank custemens access (o liquidaty through the commenclal paper market.
Habobank provides advice and manages the programme, markets ABCP provides cash facilities and/for credit
rsk enhancerments and othar facilities for the underlying transactions and the programme itself.

Rabobank corsalidates the ownasset securitisation vehicles and Nieuw Amsterdam because it is exposed to
or entitied to fluciuating income inreupect af its ivohement in these enfities, In sddition, Rababank alio has
the option to influence the amount al the investor's iIncome by virtue of having contiol over the entities

Nates 1o the consalidated financial statemants
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Non-consolidated structure entities

Mon-consolidated structured entities refess 1o all structured entities over which Rabobank has no contral.
These interests are compeised mainy of debt securities in a secuntisation vehicle, including AMAS, ABS and
DO and private equity Interests The amount of these debt securities B almest shways limited compared with
thie veshiches total awsets.

The table bolomy dhonse Bhe nalune anad s of Fabahank inleresds in fade-conolidated sEructiuned ontibied,
The maximum exposure 1o loss in nespect of the interests of non-consolidated structured entities also
Includes off-balance-sheet labilinies.

MNature and risks of interests in nan-consalidated structured entities®

I et i v Srnunic L et Toml
Al 51 Decerbe: 3004

Ausets revognised by Rebobank

Financial et held boe iradiey an wr (]
Finsacial midets o1 Mai valuee thiough preht and e mr a5 a3y
Dietivathvrs ) - 42z
Lwn 20 rusinmen 1,31 - (A1}
Finanial acuets suadlabsle o wale kel " mar
Ireribements in sidociie K ] 00
Totsl francisl grinad by Haboband 114 L 1w
Limbifiies recognised by Rabobank

Deevrvatives BA . B
Dh fa cuvitamen: L1l - a5
Total Rabilities recognised by Babobank L - 5%

* The maximum cxposuee to loss in respect of the Interests in non-comsolicated stuctured entities 15 4,153,

Sponsored, non-consolidated structured entities in which Rababank holds no interest

Camying smoaT

Comrmihikin e g e

I etz of gasrca [ Dk incomy Taralinpare anrty
A 31 December 2004

Sscunitivation 3 £ 41 -

Atees mansgement - " 1] -

DOithver 13? . 7 .

Tatal 140 T ns -

52 Events after the reporting date

Neevants occunted fallowing the reporting date that peovide additional information an the actual sivuation
on the reparting date,

96 Comschidated Financlal Statements 2014 Rabsobank Grnup
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53 Consolidated balance sheet as at 1 January 2013

Following the adjusument of the paymenis on equity instuments as specified o parageagh 2.1.1, a thiid balance
shieet s shown below inwhich the amounts specified have heen adjusted in relation to the consalidated
Ealance et at 31 December 2017, a8 included inthe Aabobank Group consolidated balance theet for 2003,

AL driany Hii A

Ecpaity before adpatment of cuy or equity b Hai
Decreans inother ssets (428}
IAsivans in Gt Rililie [
Equity afier sddjucimant of peyments for squity ncirumenin AT
I it off el AL darsaany 7013
Azsets
Cwhand cath eqirsalencs 003
DChae froen other banka ¥.465
Financial asvets held for rading G387
DOty Minancial sdets it fer walue thiough profices lass 5911
Crertvattve fnancial mbrumenty. A
L 0wsre 0 CUIDIMETS AN 399
Avnilalde- o -aade Tretrial sty SATE
IrreEtTmin in s1a0CiatEs 1o
beiang foks ddets L343
Property and eoupmant BA00
I tmant progeatEs (F1
Cimvernt 1o sty 57
Diefrmed tan saets Wi
Other ssets 2435
Rgrvarmenl iidets held fer ke and digenlnued cgeratend BATE
Total avieis 50,182
Limhifities
D 52 &ithae bawike 1705
[hus 80 uirameeri I
Dhetat Sl ies i (isue Frofs.}
e e ferancial b sl onher irade Babiliies T4ADD
Ciihver detty RLE
Criher Binancial labdities o1 far valus thicugh profin of Lo 24000
Prowibon P5T
Cumeni Lo Ratslney ME
Diefermed tas kalsiltied 1B
Subreinatod delsl S40F
Liskskties held for sale amd diicontinued opertions LTS
Total Rabilities 08, TS
Erpuity
[ gty of Rababank Nederiand snd locsd Babobank NI
Epaity Pairamsemis isvaesd diseinly
Ratseshianh {Wiamber Cemibeate BAETT
Cagstal Serunitien tAL ]
L7858
gty mutrumenin v by wobniditien
Copstal Jecurnies -]
Trusy Preslerred Securmies W oW 1340
1.578
Dy ngn-con iroding inteety rAny
Total quity #1008
Tatal squity and lisbSities 50,382

Nates 1o rthe consalidated finandial statemants
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54 Management's report on internal control
over financial reporting

The management of Coliperatiove Centrale Raiffeken-Boerenleenzank BA, [Fababank Medettand) i
resporn bl for establishing and malntabndng adequate imernal control ever financal fepodting.
Management is also responsible for the preparation and falr presentation of the consolidated fmancial
statemments

Rabobank Mederland's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to prowide reascnable
assurance regarding the rellabiity of Rnancial reporting and the peeparation and fair presentation of financial
statements for extemal purposes In accordance with Intemational Financlal Reporting Standards as adopted
by the Furopean Lnion

Allinterral control systermns, no matter how well designed, have inheeent [imitations. Becuse of its iInherent
limitations, Internal control aver financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.

Alse, puojections of avy evaluation of effectivensss ta future periads are subject to the risk that conitrol
migasures may becormne inadequate, because of changes in conditions, of that the degres of complisnce with
the policies of procedunes may detenonale,

Management assessed the effectiveness of Rabobank Nededand's Intemal contral over financlal reperting as
of 31 December 2014 based on the framework 2011 set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Grganisations
of the Treadway Commission (CO%0) established in Infernal Control - Integrated Framework. Basad on that
assessment, management concluded that, as of 37 Decernber 2014, Rabobank Nederland's intemal control
over financial reparting is elfective based an the criteria establshed by COS0,

Ermest & Youna Accountants LLP which has sudited the consalidated financial statermnents of Rababank
Mederand for the hnsncial year ended 11 Decermnber 2014, ahe examired managements sssessmaent of

the effectiversss ol Rabobank Nederland’s internal controd over fmancial reporting; its report is included

on page 105,

W. Draljer A, Biucpgink

98 Comsolidated Financial Staternents 2014 Rabobank Group
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55 Approval of Supervisory Board

The publication of these financial statements was approved by the Supervisory Board on 31 March 2015

Thiey will b submitted to the General Meeting for adoption in June 2014, Rababanx Nederland's Ariicles. of
Maspciation provide & fallamws with r\rgﬁrd (0] 4|:||:|p|lur| ol the Franclal statements: The Annial General H-cﬂlng'}
resolulion 10 sdopl the financial statements shal be passed by an abiokite manity of (he voles validly cast’

Executive Board
W. Diraijes, Chairman
A, Buggink, CFRO
R Dekker

B, Marttin

H. Magel
1L wan Mreuwenhuizen

Supervisory Board

W, Dekker, Chalirman

R, Tewdink, Depury Chalrman

C P Vesiman, Deputy Chalrmon
s P, Asscher-vionk, Secrefary
CH. van Dalen

LM Dagle

S L0 Gaablsrmg

AA LM, Kamp

EAL von de Merwe
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Annual figures

Statement of financial position of Rabobank Nederland
(before profit appropriation)

I reilleans of ewrin Noie At 11 Devember K4 dé I Dewerraier FI1T
Asrets

Canhand cmh equivalents 1 AL 41718
SO TET QOVEMITIEN SeTurites 1 i (£33
Prafrsionad wecuritie 184 pAF AL

Dhtbvaw e Trom o bearkis 09,388 184052

D freenisther hanka 1 136172 135483
Pultdhs secins dendong 1543 1570

Privase pector sniing LR ] 137,861

Prafeaional L = iire L]

Loarn 40 customen, 4 g [REE L)
(B ST LR 5 L] 04,753
Shaire L] -1 (N1
WTIET RS N Qrod DTt T LIS 13,140
DOitvied enyuity intepesls. 8 LEA0 2453
Inflangitis wists L] ) E1T]
Property and equipmest mw B18 a4
Dty et 1 558) 3084
Dieriwative fruncial imeumenta. 12 aran 41,00
Prepapments ol soirucd s 13 1,597 2548
Totsl assets AFE AT ATRLIIS
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e milligns o ewrcd

Liahifithan

Profimssmal LT B amsom
Dty e 1 sty Enaivhs

Chiam tn i her bk

Savings

Profeisioal teCuiilied Warimmiong
Chiver dus 15 cunhomers

i oo CusIOMeETS:

Dielst wrcisrithen. il

Cther detbrtn

Dheiteva tiver P il brdtrieme s
Aetiusiy and delered doms

Airial Nigudes
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Statement of income of Rabobank Nederland

Firar gncheg on 1| ecembor

' makians of e BT Foli]
e froem ileAEAs i Cotissiies ot Gl eoplly iserests eftes Lan Tod 577
Cthary imooierse arfier tan g sz
Mt ol a P fan LR 1.A7%

Frapared i acoordance with Section 403 of Book 7 of the Dutch Chil Code
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Notes to the financial statements
of Rabobank Nederland

1 General information

The financial statements of Rababank Nederland, a credit Institution ds referned 1o 0n Section 14 ol the
Financial Suporvision Act, have beon prepared in ccordance with accounting policies generally accepted in
the Metherdands and comply with the financlal reporting requiremsents inchuded in Fart 9 of Book 2 of the
Dutch il Code. With one exception, these accounting pofizies are the same as those wsed in prepating the
consolidated Fnancial statements of Rabobank Group, which have been propaned in accoedance with
Imematienal Financial Regorting Standards (IFRS) as adoped by the Eurapean Union, The exceplion conoerms
the measuiement of ssocimes (and joint venures); the associates are measured ar net asser value.

The terminalogy of the following ascounting palicies Is derived from the consolidated financlal statements,
Ratobank Group comprises the local Rabobanks [Memisers) in the Netherlands, the central cooperative
Rabobank Hederland and other specialised subsidiases. Rabobank Nederland has 5 reglstered office

I Amisterdarm,

The accounting policies applicable to the financlal statements of Rabobank Nederland are set out below.

2 Accounting Policies
The main accounting policles wsed In preparing these comolidated Fnandal statements are explalned below

24 General
New and amended standards lssued by the [ASE and endorsed by the European Union, applicable to
the financial year under review

IFRS 10 Consalidated Fimanclal Statements

Thils standlard supersedes tha consolidation rulies of 1AS 37 and SIC 12 IFRS 10 has Important conseguences
for the consideration as 1o when a company has control over anothes entity, The effect on profit and equity 5
incliaded in the paragraph emitied ‘Thanges in accounting policies and presentation The standard applies
effective | Larsary 2014,

{FRS 11 doint Arrargemien (s

The A58 sued a standard regarding faint ventures in May 201 1, which supersedes 145 31 and S1C 13,

The proportional consalidation of joint ventures is no longer autharised. Any Interests im joint ventures must
be atcaumead for uung only the 2quity mathad, This amendment achisves claset convesgance with US GAAR
The remaining rules ane largely dentical to S 31, The effect on profit and equity is included in the paragragh
entitled ‘Thangpes In sccouning polickes and presentation’. This standard applies effeciive 1 Janudary 2014

IFRS 12 D¥sclosure of interests in Other Entities

IFRS 12 aims 1o enable users of financial staterments to assess the purpose and associated nishs of interesis
held in athers entities, as well as the effects of those interests on the finandal position, results and cash flows
This pettains to additional dischowures and has no effect on results of equity, The standard applies efective

1 larigary 3004

Nates 1o the financial uatements of Habahank Medarland
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Amendmenis to IFRS 10, IFRS 1T and IFRS 12 - Transition Guidance

The ohjective of these amerdmants to IFRS 10 — The Consolidated Financial Staternents, IFRS 11 - Jaint
Arrangemsents and IFRS 12 - Disclosure of Intarests in Other Entities, are desgned to clasity the iniial
pubdlication of the vansitional guideling in IFRS 10, The changes sl proside addaional transition supoort in
IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 and reduce the regutrernent of preniding oty comgarative infonmation adapted
16 1he previous comparative pariad, iR sddition, a8 a result of the changes fof inlarmation provsion mlating to
nom consolidated stuctured entities, the requirement of submitting comparative infarmation for periods
priaf 1o the initlal application of IFRES 12 will be cancefed. This amendment has no iImpact on profit or equity
and took effect on 1 January 2004,

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 1.2 and IAS 27 - investment Entiffes

IFRS 13 has been amendad inonder 1o better reflect the business moded of investrment entitées, It requines that
levemsimneenit entitles measure thelr subsidiares at falr value threugh paofit or loss mthes than covolidate them,
IFRS 12 has been amanded in order 10 require specific disclosure albout such subsidiarles of investmant
entities. The amendrmants ta IAS 27 also eliminated the aption far investment entities 1o Maasurs Mvesiments
i cerrain subsidiaries eher ar costor a1 fair value in thelr separate financial starements. This amendment,
which has na impact on Rabobank, applies effective 1 January 2014

1AS 27 Separdane Fincmelal Statements

The corsalidation requirements fosmerly included in LAS 27 are now included in [FRS 10. The amended 185 37
Is imended for the separate financial statements of entities also peeparing consolidated financial statements,
The standard has no impact on Rabobank Mededand’s conwolidated fnancial satements and apples effecive
1 Aaniaary 2004,

1AS 28 Investments in Associates

145 28 lays down accounting requirerments for investments in assodates and describes the requirements
for recognising investments i associates and joint ventures in accordance with the equity method of
accounting The standard has no impact on prafit o equity and applies effective 1 lanuary 2014,

1AS 32 Fimancial fnstruments: Presentation

The objective of the amendment 1o 1AS 32 |s to provide additional guldelines, so a3 1o ensure that the
standard 15 used more constitently I practice. This amendment has no Impact on prodit of equity and 100k
effect on 1 fanuary 2074,

Amendments (o 1AS 39 Financia! Instruments: Nowvarion of Derfvatives and Continuation

of Hedge Accounting

The objective of the amendmaents s to provide reflef in situations whene a derhative, which has been
designated as a hedging Instrument, is novated from one countarparty to a central counterparty asa
consequence of laws of regulations. Such a relief means that hedoe accounting Gan continwe inespective of
the novarion which, without the amendment, would not be pesmitted, This standard, which does nor affect
peafit o equiry, applies effective 1| lanuary 2014,

Amendmenis fo 145 36 impalrment of Assers

The cbjective of these amerdments Is to clarify that the scope of disclosures of information about the
recoverable amount of assels, whene this amount is based on fae value less costs of disposal, s Bmited 10
Impaired assets, If this recoverable amownt & based on fair value less costs of disposal. This standard has no
impact on profit of cquity and applies effective 1 January 2014

IFRIC Interpretation 21 Levies
This interpaetation relates to the administrative processing of an obligation 10 pay a charge @ this obligation
falls within the scope of 145 37, In addition, it a%so refates to the administrative processing of an obligation to

Firancial Statements 2014 Habohank Nedarland
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pay a charge of which tha timescale and amount have been confirmed This standard has no impact on prafit
o equity and took effect on 1 lanwary 2014

New and amended standards fssued by the International Accounting Standards Board (|ASB) and
endorsed by the Evropean Unlon which do not yet apply In the eurrent financial pear

Armendments tolAS 19 Defired Benefit Plans; Ermpdoyee Contilautions

The oljective of this amendmant is to simiplify and clasify the adminkiratve processing of employea
contributions or contnbutions from third parties in relation to defined benefit pens.on schemes. This standatd
has no imipact en prafit or equlry and ok effect on 1 fanuary 2014

Improvements fo lnfemational Financial Reporting Standards cyele 2010-2012 and cycle 2011-2013

The objective of the improvements is to address non-urgent. but necessary Issues discussed by the [ASE
during the project cyde that began in 2009 on areas of Inconsistencies in IFRS of where clasification of
woarding is reguired. The amendments to IFRS 3, B and 13 and 145 16, 24 and 38 represent clarifications of,

or adjustmeants to, the respective standards. The amandments 10 IFAS 2 and 3 and 1A% 40 concern changes o
the existing requinernents or additional guidelines for the application of these requirementa

New standards Issued by the IASB, but not yet endorsed

« IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

IFRS 15 Revenwe from Contracts with Custemers

+ Amendments to 145 16 and 1A5 33: Clarification of Acceprable Methods of Depraciation and Amortisation

+ Amendments to AS 16 and LAS 41: Bearer Plants

+ Amendments to A5 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements

« Amendments 1o IFRS B0 and 165 28: Sale o Contribution of Avters Between an investor and its Assocate or
laint Wenture

« Amendments to IFRS 11: Accounting for Acqubsitions of Interests in Joint Operations

Improvements bo international Financia Reponing Standards cycle 2002-2014

Although these new requirements are currently being analysed and their impact is not yet known, Rabobani
does not expect the implementanion of these armended siandards to have a sgnificant impact on prefit of equity,

IFRS 9 Financial lnstruments

The Intermational Accounting Standands Boasd published IFRS 9 Rnandial Instruments in July 2004,

The effective date of IFRS 9 1s | lanuary 2018, but this date may be changed depending on endossement by
the European Linion.

The application of IFRS & may have a significant impact on prolit or loss and capital; this s cusrenily Being
Inwastigated,

The financia’ staterments have been prepaned on the basts of the accounting palickes outlined below.
The remaining assets and Babilites ane accounted for on a historical cost basie, unless ctherwise stated,

Unless orherwise staned, olf armounts in these fmanceal starements ane in millions of euios

21,1 Changes fn accounting policies and presentation
Equity is categerised differently in these financial statements in ander tomare clearly identify the difference

between statutony and non-statutory resenves. The recalibration of pansions & cumently recognited under
‘Onher reserves’ rather than undes ‘Revaluation reserves’ The recalibration of pensions s -3,2706 (3013: 3,251}
The 2013 figures have been adjusted. The Translation diffeences resere’ is currentry clasufied under
‘Statutory reserves' instead af urder the ‘Revaluation reserve’. The change aflects only the presemation of
Rafaobank's aquity and does not affect 101 equity a5 such

Nates 1o the financial statements of Rabhahank Medarland
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Upon adopting IFRS 1 3, Falr value measurement’ in 301 3, Sabobark continued 1o erroneowsly apply mid
prices fior valusng dervatbees for hedgng Interest rates and cunrency fates, which was allowed under the
peevious standard but not under FRS 13, unless an opdoen under IFRS13 was used. The effect an the 20013 and
2014 peafit represented a loss af 209 and a gain of 107, respectively, Since this adjustment results In
inconistencies in the valuation of financial assets and liabilivies and detivatbees for risk hedging, the option
uncdor IFRS 13 wiss used |n 2014 and the accounting pallcy changed. As part of this change, mid prices ane
used for the valuatian of specific derivatives; see the accounting principles for dedvative fimancaal iInstruments
In paragraph 2.3.1. The effect on profit for 2013 of the new accounting pelicy is a gain of 214, and for 2014 an
experse of 124, The Impact on the change in the accounting policy laroely offsets the effect of the
adjustment. The net profit amawnt is 5 for 20013 and -16 for 2014

Om the implementation ol IFRS in Rabobank's Arancial statements, payments on equity instrements wete
erranegusly recognised a3 prepayments and recognised under ‘Tther assets!, becowde thene |5 a balance sheet
before peofit appropriation; this oocured in the course of the year in anticipation of the formal approval
regarding profit appropaiation adopted by the General Meeting during the following year. Since amounts pakd
duting the year effectively cannot be reclaimed, it was decided 1o take such amounts directly to equity upon
payment. The solvency risis ane not affecred by this sdustment. The equity of Rabobank and local Rabobanks,
other assets and other labiities have been adjusted as follows

11 Degirrleir 2003 ¥ ey 2013

Equity before adj o pay an equity b 1msra nams
DleCiease in otfer assels {143 |253]
s il B g Oup M L] s
Increse bndeferrab and sooed income O [£20]
Bty alver ad]i i el pul iy Insiny at: RLE T FoSih]

Tha Meates to the hnancial statement of Rabobank Nederland currently alzo spectfy the relationships with
group companies where applicable.

L1} Judgements and estimates

These financial tatements were prepated on the basis of the going concern assumption, a3 there are no
inctications of Rabobanks mability to continu as 4 gaing cancern,

The preparation of the fmancial slatements requires management 1o make estimates and assumptions that
affect the amounts repocted for assets and Habilities, the reporting of contingent assets and liabdlities ot the
date of the financial statements. as wall as the amounts reported for income and expanses during the
reporting period. The situations that are assessed based on avaiable finandal data and Infomation malnly
cancern the determination of the fair value of assers and liabilities and impairments. Although managemsnt
based their estimates on the most careful assesement of the current creumstances and activities, the sctual
results mighs deviate from these estimates. Fos the estimated modifications arising fram the Asset Quality
Review (A0R), please refer 1o paragraph 4 4.0

Drue to weaker market conditsons for bath restdential and commercial real estate and the limited mumiber of
rransactions, there i increased uncerainty regarding property valuation (Le land holdings, work in prograss,
completied developrments and property imestrments) and propeity inancing. Propenty valiation is subject ta
& number of different assumptions and valuation methods, The wie of different sssemptions and methods
miay, due ta the subjective natune invadved, result in diffarent cutcomes

2.2 Equity intarests

221 Swhsidianes

The participating intesests ower which Rabobank rmaintaing control are subsidiaries {incuding stroctured
entitien and are measured al net aseet value Contral I8 exercised over a partic pating intesest if the invesior is
exposed to, or i entitled 1o, fuctuating Income in respect of his ivvolvernent i the participating interest and
ha thir oppartunity to infleence this income by using his contrel over the participating Interst. Subsidianies ae
Included from the date on which Habobank obtains control, and cease 1o be included on the data that this
conitrel ends.
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222 lointveniures

A joint ventude is an agreement

berween one of more pases wheseby the parnies, which have shared control over the agreament, are
entitled to the net assets under the agreement. The inferests of Rababank in feint ventures are measured a1
net asset value,

2,23 Investments in associanes

|mvestrments In assoclates ane measured at net asset value, With this method, Rabobank's share of the profits
and losses of an associate. after is acquisition and subject to Rabobank's accounting pakcles, is recognised in
peafit or loss, and |t share of the changes in reserves, after the acquisition, ks secognised in reserves.

The curmulathve changes sller acquisition are adjusted to the ot of the Imvestiment.

Associates are ontities over which Rabobank has significan: influence and in which it wsually holds between
200 and 505 of the voting rights bt over which it dees not exercise control. A jolnt wenture |s an agreement
between ome or more pasties whereby the parties, which have shared control over the agreement, are
entitled to the net assets under the agieament. Unrealised profits on ransactions betwean Babobank and it
associstes and joint ventures ane elirminated in sccordance with the size of Rabosank’s interest in the
associates and joint ventures.

Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction indicates that an Imipalrment loss should be
recognised on the asset transferred Invesiments by Rabobank i assocates include the goodwill acquired.
If Rabobank’s share in the losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the assockate, Raboband will
net recagnise any mate losies of the awsociatz uness Rabobank has given undertakings or made payments
on behall of thiv associate.

2.3 Derivative financial instruments and hedging

231 Generalinformation

Drerbvativee financial instruments generally compelse foreign exchange contracts, currency and Interast rate
futuires, fopwaed rate agreaments, currency and inferest rate swaps and currency and inbetest rale aptions
(wrirten as well as acquired). Derivative financial instements might be raded on an exchange oras oved-the-
conpniter (OTC) instrumients between Rabobank and a clien. All derivative finsnclal instraments are recognised
ot falt value, The fal videe b determined using Mated rmarkel peioes (o small bkl tange applies to
derbvathves guoted in EUR, USD and/er GBP. and mid prices ar used), prices offared by traders. cash low
discounting models and option valuation modals based on cunent market pelces and contracted prices for
the underlying instruments, as well as the time value of money, yeld curves and the volatility of the
undeslying assets and Mabiltes. All dedvative inancial instruments ase Included under asses if thair fair value
I3 posithve and under ligoilities if thelr falr vahse b negative.

Drarvat v fnancial instramants that are embedded in other financial instremaents are teated separately if
thair risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of the underlying derivative contract and this
coanbract is not class#fied 4s at fak value theough prolit e boss

232 Instruments not used for hedging
Realised ang uraealised gains and lgsses on derivative fmancial instuments classified by Rabobank as heid for
trafing ana recegnised under Trading incoma’

233 Hedging instrumerls

Rabobank alo uses derivative financial instrurnents for Rabobank Group and local Rabobanks a5 part of asset
and liability mamagement o manage (ts interest-rate risks, oredit risks and foreign currency risks. Aabobank
miakes wie of the possibiliies provided by the EU through the carve-oun in (A5 33, The camve-out fachiiates the
application of falr value portholio hedge accounting 1o cenain positions. Buckets ase used to measure
electiveness.

9 Motes io the financial statements of Rabobank Nederland
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¥ the daze of concluding a dervative contract, Rabobank can designate certain dervative financial
Instrurmants as (1) a hedge of the falr value of an asse? o1 lability In the statement of financial pasition
(fair value hadgel, as (2) a hadge of futwe cash flows artribuzable 1o an asset or lability in the statement of
financlal position, an expected transaction of a firm cammitmant (cadh Aow hedge), or as (3) a hedge of a net
ireestment ina forelgn entity inet Investment hedgel. Hedge accounting can be applied for derivative
financial instrurments designated In this manaer If certain criteda ane mae,
The criteria dervative Ananclal instruments must satisfy 1o be recognised as hedging instuments mclude
the following:
+ formal documentation of the hedging Instrument, the hadged irem, the ebjective of the hedgs,
the hedging strateqy and the hedge relationshio before applying hedge accounting;
+ the hedge s expectad 1o be effective (ina range of 80% to 125%) in offseting changes in the hedgad
iterrvs fadr vabue or cash fkows attributable 1o the hedged risks dunng the entine reporting pennod:
+ the hedige i continuously effective from Inception onwards.

Changes in the fair value of derivative fimancial Instruments that are designated as falr value hedges and ate
effective in relation 1o the bedged risks are recognised in profit o loss, tegether with the conesponding
changes in the falr value of the assets or labilitles hedged agalnst the rlsks in question ¥ the hedge no langer
rmieets the criteria for hedge accounting (accarding ta the fair value hedge madel), any adjustment 10 the
carrving amount of a hedged interest-bearing financlal instrument ts amart sed thasugh profit or los undil the
end of the hedged period.

Fer hedges of net imvestrments in foresan entties, the detivative is measured at fair value, whereby the falr
value changed, to the extent that they ane effective, ame taken o edquity, The change inthe hedged equity
Iratrurment a5 a result of exchange-rate fluctuations are also recognised under equity until the disposal of the
Bauity imsinument.

Changes in the fair vatee of dervative fnancial instrements that are designated and quality as cash fow
hedges and that are effective in refation to the hedged risks are recognised In the hedging reserve included
urder Equity fsee Section 121

The non-effectiee part of the changes in the fair values of the derivative financial instruments is recognised in
prrafit or losa 1 the forecast wansaction of the non-cunent labilty results in the recognition of a nor-inancial
sl of 3 non-Ananclal katslliny, sy delermed gain of lass included in equily i restated 1o the initial carrying
amaunt {cout) of the asset or the llabdlity. In 2l ather cases, dederred amowns included In equity are taken to
the statement of Income and are clossfied as Income ar expenses In the perlods In which the hedged non-
current lizbility or the forecast transacteon had an effect on profitor loss.

Certain derivathve contracts, although they ae economic hedges in relation to the managed risk positions
taken by Rabobank, do not qualify for hedge accounting under the specific IFRS rles. These contracts ane
therefore treated as dervative finamcial instruments beld far trading.

As part of Rabobank s itk managemant, varioug risks, including intenset tate and iquigity risks inherent in
mortgage keans granted and savings deposits raised, that arise ot local Rabobanks are trans‘ered to Aabobank
Mederland by means of imer-company loans and derivatrve financial irstruments To hedge those risks,
Rabobank Mederland enters into derivative financial transactions with axternal parties, applying hedgs
accounting in the consolidated financial stataments. A$ a result of the transfers, thosa risks are presented in
varnouws foems in Rabobank Nederlands statement of financial poston, Combrned, they represent the hadged
Item with respect 1o the hedge in the company financial staterrents for which hedge accounting & applied in
eenfarmity with Dutch Accounting Searidard 299,

234 Trade Ligbilites

Traade Babilities are mainly megative fair values of derhative financial inatruments and delivery cbiligations
atising on short seliing of securities, Securities ade sold short 1o realise gains liom short-term pirice
Auctuations The secutities necded 1o settle the shoet selling ane acquined through securities loasing o sale
ard securities repanchase agreements. Securitios sold shot are recognized ot fal value at the reporting daote,
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2.4 Assets held for trading (trading portfolios)

Financial assats held for rading ave financial assets acquired In order to generate péofit from shom-teim
fluctuations in prices or traders manging of financial assets thar foem part of portfohos Charactensed by
patterns of ehort-term profit panicl patien.

Firuarciel assets hebd o trading ate measased o Teir vialue based on lised bid prices. Al elaned
compaehemiioe income B Includid under Tnoame from hrancial assets and Wabilfkes o falf value thraugh
peofit or loss, interest earned on financlal assets b recognised as interest Income.

Dwvidends recelved on financlal assets held for trading are recognised through profit or loss. Al acquitsitions
and sales of financial assets held for trading which require dalivery within a tme lirmit presoribed under the
regulations of in accordance with market conventions are accounted for on the transaction date.

2.5  Other financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Rasobank has opted to clasify financial instraments not scquired or enered into for iealising gaing fiem
short-tesm fluctuations in traders’ prices or mangins at fair value through profit or loss. Thase financlal assets,
Including venture capital, are cariied at fair valise

Management designates financial ascess and lakdlities 1o vhis category upon infa recognition if any of all of
that following coiteria ane met:

such a designation eliminates or substantially redweces ary Inconsistent treatment that would othenwise
have atisen upon measurement of the assets ar Kabilities or recognition of profits or losses on the basis of
different accounting policies;

the assets and liabilities bedong 1o a group of Francial assets andior financial liabilites that are managed
and assessed on the basis of thes fair value in accomdance with a documented risk management or

-

Irvestmisnt sratedy;

+ the hnsncial insument contaling an embadded derivathve inancinl instrurment, unbeis the embedded
derivative financlal mstrument does not significantly affect the cash Fows o if It s evident, after limited
analyss or no analysis at all, that separate recognition Is not requived,

Imterest earned on assets with this dassification |s recognised as interest mcome and Interest due on labilities.

with this dassification ic recognicad as Intenest expencse. Any othes realised and unreatised gains and fosses on

revaluation of these fnancial instruments a1 lai value ate incheded wnder Tnoome from atler financial ssses
and latillinies st fair vahae thioudgh peafit ar iows) Al purchases and sales o other Ansncial ssets and labilines
at falr value through profit or loss that have ta be delivered within a petiod prescribed by regulations or
matkat convenlion are recognited at the transaction date.

26  Day1 profit

If, at the: time & financial instrument & entered into, valuation methods ane used at falr value, a discrepancy
my arige botweon th transaction price and fabr value. Such a decrepancy Is rofesred ta as ‘day | prafit’
Rabrobank Immediately accounts for this profit under Tncome from financlal assets and Habilities at falr valwe
through proht o boss, if the valuation method |s based on observable inputs {of active markets) If non-
observable inputs are used, the day 1 prefit b amortised over the terrm af the transactien and accounted for
as ‘Caher liabilites, Profit i then @ken at a subseguent stage I the finandal instrument concerned has been
sold od the data entered has become visible at a later dtage.

2.7 Avallable-for-sale financial assets investment portiolios)

Management deternines the ciassification of inancial assets on the date of acguisition, depanding on the
purpose for which the investments are acquired.

Financial assets that ar2 intended to be held indefinitely 2nd that could be sald for loueiy punposes of in
response 1o changes in interest rates, cxchange mtes of share prices we classified as availabls for sale.
Avallable-for-sale financial assets are initially recognised a1 fair value, Including rransaction cons, based on
guatad bid pices or valwes derived from cash ow models. The (e values of unlisted equity instruments ato
estimated based on appropriate pricefeamings ratics, sdjusted o reflect the specific circumstances af the
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respective lssuers. Any unrealised gains and lesses from changes In the falr value of avallsblefor-sale financial
assats ave recognised n equity unbess they telate to amartised Interest of exchange-rate differences of
rmonatary assers. If such finandal assers are disposec of, the adjustments 1o fair value are recognised inprofin
and loss

Dbt Enatruments ars impaired I there are objective indications that the falr value has decreased 10 such a
digrée that no reasorable ssumplions con be made that the value will recover o carmylng amount in the
foresseable future. At each reporting date, managemaent assesses whether there are objective Indications of
Impairment of avallable-for-sale assets. Eamples of objective evidence for value adjustrments aee:

+ significant financial difficultizs on the part of the lsuer;

+ defaultin making Interest and/or redemption payments;

+ the disappesrance of active rmarkees for the fnancisl ssset caused by fnancal difficulties

I thie event of Impairment, the cumulative loss s determined by the difference between cost and current faer
value, 'ess any previoushy recognised impalerient transfered from the revaluation reserve in equity to profit ar
lose if the impattment of a dabt instnument diminishes in a sebsequent period and the diminution can be
obsec Uyely anributed vo an event that occusred after the impairment, the impasment i reversed thiough
praht or loss

Equity instruments ahe impasted If thelr cost permanenty exceeds thelr recoverable amount, Le, thelr fair
vialue Is permanenily or ssgnificantly kawar than thel cost. The recoverable amount of investments in unlsted
equity instruments is determined wsing apperoved valuation methods, whereas the recoverable amount of
|ted fmancial assets s determined on the basis of market value. Impatmment of equity Instruments (S never
subsequently reversed thaough prafif or loss,

All purchases and sales made in accordance with standard market convenitions far avallable-for-sale financlal
aisets me recognised at the transaction date, Al other purchases and sales are recognised at the seltlement
daate,

28  Repurchase agreements and reverse repurchase agreements

[professional securities transactions)
Financial assers thoy ane sold subject 1o related sale and repurchass agreameants are incluced in the financial
staterments under Financial assets hedd fa vadingand Weallable-for-sale fnancial assets, The Bability to the
counterparty b Included under Due to other banks o Due to cuitamens, deperding on the applcation
Financia! asscts acquined under reverse sale and reverse repasrchase agreements are recognised as Due from
othar banks, ar Loans te customers. depending on the application. The difference between the salling price
and repurchasing price ks recognised as inferest incame or inferest expense over the term of the agreament,
azad on the effective imarmest method

2.9 Securitisations and othor derecognition constructions

Rabobank securitises, sells and camies various inancal assets. Those assets are somatimes sold 1o special
purnpose entities (SPzs), which then issue securities to investors. Habobank has the option of retaining an
Imterest insold securitised financial assets in the foem of subordinated imerest-only strips, suboidinaged
stcurilies, spiead ciounty, seivicing ilahts, guarantess, put optikans snhd call aptiand, and ather conativetions,
A financial aseet (o a portion of i) is derecagnized if;

+ the tights ta the cash Aows frem the asset exaing;

= the rights to thee cash Aows from the asset and a substantial portion of the risks and benefits of owneship
of the asset are transferred;

a commitrment to transfer the cash flows from the asset is presumed and a substantial portion of the risks
and benefits are ransferred;

nait all thee economic rivies and benefits are retained or translemed; hawever, control over The aiser is
transerod.

A Fmancial Hability o2 part thereof [s derecognised ¥ 18 coses 10 exit, L slter the contractual olligaion has
been tulhled or cancelled or has esphed

"

-
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If Rabobank ratains controd over the asset but does not retain a suostantial portion of tha rsks and benefits,
the asset i recognised in proportion to the continuing Invelernent of Rabobank A refated liability is also
recognised 1o the sxent of Rabobani's consinuing involvement The recogniton of changes in the value of
the liability correspands 1o the recognition of changes in the value of the asier

If & transaction does not meet the above conditions for derecognition, it & recognised as a koan for which
security has been provided.

To tha axtent that the fransfer of a financial asset does nol qualify for derecognition, the transfer does not
result in Rabobank's contractual rights being separately recognised as derivathe financial instraments
recognitian of these instruments and the transferred asset, or the Kability arising en the transer, were to result
In double recagnition of the same sights or obligaticms.

Gaing and losses on seouritisations and sale ransactions depend partly on the previous catying amounts of
the financial assets rramsferred These ane allocated 1o 1he sold and retained Interests based on the relithe fan
values of these intarests at the date of sale. Any gains and losses are recognised throwgh profit or loss at the
timae of ransfer,

The fai value of the sodd and retainsed nterests is based on quoted masker piices of calculated as the present
value of the future expected cash fiows, using pricing models that ke imo Sccount varnious ASUMPLIoNS
such as credi losses, discount rates, yiekd curves, payment requency and ather factors.,

Rabobank decides whather the SPE should be included in the conselidated Rnancial statements. Far this
punpose, Rababank performs an assessment of the SPE by taking a numbser of factors Into consideration,
Including the activities, decision making powers and the allocation of the benefits and risks assoclated with
the activities of the SFE.

210  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash equivalents are highly liquid shart-tesm mwestments held (o meet current obligations i cash, rather
than for investmients or other purposes. Such Investments have remaining terms of less tham 80 days at
Inception, Cash equivalents are readily canvertibée to known amounts of cash and subject toan insignificant
risk of chamges in valua.

211 Netting of financial assets and liabilities

Frarciad assets and Mabilises are set off and the net amoun i ansferred to the satement of financid
panlticn i a legal ight to set off the mecogniied amounts exists and it i intended to sottle the expected
future cash Mows on o net basls, o 10 realise the asset and setile the lobBity simultaneausdy. This mainky
concenms netting of current account balances and dernvatve financial instruments. The set-off of taxes i3
discussed in Note 2.23.

212  Forelgn currenches

2121 Foreign entities

Itemis included in the Ainancial statements of sach entity in Rabobank Group are carried In the cumency that
best reflects the econom'c reality of the underlying events and clrcurmstances that are relevant for the entity
{the functional currency).

These fnancial staterments ane predentad in eurad, which i the parent compain's functional currendy.

Gair, losses and cash fows of fodeign enoiries are warskated into the presentation curency of Rabobank ar
the exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates, which is approximately equal to the average exchange
rates. Assets and labilities are rarsbated at chosing rates. Translation déferervoes aibsing on the net Investments
In foresgn entites and on loans and ather curtency Instruments designated as hedges of these investments
ate recognised in equity. If a foreign entity is sold, ary such translation diferences are recognised in profit o
loss as pat al the galn or loss an the sale.

Goadwil and fak value adjestments arising on the acquistion of a foreign entiny are recogniied & asiets and
liabilizhes of the forehgn antity and are transated at the chosing rabe.

Nates 1o the financial viatements of Habahank Nedarland
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2122 Foreign-currency fransactions

Transactions in foraign cunendies are rranslated into the funclional currency at the exchange mates ruling at
the rranslaton dates Translation differences arlsing on the settlernent of such transactions of on the
trandlation af monetaty & sets and Rabilinkes denominated In forelgn cutrenches are recognised in prefit of loss,
Tranuslation differences qualiying as net investment hedges are iecognized In equity.

Trarvskation differenices an delbt securities and other monetary financial assets carried at falf valug are inchuded
under forelgn exchange gains and losses. Translation differencas on non-monetary iterms such as equity
Instrurnents held for trading are recognised as part of the falr value gains or losses. Translation differences on
available-for-sale mon-manetary lems ane indluded in the revaluation reserve reparted unders 'Fauity

213 Interest

Intarest income ard expenss for all interest-bearing mstruments is recognised in profit or loss on an accrual
beasks, with the effective interest method being applied. Interest income indudes coupons relating ta fised
Imterast financlal assets and firancial assets hedd for wrading, as well as the cumulative premdums and
discodnts on Qovemment reasury seculities and othes cash aquivalent instruments. If any loans suffers
Impairment lodges. they are wiittan dewn 1o their recoverable smourts and the interest income recognised
hencelarh is based on the original discount rate for calcutating the prasent value of the futwne cask llows
used to determine the recoverable amounts interest on devivative Branclal imstruments held for economic
settlements purposes |s recognised separately under nterest Income’

2.14 Commisslons

Income fram asset management activities consists mainly of und trust, furd management commission and
adminiuration. Income fram asser managément and insurance brakerage s recognived as eamed once the
rervices havie boen provided,

Commnissbons e generally recognised on an accnea! basks, Commissions receraed for negotlating a
trangaction, or taking part In the negatiations, on behalf of third parties, for srample the acquiition of 3
paortiolio of loans, shares oo other seourities, or the sale or purchase of companies, s 'ecognised at completion
of the underlying transactions

215 Loans to customers and due from other banks

Lons 1o custamers and Due from other banks are non-derivative financial instruments with flxed or defined
paymaents, not lited on an active marked, apart from such assets that Rabobank classifies as tading, o fadr
value on initial recognition with changes recognised through profit of loss, or as available for sale. Loans to
customers and recekables are initially recognised at fair value, Incuding fransaction costs. and subsequently
carried at amonised cost, including transaction codts

Leans are subject ta either individual or colfective impairment analyses.

A vahse adjustment, a provision for expected fosses on loans, is recognised if there ks objective evidence that
Rabobank will not be able to colkect all amounis due under the orlginal terms of the contract. The size of the
provision is the difference betvween the caerying amount and the iecoverable amount, which iy the present
value of the expected cash fiows, including amounts recoverable andes guarantees and sunethes, discourted
at the aiginal (swerge) effective rate of interest of the laana.

Thee prrovision fo boans includes losses i there is objective evidence that bosses ane amibutable 1o some
petkans of the koan portiolio at the reparting date.

Examples of objective evidence for value adjustments are;

+ signéficant financial difficulties on the part of the borrower:

+ default in making interest and/or redemption payments on the part of the borrower;

+ lpan renegatintions;

+ possibility of bankruptcy of or fimancial rearganisation at the bonmower

« changes in barrowers' payrnent datuy, and

« changes in economic circumstances that could couse the borrower to default,
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For sach separate businass unit, the losses ane estimated based an the credit ratings of the borrowers and tha
value of the collateral provided to the bank, and taking into account the actual econamic conditlons under
which the borrowers conduct thedr activites. The camying amount of the loans i reduced through the use of
@ providion accaunt, based en what the bank condders the most likely scenario, and the lo4as is mken 1o the
statement of income, 'Write-offs af provisions for expected loan losses am made a3 s00n @ the enforcement
prrocess s completed, the security prdvided has been redlised, when viftually no other means af hecaviry are
awvallable and in the event of a foemal canceliation of a debt. Whee these is virtually no penpactive of the
debtor being able to continue as a going concern, a provision for expected boan losses s waitten off at
portfolio level, up 1o the amount deemed uncollectible. Any amounts subsequently coliected are Included
under the item Yakie adjustments’ in the statement of Income.

As 3o0n a8 the prospects fon continuity have recovered snd arfears hove been cleared as agieed, the loan i
nd banger considered impained (not fully collectibler. Mansgement continually assesses these renegotiates
Izans to ensure that all criteria ae satished with a view to expected future cash flows.

The general proviskon constitutes the peovision adopted for the partion of the porfolio that rermaing
effectively impatred a5 at the balance sheet date bat which has ot yet been identified as such (IBNR: incurred
ban not reperted) in the bank's rigk syoems A before, Basel Il parameners, adprsted 1o the FRS guidelines and
cutrent redevance, are used hete bn order 1o determine the provision, An impadtant factor in determining the
general provision i what Is known as the Loss kdemification Perad (LIF, e the period between the timea
la$s event occurs at the client’s comparny and the time the bank has recorded the loss event in its risk systems.
The LIP is expressed In months and varies between portfolios.

At sach reporting date, managemsent assessed whethers there is objective evidence that reclassified loans
previcusly tecognised as available-for-sale asets have been impalred.

For gperiures chassified as cofporate exposunes under CRD IV, expaiures are measured in pccordance with
the ‘one dabior” principhe. This principhe entails that the apooved limit for a debtor applies to the sum of all
expasures - Including derbvathves, guarantess and the Bee - of the debtar group kn which the debtor has
been classified. Debtor groups incluede all debtors who form part of the economic entity inwhich legal
entities and companies are affillated with the tame arganisation. In addason, the majornity sharsholders alsa
form part of the econamic entity, The ‘ane debtor’ principse applies across all entities, the exposuies of 1he
dhibior group must be included for 8ll group divisions

216 Intanglble assets

2.16.1 Goodwill

Goodwill is the amount by which the acguisition price pakd for a subsidlary exceeds the fadr value on the
acqulsition date of Rabobank’s share of the net assets and the cantingent llabilities of the entity scquired
Upon each acquisition, the ather mingdty interests ane recognised at falr value or a1 the propartion of the
Identifiable assets and liabilities of the acquired entity. impalrment tests ane porformed annually or -

IF indications so dictate - moee frequently 1o determine whether impalrment has ocourred,

2162 Software development costs

Coasts refared 1o the development of maintenance af software are jecogniied & an sxpende at the time they
ang incuited, Costs directly incuned in connection with idemiflabe and unique software products over which
Ratrobank has control and that will probably provide economic benefits exceading the costs for longer thana
year e recognised as intangible assets Divect costs inchude the employee expenses of the soltware
development team, financing and an appeopriate portion of the redevant overhead.

Expenditures that impreve the performance of software compated with their original specifications ae added
o the olginal cost of the solvware. Saftware development costs are recognised as assets and amonised on a
stralghs-line basis over a petiod nob excesding fve years,
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2183 Other intangible assets

Orther intangibde assets ara mainky those edentified upon business combinations. They ate amartised over thes
terms. Each year, Rabobank performs an impairment 1951 based on expectad fupure cash llows An impairment
less ik recognesed if the expected future profits de rat justify the carrying armount of the aset.

2164 |mpelrmient lasses an gooduwill

Each yoar, during the fourth quarter of the Ainanclal year, or morne frequently f indications of Impalmeent exist,
gondwill |s tested Tor impalrment by comparing the racoverable amount with the camying amouwnt.

The highest of value in use on the one hand and falr value less selling costs on the other determines the
recovierable amaunt. The defnition of cash flaw generating units depend on the type of company acquired.
The value in use of a cash flow generating unit is arrived 21 by determining the present value of the expected
future cash flows of the cash Alow generating unit in guestion at the intevest rate before tax The major
assumplions wsed nthe sl Row model depend on the input data which eflect different financial and
economic varables, such as the rigk-fres interest rate in a country and a premium reflecting the inherent risk
of the entity concerned. The variables are determined subject o review oy management. Impalrments of
goacwill are inchuded in ‘Othet income in the statement of Incorme.

2,165 Impairment fosses on other intangible assets
At each reporting date, Rabobank assesses whether there ara indications of impalrment of other intangible
assets. If such Indications exist, Impatiment testing ks carried out to determine whather the carrying amount
of the athei intangible assets is fully recoveralde, An impairment loss is recognised il the camying amount
excepds the recoverable amount. Goodwill and sattware under developmeant are tested for impairment sach
year at the reparting date or mose frequently If indications of impairment exist. Impairment losses and
fevensed impairrments of other Intangible assets are included in the staement of incarmig,

217  Property and equipment

Equipment {for own use) s recognised at histenical cost net of accumulated depreciation and impaiments if
applicable. Property (for own use) repeesents malinly offices and i also recogrised at cost less aocumulated
depreciation and impalrmenis il applicabile,

Swalght-line deprecation s applied to these assets in accardance with the schedule below, Each asset ks
depreciated 1o s redldual value over 5 estimated uiahul lile:

- Land ot depresiatod
» Bdldings 25 - A0yvan.
Eegsiprment, inchading

+ Computer equipment 1-Syean
+ Oxheer equapment and wehickes 3 Byean

Each year, Rabobank assesses whethes thare are indications of impalmment of peoperty and equipment, IF the
cafiying amount of an asset soceeds it estimated recoverable amount, the camying snount is weitten dewn
Immediatety to the recoversble amount, Impaiment losses and reversed mpairments of property and
eeuipsmient are inchuded in Tther administrative expenses’in the statement of incame, Galns and losses on
the disposal of iterms of peoperty and equipment are determined in proportion to thair carrping amounts and
taken intor account when determining the operating result. Repal and malntenance work & charged to profit
ot inss at the fime the relevant costs are incuned. Fxpenditures on extending of increasing the benehts from
land holdings and buildings compared with their original benefits ane capitafsed and wbsequently
depreciated.
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218 Investment properties

Imwestrent properties, mainly office bulldings, are held for their long-term rental income and are not used by
Rabobank or its subsidiaties, Investment properties are recognised as long-1erm irvestrments and included in
the statement of firancial position &t cost, net of accumnulmed degreciaion and impairment.

Imverstment properties are depreciated over a term of 40 years.

2.19 Leasing

2181 Rabobank as lessee

Leases relating to property and equiprment under which witually all risks and bensefits of camership are
transferred to Rabobank are elassified a5 finance leases. Finance beates are capitallsed at the inception of the
leasi at the falr value of 1he keasesd assets of an the present value af the minamurm lease payments if the
presant value Is lower. Lease payments ame apportioned batween the lease Sability and the hnance charges,
50 a5 to achleve a constant rate of interest an the remaining balance of the Habilty. The comesponding lease
liabilities are included under Other Babilises. after deduction of finance changes. The imerest components of
the finance charges are tecognised in profit or loss over the term of the kease. An item of propeity and
equipment acquired under & leaie agreament is deprecimed over the useful life of the asser o, if thoner,
the tetm of e lease.,

Leases undar whick a coniiderable pertion of the risks and benefits of ownership of the assets s retained by
the lessor are classifed as operating leases. Operating lease payments [less any discounts by the lessor) are
charged to profit or loss on a straight-lime bases over the teim of the [easa.

2.19.2 Rabobank as lessor

Finance keases

If asets aee leasid under 3 hnance lease, the prasent value ol the kase paymants | recognised a5 3 recelvable
ursiber Cue from cther banks or Loons to custormess, The difference betwesn the gross recetvathe and the
present value af the rieceivable is recognised as unearmed hnance income, Lease income Is recognised as
Imterest income over the term of the lease using the net investmen: method, which results in a constant rate
of retutn on the investment

Cperating leases

fazets leased under opetating leases ane included inthe statemant of Ananclal patition urdet Property and
equipment. The assets are depreciated aver thelr expected useful lives In line with these of compazable items
of progerty and equipment. Rental income (Jess discounts granted to lessees and write-downs) bs recognised
umdier ‘Other income’ on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

2.20  Provisions

Prowisians are ratognised If Rabobank has & presént obbgation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
overt, IFit s probabbe that an cutllow of resources will be required 1o settle the obllgation and d a reliable
gsllingle can be made of the amount of the obligation. If Rabebank expects  provision to be retimbuned,
for excamgle undes an Insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only if the
reimbursemant is virtually eeitain, The pravisions are cattied o1 the disceun ted value of the expected fulure
cash Mo,

2.20.1 Restructuring

Restruchering provisions compeise payments under redundancy schemes and other costs directly atiributable
o restructuring programmes. These costs are accounted for during the period in which a lzgal or actual
payment abligation arises for Rabobank, a detailed plan has been pregared lor recundancy pay, and there are
reallstic expectations amang the partes concemed that the reorganbsation will be implemented,
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2.20.2 Toxand legal issues

The provigion Tor tax and legal issues is based on the bast possible estimates avallable at the balance sheet
date, aking into account legal and tax advice. The tming of the cash outflow of these peovisians (s uncertain
becauie the autcame of the disputes and the time Involved are unpredictabile.

2203 Other pravisions
This e inchides provisions. for onerous contracts, oedit guearantees and obligations under the terms of the
depasit guarantee scheme.

221 Employee benefits

Hababank has varkous pension plans in place based on the local conditions and practices of the counteies in
which it operates. In general, the plans ane financed by payments (o insurance companios or trustoe
admiéniiered funds, The paypments are caloslated aciuarially at tegular imervals. A delfined beesfil plan s one
that incorporates a promise o pay an amount of pension benafit, which is usually based on several factors
such as age, number of years in service and rermunertion A defined contributon plan is one in the context
of which Rababank pays fred contnburions 1w a separate entity (a pension fund) and acquires no legal of
constructive obligation If the fund has insulficlent assets to pay all the benefits 1o employee-members of the
pran inrespect of service in current and past periods

2.21.1 Pension obligations

The obiligation under the defined-benefit pension schemes is the present value of the defined-benefit
pension obbgation on the balance sheet date alter deduction of the fair value af fund investments

The defined benefit obBgation is calculated annually by independent actuaries based on the projected unii
credit methad, The present value of the defined-beneliy obligation Is determined by the estimated future
outflow of cash funds based on the interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds with torms which approach
that of the cormesponding obligation, The majority of pension schemes are career-average schemes, and the
costs of these schemes — e, the net pension changes for the period less employee contributions and interest,
Is inchuded under S1aff costs” Mat interest expences of income are cabculated by applying the discount rate at
the beginning of the year for the asset or Babifity based on the defined-benefit pension scheme.

Actuadial gairs and kedses arsing from actusl develnprems or actuarisl Asumptions ane recoqnised in the
censabdated statement of comprehensive Income.

2.21.2 Defned contribution plans

Under defined contribution plans, Rabobank pays coniribations to publicly or privatey managed insured
pension plans on & compulsony, contractual or voluntary basls. Cnce the contribulions have been made,
Rabobank has no further payment abligations. The regula contributions are costs far the yaar in which they
are due and are inchuded an this basls wnder S1aff costs?

2.21.3 wber post-employment abligations

Some Rzbobank business units provide other post-employment benefits. To becomea eligible for such
banafits, thee wueal requirernent is thar the employes remairs in senvce untl retirerent and has been with
the compary & minimum number of years, The expected costs of thess benefis are accrued during the vears
of service. based on 4 system simdlar §o that for defined benefit prans. The obligations ane valued each year by
Indepandent actuaries.

2214 Varable rermuneration

The costs of variable remuneration paid unconditionally and in cash are recognised in the year inwhich the
employes renders the services The costs of condimianal payments In cash are included in s1aff costs in the
statement of intome in the period during which the employes’ services are recelved, which equals the
vesting period of the cash pmyment The Rability s recognised in othes Habilities. The sccounting treatment of
equity irsirument-based payments s disclosed in note 2.22
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222  Equity instrument-based payments

Remuneration for services rendered by Identified staff is made In the foim of cash-setiled payments basad on
equity irsTruments that aze similar 1o, and have the same characterstics as, Aabobank Certificares. The costs of
the services recehved are based on the awarded equity instrements’ fair value on the award date and e
recalculated armmally st the vistue applicable st the time, Thee costs of the awarded equity Brstmaments ane
Included |0 dtalf coits in the statemant of Incama in the poriod during which the employee™ services are
receised, which equals the vesting pencd of the equity Instruments. The Babiliey is recognised in other Katslitles.

2323 Tax

Cument 1 receivables and payalohes ate set off f there ls a legally enforceable right to set off such ltems and
IF simumaneods tieatrment or seitlement & intended, Defened ta assats anc Habiities pre ser off f thare i a
legally enforceable right to set off such ltems and If they relate to the same tax authority and arize from the
SAITE fas Qroup.

Prowisioms are formed b full for deferred tax Eabilities, using the Habilty method, arising from tempaorary
differences at the tepaning date bapwesn the 12x bases of assets and liasfites and thair casrying amaunts fol
financial reporting purpases,

The madn tempotary differences relate to the depreciation of property and equipment, the sevaluation of
certain fimancial assets and Habilities, Including desivative financlal instruments, provisions for penslans and
ather post-employment benefits, provisions for loan losses and other impairment and tax losses, and, in
connection with business combdnations, the falr values of the net asseis acguired and their fax bases.
Delerred income tax assels and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reparting date

Delerred tax sssets ae recognised to the extent that it is prabable that future taxable profits will be available,
against which th 1emparary diffesences can Be ulilived,

Prowliions are formed in respect of taxable temposary differences associated with investments in subsidianes,
assoclates and interests In foint ventures, unless the timing of the reversal of the temparary differences can be
controfed and it is probable that the temposany differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future,

Tax=s on prafit are calculated In acoerdance with the tax begislation of the relevant jurisdiction and recognized
s an expense in the period inwhich the profit is realised. The ax effects of 1he carry-forwand of unused 1ax
lesnas ane recaghived & an asset i 17 s prabable that future tcable profits will Be svailable agains which the
lesses con be utilised,

Delefred tai assets or deferred tax liabilitbes are included for the revalustion of svatable-for-sale inancial
assats and cash Aow hedges that are directly taken to equity. Upon realisation, they are recognisad in profit
of boss together with the respective defemed gain or loss

2.24  Due to other banks, due to custemers and debt securities in lssue

(including subordinated debt)
These are the items Dwe 1oather banks, Due to customers, Dbt securities in ssue and Subodinated dett
These borrowings are indtially recognlied af falr vadue, Le. the issue price kess directly atiribautable and non
recurring transaction costs and subsequently carried at amortised cost including transaction costs.
If Rabobank repurchases are ol s awn debt instruments, Tis derecognised, with the differance batwesn
the carrying amount of a lability and the consideration paid being recognised thiowgh profit or losy,

225 Rabebank Cortificates

The procesds of the issue of Rabobenk Certificates are available to Rzbobank Group on a perpetual basis,
subordinated to all labilities jats subondnate to the Trust Preferred Securities and the Capital Securities).

As the payment of plhinned distributions is fully discretionary, the procecds of the iSsee of Rabobank Certificates
ale recognised as Equiry” Accordingly, planned distributions are accouned for in the profit appropriation,
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226 Capital Securities
Capital Securities ane recognised as Equity’, as thera 15 no formal cbligation to repay the principal of to pay
the dividend

2.27  Financial guarantees

Fnancial guarartes contracts requing that the ksuee compensato the holder for a loss the latter incurs
beecansse a specified gebtor falls to meet its obligations in accordance with the terms of a debt security.
Such fnancial guarantees ae Initially measwred at faér vabue and subsequenthy measured at the value of the
discounted lability under the guarantes or the higher initially measured value less the amount of previously
recognised cumulative gains or lasses, thus reflecting the revenue recognition principles.

3 Solvency and capital management of Rabobank Group

The ratios applying to Aabobank Group are 48t out beboe. The sohency position is managed and quantified at
Group kevel, rathier thas ar that of Rabobank hededand,

Rabobank wishes to have an adequate solvency position, which it manages based on a rasmber of ratios.
The principal ratias are the core tier 1 ratio, the tier | ratio, the BI5 ratéo and the equity capital ratio.
Rabobank’s internal targats excead the regulators” minimum requirements as it amticipates market
expeciations and developments in laws and regulztions. Rabobank seeks 10 stand out from other financial
Institutions, managineg irs solvency position based on palicy dacuments, The Balance Sheat and Risk
Manasgement Cammitee Rabobank Group {effective 1 January 2015, this was divided inta the Risk
Management Commirttes and the Asset and Liability Cormmimee), The Exgcutive Board and the Supervisony
Bowrd penicdically discuss the solvency position and the targets 1o be used,

The Capita! Requirements Fegulation {CRAT and ‘Capital Aequirements Directeve IV (CRD W) together
constitute the Eutopean implemantation of the Basel Capital and Liguidity Accord of 2010. These rules, which
became effective on 1 kenuary 2004, apply 1o Rabobank’s financial reporting, The 2013 figuies are bases on
CRDM, as applicalile at that time

Rabobank must comply with a number of minimum sehency positions stipulated under the k. The solvency
position ks determined based on ratios. These ratios compare Rabobani's BES ratio (capital ratio) and core tier 1
ratio with the total amount of the risk-weighted assets The minimum required percentages under the CRO I
are B4 and 4% of the risk-weighted assets, respectively. Effective 1 Janwary 2014, the minimum required
percéntages are determined based on CRD WMACHA. The requlatory capital and core capital remain sulbsject

te thee minirmurm ol 8% and 6% respectively in 2304, The minimum requited peecentages will gracually be
Increased hatween nowrand the year 201% Rabobank has alreacy taken this i accoun in it capital plan
Thie table below shows the minimuem buffers In acoordance with CRO 8l and according to the Anal situation

off CRD W/CRAR.

Tom!
Lo Ter | waptal
CHO M Miraram rold ] 1% Al LE
CRO WL Adirmrmm! B 4.5% ams B
Capital conservation tolfer Wie-2018 5% 2w ™
Mi wital o L 1% 8% tosm

Comnsercychoal busfer! 262018 O 15%
SIF) bt 30142018 1% i LT
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The datermination of the rsk-welghted assets s based on separate methods for credit risk. operstional risk and
market risk. The rsk-weighted assets are determined for coedit tisk purposes in many diffetent ways. For most
assets the risk welght |s determined with reference 1o inceonal ratings and a numbser of charactedstics spacific
o the gsset concedned. For off-balance shee items the balance sheet equivalent is calculated Ay, on the
bk af Intemal converdon lactors The miuh:lng rqulvn]rnl:ﬂmnuh!:. are then alia q!:.lg'n:d rl;ﬁ-wﬁgh!lngm
An Advonced Measurement Appraach model s used 10 determing the amaunt with respect Lo the k-
welghted assets for operational isk. Wath the mardket isk approach, the genesal market risk is hedged. a5 well
as the risk of open positions in forelgn currencies, cebt and equity instrurments, as well as commodities.

[T CROM
Inmlbon of fren 04 My
Artasnad marmingy MAm FEAL RS
Expecaed civderch s (1151
Rabssbuirk Cortiatei EEE 4431
Pan of nomr-coniredbng mises irested s qual #pesg capitsl 28 437
Aeiervet E1 1 [0
Deducliony 5,48 Llaom
Transmion guidance 118 -
Commsenm Eguity Tier 1 eapital I8.714 8,551
Trust-Preferred Secunities 8 1o I I
Capetal Secunities - 1265
Cetardfahered mstiments 7,183 .
Wity inkerests L] -
Dedductions [E] s
Transition quidancs 126 *
Tiew 1 copital ILATA ARLRT
Parn of reservis tneated i quakfying capral . (31}
Parf ol iubardinated debd trested as gualifying capital LR Ll
Wity mbenesty Ll .
Deeductiony . (B85}
Tearmsion gridancs ay =
Qualifying capisel (1% capitaly A5 11 A58
Airk-verighted ascers FLLF -] noaze
Commen Equity Tier 1 st 118% 1w
Ties | ratio 60 0.
BIS ratio 11x% 19.5%
Epatty copital nutas 194% i

The deductions canshst mastly of goadwill, ather intangible non-current assets, deferred tax Rabilities which
depend on future profit and noretemponary differences, the IRB shortfall for credie risk adjuestments and
adjustments relating to cumulative profits due to changes inthe bank's credit risk on instruments ssued at
rrariket value (FWPLL. In accordance with CRRLa number of deductions are adjusted for thie Transition guidance’'
liFue, 85 these aduatments aie set 16 be phased in aftel five yaacs for ths padod 2014-2018. The Teaimaiian
guidance’ lire congiss mainky of goodwill, ather intangible noa-curment ase1s, cefermed tax labdities
depending on future proft (Le. non-temporary differences) and the IRE shortfall for credit-risk adjustments.

The thar Instruments |ssuad by Rabobank peior to 2015 do not satisfy the new requirements under the CRE
these instruments ate subject to grandfathering, which means that they will be phased out in accosdance
with the statutary requirements,
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4  Risk exposure of financial instruments

4.1 Risk governance

Ratsobank Group manacges rigks a1 vathous levels. At the highast level, the Exeoutive Board determines the rik
strategy It will pursue, the palicy framework as well a3 the limits, under the supervision of the Supervisoey
Board and on the ecommendation of the Rabobank Group Balsnoe Shiet and Ridk Management Camimiltes
and Rabobank Group Credit Managemant Committee. The Supervisory Board regulanly assesses the risks
atlached to the activities and portlolio of Rabobank Group. The Chief Ananclal ©ficer, who i also a membser
of the Exacutive Board, is responsibde for the sk maragement pollcy within Rabobank Group

Resporsiility for the sk policy within Rabobank Group i spread across two directomtes Group sk
Management is in chatge of the palicies for intengst rate, market. liquidity, currency and operational risks.

a5 well as for the policy for credin risks at portfolio kevel. Credit Risk Managerment s responsibie for the credit
tisk acceptance policy at [tem level, Furthermorne, the group entities practice independent risk management.

4.1.1  Risk appetite

Ibermifying and managing risk for 13 organisarion s & ongoing orocess a1 Rabobandk. It uses an integraced risk
management stratogy for this purpose, The risk management cycle indudes determining risk appetite,
preparins Integrabed tisk anabyses, and measuring and moniloting risk, Thicughout this process, Rabobank
uses a risk strateqgy almed at continuity and designed to protect profit. madntain solld balance-sheet ratlas and
protect identity and reputation.

4.2 Strateqgy for the use of financial Instrumants

Riatbyobianks ac livities ares hllll:n.-.hllf relatedd 1o the use of hinancial inst ulfnerll\_irn.ludilx; derivatbee financla!
Instruments Rabobank accepts depatits from clients at Ted and variabla rales of intedest fof o varlety of
terms and aims to earn above average Interest margins on these deposits by imeesting them in high-quality
assets. Rabobank abso almy 1o increase these margins by a portfolio approach of shart funds and allocation to
lzans for longer terms at higher interest rates, at the same tme keeping sufficient cash resounces to meet all
payments that might became due.

A furihes objective of Rabobank is 1o increase its interest rme resull by obtaining above-average marging, afes
deduction of previsions, and by granting loans to commiercial and retall batrowens with various credit ratings.
These risks apply not anly 10 loans recognised in the statement of financlal pashion; Rabobank also gives
guarantees, such as letters of credit and performance and ather guarantae documents.

Ratrobank atso trades in financial Instruments when it takes positions in tradable and unlisted struments
(0T 51, including dertvative Ainandal instruments, in oeder to profit from shart-term movermanis on the share
ard bond markets and in exchange rates, inteest rates and commoedity prices,

4.3 Interost-rate rizsk in the banking envirenment

‘Interest-ate ik in the banking erviconment” refers o the risk that the profitioss andfor the economic value
of bank books, Irvestment books and capdtal books s adversely affecied by changes in the monay-market and
capital-market interest rates. Bank books contain fnancial products and related derhvatives which are hald in
Bider 1o generats interest-rate Income and the stable growth thereof, Invésment bosks conusr of financial
imarrurmeents which are hald for sirategic purposes, induding for the management of sobsency risk, inteses-
rate risk and liquidiny risk. Capital books contaln financial instrurments financed with the bank's cwn capital,
Rabohank accepts a certain amound of intesest-rate risk in the barking environment, as this constitutes a
fundamental part of banking, but at the same time the bank also alms to avodd unexkpected material
fluctuations in the profitloss and the economic value as a result of interest-rate fluctuations. The Executive
Board, oversean by the Supervisory Board, therefore annually aporoves the risk appetite for interest-rate risk
end the coresponding Intenest-rate sk limits,
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&s part of (s interest-rata risk policy, Rabobank uses the following two key criteria

+ Equity at risk, duration of equity: and

+ Incame at eisk; the vulnerability of the Interest income 1o a gradual increase of decrease inintenest rates
crvet the mext 12 months.

Interet-rate fidk ot Rababank aflies 34 4 resall of discropancies in the matuiities and terms of loans and fuireds,
option risk, basts risk and yield-curve risk, Any interest-rate risk to which clients are exposed as a result of an
Increase in thelr obligations due to Interest-rate movernents has ro effect on Rabobank’s level of risk
expasure, Ary negative effects arising from this exposure are regarded as oredit dsk

At the group level, Rabobank's interest-rate ik i moanaged by the Assetand Liabaity Committes Rabobank
Group chaired by the Chief Financlal §¢Gcer, The Central Tregsury 15 responsdble for implermenting the
decisions of this committee, while Group Risk Management s responsible for measurement and reporting
Ralbobank's interest-rate risk arises primanity from morngages provided and business bzans provided with a
long fixed-interest period, These mortgages and loans are financed with, amang othes things, customess’
savEngs, customient’ curment account balances and in current account and with funding provided by
professional money market and capital mareet players. Intenest-rate rsk s measuned not only based on
contractually recorded data; customer behaviows in the interest-rate risk models i also taken into ascount,
The definltion used for managing interast-rate risk varies from the IFRS defindtion of equity.

For interest-rate risk management, the economic value of equity s defined as the present value of the assets
less the present value of the liabdmies plus the present value of the off-balance-sheet itermns Thraugh the use
of hedge accounting and due 1o the fact thar a large porven af the balance shieet is stated &t amortised cost
{in IFRS termsp and therefore does not change in value, the effects of the calculated value changes an IFRS
capital will be lagely resncted 1o an IMPACT on interes income,

44  Creditrisk

Cradit eisk is the risk that a counterpasty Is unable to meet a financial or other contractual obligation vis-aws
the bank Credit risk Is inherent 1o granting 'vans. Positions in tradable assets such as bonds and shares are
#lio subjecy 1o credit risk

Rataobank restricts its credit sk exposure by senting limits for loars 1o an indnidual countenpany, o a group
of counterparties, a3 wel as for leans 1o countries. The fowr-ayes principle ks a key factor when granting loans,
A multi-level committee structune s in place o make decisions on major loan applications, with the
competent committee baing chosan based onthe size of the koan. Decisions on the largest loans are made
directly by the Executive Board.

The credit risk expasure telating to each individual bertiower & further restricted by the use of sub-limits 1o
hedge amounts at sksk, not all of which are disclosed in the statement of financial positien, and the use of
daily dalbsery risk Bmits for trading iterres such as forward currency contracts, Most actual risks are assessed
daily against the limits.

Cncea loan has been grantad, It s contimually subject to credit management as part of which new
Information - fimamcial and other - is weviewed Credit limits are adjusted where necessary. Rabobank obraing
collateral of guaiantess o the maponty af the laans,

The macmum credit sk incurmed at the Bakance thaer date in the event that counterpastes [ail to fulfil their
obligaticns in respect ta Anancial iInstruments, without taking Into account the fair value of collateral
abtained s 490,810 {2013 472 414,

441  Dervative inoncial instruments

Raibobank sets strict limits for open positions, in amounts as well as in terms, 71504 Intermational Swaps and
Drerhanivies Association] sandards apply of & master agreement induding equivalent 1erms has been concluded
with the counterparty, and if the jurisdiction of the counterparty permits setting off, the net open positian is
monitored. This credit risk s managed o part of the general lending limits for cients. Where needed, Rabobank
obtalns collaterad or other safeguards with respect to credit risks inherent in these transactions
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The cradit rsk expasure represents the current falr value of all open derivative contracts showing a positive
rmarkel value, taking into accownt master netting agreements enforceable by law,

442  Credit risk management methods

Rabyobank's credit risk exposure s restricted in part by obtaining collateral where nécessary,

Thie amount and rature af the collateral required depends partly on the assessment of the credit risk of the

lzar to the counterparty. Rabooank follows guidelines for the purpote of accepting and valuing different

types of collateral The magor types of collaterl ane:

+ residentlal mortgage collateral;

+ modigage collateral on immovable property, pledges on movable property, Inventaries and receivables,
malnly for business loans;

= cash and securities, mainly for securizies lending activitie: and reverse repurchase ransactions.

The management monitors the market va'ue of collateral obianed and requires additional collateral where

necessary. Rabobank also uses credit derivativee financial instruments to manage credit risks. Aabobank fusther

limits its exposuse 1o credit risk by entering Into mastsr nening arangements with countenpartias foe a

significant volume of rencrions. In general, master nerting arengements do not lead 1o the wetting off of

assets and labilities included in the statement of financlal position, as ranvsactions are usially settled gross

The credit risk s limited by master nettng arangements, howewver, to the extent that, I an event or

cancellation occurs, all amaunts Invahing the counterparty are frozen and settted net. The total credit risk

expasure of Aabobank from desivative financia instruments to which netting arrangements apply is highly

semditive 1o the cosing of new tansactions, lapsing of existng transactions and fluctuations in market interest

and exchange rates.

443  Off-bolonce-sheet financlal Instruments

The guaraniees and standoy letters of credit which Rabobank provides to third parties in the event a client
cannot fulfil its obligations vis-a-¢is these third parties, are exposed to credit sk Documentary and
commencial batters of credit and wittan undertakings by Rabobank on behalf of dients authorisa thid parties
1o draw bills against Rabobank up to a present amount sulbject to specific conditbons. These ransactions are
backed by the detivery of the underlying goods 1o which they relate. Accondingly, the sk exposure of such an
instrumsent ik bess than that of & direct loan,

Obligatkons 1o grant loans at specific rates of interest during a fised period of time are recognised under credit
granting lksbllites and sccounted for as such unless these commiltments do not extend beyond the perlod
expacted to be needed to perform appropriate underwriting. in which case they ae considered to be
transactions conforming to standard market conventions. Rabobank is exposed to credit risk when it proemises
1o grant lending facilities. The sipe of such losses is lsss than the toral of the umsied commitments, as
pramises to grant Credit facilities are made subject 1o the clients méeting certain conditions that apgply o
laars. Rabobank moniters the term o expiry of credit promises, as kang-tenm commitments ane generally
assoclated with a higher risk than shor-term commitments.

444  COlemency {forbearance)

Rabsabank developed a palicy in 3013 for manitoring i3 forbearance portfolis every quanet. this palicy was

implemented in 2014, Forbearance’ and Clemency’ ane related wrom, and this portfolio consisrs of the

customers of Rababank for whom forbearance measures have baen put in place. The measures under that
name comprise concessions o debton facing o about to face dificulties In meetlng thelr financlal
commitments. A concessian fefers o elther of the following actions:

+ A modification of the previouws tarms and conditions of a centract the debtor i unable to camply with due
10 s fimancial difficulties (had deba? in eeder 1o allow for sufficient debt service abiliny, that would not have
besn granted had the deblor not been in inancial diffioulty,

« Atetal or partlal refinancing of a bad-debi contact, which would not have been granted had the debtor
riot been in financial difficulty,
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Examples include postponements of repaymants and extensions of the tesrn of a facility. The mtlonabe for the
focus on this parifolio derlves fram the concemns of the Eurapean regulators about the deterioration of the
quality of the poniolio; it is feaged that forbaazance measures might camouflage this deterioration of the
porifolio as debtord are able 1o maeet thelr hinanclal obligatiens for longes pediods as a resub of the concewlons.
The idemification of ferbearance measures for the corperate pontiolio will be based on the current Loan
Cality Classhcation framewark, with forbearnoe measuies anly applying to the clasiifed partfolia.

If farbearance mieasures are applied 10 a debior, the debtor will, by defimation, fall under the supenasion of the
Speclal Asset Management department. Lasty. items in the forbearance category must be reported for up 1o
two yaars after recovery from non-performing’ toperdorming’. This pericd of two years is refenred 1o as
'Farbame under probation’

445  Trends in the real estate portiolio

Rabobank’s portfolio of commerciad real estate In the Metherlands |5 primarily managed by FGH Bank and the
local Aababanis.

The commercial raal estate market detariorated further in 20014, panicufarly in the affices and retall seqments,
Lesg-term trends such as dermodgraphic ageing, the ‘New Way of Working' and online shopping are all
Impaant factors In this development. Due 1o the current market conditions, in which there (5 & chear
distinetion between properties with [iitle or no prospect of wability and those with a chance of sucoess, the
quality of the commescial real estate loan portfolio has declined. Less marketable properties, in particular, ane
declining in value. The raview and appeaisal policy and the non-performing loans policy are based on a risk:
onented approach. Where reviews reveal that the assumed value may no longes reflect the market vabue, the
value 1s reassessed, Appraisals are performed by an independent appraizer. Rabobank thereby complies with
the reguirements set by the Duich Central Bank (DRE) fer valuation, and the age of appeabal.

Falbowing the pubication of the repart by the Valuers and Accountants Platform (Taxateurs en ACCountants,
or PTA7 on real estate appeatal, Rabobank brought its valuation process in line with the recommendations
made in connection with the banking process where this was not already the case In 2013,

Within the Rabobank Group, management of the commenial real estate portfolio in the Metherdands has been
Intansifiad. The Cammercial Aeal Estate Task Force was set up for this specific purpose in mid-2010The Task
Force fraquently repars 1o the Executive Board on changes in the size of the Dutch portiolio and the level of
fisk it contains, and It will comtinue 1o keep 8 close gye on madket trends and panfolio mevisments for the next
few years. S1eps 1o tighten the financing, revision and appeahial policles have already been taken In recont years.

446 Asset Quality Review (A0R)

The financial crists and the huge Impact of this on the banking sector leg to the creation of the Sngle
Supervisory Mechanism (35M) and a sector-wide ieview of the quality of assets by the European Central Bank
[ECH), This Asset eality Roview [ADE) concentrated an the reference dste of 31 December 2013, 11 this
concerned axpasures and provisions already recognised In the financial staternents for 2013, The findings
with respect to the various areas of the AQR and the effect of these on the common equity ther 1 capltal also
redate to 31 December 2013, The review focused on a large part of the portfola, in the Netherlands, this
Invotved the total bsan portiolio of the local Ralbobanks and subsidiaries. In irelznd, the review concemed the
funding of commercial isal estate and the commerclal loan padtfalio, while in Mew Yaik the revies focused on
the portfolio of sreable corporme Ainange Iremactions

The review also considered the market risks, in particular with reference to the valuation of Credit Valuation
Ad|ustment [Cvd) and the proprisarny land holdings of Babo Real Estate Group.

The effect of the AQR findings on the 2014 financial statements mainly concesrs an adjustrment to the
prervisions for loan lesses, The amount of the provisions recognised in the staterment of financial position as at
31 December 3013 is the result af vhe methodology wsed by Rabobank for loan losses in 1013

This mothodology results in a specific provision, a collective prevision and a general provision (aho elorred to
s MRy and was based cn thie infommation avadlabde st the time, svents that could lmvobe impalmients and
the models used,
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Mo iverms were found during the review that would entad changes to the comparative figures for 2013

The total addition 10 the capital requisement and the provisions ks, a5 published in October 2014, set by the
ECH a1 EUR 2.093 milllign. A significant proportion of thés addition that relates to leans and land haldings has
been recognived in the profit and loss account for 2014 as part of the normal provishon process. This mainky
concenms adjusiments on the basls of information that only became available 12 the management in 2014,
Thie financial crisls nas led 16 4 more predent appioach 1o cradit sk The SSM and the ACR a3 cairled out by
tha ECE hawe accelerated this change, For Ranobank, it will lead to the miraduction of more conservative and
stricter loss indicators. An adjustment 1o the related provision levels has alteady been made in 2014,

Im additicn, the more conservative approach has led to @ change in the parameters for the general provision
[IEMAL For the determination of its IEAE, Habobank wses the Expected Loss (EL) as the siarting point.

An acfuitment has been made lor the period nesded to identify b lois [the Loss Identification Period), in view
of the developmiernt of the econamy and the portfolio, this perod was extended in 2004, The Dasis for
detenm!ning the EL was also changed to more prudent principles in 2004,

4.5 Currency risk In the banking environment

Ranobani is exposed 10 the effect of Muctuations in exchange rates on it inancial pedition and cash fowe

Im the trading emvironment, currency risk - lke other market risks ~ (s managed based on the Value st Risk

[VaR) limits st by the Executive Board, as detalled in naraqtaph 4.7, Market risk in the trading environment’

The banking environmaent ks affected only by translation risk; the other currency risks in the banking

environment are fully hedged Translaticn risk becomes evident when the bank’s consolidated balance shest

and resulis are prepared, wheneby all rerms in foreign cuences must be valued against euros This makes the

financial data sensiive 1o forsign-currency valuations. Transdation tisk manifests jtself in different ways within

Raoobanic:

+ Rabobank’s soheency ratios may be diecied oy enchange-rate Muctuations as & result of differsnces in the
exchange-rate cormpasition of the capital and the RWiAs

+ Eschange-rate fuctuations can potentially affect the value of fully or partially) consolidated foreign entites
of which the functional currencies are not auros.

+ The value of non-eura-denarminated strategic interasts can be affected by exchanga-rate fluctuations

I relation to the manitanng and management af transtation risk, Rabobank appies & policy designed 12
protect the bank's Core Tier-1 ratio fram exchange-tate fluctwations.

46  Liguidity risk

Ranobank is exposed to liquidity risk, Le. the risk that the bank s unable to meet al of its (relpayment
obdigations, as well as the risk that the bank is unabie 1o fund increases in assets at reasonable prices or
unable at adl This could happen It for instance, clients or professionsl counterparties suddenty withdraw mose
funds than axpacted, which cannat be mat by the banks cash resaurces or by selling or pledging assets of by
bosowing funds from thisd parthes.

Fer a long tkme naw, Rabobank has recognised liguidity risk as a majoe sk type. Rebobank's palicy therefore Is
1o match thee teem of funding with the term of lsans granted. Long-term boans most be financed threugh
funds entruited by cuttamers o ong-tenm funding by profeidional markets

Lisuidliny risk i rranaged baged on thees pillars. The firsr of these ses sirict lmis for the maimim ourgoing
cash flows within the wholesale banking business. Among ather things, Rabebank measures and eporisona
dhally basts what incoming cash flows can be expected during the first twebe months. Limdts bave been set e
thesa oulgoing cash flows. including far each currency and each site. In order to be as well prepared as
possible for potential crisls s@uations, a number of detalled contingency funding plans (CFPs) ae in place
which are subjecied 1o operational tests on a regular basis,

The second pillar i used 1o maintain a substantial buffer of liquid assets, In sddition 1o the funds held &
central banks, these assets can be wed 10 borrow from cental banks, used In repo transactions o n arder 1o
sl dingctly im Uhie maekoet in order (o generate liquidities iImmediately, The amount of the liguidity buffer &
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related to the risk to which Rabobank is exposed theough its balance shest. Rabobank Group has securitized a
partion of the loan portfolio fwithin the company) In recent years, which means it can be pledged from the
ceniral bank and therefore serves as an additional liquidiny buffer. Since this concams intedmal securitsations,
solely for liguidity purposes, they are not visible in the economic balance sheet but are included in the
weallable liquidity buffer,

The third plllar entalls the restriction of liquédity risk threwgh a prudent funding policy almed at meeting the
financing requirements of the group units at acceptable cost, Diversification of sources of funding and
cuwrencies, flexiblility of the funding instuments applied and a hands-on indestor relations appecach are key
factors. This pravents Rabobank Group from being overdly dependent on a single source of funding.
Furthermore, scenarlo analyses are parfarmed sach month to simulate the possible consequences of awide
range of st scenaion, distinguishing between scenaics spacific for the maiket and scerarios ypecilic foe
Rabiobank, as well as a combination of them. Morthly wepons on the liquidity position of the Group as a
whole are submdtted to the Dutch Centrad Bank. These reparts are prepared in accordance with the guidelines
drawr up by this supervisary authariny,

4.7 Market risk in the trading environment

‘Warket risk in the trading emdranment’ refers to changes n1he value of the trading book as a result of,
amond) nl:ht-rlhlnqs, changes in interest rates, credit sproads, hrnh;m currencies and shane prices. Anahyses of
the market risk in the Bank bock are included In paragrach 4.3, tnterest-rate risk In the banking ervironment’
and paragraph 4.5, Tusrency risk in the banking ervironment.

At the consolidated level, the risk is represented by the Value at Risk (VaR), baus-polnt sensitivity and event
risk. The Executive Board annually ratifies the risk appetite and the correspording limits. These limits gre
convited ine limis at book level and ane monitared daily by The masket mansgément fisk management
deopartments. in addition to the VaR, bash-potnt sensitivity and esent-risk limits, an extremaly detailed system
of trading controls per book ks In place, induding rotation risk [Le. risk that the yield curve will shift), delta limits
per bucket, nominal limits and the mamum numbser of contracts. The risk position is reported to the senior
rmanagement on & daily basis and discussed In the varlous risk management committees on a monthly basis,

The VaR indicates, bated on ani year of historical market rends, the maimum loss for a given reliabdlioy level
and horlzon under ‘normal’ market conditions. The internal ViRt model farms an integral pan of Rabobank's
risk management framework and has also been approved by DNE for the determination of the solvency
requirenent for masket risk in the traging book. Rabobank has opted 1o appdy a VaR based on historical
simulation for which one year's worth of histasic data is used. The VaR s calculated over time horizons of both
one day and ten days For intemal risk management purposes, Rabobank has epted for & confidence level of
97 5%, Furthermer e, the VaR with & confidence level of 90% is also cabculated on a daily basis.

A significant sdvantage of a Vak maodal bated on histotical simulatien is that e assurmptions need to be
miadke with regasd to distributions of potentisl value changes for the varlous financial instruments.

A drawback, however is that 3 cholce needs to be made with regasd to the peviod of histarcal market trends
which could potentially affect the amount of the Val as caloulated. Based on the requirements imposed by
the regulatar and fullowing our awn research, we decided to use an historlcal pedied of ane year,

Barck Tsting & used in order 1o e The sciual outoomes on a regular basis in order i detesmine the validicy
of the assumptions and parametersdactors uwsed In caloulating the VaR.

4.8  Operational rsk

Rabobank defines operational risk as the risk of losses incurred as a result of inadequate or dyshunctional
internal processes, people and systems, or as a resull of external ends and developments. Potential legal
ks and reputational ks are conddered in the asesament and management of cperational tikk.

I measuting and managing operatianal risks, Rabobank Group operates within the parameters of the most
adivanced Basel Il apgrosch, the Advanced Measurement Approach,
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The bank's operational sisk policy is based on the principle that the group entitizs have primary esponsbiliny
far managing aparational risk and that this must be integrated into the strategic and day-to-day decison:
making processes. The purpose of operational sk managemens i o identify, measure, mitigate and monitor
varlous types of operational risks The risk quantification process supparts the management resiponsble in
pricditising the actiens to be undenaken and the allocation of people and resources.

Iy it b bmplarment this policy. Rabobark applies the ‘thice lines of defence’ model, The group entities
reprasent the ‘first line of defence’ and are fully resporsible for day-ta-day risk acceptance and Integrated risk
mianagement and mitigation within the risk appetite framewerk determined. The rsk management functions
within the group entities and within Group Risk Management together constitute the ‘second line of defence’
The risk managemant function within the group entities acts as an adviser on risks and challenges the “firit
lirve of defence’ on the fisk management methad used within the group entity. Grous Risk Mansgement i
resipns b for the growp péctune and for challenging group entitles and local risk management functions on
thelr risk management. Inteinal audh at the group leval and within the group entites constitute the ‘third Bne
of defencel

At the aroup level, the Operational kisk Cormminee ks sesponsible fot adopting the palicy and parameters.

Im addition, Group Ritt Mansgement alsg reports each quarter on changes in operational fisks at the group
level, A number of risk management committees have been established within the group entities, whase
retparslbdities include ident ifying, managing and monitoting the operational risks (including sysem
comtinulty risk and frawd risks) of the refevant entity. A Risk Salf Assessment 15 conducted within the group
entities. This process iacludes making an assessment of the main apeational risks and identifiing mitigating
measues ifrisks fall outside the nse appetite. This process s facilitated by Group Risk Management and the
resLilts ane commuanicated, at the group level, to the Operational Risk Comminee. In additicn, Group Rk
Management cooedinates annual scenario analyses with senior management of the full Rabobank Group,
which shads light on the groups nik profile,

4.9  Legal and arbitration proceedings

Rabobank Group is invalved in several legal and arbitration proceedimgs in the Metnerlands and other
countries, Inchuding the United States. in connectkon with claims beaught by and against the Rababank Group
and arising frormits busiress operations, Although it is not possible 1 predict or detstming the evenual
autcame of all pending of mminent proceedings and processe, Rabobank Group |5 of the view (hat the final
owtcomes of the various pending and/or futuee legal proceedings will net have a materially adverse effect on
the Rabobank Group's Anandal position or profitability, given s size, strong balance sheet, steady fiow of
Income and provisions policy,

Libar/Euribar

Habobank has recelved a nurrber of requests in recent years from regulators in vasious counthies 1o Rae
infarmation and documents in relation 1o various isues, including ssues related to the fuing of intenast rates.
Rabobank is conperating, and will continue 1o cooperate, with the regulatoes and authorities involved in these
global kveestigations.

O 25 Ocrober 2013, Rabobank entered Into @ settlemeant agreement with various authordities in relation o
their Investigations nte Rababank's histoncal LIBOA and EURIBOR subsmission proceised

Additional inforrmation 15 availabde o the bank's oo parme website, All financial fine related 1o this
settlarnent agreement were fully pald and accounted for by Rabobank in 2013, The mathad inwhich the
inwestigation by the Dutch Public Provecution Service into Rababank of the Interesi-rate submissions was
terminated ks currently being reviewad by the Hague Court of Appeal.

Ratobank, alang with a knge numbser of other pane| banks and inter-dealer beokers, has been mentioned in
conmnection with a large nurmber of alleged class action wits and Indedidual civil court cases brought befone

tha Federal courts in the United States. These proceedings relate to the US dodlar [USTH, LIBOR, lapangto yoen
(JFY), LIBOR, THBOR (mote: Fabsobank was never a miembser of the TIBOR panedl and EURIBOR
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An Argentinean consumer protaction crganisation beought an alleged class action sult against Aabobank In
Argentina in 2014 (n ralation to USD LIBOR. Additionally, the bank has also been summicnad o appear bafore
several Durch cours in civil proceedings relating to SURIBOR. Furthesmore, varlious individiwals and entities
hawve made a nurnber of allegations relating 1o EURIBOR in leters 1o, and |egal procesdings against, Rababank
and an Irish subsidiary.

Sinca the alleged class action suits and civil proceedings listed above which have been brought in the US o
elsewherne are, by their nature, subject to uncertaintles, it is difficult to predict thelr cutcomes. Rabobank
mabniains that it has mounted compelling legal and factual defences against these claims and intends to
continue defending tsell 2gainst them.

Faortis

Tha Dusch invvestors' Assoclation (VEB) has ksued a summaons agalnst the company formerly knoven as Fostls NV,
and currentfy trading as Ageas N, the underseiters involved - including Rabobank - and the former disectors
of Fortis N, The Dutch Irvestods’ Association states in this sumimans that investoes wene misled by the
prospecius published by Ageas MY, in connection with its rights Bsue in September 2007, The Association
states that the impact and risks of the subprime crisis on Fortis and 135 cash position were mispresented in the
prospectus and has requested a declaratony judgment stating that the defendants acted llegitimately and
must therelore ba held llable for the loss allegedly suffered by invesiors In Fortis, We malntain the view that
the above-mentioned loss of EUR 18 billlon has not been properly substantiated, The proceedings concern a
settlernent of the collect ive loss, which means that the court will enly rule on the queston of whether the
defendants, Including Rabobank, are llabie. Depending on the eutcome of thewe proceedings, it will become
clear whether separate loss proceedings are 1o be expected Rababank s defending itsell againat the claime at
peisent, howeye, the bank & unable 1o #ssess the outcome of these o any lubiéquent proceedings

Interest rate derivatives |n the SME sector

Rabobank provides interest rate derivatives for business customess who wish to reduce interast rate risk
associated with variable {Euribar) loans. Such an interest rate swap peotects customers fram rising (Euribae)
[narean rates and helps businesses 1o keep their interest payments at an acceprabls level

Fi business customers who have both a logn and an interest rate dervative, thee bank asiesies, of reasseises,
the Ind~vidual position in 2014 tand imo 3015), If a closed derivative turns out ta ne langes sult the custames
requirements, the bank and the customer set out to find a selution which s acceptable to the custamer,

Thils solutkon may range from resbtucturing 1o offsetting the dernvative, a caombination of these two measures,
o full or partial compensation. Each of these sodutions Is tallor- made, which means that all the circumstances
of the business are considered in the assessment In taking thess measures.

Notes 1o the finanelal siatements of Habahank Nedarland
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Notes to the statement of financial
position of Rabobank Nederland

Unless otharwise stated, all amounts are in milions of ewros

1 Cash and cash equivalents

Ihis itern conslsts of legal tender, balances avallable on damand wath foreign central banks in countries wheie
Rabobank operates, as well as a balance with De Mederlandsche Bank (the Dutch Central Bank] required under
15 rinimum eserve policy.

2 Short-term government securities

This itemn refates (o govedrment secunities with an onginal term to matueity of wp (o two yeass that the central
bank in the country of origin will redeem at a disoount or accept as collateral The cost and market value of
shart-tesm govemment secudithes are virually the same,

01 Pk
Rrcognied in the tading poanfoli LEH] L]
Aecogniued in ihe irvebment portiolo (1 (F1-]
Total ibzet-term gavairement iscurities 1] 1858

3  Due from other banks

This ttem represents loans and advances to ether banks. ather tham in the famm of interest-bearing securities,

4 Pt
Included in Evin hem are:
Loans prad ad b g Wih4a L L]
O which vakordmabed e
Pl v ol vegrvvailsley froo oty Sanky yifus Shan goup compasiey s o olluan
On darmand or ursdaied B9 25,31
£ Nmeeahy P 29,878
= ¥imorvthy g §yeae MG LI
=1 year €5 yean e.aaT IIST
= § yoan 11,537 21,859
18172 134,603

The fair value of collatesad that Rabobank can sell or pledge ks 26,784 (3012: 22450

0 Financial Sratements 2014 Habohank Nederland
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4 loans to customers

This iterm consises of loans and advances arising in the course of business operations, other than recelvables
from banks and Intesest-Beaning secusities.

2N 2
Brpakoiown of ko 8o cutiornsr:
Public serin lending 1543 1572
Parwibe e Lo bintdirg 186483 120,461
Frofrycnal wcurnli Bamatons. wim ads
Toual Fending LRSS iaLE54
it inthivisem ane
O which b8 §AouD COMmpanes [ TA360
Chi mortgagn - 13
Total home mangages - T
el lending LEESLF] [FEE L2
Of which recognitsed in the trading pontfolo 1,767 LS
O it e g i U sl o gt ) (]
135,430 131878
Thet batrra el loana aned sdvancr can be broken dewm o ol
Cin dermand o undated ke LR
£ 3 mantha 32378 Lralis
= Imanthi 1 year BELTE RAE e
= | yeaw < 5 years 41,194 |70
= 5 yearh BALETE 4T
135,438 131,873
Breahdiren of grrite 1ol or endng by seiar
Aggricubusl arine e A%
Traide, ndintry and services LA 55%
Pivrabe indiridaaki [ s
TOUs o0

The fair valug of collateral acceptod in the form of debt secunities 1s 5,361 (2003 2.804),

Reclassified assets

Based on the amendments (o BAS 39 and IFRS 7, 'Reclassification of finsnclal assets, Rabobank reclassifed a
numibser af Financial assets held for trading’ and Available-for-sate financial sssets’ o Loans to customens’ and
'Duie froem other banks' in J08. BEabobani has identified assets ta which this amendment applies, with the
Intention clearly shifting to holding the sacurities for the neas future as opposed to sellng or tracing them in
the short term The reclassifications were effected as fiom 1 July 2008 at thelr falr value at the time. This note
prowices details on the impact of the reclassifications at Habobank.

Thiee table below styows the canmying amaounts and fair values of the reclassified avers

30 Dernnkary 1014 I Dy 01T
I o o fovca Carmang amount’ Fair vl Comnang amaant Fawvake
Financlal asvets held fos radiesy reciaaified oo losra 7 334 LT 333
Availatie o sale hranal aaser s eoalfed toboam RTE 1,218 ey FRITY
Tatsl & sl lmuxified bo ) 534 o547 AL LI

Motes 16 the siaternent al financal postion of Rabobank Nededland

522/594

Oooooooa



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O00000000o0bodoooooooooooo00o00000o0odnogngnoOonod(eose2s)
Oooooooa

if the reclassification had not been made. nat orofit for the assets hald for trading would have been 26 higher
(2013 £2 higher). Tha charge in eguity position in 2014 would have been maee negativa by 180 (2013: more

positive by 113] if the classification of financia assets held for sale had not been made

Fedlowing reclassification the reclassified financial asses made the followdng contribution to operating poht

hefore Laxation

Firarerided T Decerifer

Pl Fo
et interest income v 1
Vidlur sk Emwenis 1 .
Op#rsting prafit belore tiastion on reciiaslified Seancial ssssts beld Tor tading 1 3
hiet intaredt income ar 1]
Walue adpnbmenis. LF 154
Operating prafit bafers Lt wclaisified Brancial susets held for trading 158 EiL

The value adjusiments include reverse entifes of mpairmant and income after the wiite-off in the amount of
148 (300 X 235) and Impalrments in the amount of 26 [011:7%)

5 Interest-bearing securities

This itern represents inteest-bearing negotisble bonds and othet interest-bearing secutities, ather than shor-
term govermment securities.

2914 o lE]
el -bearing lecuitien of
Futslic sthostie, FEEEL] EETT
Crbeet Asuer L] BLTM
Tetal intereu-beaning sscunitles BB ADE 4,753
Ereskdawen ol intevest-bearng umuiitios:
Inectment pasifclio L BRI
vvestment portfolio st s alue thiougs profe o loss 24T 801
Trading pertoba 1156 139
R ADG 4,753
e portiols a b includes:
b Aitry gronp comgans S5 53138
Wit ungurition M0ELE {TRLE]
| securitiesi g oup-comp: L ELE ] BESS
Ll wit-bearing i 9406 4,755

37 Financial Sratements 2014 Rabohank Nederland
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6 Shares

This itern condists of shares and ather norFinterasi-bearnng securitis, including emporary olher indesirenis.

M o)
This beraln demm i ol
Ivesiment porticlia (10 L5 =]
i sl v il e il gl prols o los Ccsunt £ 40
Traging pertisho i .y
55 LA
Livrd portion of the portfulo in 154
Man-leited pormon of the portfoso a4 =0
a5 1,154
7  Interests in group companies
This itern Includes the Intergsts hald dirmctly in gioup companias,
o FuF ]
Share Injeret
(Ol STt 5951 b7
Ot Pase BB
Tt equity i gD i 15275 11,041
Ststerme o ¢
Book walue 25 a1 1 lanuary LERE ) Tl
Purnchuriersicapsl contibutioss duseg The fnaeial pra iy &4
Sale ol Robece = i6iE
Salet, dhpoaals sl Boindat ko during the Ananclal vew (1430 |615]
Frafy Teg Ata
Dividend (¥ ] 1657
Fewal uatai 1 3 |555)
ook valus at 31 Decambar 13,375 13,141
8 Otherequity interests
This item includes the interests in assodiates
S04 k)
Equity interwst, of which
et i Ut -1 1]
et L35 IS
Tetad otfer equity Smeieits LEA0 1,653
CRangey in eopaity interyei:
Carvgadg amourt @ 1 Lanuany 2553 LIG
Bsprpumiitienr chariri Bhe Aruanicisl e L] 4
Diuponats during the financial year - i
Het proft 4 13
Rirvihsatani n LEET]
Dveidbenit LLL] (il 1]
Carrying tenessnt an 3| December 1,640 1,853

Meodes 16 the aternant of finanzial position ol Rababank Nedsitand
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9 Intangible assets

This itern includes soltware,

JoH o)
Seltware a4 410
Teisd intangible asseb 443 410
Chamges in intangible aiiets 2014
St Tocal
Cairisy amoust o1 1 lanuary a1 F1li
Berunilicen denng Ehe Anancisl yrae 1%l il
Digpoaats during the financial yasr 10 groep coempaniet) i i54]
At L ¥ 11390
hmpainmend loanes -
Emchanges differences and ot ] =]
Carrying senoent 18 31 Decermbar 441 aay
AU ated smatiaation sl ampaleen ey g Lo
Changesin intengible assets 2013
Loltuy Tatal
Carrpeg amount ot 1 lanuary a (L]
Aefimitidd derinig i Arafcial e 18 -]
Dhgpcay. during e iranclal pear (1o group corrpanies) g -
IITRFLHETi O 1 138] [13a]
I pairmmens ke i LEE ]
B b dilforenices and oibey ] 3
Carryineg sevemeril 4 11 Dwcernlber 4fb Lald
Arcumyisied smardicstion snd mpsirrang looes bl it

10 Property and equipment

This itern conslsts of land and bulldings, equipment and other tangible non-current assets, as well as property
and equipment nat in own use, such 8% non-cusient a55ets acquied ynder fareclowre,

20M M3

Land and bnukding in cwwne TMé f ]

Ty 152 18

Teaal prapsity sad equipment #38 LAl
Changeain propery and squipment 2014

Labrat il Bt

11 e e feuiprnent Total

Carrpeg amourd 8 1 lanuary i F =l

Ao dening the Anancisl e k] L1 &

Divgporiaiy during the frnanclal yrar L1} s 1

Depresciation LLr] Il [ ]

Embarge difforencrs and cther (L] ] (1]

Carrying sevasri o 11 Dacembar e LEF] L]

Arcurmuiated depreciation sed impsimren lones L) 1 Bt

Financial Statements 2014 Habohank Nedar lane
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Changes n proy '_"'\-'. .Hl‘l
dnfavd Baldingi

1 v e Fipsiprreni Fodal
Catrng amaoust #1 | lanusny A 145 ETE]
Aequinitisen dering the finanisl yeae r 0 a1
Uisponats during the financial year FLET] na ar
Darprrisdlion 18 ' L1
brrysairrrend ks LLri] i L]
Enchasge dilfotices nd ciber i [5]] E]
Earryireg smvunt af 11 Decombar EE ] 128 (111
it Sled shepret ition i e | EL e Ti5

11 Otherassets

This iterm redates o pracious metals, cenificates regresenting precious matali, coins and medals mads of
precious metals (nol being legal tender), goods and warehouse recepos, cutrent and dedened 1ax assers and
assets that cannot be cladsifed under any othet beading,

SO o IR ]
This inclutes e foliswing Aem
Debeired vix Salbdllnaes 2 T2
Emplayer benefis 5 5
Oy 55 1437
Dihsr miets (X131 3,084

Fiscal wal for corparale INCome fax PUrpo s

Rabobank Mederland forms a fiscal unit for purposes of corporate Income tax with a number of domestic
subsidiaries and the member anks. Under the fiscal unit, each participating legal entity is jointly and severally
liable far the fiscal unit’s corporate iIncoms tax llabdities

12 Derivative financial instruments

The notes ta the darvatives are Inclisced balow.

ST o)
A
Fhisierm can b brokon dewn o oliows:
Dhrivptivs ooranscns with thind partes 52833 LT
et with g P LLEL a0
Total deriwative fi &711 47,380
Listwhitien
Thiw ttem can be broken dovwn m ioliowe
Derbyative oonmrscy with dhind parthes L5 48555
Dot o gt i 1 gy I 08 7344
Teasd deriwwtive i 1l Te 188 5810

35 Notes 1o the staternent of financial position of Rabobank Nedetland
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The table balow shows the notional amounts and the positive and negative falr values of Rabobank's
derivative contracts with third parties.

Notona! smacni Fuaar vokaey
Ar 31 D evibies 004 Al Lirlitie
Crerivirtive Feriancial ivibrurmeni hekd b rading
Inited esL dale Oon FSCLE R FERLE] R 0,83
atc L Lo 40, 354 43,978
Ligtwd B KL i 1
Currency contracty a4, 984 LA LEiL]
o 53402 5T 6435
Listesd 1,572 39 4
Credn devivative Anand sl instramese, 5584 It 5
Othaer comtracty nim (1] -
o B15E Tz U5
Listed 1133 &7 133
Deerprartive frncial syonemen ek as hedges
Dieriviillng hiiclil idliusmen i deilgiated id (el sdlie b 138,543 5,527 T
lrrieves nabe uoninaks 44,155 1571 REELE]
Cisvency Comtrsg 78 1556 50
Dhervvative hancisl mimwmenn dedgnaced as cash fow kedges
Cusrency corerssis Vo858 TEA 1445
Total darivathve & al ith thivd parts TESENIF #3883 6,080

Matona! dmaunls Far vtk
Ar 11 (ecember 23110 Adgar: Lttt
Dirirvntive Fenancial itrummenm hekd i ading
Intevet rate con tracts a0 ERE A .18
ane LT3 b5 LA
Limed LT LE] I L]
Curreny conie scts ATA50 4,532 5500
o 174, 5 4552 5500
Livtmd - - -
Cintl derniathve Bhanclal intiumesey s 194 452
Qiivid Do BT 22621 1462 1450
aTc (5 28 1,088 3T
Limed T.0a30 m w3
Dlerivative hnancial imtrumments hakd ay hecges
Pleriwative finsnclal imbrumenis dedgnated o fer e hedger Tmeer 1090 11580
IFiterril $30 CoRLIBCEL 63,734 1871 AE
Cumency coniricts ArIN Lo L
Deevivartive anncial iriteusmen [ diesignated s cilh foe hedgn
Cumency comirscty 2045 ] am
Tkl ety nanerial caed B e = i 2839912 Fraes an855

A6 Financial Statements 2014 Rabohank Nader land

527/594



EDINETOOOO

Oo0O00000000o0bodoooooooooooo00o00000o0odnogngnoOonod(eose2s)
Oooooooa

Breakuown ofrading and investment partfalos
UM SO0
Tratfireg por fodio ingucling groep morganies
Shaet-leim goveiniment seduritici LF1] 3]
Loaem 10 rustomeny 17 1974
rieresl Bearing Helurtaes ER L] ne
Sk Fi] £43
L=l EFE0
IiEitrmat gl
Shars-lerm government securitie LiE) 1443
Irierest-beanng securiies. HLITA =all
Shares &S0 53
Lorn i ey [ )
A5.247 R0
Irufaded intha reeviman portdolion of group companies Lx100 08
Charges inthe nvesiment porifelio
AL T Jarvisany o0z 157
Ferdign enchange d Meinadei 408 [LEET]
Al vtions E51%] 1540%
Dhnjooriali 1o Tad) 114,558}
T vakan changes A4 [th ]
Write-thown, impsmers s reverah . -
Othar 455) 2348}
At 31 fhecembar LENL w0831
Thes bttt ol ieruiitioe ingleSed in the imritrent gortiobn othes Sun gioug compatic: S o tollvi
O denand o undated = F S
& 3 maontha 1879 1505
= Ymenthi s 1 yea 1,958 i,fod
= 1 iy 5 B oyeany (E5F. ] (L]
= 5 peas BE.780 77,89
HE.247 0,801
it portinfio therangh probs o o nciudieg géoun tompbaneses
Imieresl-bmanng securties LT FRL
Shanes EL] a2
2511 28510

13 Prepayments and accrued income

This itern mainly relates to accreed intesest.

37 Netes 1o the siarernent af finsnclal position of Rabobank Nedetland
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14 Due to other banks

This itemn represents amoums owed to credit institutions, other than debr securities and subordinated debe,

38

of which:
Totah i fuile: M4 fiLE
Geroup compuanies MATY =T R
Oty wasry inkenesty 2 nn
Thar tarren of amonty owed B0 othe barky ofhes thasgroun companies s o follows:
On demund of unduted 15,388 131473
w Amaniha TAT aay
= Jmantha 5 1 year 1Ly ALY
» | yout & 5 yean 5535 7483
* 3 ey 4,505 s
38,508 ILIF

15 Due to customers

This itern comilsts of amounts due 1o custormners, ather than debt securities. Due to cwstomess abso includes
Inwastments of central banks amounting o 20 (2013: 22 billion,

Pt inchudie: Fl] e
G R paICL B.550 (LA ]
Cxburr guity inberm L5 ore

Saving: comprise all deposits and savings accounts aof natural persons, non-profit-making asscclations and
foundations, as well as non-transferable savings bonds.

The terms of amainis due to customers othar than to group companies are as follows:

Al ol )

O dernand of ufelileg 41,883 AL
= Jmanvthi 42500 2343
= ¥ moniths £ ) peed 5547 4,508
1 yaar 54 years FET1] 3,613
> 5 ywan WA e
108955 a5, 758

16 Debtsecurities in issue

Ths inem rebates 1o nooesubondinated bonds and other interest-bearing secuities, such as certificates of deposie

20 0TI
Tracdable dels wecusiie 13451 138, 752
Creer bt srcurties AT R L]
TELI2E 189.670

Fhae s of debf sexunbees other tham of group compaenies can be broken diowsn @ ol gan:
On demand or undated 247 358
 Iimenithi aTaa arand
> I manihes U yes o558 B0
1 year 5§ peary CERTY] B30
= §ypoan 40,117 ELL
TELE3R 185,670
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17 Otherdebts

This itern includes liabilities thar cannot be classified under any other head-rg, such as shon positions in
securities and labilities associated with securitised recelvables. Otver Kabifivies also Inchsdes. iahilities for staff
cenifs, takes and national insurance contributions, At yead-end 2014, over 54 billion inlecal Rzbobank

OFGagEs wis securitied,

Eel] o1
Thininchsdes
Dt scusiities bn iase 54737 LT FE]
Curverd tax liahilitien m 156
Cepeer debi 143 LT
Tetal ottwr debt sz 57,248
18 Provisions

10 . E]
Prandnbon for penth | ooty iy 20 188
Prareiboen o deelereed tas ballvlries =
Dberr proisoni -] im
Tedal providees ELH a4
Pension provision

The provision for pensions and ather allowances lellowing teemination of employmént consiis of a provision
for persicns 23 (2013:9] and other employes benefits 217 (2013: 157),

For Rabotsark Group, the not kabllity for pensions is 166 {2013 66); for Rabobank Mederland, this is 18(2013: 4)
(L&, the balance of the pension provision and the penslan clakbm of 5 (201 3: 51). The data included in the
consolidated balance sheet and notes to the Aabobank Group's balance sheet on data inchuded for the
financial year with respect to this provision are detaiied bebowe

Pension schemes

In May 2013, Rabobark mached agregment with the trade unions regarding the amendment ta the Calbective
Labour Agreement (CAD), The parties agreed on a new pension scheme o replace the current scheme
admintstered by the Rabobank Pension Fund, The new pension scheme, which became effective with
retroactive effect on 1 lanuary 3013, is a group defned-banefit scheme based on a retirement age of 67 and
a target accrual rate of 2 percent. Each year Rabobank depasits pension contributions into the Rabobank
Persian Fund based on a feed sritem in an attempt (o achieve the @rget pension acorual for services
pravided during the yoar of peivice based an a conditional canpi-average schema with a conditional
Indexation. in paying the annual pension contributions, Rabobank will fully and finally have satkhed all Bs
pension abligations and will no longer have any financial commitments in relation to the underiying years
of participation and pensicns previowsly accrued, In the context of the risks pansfened, Rabobank paid a
one-Time amount of 500 tewards the creation of an sdex deposin, In addison, Rababank will 2cr asa
guarantar during the period 2014-2020 for the realisation of the Tange persion accrual foe the services
provided during this period up to a maximaem amount of 250,

The new penslon schems qualifies as a defined contribution plan under |AS 19 Rabobank's obligation is
limited to ke premiam payments owed, less previoudy made payments. Since the pension wCheme
administened by Stichting Rabobank Pensioenfonds no bonger cualifies as a defined-beneht pension schems,
practically the only pension schemes that cartinue 1o qualify &3 defined benefit schemes are those of
Frigsland Bank and ACC Loan Management Limined as at 31 Decernber J014, These ate career-average
difuned-bonefit schomis, administared by alund or othorwise, The sssets are valued sach year by
Independent actuaries based on the methoed prescribed by IFRS. The most recent actuarial valuations were

MNotes 16 the staternent of financial position of Rabobank Nedeiland

530/594



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O00000000o0bodoooooooooooo00o00000o0odnogngnoOonod(eose2s)
Oooooooa

performed at tha end of 314 The tables relating 1o the waighted averages of the main actuariz! assumptions
and the future premium payments in 2014 relate to these two penzion schemes. The rable showing
nwestments in plan asses are based on the pension schems administersd by ACC Loan Management Limited,

i o) of euros 2014 203
Fronent value ol itulilie acminiibened by hndy [24] L]
Fair value of plan ety a5 am
Mot linbdini e L1 L]

Mowvements In phn.ﬂ.wh and linbBries

i il of ST Jor4 o lE ]
Prenait vidher of halelftie: adminhiemd by huhds

Presens vahse ol emmlements ot | Revwary 55 R
Fuewyn exchirge dflerenies ] .
lriteread I 4
WCRERE i ERODEmENTS Junng (Fe yeur 3 ]
Fremi Ensted by the gk . 15
Benefiiy paxd {171 L]
Trarafe of sccroed bensfits .
Periion plan bemminaton d 20,630]
Perion scheme prandment m

Curtslments i a1
Oy i m
Ariurial gaire: and lose enskg from changes ha k] W
Artiaril gairn and |ocies arsieg om Chasges @ Brasdal Jssrspions a8 1,35
Pravant walug of labdities heid in m hemd sn ot 31 Decambar a7 EH]
Fmr widue off plan indrts

Fpiryalue of maccrat 1 fenaary ara ¥
Forpegn exchasgs déferences 7

Inbarmg 1% a
Frema il iy b employ L] i
Premerms conisbted by the evployess . L)
Bersefriy pa [LE] 1
Trarfer of acoreed benefis and oo . 151
Peoridion prlan DeidivUan J BT}
Cxnar 15} [8]]
Aciizell vegult L] s
Falr valus of sviats ot 31 Decomber 257 arm

Estimated premium contributions for 3015 are appeokimately 6, Flan assets have bean allocated as follows:

a4 R ]
‘Shares sncd aliemaiives 4.1 LLE- L
ribereat-breai v secuitics LR Tod
Hral reate 4™ Ll
Cavh snd cash spavabents by Gd%
Le ) % 1
Total 100% 100%
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The costs recognised in the consolidated profit or loss account ate shown In the table balow.

Inmitlions of pres Jord o
IPneresi on Rabibties A L
Imtereat on plan sascy 15 [#3]
Costs baasd on paicd of employment durisg the yesr 3 125
Pension scheme amendment 4 .
Lozt Tiguainia] on o i dl 1 in
Total coptof defined benehit plans ¥ il

The welghtied averages of the main actuarial aisumptions for the valuation of the pension provision (defined
beneft pension schames) as ot 31 December ate shewn In the table below (in % per year):

2004 003
Dnuconnt rate L 10
‘Wage infation 6% 5%
Friv e inflation 4% 1%

Qther provisions
Oither prowvisions concerm a iestructuring peovision, a provision for credit guarantees elated to loans
peanisions for other rsks and guarantees and a provision for ongoing legal claims.

Felt] Folh)
CRANGES In Other pression
A lanisaey im i
Addsons changed fo profii L] Lt
Whtkelrimali bl delebas (2604 1B&1]
Cenar changes. {1a} 43|
B Dot 05 5IR

19 Subordinated debts

This mepresents the kaans relating 1o the ssee of Trust Profered Secwities and subordinated |odns,

M o]
Loans reluted to the issue of Tost Prefened Securite I IV, Vand V1 1,684 1.83%
Subsesrdivutmd leami g e
AR D1 Decemniser 12,586 817

Rabobank Mederland Issued three suboedinaied bonds in 2014, one in GBR one in EUR and one in JFY.

The EUIR I billion bond has a maturing date of May 2006 and has a coupon rate of 2. 50%. Rabobank & entithed,
but nir ablaed, ta sarky repayment of this bond loan in 3019 The GEP 1 billian band has a maturity date af
May 2029 and has a coupon rate of 4.625%. The 31 S0.8. billan bond has a matuimy dae of December 2024
and a coupon rate of 1470%

Rabobank Mederland leswed throe subordinated Ioans in 2013 a 1,000 loan with a fked Intoiest rate of 3.875%
and a maturity date of 2023;a USD 1,750 milllen loan with a fed interest rate of 4625% and a maturity date
of 7023 and a USD 1,250 million lcan with a fued Interest rate of 5 75% and a maturity date of 2043
Rabobank Mederland i<sued theee subosdinated loans in 2012 a 1,000 loan with a ficed interest rate of 4.125%
anid & matu ity date of 2022; 4 GBRP 500 nellion loan with a fiaed imenest rate of 5.25% 4nd & maturty date ol
H027; and & LIS 1,500 millinn baan with o e intod et it of 195% and & maturiny date of 20732

Rabsebank Medarland issued 3 1,000 Toan in 200 with 3 fied interest rate of 3.75% and a maturity date of 2020,
Ratebank Nederland ssued @ 1,000 loan in 2009 with a fixed interest rate of 5375% and a matunity dete of 2019

41 Notes 1o the siarernent of inandlal position ol Rabebank Nedettand
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20 Equity
2004 200
Thet tem cah be Lrace doven sl
Caphal o L]
Fremosm w4 »
Bazctaans IMrrebes | Critifig st 95 SB1H
Caphal Securibes 853 T4
Beval Ll FESErve b s
Statuton resere (4 F] [EILT]
et meeives [2B8| 124a07)
Profit fou he year 1352 1178
Totad aquity 037 V8061
Capital
Thits section includes the fully issued and pabd-up share capital All shases have been ssusd to local
Ralbobanis,

The Rabobark Mededand Articles of Avociation were amended on 26 September 2014, The par value per
Rabobank Mederlond share wias changed from EUR 1,000 1 EUR 100 surcs (pursuant to Article 15 of the
Artieles of Assaciatian). This has resulted in the transter of 5402 from Cap2al to Premium

in il of s
Crangey duting the yesr
Dippiing balafnm
From Capital io Premiam
Closing balence

Foot)

§E5 ¢

i milliam of muros 004 18
O diifing the yie
Openirg bulinee
From Capital o Premsm
Dlesang balance

1

Rabobank Certificates

Ao part of its member loyalty programme, Rabobank lssued certificates and member certificates between
2000 and 1005, There were a tatal of four aues (In 2000, 201, 2002 and 3005} and these certificates were
on'y avallable 1o members of Iocal Rabohanks. in arder to givie members the oppartunity to purchase o e
Member Certihcates, Rabobank arganised an internal market once a month Unid around February 2013, whan
supply and demand In the Inteinal matket were virtually in balance, supply Increased and demand - In
particular subordinated bonds - fell as a result of the debt crisis and market conditions and as a result of
Rabobask Medarland's duty-of-cane plogramme Rababank Mededand purchazed in the intenal market
Rabobasnk (Mermber Cenilicanes fonwihich thines wiss oo demand

| parly December 2013, Rabobank entened inoan anteement waith & third ety I anded 1o trander Aabobank
[Member] Certificates to Instinetional investors. At the same time, {was announced that the planned
milnimum distiibution would be raised from 5.25% to 6.5% on an annual basls and that Rabobank intended to
|t the Rabobank (Member) Cen#ficates on the stock exchange. The listing expanded our investor base as wall
as improwed tadabiline On 14 Ranuary 2004, the certificate holder mesting approved the proposed dhange in
ordes 1o facilate 3 Euronextr Amsterdam lising The fababank Cenficares have been lisied on Euronext
Amsterdam since 27 lanwary 1014, Thete cortificated tepresent equity imestments ksued by Rababaak Mederland

47  Financial Statements 2014 Rabobank Nederland
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through Stichting Admindstratie Kantoor Rabobank Certificaten. The launch price was. 105 00% (EUR 36 25) and
has increased o 107 A5% since the laundh (EUR 26.86) at 31 December 2014, An average of 7.3 million certificates
a day wers naded during this period an a otal of 238 milkon: Since the siock exchange Esting, Rabobank
Certificates a2é alio svailabls 1o non-Aaboebank rmermbeds This has increased the marketalylity of this indtrument.
The distribution pald per cenificate in 2014 was EUR 1625 (2013: EUR 1,275). The Executive Boaed Is entitled non
1o pay the distilbution. Unpald distrbation sill not be pald a1 o later date. A1 year-end 2014, the total rumber
of certificates was 217,561 365 The amounts listed in the table balow are based on the par value of EUR 25 per
Rabebank Certificate. Premiums and discounts on Rabobank (Member) Cenificates sswed and recouped and
the costs of the ke after tasation ase included In Retained eamings (see the siatement of equity]

CTTET

i il of s 2014 203
Changrs during Lhe year

Oypening bulsnce SAH L1
Ratackuank (Merben] Cortifieates dh iy the yeat . {2074
Earharepe of Babotank Exira Mermber Notey a 15
Eaobuar (Mersber] Cemfcanes isveed dunneg the year 108 1,000
Clating balance 5931 4,825
Capital Securitles

All Caplzal Securities are perpeiual and have no eapiry date. The distiibution on the Capilal Securities per issue
Is as follows:

Issue of USD 2,000 million

Th distribution is B4 per year and ks made payatde every six months in areass as of the lsue date

(® Mewvember 2011], for the fiest time on 29 Decemiber 2011, The Capital Securities are perpetual and first
redeamaliie on 29 June 2017, 1F the Capital Securities are not redeemed early, the distribwtion is set fior a
furthes five-year patiod, without a step-up, based on the US Treasury Benchmark Rate plus a 7495 mak-up.

fssue of USD 2,000 million

The distribution Is B375% per year and I% made Fu!,w.'qhtm FUpTY six menthe in aniears a4 ol the Ksee date

(26 January 2001, for the first time on 26 July 200 1. With effect from 26 July 2016 and If the Capital Securities
e not redeemed early, the distribution is sat for a further five-year period, without a step-up, based on the
LIS Treasury Benchmark Rate plus a 6 425% mark-up

Issue of EUR 500 million

The distribution 5 994% per year and & made payahla annually in amears a5 of the ksue date (37 Fehruary
2009), for the first time on 27 February 20100 As from 27 Febeuary 2019, the distibution will be made payable
every quarter based on the three-moanth Suribor plus an annual 7.50% mark-up,

Issue af NZD 280 million

Rabobank Rederland has Bsued Capital Securinbes and placed verm with Rabo Capital Securives Limived.

The distriturtion equals the free-yoas swap interest plus anannual 3.7 5% mark-up and wers se1 at B 7864% por
annum on 25 May 2000, As from the Bsee date [27 May 2009), the distribution is made payable cvery quarto
Im arrears, for the first time on 18 June 2009 (short first interest pedod]. From 18 June 2014, the distribution
will be made payable every quaner based an fivesyear swap intarest plus an annual 3.75% mark-up to ba et
on 18 Jurs> 2074, From 18 June 2019, the distripution will be mace payable cvery quanier based on the 90-day
Lnarik Bill sisvag Innerssl rate plus an ainus 3.75% matk-ug

43 Notes 1o the siarernent of inandlal position ol Rabebank Nedettand
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Issue of USL) 2,858 million

The distribution s 11.0% pet year and s mada payabla every six months in arreas as of the issue date (4 June
2009), for the first time en 31 Decernber 2009 (long first interest perod) As from 30 June 2019 the distribution
will be made pavable every quaner based an the three-manth USD Libor plus an anrusl 10.B5E% mark-up.

fesiie of CHF 750 millfar

The distributon s GB75% per yoar and |s made payable anmually in areears as of the issee date (14 July 2009),
far the first time on 1.2 Navernber 2009 {short frst inferest period). As from 12 November 2014 the distrioution
will be made payable every six manths based on the sie-ronth CHF Libor plus an annual 4.965% martk-up.
The ssus was redeemed an the earliest fisst redemprion date of 12 Neovember 2014,

Issue of GBP 250 million

The distribulon s 6.567% per year and |5 made payable every sis months in anears as of the swe date (10
June 200, for the first time on 13 Decernber 2008 As from 10 June 2038, the distribution will be made
panyakde every six months based an the six-manth GBI Libas plus an annual 2.825% meark-up.

Issure of CHF 250 millian

The distribution |5 5.50% pe year and b made payatde annually In arears as of the lsue date (27 June 2008},
far the first time o 27 bhene 2009, As from 27 June 5018, the distribution will be made payable every six
rmanths.on 27 June and 37 December based on the six-month CHF Libor plus an annual 2 80% mark-up

Issue of ILS 323 million

The distribution is 4.15% pet year and i made payatile annually in arrears as ol the haue date (14 July 2008],
far thiee first timse cn 14 buly 2009, As frorm 14 July 2018, the distibution will be made prable annually based
onan indaox elated to the interest rate pabc on lraell government bonds with terms between 4.5 and

5.5 years phus an annual 2.0% mack-up,

Issue af USD 225 miliian

Thie distribution is 7.375% per vear and (s made payable anmually in areears from the issue date (24 Seprembes
IR} pwery sk mantha, forihe irst Time on 24 March 2009, The Bsue was redeemed on the earlies firs
redemption date of 24 March 2014

Issure of NZD 900 million

The distribut'on on the N2D Capital Securities equals the one-year swap inferest rate plus an annual 0.75%
rrark-up and is made payable annually on B October, until B October 2017, As from & Ocsber 2017, the
distribution will be made pavable every quarter based on the S0-day bank bill swap intertest rate plus the
sami maik-up

The level of Aabobant Nederland's profit may influence the distributon on the Capltal Securities

Should Sabobark Nederland become insolvent, the Capaal Secuiies are subordinate 1o the rights of all other
feurrent and future) ereditars of Rababank Mededand, unless the lghts of thase ather creditors substantively
detenminge atheryise,

Capital Securities

FlC] 2013
Ibarwermeenit weete bt ol ows
Eaaneal 1 Ay T2 Traa
Earby oy of Capital Securities L] )
Dmeet i @
Balanse at 31 Decembser &880 204
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Revaluation reserve
This itern represents the differences between the cost and camying amount of revalued assets, net of the
redared provision for deferned 1ax liabilicies.

M4 otk
The resaluion e and Eanation dsense can be apecifed an boliose
Cavhfow hedges " 43
e ey LT Py 5
Equity invettments 2 m
Shares. gnd noneiniessH beanng surites 6Ea 595
Tetal revakiation reserved i Toa
barmermit ae ik oo
Bl il | My’ ] ¥
Carrrcies i) i
Bewaluions 1143 11331
Omtagt 158} 48]
Szl saken ponet ol [P 1088
Balane at 31 Decernbeer EL] Toil

Rabobank’s cash flow bedges are compeized malnly of cross-currency Interest-rate swaps which senve to
peolect against a potential change In cash flows of variable- interest inanclal lakbdlities in foreign currencies.
The net fair value of the cross-cumrency vieres;-rate swaps, classified as cash-flow hedging at 31 December
2014, |5 -2,660 (2013; -2,405).

In 2014, Rabobank accounted for an amount of 548 (2013: - 4500 after taxes in its equity as effective changes
v v Fale waluse of dehvaties in cash-flow hedges An amount of -586 (2013: 1.45%) alter tax wa reckssfied
froim the casheflow hedge reserve to the profit or loss account in 2014, The casheflow hedge eserve in equity
at 31 December 2014 was 11 {201 2: 49) after tax. This amount fluctustes along with the falr value of the
derlvatives in the cash-low hedges and is accounted for in the piofit for the term of the hedged positions as
riading peofit The cash-fliow hedge resarve relates to a large number of dativatives and hadged posinions with
different veerme. The maximurm temm i 97 years, with the highest concentrations excoeding five years

Drurineg the year, ending on 31 December 2014, Rabobank accounted for a profin of 185 (20013: 225) a5 & isult
of the particn ol the cach-flow hrdgp{ it was classified as inptfect whndgo'l

Statutory reserves
This concerns the resarve for retadred eamings of assockates, and transhation dfferences.

i My
The ststiBry reserves ean be speeifed o ol
Retaingd profis of srcciter J0 iy
Tearslatioen difeisnoes. [ty (3417
Tatal sther peserves 1z (438}
FLdb] e
birsirienin daning B year
Walance ot 1 Jemwsry |4 [
Froum mthesr Feservet 10 ST reLanves L5 m
Curtercy tranilation dferenom EEL an
Talance ot 31 Deosmiser L] [
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Oither reserves

Jond on
The refiuineg rederars i B jpedied o blowt
Tireabbraton of peraiomn’ 1108 (LIS}
1 Camabed in scoondance Hetairad #RImingE (2885 A
with BAG 19,122 Total sther ressrven {2aaay a7}
2004 For]
Belywgrrmaqnty, i the recall hrathoe of pengiona
Ealanoe i | Mrvasy [L2ET) (1455
Fecaligmation of penions [l 74|
From recalibuation of pensions o retained esmmngs. ) -
Halance at 31 Decemiser Iiea) 13,2511
200 2613
Mawemanty in retsmad ssminge
Balihio il | Mirisiey Lk pEEE]
Ay 1 of gy of gty i . o)
234 444
Prorfit b previsnn fnancial yras Tl b
Thist-party fees 11084 11,042
Oirschercds bz affi st Banks. (218 s
From pther sasrvr o siafulony remsne (5] CiL]
Firsats (et seuerert 1o re ik il s ieie o i k] £
Frpinyroen of Cipaital S untive 1&7 {14
Coat of e of Raboberk (Member) Certihcates - (o]
Dheo0urts and prémasns reliling 1o Rabobank fember) Demfiones . [135]
From il st of garnna i " (308
et changes. 118 A6
Balance at 31 Decombeer [L88E| AL

Ag @ rule, the resarves should nat Be distributed among the members. The Rabobank comnclidared financisl
statements include the financial data for Rabobank Nederand as well & that fos the Members and othes
group COrmipanie.

Rabobank Group's net profit was 1,842 (3013 2,007) the net profit of Rabobank Nededand was 1,352 (2013;
1,17491 The difference of 490 tepreserts the peofits of local Rabobaniks, which were not recognizad in the
single financial statements or the third-party Interasts,

The table below shows reconciliation batween the equity of Rabobank Nederland and that of Rabobank Group:

e M
Epasty of Rabashard Rederland uncler Part 9od Bock 2 of the Duich Cral Code 1agar 10540
Coapdtal pascl-isp by hocad Bnboibanis. 00 (A0}
Premiuim (540%) .
Acorrpenent of the equity of Rabobank Groumn: Capital Seourities naued by Friesland flank. - LA
A oo ponen of Bhe eguity of Rabooank Croun: Tet Prefesren Securites 1o '¥ (K] 139
A cerrpenest of the sguity of Rabsihank Group: Oeher nenrcantnoling Faenean 4F% s
Eapaity o local Rabobanka as under Part 8 of Book 7 of the Dutcn Gl Codie 25147 455
Conselidation i Hiusalng cflecti 1
Total group eguity under IFRS. s p 4 in Rabobank Group & 1al RLE by Ee.534
Management and agiEnCY LErvices

Management and agency Sonioes piovided 10 third parties attritute 1o all Rabobank’s actkvities. Rabobank
e administers assets, i s cwn name but fon the sccount and sk of thind parties, which sre separate from
It cwn assets.
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Other notes to the financial
statements of Rabobank Nederland

21 Bank tax and resolution levy

Banks aperating In the Methelands an | Ooraber of the vear under review are requised 1o pay bank
Thara are two rates of bank tac a rate of (044% for curnont Babilities and a rate of 0.032% for lang-term
liabilities, based on the balance recorded in December 2011 Rabobank was changed a total of 96 In bank tax
In 2014 (201 3 18], The resclution levy, 2 one-time kevy imposed by the Dutch government on the Dutch
banking industry in connection with the nationabisation of SNS Reaal, totalled 52.

22 Professional securities transactions and assets
not at the bank’s free disposal

Professional securlties transactions in which Rabobank Mederland lent sacurities for use.

a0 200
Sctiatitir et Fo anar
[ froen other banka T A
Lowes 10 cusinmess 1176 JLTFE]
Tatal 48,980 2454
Professional securithes ransactions in which Rabobank Nederland lent securizies

oM 003
Serusiiom e
Dhee b crther banks. 13 s
Dhuar et tsslusioers 42 5,824
Total arr EAL

The assets roferred toin the table bolaw (oxcopt professional securitios transactions) weee providod to
counterparties as security for fcontingent) Hatx lves. If Rabobank remains in defsult the countermpartbes may
use the security to settle the debt.

F FT ]
Baiesty it at the bank's e disgral Aelaied o iype of labdite
Duw froaem bt banks Dietiwartive francial innt ety Tame a2
Loany by o D b cusiomen: 4333 LT
nterest bearing srounitic Dt cuttasens 2045 12062
Totad 12074 121
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23 Contingent liabilities

Oooooooa

This item relates (o ransactions in which Rabobank Nederand stands surety Tor obligations of third parties

Cantingen! hstbey oonist of
Caannfees eic,
Lettess ol civelt

Tatal contingent lisbiltien
M which:

Conting i

aroup

Liability undertaking

034 g
120 THART
5,183 5718
TLAET VLMY
4501 Al

Pursuant to Section 403 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code, Rabobank Nederland has assumed Lability for the
debis anising from the legal transactions of the following group companies:

+ BN Bewasibedril Schretien & Co NV,

+ Hodemgeed HY,

« De Lage Landen America Haldings BV,
« De Lage Landen Cosporate Hnance BY.
+ De Lage Landen Facilities BY,

+ De Lage Landen Financia Services BY.

+ De Lage Landen Financlening BY.

+ De Lage Landen International BA.

« De Lage Landen Trade Finance BY.

(e Lage Landen L% Participations HY

+ Dic Lage Landen Yendorlease B

+ FGH Bank HA

+ Frietland Zekerhaden Maatschaopi] Holding M. .
rizsland Zeketheden Maatschaapi] MY

®

+

.

-

ML Handelmaatschappij “Het Zubden”
A Onroerend Goed Maatschappl] Gebeka

+ Pabo Groer Bank BY,

Rabo Herversekeringsmaatschappll MV

Rabo Imestments B,

fabo Merchant Bank M.

Rabo Mobiel BY,

Habo Participaties B

Rabobank International Holding BV

Habobank Nedeeland Participatie Maatschapni BY,

+ [ Acquisition Finance Grootbedriff BY,

R Corporate Finance BV
Sehretlen & Co MM

At the request of supervisory autharitles, Rabobank Nederkaid stands ssrety for the following

ITLIE COMpanies

+ Rabobank New Zealand Ld,
+ Rababank Australia Lid
+ Rababank Cursgas NV,

Rabobank Mederland issued Bouidity guarantees to Rabo Groen Bank BV, and Rabobank ieland Pl

Financial Statements 2014 Habohank Nederland
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Internal llability (cross-guarantee systam|

In accordance with the Financial Supendsion Act (Wet op het financlesl teezicht), legal entities belanging to
Rabobank Group are internally kable under an intragroup muiual keep well system, Under this system the
participating entities are bownd, In the event ol a lack of fundy of & panicipating entity 1o wtisly iUs crediton,
1o piewide the funds necessaty to sliow such dedficient participant 1o satisly its credions.

The participating entties are

+ The local Rabobanks of Codperatieve Contrale Raffalsen-Boerenteenbank BA.

+ Cobperatiave Cantrale Raiffeisen-Boarenleenbank BA. (Rabobank Mederland), Amsterdam
+ Rabohypatheekibank MY, Amsrerdam

+ Raifeisenhypotheekbank MY, Amsteadam

» Schvatlen & Co MY, Amsterdam

» [ Lage Landen Internatienal BY, Eindbeven

+ Do Lage Landen Financlenng BV, Eindhoven

+ De Lage Landen Trade Finance BY, Eindhoven

+ De Lage Landen Financial Servces B Eindhoven

Fiscal unit for corporate income Lax purposes

Rabobank Mederland forms a fiscal unit for purposes of corporate income tax with a number of domestic
subsidiaries and the member banks. Under the fscal unit, each participating legal entity is jeintly and severally
liable for the fiscal unit's corporate income ta liakilities,

24 Irrevocable facilities

This itern refates to all irrevocable facilitles that could lead to lending.

Ft] 20

Unuised credit fafities LA 32540
Ot AL 1539
d 4 i LSS pEN L

O wihisch QrOUR COMBan wis 147

25 Employees

The average number of employees was 1455 (3013 12.135), of which 2751 abraad (201 3: 3,705)
Expressed im FTES, the avetage number of employees was 12,193 (2013 11,8%3).

2ai4 A
g anel ualariee, 113 1058
Focinl scurity 2 4
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26 Principal subsidiaries and associates

ALY Diecember 2004 Shaw  Mating ghts
Frndipal sutisiiaie

The Maytharlunde

DLL Iretesniational By, Ll O
Fistee Vanlgesecigroep N A oo
ELk Bk WY Ll 00
(OMWM Rabwsbssmdoen L& I (R d
Crvion MY, 1o oo
Raltsobwpothehibank NV, Ll [Hie
Faaten Wieichas Bank WY, [ [Fiet
Bt ypanhechbank NY, 00 oo
Schieten & Loy, Ll oo
Othar ssrazone T countrie

ALC Lawn Manageereent LimHed 100 oo
Marth Asnarica

Babsckuark Capital Funding LOC 0¥ L1 (2: o
Faodan® Capial Funding Trin 18 oo Vi 100 e
Utrecki America Holding bsc. N0 D0
Auntralia snd New Tealand

Pstsoba ik Asatealia Limated 100% et
Puscbaank Mew Dealand Limited s PO

All subsidiaries listed in the table ase consolidated. In 2014, none of the subsidiaries exparienced any
significant restrictions in the payment of dividends or the redemption of loans and repayment of advances
The optlon of subsidaries 1o pay dvidend o Rabobank Nededland depends on varlous factors, including local
requlatary requitements, statutorny reserves and fnancial performance

27 Costs of external auditor

i iR of drod 20M M3
Financial tatementi audi L] ¥
Crbesr B ERATETEAE 1 2
Tt Sy it e . I
Tetal ? o

I the year under review, the audit irm Emst & Young Accountants LLP in the Netherdands iwvolced the above
amounts o Rabobank Nededand, 1ts subsidianes and athe companies It cansalidates, witkin the meaning of
Spction 382 of Book 2 of the Dutch Chvil Code, These amounts do net include fees far Bnancial siatements
audits, sther audit engagements, tax consultancy services and other non-audit services charged by other
auditors and other Ermst & Young business units.
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28 Remuneration of the Supervisory Board
and Executive Board

The members ol the Supervisory Board and the Executive Board are liated In note 29 of these fnancial
statements. Aabobank exclusively regards the members of the Executive Board a4 key management personnel,
In 2074, the remuneration of members ard former mambers of the Executive Board amounted to 6.3 (2013 5.8).

Toha! Redempton of
Foral P esformance Fer i laon

2 ELA Mhowtissmt iyl et Baigd bieetiis cemganent Tatal
W, Dvalier fiook office on 1 ufy #014) 4 ur - 1 LFi ]
WL Mlirscbethoudl (i office s [ Dcrober 20141 e - . . i)
A Bruggink a5 I . . 1,162
DL Matiin a5 T - 1 1185
AL Dby 1 24 4y
M. Magesd m E e
AL van Niurenhasiren ook ofioe on 24 March 7014} S48 158 : . w07
Total for 2014 as 1,308 . i 6T
Totsl for 2012 A% 1,288 u =813

Mr Minderhoud retired from the Esecative Board on | October 2014 and his remuneration is accounted for
uniil that date He recelved no severance pay. Mr Dragger joined the Executive Board on 1 Ociober; a total of sx
manths al rermunsarion is accounted for hime Since the vanable remuneation for membes of the Eseoutive
Bod) v diiscomtinued In 2013, the memder of DRMNs qmrl'lrd Tiwt 1hi= pi:rl'urllurlr.# yigr 2013 to membsers and
formar membars of the Executive Board is 0(2013:0), Thene wene a total of 12,133 DAMS outstanding with
membsers and former membars of the Executive Board at year-end 3014 (year-end 2013: 7,409), The pension
schemse of the members of the Executive Board classifies as a group defined coninbutian scheme.

Expernes telated 1o members and lormer mambeds of the Supenvisory Board totalied 1.6 (2013 16}

This ircludes the VAT and employers contributions payable. in addition 1o the iole of Superyisory Boasd
member of Rabobank Nederland, the remuneration also depends on the rales in the various commiltees
The composisan ol these commitlees B detaded in the Annual Report. The remuneration strueiure for 2014
[aclustve of VAT and other charges) b5 shawm in the lable below.

LTt Ehampepn  Depufy Champenon Wb
Shaparsoy Bosed Pk TI500 55,000
Mihit Commiiles 31500 14000 15003
Hitk Comenitien 31300 13000 15000
Appesh Corrittes T.500 o] 7500
Cooprrative haue Comenitien 14,000 = 15000
Kppairiments Commities 170 - b -]
Retiuneraton Comimiee 1,750 . 75

51 Oiber notes ra the financial statemenrs of Kabobank Nedsland
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The table below shows the remunaration (excluding VAT and other chargasi for iIndividual Supervisary fioand

rriemibars
i ELW ihyonssmd AR
W, Uehker 3
WP A e Vo LH]
LM, vaun Dhaken L]
LM, Deghe BE
WL Fresco fin offior andi! PR fone 20740 w
S0 Graalirma e
ALLAL Kamp i ot froem | December D140 v
EAL van de Menve 3
A Teetlieh B
CF, Wermnan L]
AL Ve fion officr usid 15 K 2014) 58
Total bor 2014 1084
Tartal for 2013 1.5
At Rababank, the Chairman of the Supervisory Board hobds a number of rakes which ane related to the
copefative. Thede rodes are specihied inthe Annua Repon
madbons of curce Ensivzeer Bocd Superman: Soard
Lioases, wibvances and quaraniees For FLok 2ar4 20nr
Chtvimeafing ot stit of yrar 14 4R L5 LA
Pyt chortrg S praas 3 £ 1 4
Aedeemed turing the year n LR L] [k
Rethuction o accoust of keaving office 0 LE1] = wn
narease on account of isking cifioe 8 b L] Ly =1
‘Qustandding &5 1131 Decembes a8 14 6 15
The boans, advances and guarantees of the members of the Executise in office at 31 December 2014
and the average imerest rates are shawn in the 1able below.
e g Areriigt i
I il of oy [ e
At 11 Decemiber 3014
FLL Dhekber K] ar
BLL Marstin a8 4l
L Nagel 10 18
L i Mieumen uiten 1o ET

The boans, advances and guarantees of the members of the Superdsory Board In office at 31 Decembeer 2074
and the average interest rates are shawn in the table below.

Desrranging AgETogd AT

i el o Bl i At T el
13| Do 1014

LM van Daden L:E LF
T Kaing 11 28
P eperman an a1

52 Financial Sratements 2014 Rabohank Nederland
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The Supervisary Board members nat listed in the table did not recalve any loans, advances or guarantees at
the end of 2014 These transactions with Executive Board members and Supervisory Board members in
person were completed based on employee rarms and/or markes-level rates for the Superdsory Board.
Thie amount of the rates depends in part on the currency, the ageeed fimed-interest perlod and the time the
tramsaction was completed or the time a new fined-interést term becomes effective,

Spweral members of the Bxacutive Board ana Supervisory Board have bwested in Rabobank Centificates in
person and/or through thelr own pension BVa This involved a 1ol number of 27,110 certificates at the end

of 2014,
Ny of
Aababonh Crrtifeotes
AL 11 Devesrieer 1014
A Bruyne Lral ]
Bl LP, Adecher Mook ]
LN Dege 4500 Gn penson LY )
A1 Graafums 4050 [in pereiiodn By

29 Approval of Supervisory Board

The publication of these financal statements was approvad oy the Supervisory Board on 31 March 2015,
They wil be submitted 1o the General Meeting for adoption in June 2015 Aababank Nederand's Asticles of
Asyociation provide as follows with regard to adeption of the financial statemens: ‘The Annual General
Maeeting’s resalution te adopt the hnancid statements shall be passed By an absolute majority of the voles
validly cast’

Executive Board
W. Draijer, Chaimman
. Bruggink, CFRO
F.J Dekker

B.J, Marttin

H, Magel

1L van Meeuwenhulzen

Supervisory Board

W Dk, Chadrmae

R. Teedink, Deputy Chaiman
CP Veerman, Deputy Chaltrman
ks LF. Asschee-vionk, Secretany
CH. van Dalen

LM, Degle

S0 Granfsrma

AN, Kamp

EAL vam dhe Menwe

Oiibser nates 1o the Anancial staremants of Raboabank Nedailand
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Other information

A, Articles of Assoclation provisions governing members’ contributions to shortfalls

It In the event of Rababank Nederland's liquidation, whethes by count ander or otherwise, its assens shauld
prove 1o be irsuficiont to maat it labdities, the mambers at the tima of tha liquidstion as well as those whe
ceased to be members in the year peior to the lkquidation, shabl be liable for the deficit

Im the event that Rabobank Mederland s dissolved on account of its insolbvency after it has been declared
bankrup, not ordy the membsers at that time but also those who ceased 1 be members in the year prior to
the bankruptcy orded of thedeafter shall be jointly liabfe. The amount payable by sach member oo former
riemiber i equivalent 1o the percentage of his llocaton ratio multipbed by the amount of the defici, with
the provisa that former members are subject 1o the allocation key ruling at the time they retired. If it should
perove impassible to recover the shade af ane or mase liable membens or former members in the shortlall fram
them, the remalning members and fermer members shall be jointly llable In the same proportion for the
amount not recovesad,

I the evant of & liquidation out of court, the nability to recover the share of one or mose membsers or farmes
members in the thortfall from them shall be desmed 1o exdst i the liquidators, subject to the pries appraval
of the Supendtuony Board, should waive the right of recourse because exstcising the ght would nét lead o
Ay MICOvery.

The amunt for which members o former members are labbe as refered 1o above shall pever be more than
¥ of thelr latest adopted statement of the hmancial position fotals. Liable former membens who contifbuted
1o earlber equity deficits shall be allowed 1o deduct the toal amount patd earlier from the amount chargeabls
1z them in the event of Rababank Mederland’s Bguidazicn.

Thise Amicles of Association provisions do not prejudice the obligations of the local Rabobanks af
Cobperatieve Centrale Raiffeiien-Boerenleenbank BA. and other entities within Rsbobank Group under the
imagroup misheal keep well system to make up each other's defichs for the amount of their total ssets in the
event of a lack of funds te satlsdy thelr credibors, without financlal limitation as described In the previous
paragragh The cross-guarantee system is described in more detall in the notes to the statement of the
financial position of Rabobank Nederland.

B. Articles of Assodlation provisiens governing profit appropriation and proposed profit
appropriation of Cosperatiove Centrale Raiffeizen-Boorenleenbank BA.
(Rabobank Nederland)

Statutery provisions regarding profil appropriation

Netwithstanding the provisions of Article 18 regarding compensation on aquily investments, the profit on
shanes can be wsed to pay a dividend 1 the holders of the shares on the thiry-first of December of 1he
firincial year for which the dvidend s padd. The dividend & approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders
at the proposal of the Executhe Board, The remaining portion of the profit will be used by the Executive Board
In arder to lmpuove the solvency of Rabobank Nededand. A dividend can only be pad to shareholders from
the reserves in compliance with the provisions of Article 70 The resolution to approve the dividend, along
with the decision for further profit appropriagion, is adopted by an absclute majosity of the vores validly cast

Financial Statements 2014 Habohank Nedarland
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Dhuring the existence of fabobank Mededand, the reserves may not be distributed amang the members
naither in part nor in whole, unless compensation & oald on the Rabobank (Membeai) Certificates from the
reserves. in thar case, the General Meeting may resalve, ag e proposal of the Execurtive Board, o make
payment 1o the shasehoklers fram the reserves. If Rabobank Nededand were 1o decide atany time 16 dissalve
it operations in cader to have Its business cortinued b-; anather |:1i|ql entity or mgqniul:lnth Theéss fegeries
will b trandeired 1o such other legal emity ar organisation

Proposal regarding the appropriation of available profit for Rabobank Nederland
O the profit of 1,352, a total of 1,088 s payable 1o the holders of Capital Secutities and Aabobank (Member)

Cartificates, in accordance with Executive Board resolutions. It was propesed to pay the remaining peofit o
the shareholdes,

e infarrmation
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Independent auditor's report

To: The General Meeting of Codperatieve Centrale Raiffeisen-Boerenleenbank B.A.

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements 2014

Our opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements 2014 which are part of the financial statements of
Codperatieve Centrale Raiffeisen-Boerenleenbank B.A. (hereafter: ‘Rabobank’), based in Amsterdam.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of
Rabobank as at December 31, 2014 and of its result and its cash flows for 2014 in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union and with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil
Code.

The consolidated financial statements comprise:

1 the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2014;

2 the following statements for 2014: consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows; and

3 the notes comprising a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Basis for our opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Dutch law, including the Dutch Standards on Auditing. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the ‘Our responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements’ section of our report.

We are independent of Rabobank in accordance with the Verordening inzake de onafhankelijkheid van
accountants bij assurance-opdrachten ( ViO) and other relevant independence regulations in the Netherlands.

Furthermore, we have complied with the Verordening gedrags- en beroepsregels accountants ( VGBA).

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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Materiality

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements. The materiality affects the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures
and the evaluation of the effect of identified misstatements on our opinion.

Based on our professional judgment we determined the materiality for the financial statements as a whole at
EUR 85 million. The materiality is based on 5% of operating profit before tax. We have also taken into account
misstatements and/or possible misstatements that in our opinion are material for the users of the consolidated
financial statements for qualitative reasons.

We agreed with the Supervisory Board that misstatements in earnings in excess of EUR 5 million, which are
identified during the audit, would be reported to them, as well as smaller misstatements that in our view must be
reported on qualitative grounds.

Scope of the group audit
Rabobank is for financial reporting purposes head of a group of entities. The financial information of this group is
included in the consolidated financial statements of Rabobank.

Because we are ultimately responsible for the opinion, we are also responsible for directing, supervising and
performing the group audit. In this respect we have determined the nature and extent of the audit procedures to
be carried out for group entities. Decisive were the size and / or the risk profile of the group entities or operations.
On this basis, we selected group entities for which an audit or review had to be carried out on the complete set of
financial information or specific items.

Our group audit mainly focused on significant group entities and associates in retail banking and wholesale

banking globally as well as on leasing, real estate and insurance activities. We have:

« performed audit procedures ourselves at the group entities in scope;

 used the work of other EY auditors when auditing entities outside the Netherlands, as well as the audit of the
real estate activities;

 used the work of other non-EY auditors when auditing the entities in Ireland, as well as the audit of the leasing
and insurance activities;

« performed review procedures or specific audit procedures at the other group entities in scope.
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All these entities represented 96% of the consolidated pre-tax income and 96% of total assets. This provided us

with the evidence we needed for our opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The remaining entities were
considered to be immaterial.

By performing the procedures mentioned above at group entities, together with additional procedures at group
level, we have been able to obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence about the group’s financial
information to provide an opinion about the consolidated financial statements.

Our key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the consolidated financial statements. We have communicated the key audit matters to the Supervisory Board.
The key audit matters are not a comprehensive reflection of all matters discussed.

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Valuation of financial assets at amortized costs

Despite signs of economic recovery, the impact of the economic conditions of the last few years on the default
risk and the cost of credit losses are still high, especially in the Netherlands. In addition, the economic conditions
and the technological developments influence the need for office and retail space (commercial real estate),
resulting in increased vacancy and/or lower rental rates. Reference is made to note 4.4 in the financial
statements. The assessment processes of credit risks and the valuation of commercial real estate are complex,
include subjective elements and are based on assumptions that may come out differently than expected.

During our audit, extra attention was paid to the assessment of credit risks and the valuation of commercial real
estate. Additionally, the results and insights of the Asset Quality Review conducted by the ECB were
incorporated in our audit procedures. During our audit of the loan loss provisions and the valuation of commercial
real estate, we primarily assessed the judgments made related to the ability of the debtor to fulfil the contractual
obligations arising out of the financing agreement. If this is questionable or if shortages are expected, judgment is
made whether the value of the collateral, such as commercial real estate, can cover any shortfalls. For
commercial real estate positions, including development and land positions, we primarily assessed the judgments
made related to the value of the commercial real estate itself. The loan strategy of the bank is an important
aspect in making the assessments of credit risks or the valuation of commercial real estate. Our audit work
included investigating the expectations and assumptions about future cash flows, which also makes use of
external data, such as accounts of debtors and valuation reports of properties.
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Valuation of financial assets and liabilities at fair value

Fair value measurement and associated valuation adjustments can be a subjective area and more so for so
called areas of ‘level 3' model based valuation or markets with weak liquidity and low frequently price discovery.
Market conditions can also be volatile due to current uncertainty and market practice continues to evolve both in
terms of quantitative adjustments and the operational suite of controls necessary to support the valuation
process. Valuation techniques can be subjective in nature and involve various assumptions regarding pricing
factors. The use of different valuation techniques and assumptions could produce significantly different estimates
of fair value. Associated risk management disclosure is complex and dependent on quality data.

We assessed the design and operating effectiveness of the internal controls over valuation and performed
independently price verification and model approval. We performed additional procedures for areas of higher risk
and estimation with the assistance of our valuation specialists. This included, where relevant, comparison of
judgments made to current and emerging market practice and reperformance of valuations on a sample basis.
We also assessed the impact of other sources of fair value information including gains or losses on disposal.
Finally, we assessed the design and operating effectiveness of the controls over related disclosures including the
disclosure of valuation sensitivity and fair value hierarchy. Reference is made to note 4.9 in the financial
statements.

Organisational changes

During 2014, several organizational changes were made concerning the sale or downsizing of activities and
assets on the one hand and the changes in the internal structures with the integration of Rabobank International
and Rabobank Netherlands, the restructuring of the local Rabobanks on the other hand and the recent
announcement of the changes regarding FGH Bank. These changes impact the internal control organization of
the bank, presentation of discontinued activities in the financial statements and impact the result due to
restructuring provisions and transaction results. Reference is made to note 5 and 23 in the financial statements.

Our audit work included the assessment and testing of the impact of these changes on the internal organizational
structure and effectiveness of the internal controls to conclude to which extent we can make use of these internal
controls. We have also assessed the impact of these changes on the external reporting including the necessary
restructuring provisions in accordance with IFRS.
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Reliability and continuity of electronic data processing

Rabobank Group is strongly dependent on the IT-infrastructure for the continuity of their business processes. In
the last few years, Rabobank Group invested in the improvement of IT-hardware, systems and processes,
focused on the increased effectiveness of the IT-infrastructure and the reliability and continuity of electronic data
processing.

We assessed the reliability and continuity of electronic data processing only to the extent necessary within the
scope of the audit of the financial statements. Our work consisted of assessing the developments in the IT
infrastructure and analyzing the impact on the internal control organization. Additionally, we tested the design
and operating effectives of relevant internal controls related to IT systems and processes.

Consolidated financial statements as part of the (complete) financial statements

The (complete) financial statements of Rabobank 2014 include the ‘Consolidated financial statement 2014
Rabobank Group’ and the ‘Financial statements 2014 Rabobank Nederland. For a proper understanding of the
financial position and result the consolidated financial statements must be considered in connection with the
company financial statements. On 31 March 2015 we issued a separate auditor 's report on the company
financial statements.

Responsibilities of management and the Supervisory Board for the consolidated financial statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with EU-IFRS and Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code, and for the preparation of the
management board report in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code. Furthermore,
management is responsible for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

As part of the preparation of the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
Rabobank’s ability to continue as a going concern. Based on the financial reporting frameworks mentioned,
management should prepare the consolidated financial statements using the going concern basis of accounting
unless there is the intend either to liquidate Rabobank or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so. Management should disclose events and circumstances that may cast significant doubt on Rabobank’s
ability to continue as a going concern in the consolidated financial statements.

The Supervisory Board is responsible for overseeing Rabobank’s financial reporting process.
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Our responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objective is to plan and perform the audit assignment in a manner that allows us to obtain sufficient and
appropriate audit evidence for our opinion.

Our audit has been performed with a high, but not absolute, level of assurance, which means we may not have
detected all errors and fraud.

We have exercised professional judgment and have maintained professional skepticism throughout the audit, in

accordance with Dutch Standards on Auditing, ethical requirements and independence requirements.

Our audit included e.qg.:

« Identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, designing and performing audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtaining audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtaining an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
Rabobank’s internal control.

« Evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

» Concluding on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on Rabobank’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor ’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor 's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause Rabobank ceasing to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluating the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures;
and

« Evaluating whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Supervisory Board regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of

the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant findings in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

581/594



EDINETOOOO
OOo0ooooooooooOo00o00o0oO00DLO0000000bO00D0bO000DO0dnoo(es92s)
oOoOooodn

We provide the Supervisory Board with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Supervisory Board, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor 's report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, when not communicating the matter is in
the public interest.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Report on the management board report and the other information

Pursuant to legal requirements of Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code (concerning our obligation to report

about the management board report and other information):

« We have no deficiencies to report as a result of our examination whether the management board report, to the
extent we can assess, has been prepared in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code, and
whether the information as required by Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code has been annexed.

* We report that the management board report, to the extent we can assess, is consistent with the financial
statements.

Engagement
We were engaged as auditor of Codperatieve Centrale Raiffeisen-Boerenleenbank B.A. as of the audit for the
year 1972 and have operated as statutory auditor ever since that date.

Amsterdam, 31 March 2015

Ernst & Young Accountants LLP

/sl C.B. Boogaart
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Independent auditor's report

To: The General Meeting of Codperatieve Centrale Raiffeisen-Boerenleenbank B.A.

Report on the audit of the company financial statements 2014

Our opinion

We have audited the company financial statements 2014 which are part of the financial statements of
Codperatieve Centrale Raiffeisen-Boerenleenbank B.A. (hereafter: ‘Rabobank’), based in Amsterdam.

In our opinion, the company financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of Rabobank as
at December 31, 2014 and of its result for 2014 in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

The company financial statements comprise:

1 the company statement of financial position as at December 31, 2014;

2 the company statement of income for 2014; and

3 the notes comprising a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Basis for our opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Dutch law, including the Dutch Standards on Auditing.

Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the ‘Our responsibilities for the audit of the
company financial statements’ section of our report.

We are independent of Rabobank in accordance with the Verordening inzake de onafhankelijkheid van
accountants bij assurance-opdrachten ( ViO) and other relevant independence regulations in the Netherlands.

Furthermore, we have complied with the Verordening gedrags- en beroepsregels accountants ( VGBA).

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

589/594



EDINETOIOOD
oo o o o o o o =3¢
oooooog
Materiality

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these company
financial statements. The materiality affects the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures and the
evaluation of the effect of identified misstatements on our opinion.

Based on our professional judgment we determined the materiality for the financial statements as a whole at
EUR 85 million. The materiality is based on 5% of operating profit before tax as presented in the consolidated
financial statements. We have also taken into account misstatements and/or possible misstatements that in our
opinion are material for the users of the company financial statements for qualitative reasons.

We agreed with the Supervisory Board that misstatements in earnings in excess of EUR 5 million, which are
identified during the audit, would be reported to them, as well as smaller misstatements that in our view must be
reported on qualitative grounds.

Our key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the company financial statements. We have communicated the key audit matters to the Supervisory Board. The
key audit matters are not a comprehensive reflection of all matters discussed.

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the company financial statements as a whole and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Valuation of financial assets at amortized costs

Despite signs of economic recovery, the impact of the economic conditions of the last few years on the default
risk and the cost of credit losses are still high, especially in the Netherlands. In addition, the economic conditions
and the technological developments influence the need for office and retail space (commercial real estate),
resulting in increased vacancy and/or lower rental rates. Reference is made to note 4.4 in the financial
statements. The assessment processes of credit risks and the valuation of commercial real estate are complex,
include subjective elements and are based on assumptions that may come out differently than expected.
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During our audit, extra attention was paid to the assessment of credit risks and the valuation of commercial real

estate. Additionally, the results and insights of the Asset Quality Review conducted by the ECB were
incorporated in our audit procedures. During our audit of the loan loss provisions and the valuation of commercial
real estate, we primarily assessed the judgments made related to the ability of the debtor to fulfil the contractual
obligations arising out of the financing agreement. If this is questionable or if shortages are expected, judgment is
made whether the value of the collateral, such as commercial real estate, can cover any shortfalls. For
commercial real estate positions, including development and land positions, we primarily assessed the judgments
made related to the value of the commercial real estate itself. The loan strategy of the bank is an important
aspect in making the assessments of credit risks or the valuation of commercial real estate. Our audit work
included investigating the expectations and assumptions about future cash flows, which also makes use of
external data, such as accounts of debtors and valuation reports of properties.

Valuation of financial assets and liabilities at fair value

Fair value measurement and associated valuation adjustments can be a subjective area and more so for so
called areas of ‘level 3' model based valuation or markets with weak liquidity and low frequently price discovery.
Market conditions can also be volatile due to current uncertainty and market practice continues to evolve both in
terms of quantitative adjustments and the operational suite of controls necessary to support the valuation
process. Valuation techniques can be subjective in nature and involve various assumptions regarding pricing
factors. The use of different valuation techniques and assumptions could produce significantly different estimates
of fair value. Associated risk management disclosure is complex and dependent on quality data.

We assessed the design and operating effectiveness of the internal controls over valuation and performed
independently price verification and model approval. We performed additional procedures for areas of higher risk
and estimation with the assistance of our valuation specialists. This included, where relevant, comparison of
judgments made to current and emerging market practice and reperformance of valuations on a sample basis.
We also assessed the impact of other sources of fair value information including gains or losses on disposal.
Finally, we assessed the design and operating effectiveness of the controls over related disclosures including the
disclosure of valuation sensitivity and fair value hierarchy.

Organisational changes

During 2014, several organizational changes were made concerning the sale or downsizing of activities and
assets on the one hand and the changes in the internal structures with the integration of Rabobank International
and Rabobank Netherlands on the other hand and the recent announcement of the changes regarding FGH
Bank. These changes impact the internal control organization of the bank, presentation of discontinued activities
in the financial statements and impact the result due to restructuring provisions and transaction results.
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Our audit work included the assessment and testing of the impact of these changes on the internal organizational

structure and effectiveness of the internal controls to conclude to which extent we can make use of these internal
controls. We have also assessed the impact of these changes on the external reporting including the necessary
restructuring provisions in accordance with relevant accounting principles.

Reliability and continuity of electronic data processing

Rabobank Group is strongly dependent on the IT-infrastructure for the continuity of their business processes. In
the last few years, Rabobank Group invested in the improvement of IT-hardware, systems and processes,
focused on the increased effectiveness of the IT-infrastructure and the reliability and continuity of electronic data
processing.

We assessed the reliability and continuity of electronic data processing only to the extent necessary within the
scope of the audit of the financial statements. Our work consisted of assessing the developments in the IT
infrastructure and analyzing the impact on the internal control organization. Additionally, we tested the design
and operating effectives of relevant internal controls related to IT systems and processes.

Company financial statements as part of the (complete) financial statements

The (complete) financial statements of Rabobank 2014 include the ‘Consolidated financial statement 2014
Rabobank Group’ and the ‘Financial statements 2014 Rabobank Nederland'. For a proper understanding of the
financial position and result the company financial statements must be considered in connection with the
consolidated financial statements. On 31 March 2015 we issued a separate auditor ’s report on the consolidated
financial statements.

Responsibilities of management and the Supervisory Board for the company financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the company financial statements in
accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code, and for the preparation of the management board
report in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code. Furthermore, management is responsible for
such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the company financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

As part of the preparation of the company financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
Rabobank’s ability to continue as a going concern. Based on the financial reporting framework mentioned,
management should prepare the company financial statements using the going concern basis of accounting
unless there is the intend either to liquidate Rabobank or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so. Management should disclose events and circumstances that may cast significant doubt on Rabobank’s
ability to continue as a going concern in the company financial statements.

The Supervisory Board is responsible for overseeing Rabobank’s financial reporting process.
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Our responsibilities for the audit of the company financial statements

Our objective is to plan and perform the audit assignment in a manner that allows us to obtain sufficient and
appropriate audit evidence for our opinion.

Our audit has been performed with a high, but not absolute, level of assurance, which means we may not have
detected all errors and fraud.

We have exercised professional judgment and have maintained professional skepticism throughout the audit, in

accordance with Dutch Standards on Auditing, ethical requirements and independence requirements.

Our audit included e.qg.:

« ldentifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement of the company financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, designing and performing audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtaining audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtaining an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
Rabobank’s internal control.

« Evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

» Concluding on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on Rabobank’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
company financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor 's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause Rabobank ceasing to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluating the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures;
and

» Evaluating whether the company financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Supervisory Board regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of

the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant findings in internal control that we identify during
our audit.
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We provide the Supervisory Board with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Supervisory Board, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the company financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor 's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, when not communicating the matter is in the public
interest.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Report on the management board report and the other information

Pursuant to legal requirements of Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code (concerning our obligation to report

about the management board report and other information):

* We have no deficiencies to report as a result of our examination whether the management board report, to the
extent we can assess, has been prepared in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code, and
whether the information as required by Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code has been annexed.

« We report that the management board report, to the extent we can assess, is consistent with the financial
statements.

Engagement
We were engaged as auditor of Codperatieve Centrale Raiffeisen-Boerenleenbank B.A. as of the audit for the
year 1972 and have operated as statutory auditor ever since that date.

Amsterdam, 31 March 2015

Ernst & Young Accountants LLP

/s/ C.B. Boogaart
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